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Profile of ICBC (Asia)

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited (“ICBC (Asia)” or the “Bank”) is a licensed bank incorporated in
Hong Kong. It is the flagship of overseas business of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited (“ICBC”) - currently
the largest commercial bank in China, and it is one of the domestic systemically important banks (D-SIBs) in Hong Kong. It is
engaged in commercial banking, investment banking and other financial services, including those of securities, insurance and
funds, with a focus on commercial and retail banking as well as global market business.

ICBC (Asia) was formerly known as Union Bank of Hong Kong Limited. Union Bank of Hong Kong Limited was established
in Hong Kong in 1964 and publicly listed in 1973. The Bank changed its name to “Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(Asia) Limited” on 21 August 2000 following its becoming a member of ICBC Group.

In July 2001, ICBC injected the corporate banking business of its Hong Kong Branch into ICBC (Asia). It expanded the
customer base of ICBC (Asia), improved its deposits and loans portfolio and also diversified its product mix. Such transfer of
business therefore led to a substantial enhancement of the competitive edge of ICBC (Asia).

ICBC (Asia) acquired Fortis Bank Asia HK’s retail and commercial banking operations on 30 April 2004. Fortis Bank Asia HK
was then renamed to Belgian Bank and became a wholly-owned subsidiary of ICBC (Asia). In October 2005, Belgian Bank,
Hong Kong Branch was formally merged with ICBC (Asia). In 2005, ICBC (Asia) acquired Chinese Mercantile Bank which
becomes its wholly-owned subsidiary and focuses on renminbi banking business in Mainland China.

On 31 August 2008, ICBC (Asia) completed the acquisition of Worldsec Asset Management Limited and renamed it to
ICBC (Asia) Investment Management Company Limited (officially changed the name to ICBC Asset Management (Global)
Company Limited in October 2017). Being a wholly-owned subsidiary of ICBC (Asia), ICBC Asset Management (Global)
Company Limited specialised in ICBC’s global asset management business.

On 21 December 2010, ICBC completed its privatisation process of ICBC (Asia), which was henceforth withdrawn from
listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and became a wholly-owned subsidiary of ICBC. The completion of
privatisation thus provides ICBC (Asia) with broader access to finance, allows greater flexibility in obtaining the support of
ICBC and achieving more effective business connection and integration within the ICBC Group.

Upon the completion of the privatisation process, ICBC (Asia) accelerates its pace of development. Benefited from its
continuous enhancing profitability, innovation, risk management and control effectiveness and other driven forces, ICBC
(Asia) achieves a good momentum of steady growth in the client base and business development, resulting in continued
expanding of its total asset size and optimisation of its asset structure.

By persisting in the business strategy of “Taking root in Hong Kong, Connecting with Mainland China, Spanning across Asia
Pacific, Facing the World”, ICBC (Asia) seizes the favourable opportunities of Hong Kong being the offshore renminbi centre
and keenly explores renminbi businesses and cross-border banking services. ICBC (Asia) realised a number of pioneering
projects in offshore renminbi financial products, and received various awards regarding quality cross-border services from
official organisations in Mainland China and Hong Kong and well-known media, such as “Best Bank in Hong Kong (Chinese

Financial Institutions)”, “Excellent Brand of Cross-border Banking Services”, “Excellent Foreign Institutional Investor”, and
“Best Treasury Management Bank Award”, etc.

03



o R R SRAT () AR A

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

N &#

BE_ZX-HF A= +HMHIE

HHY

VW (F TS

VWS (F) T )

W (LR BT EF T )

ET Wi > sBS. - KPaht (G FEN~ BrFEHTHESF)
WA (P ITHESF -~ BT ATIT R
YW (FHITEF)

VIR (BT EF)

RN (Jy s BT EE)

WK4&W o ruKioD (# L HF#H 17# F)

R (L I T )

P BE - SBS. KTVt (B L I 175 F)

oy B
T

BEUEEY

P BE > sB.S. . KPa 1 ()
Y (B L)

TEFWi > sBs. o KTA X

3 e

B B A SE VR R E
B (F)

KR

i

bi3=d g

ET Wi > sBS. > K>

3 e

R4 FHKIoD*

R

Pl B > S.B.S. o AKOT B

o

Al

/

LI HITEH

04

SRR
Annual Report 2021

HEFREEHEZEY
P ()

WA R (B LR

v i)

g

R4 > FHKIoD*

ve - i

Pl > S.B.S. o KT B

i Z H o
R4W > FHKIOD* (F/#)
biig gt

e e+

RETEGT
R (F)

W 2 R

ETFWi> s.BS. > KT-4++

= g A B B

W (LA ATEF)

W WEN () T e B 17 H)

R (G LI~ BT HEF AT H A
WERE (BT F TR A AT T B
B85 () 17 B AE AT )
W () 17203 #)

EMW (A 777 H)
% (A7 E A )

Bl SR M (/77 B AE #)

W ()T AR B R E)

2 il bl

PEBh - B 3 Bl D5 €k 4T

ak: 24 = i
il R 3 =
o AT

A4 Hk

http://www.icbcasia.com



SRR
Annual Report 2021

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Gao Ming
(Chairman & Executive Director)
Shen Xiaodong
(Vice Chairman & Executive Director)
Wu Long
(Vice Chairman, Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer)
Wong Yue Chim, Richard, S.B.S., J.P.
(Vice Chairman, Independent Non-executive Director)
Lu Jian
(Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive ¢
Alternate Chief Executive)
Hong Guilu (Non-executive Director)
Hu Yimin (Non-executive Director)
Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec (Independent Non-executive Director)
Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD
(Independent Non-executive Director)
Wu Jie Si (Independent Non-executive Director)
Or Ching Fai, S.B.S., ].P. (Independent Non-executive Director)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Yu Hong

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Or Ching Fai, $.B.S., ].P.* (Chairman)
Hong Guilu (Alternate Chairman)
Wong Yue Chim, Richard, S.B.S., J.p.*
Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec*

STRATEGY AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Gao Ming (Chairman)

Shen Xiaodong

Wu Long

Hong Guilu

Wong Yue Chim, Richard, S.B.S., J.P.*

Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec*

Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD*

Wau Jie Si*

Or Ching Fai, S.B.S., J.P.*

*  Independent Non-executive Director
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Corporate Information

As at 24 March 2022

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec* (Chairman)

Hu Yimin (Alternate Chairman)

Wu Long

Lu Jian

Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD*

Wu Jie Si*

Or Ching Fai, S.B.S., J.P.*

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD* (Chairman)
Hong Guilu
Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec*

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Wau Jie Si* (Chairman)

Hu Yimin

Wong Yue Chim, Richard, S.B.S.,]J.p.*

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Gao Ming
(Chairman & Executive Director)
Shen Xiaodong
(Vice Chairman & Executive Director)
Wu Long
(Vice Chairman, Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer)
Lu Jian
(Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive ¢
Alternate Chief Executive)
Leung Ming Hym, Peter
(Deputy Chief Executive & Alternate Chief Executive)
Gu Xuan (Deputy Chief Executive)
Wang Chaoming
(Deputy Chief Executive ¢ Chief Information Officer)
Li Dong (Deputy Chief Executive)
Chen Yinbin (Deputy Chief Executive)
Lu Qiang (Assistant Chief Executive & Chief Risk Officer)

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

REGISTERED OFFICE
33/F., ICBC Tower

3 Garden Road

Central, Hong Kong

WEBSITE

http://www.icbcasia.com
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B %% 8B %
7~ /.
Sk 5 4l Financial Highlights
S 4 1
248 (H 8 0) For the Year (in HK$ million) 2021 2020 % Change
AL A Net Interest Income 9,367 9,836 -4.8%
&S T EA PN Net Fee and Commission Income 2,130 1,979 7.6%
HoAh U A Other Operating Income 706 750 -5.9%
e Sy Operating Expenses 3,777 3,677 2.7%
2 ~ P g Lxp
SR B 2 R TR Net Impairment Losses on Financial Assets (1,981) (2,923) -32.2%
R Bt i 42 A Profit before Tax 6,974 6,460 8.0%
BiIH Tax 1,308 935 40.0%
i o AL 2 ) Profit Attributable to shareholders 5,665 5,525 2.5%
A1
AR R (&) At Year End (in HK$ million) 2021 2020 % Change
AR R Ho A R TE Advances and other accounts 462,056 479,562 -3.7%
W Total Assets 927,875 931,093 -0.3%
17K 4B Total Deposits 553,937 529,530 4.6%
HE 25 403 Total Equity 143,593 137,767 4.2%
g S Financial Ratios 2021 2020
EA TR LR Capital Adequacy Ratio 22.71% 21.11%
R R Average Liquidity Coverage Ratio 197.70% 207.08%
BAS B U L Cost to Income 30.95% 29.27%
B WAL 2 2 B SR R JBe 3R M A ik A
Operating Profit Before Impairment Losses Profit Attributable to Shareholders
[EE 3P T T
HKS$ million HKS million
12,000 A 9,000 PN +5.0%
11,000 0.5% 8
10,000 212% 9(3'557{ 8000 e
500 5888 7,000
9,000 3426 ’ +2.5%
8,000 6,000 5,665 ;35;;"
7,000
5,000
6,000
5,000 4,000
4,000 3,000
3,000
2,000
2,000
1,000 1,000
0 0
2021 2020 2018 2017 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
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047 S 5 BB Five Year Summary
B4R (H B o0) For the Year (in HK$ million) 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
F AL A Net Interest Income 9,367 9,836 12,155 11,625 10,052
kg A E U A Net Fee and Commission Income 2,130 1,979 2,204 2,396 2,376
FoAbE ZE U A Other Operating Income 706 750 620 716 208
CE S Operating Expenses 3,777 3,677 3,708 3,454 3,064
S RiE B 2 R TR Net Impairment Losses on Financial Assets (1,981) (2,923) (1,831) (1,229) (580)
o3 i i 2 Profit before Tax 6,974 6,460 9,980 10,392 9,481
i IH Tax 1,308 935 1,678 2,113 1,713
% TR Ak 22 ) Profit Attributable to Shareholders 5,665 5,525 8,303 8,278 7,767
RAEEH (F #Ei o) At Year End (in HK$ million) 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
A3 B A AR IH Advances and other accounts 462,056 479,562 474,986 475,789 459,830
R AR Total Assets 927,875 931,093 953,564 893,618 898,109
1E A HAEH Total Deposits 553,937 529,530 543,923 558,480 587,352
HE £ 48 BH Total Equity 143,593 137,767 133,855 117,317 91,686
1085 e % Financial Ratios 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
AR FE AL LL R Capital Adequacy Ratio 22.71% 21.11% 20.56% 19.75% 16.57%
FHRBESEEILER Average Liquidity Coverage Ratio 197.70%  207.08% 192.16% 166.47% 134.83%
B O R AL R Loans to Total Assets 49.80% 51.51% 49.81% 53.24% 51.20%
bERIERE &g Impaired Loan ratio 1.32% 0.91% 1.04% 0.81% 0.66%
FE A5 H BE TS Non credit-impaired ECL 1.38% 1.04% 1.00% 1.13% 1.27%
T A 2 e Coverage Ratio*
PRA A LR Cost to Income 30.95% 29.27% 24.75% 23.44% 24.25%
12 [ o Return on Average Assets 0.61% 0.59% 0.90% 0.90% 0.96%
-2 8% 58 A [l i Return on Average Common Equity 5.01% 5.11% 8.44% 9.56% 9.72%
AR [ E A * Including “Regulatory Reserve”
¥ 17K B
Total Assets Total Deposits
R HEs T
HKS$ million HKS million 426.3%
+6.7% -4.9%
1,000,000 9-2(;;9;5 9'321-)093 953,7524 0% 124% 600,000 5‘;‘;-,59‘;"7 % 5;]25%“;3 55%,480 587,352

900,000
800,000
700,000
600,000
500,000
400,000
300,000
200,000
100,000

0

2021 2020

893,618 898,109

2019 2018 2017

500,000

400,000

300,000

200,000

100,000

2021

2020 2019

2018 2017
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% P Customer Deposits
1. &R0 E 4 1. ByType 2021 2020
15 4 Current 9.0% 8.3%
% Savings 32.6% 31.5%
E M Fixed 58.4% 60.2%
B Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. WREREON A5 2. By Remaining Maturity 2021 2020
JEL I SR IR BV Ik 1 Repayable on Demand 42.1% 40.3%
—fE A Up to one month 17.3% 16.1%
—E={WA 1-3 months 18.3% 18.3%
=2+ A 3-12 months 18.7% 22.8%
— B R 1-5 years 3.6% 2.5%
b Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. WRWE S 3. By Currency 2021 2020
D HKD 44.8% 43.8%
FIt UsD 33.8% 35.1%
oAt Others 21.4% 21.1%
&t Total 100.0% 100.0%
BN E TN Other Operating Income 2021 2020
28 5 WA B LA B (B A8 48 4 % Net trading income and net gain/(loss) on financial assets and
AR A il R s Rl as S (s ) liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 26.0% 51.9%
KA & a2 BB A Dividend income from financial investments 11.3% 4.8%
(ERiEATON Management fee income 53.5% 34.5%
LIESTEA LN Rental income 3.3% 3.5%
FHoAt Others 5.9% 5.3%
&t Total 100.0% 100.0%
£k 48 A0 B I Al MR o AR 2K e R
Total Advances and Other Accounts Impaired Loan Ratio
[EE 3P 43 L
HKS$ million %
+1.0%  02%  +3.5%
500,000 -3:7% 479,562 474,986 475,789 +9:6% 16
462,056 459,830
450,000
1.32%
400,000
12
350,000 1.04%
300,000 0.91%
0.81%
250,000 0.8
0.66%
200,000
150,000
0.4
100,000
50,000
0 0.0

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
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Loan Portfolio

1. AT E# o 1. By Industry Sectors * 2021 2020
TEA B 2 B Loans for Use in Hong Kong
NP Industry, Commercial and Financial
LE S0 Property Development 12.9% 9.8%
YERE Property Investment 5.0% 6.8%
& Rl 2 Financial Concerns 6.0% 6.4%
JB S AR A Stockbrokers 0.5% 0.8%
L J T 2 Wholesale and Retail Trade 1.2% 1.7%
AT Civil Engineering Works 0.3% 0.3%
L YoE S Manufacturing 0.9% 1.2%
R e R T AR Transport and Transport Equipment 5.1% 5.5%
CPIRRUE Electricity and Gas 1.0% 0.4%
I ilka g Information Technology 2.7% 1.9%
s - AE1E AR Hotels, Boarding House and Catering 0.5% 0.4%
13 48 7 ) Recreational activities 0.0% 0.1%
HoAte Others 8.2% 4.1%
(PN Individuals
W [ # A KRS ] - Loans for the purchases of flats in Home Ownership
(RN 2R EG ] % Scheme, Private Sector Participation Scheme and
[FE EHREFH g 2§35 Tenants Purchase Schemes 0.1% 0.1%
W oAt B 2 2 B Loans for the purchase of Other Residential Properties 12.0% 10.7%
5 HRER Credit Card Advances 0.1% 0.1%
HoAt Others 4.9% 4.7%
& 5 il Trade Finance 1.1% 2.4%
17 vk UM ) 2 B2 Loans for Use outside Hong Kong 37.5% 42.6%
il Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. BB BP 5 2. By Remaining Maturity 2021 2020
JEL s 2 SR IR BV I A 2 Repayable on Demand 1.8% 1.5%
—AEEDLR One Year or Less 34.4% 38.3%
AR B AT {H R — AR Five Years or Less, but Over One Year 40.9% 39.5%
e A8 AR Over Five Years 22.9% 20.7%
B Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. WRWE S 3. By Currency 2021 2020
T HKD 53.5% 51.7%
FIn UsD 16.3% 18.9%
Fife Others 30.2% 29.4%
i Total 100.0% 100.0%
ORGP R SR A TR *  Excluding Trade Bills and Advances to Banks
Bk A —F 4 B T4
Loans Composition 2021 Income Composition 2021
Ry A A
it WAt % Othr Opersing
Residential Mortgage 12% ’ 5% Individuals - Others W R A Income
Net Fee and

AN EATES
Industrial, Commercial &
Financial 31%

LES 91

HAb 4 ¥

Property Development &
Other Property

Commission 17%

5

1% Trade Finance

AU LLAk
il 2 B
Loans for Use Outside

38% Hong Kong

Investment 13%

AL A
Net Interest Income 77%
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Chairman’s Statement

In 2021, China remained a crucial growth driver with Hong Kong registering fast economic growth of 6.4% amidst the global
economic recovery. However, global financial markets fluctuated violently and the momentum for the sustainable recovery
of the global economy was weakened by factors including the spread of COVID-19 variants, impeded resumption of global
supply chains, intensified geopolitical tensions and increasing pressure on monetary policies of major countries due to high
inflation. In response to the complex external business environment, ICBC (Asia) prospectively issued and implemented a
new three-year development plan (2021-2023) to adapt to the new environment, seize opportunities and cope with challenges.
The Bank united to overcome difficulties and persistently reform and innovate. It strove to forge ahead while ensuring
stability and to promote business transformation and high-quality development. During the year, the Bank maintained stable
and favourable development momentum and further improved its operational quality and efficiency. As of the end of 2021,
total assets were HK$927.9 billion, holding steady from the beginning of 2021. Customer deposits totalled HK$548.3 billion,
an increase of 4.9% from the beginning of 2021. Net profit for the year was HK$5.665 billion, a year-on-year increase of 2.5%
and net revenue from the intermediary business was HK$2.13 billion, a year-on-year increase of 7.6%. All of these reflected a
refined asset and business structure and significant progress in transformation and development.

Pressing ahead with the “One Core, Two Wings” strategy to serve local economic development and the national “dual
circulation” economic strategy. The Bank strove to develop the Hong Kong market by exploring large local blue-chip and
quality small and medium-sized enterprises (SME) customers and strengthening strategic cooperation with public institutions
such as the government, hospitals and universities. It served local retail customers through consumption credit and mortgage
loan services and sought business opportunities from account and payment services and wealth management to enhance its
involvement in major projects and competitiveness for quality businesses. In addition, the Bank optimised its cross-border
financial services in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area (the “Greater Bay Area”) and key regions of
the Mainland China. It improved its cross-border linkage mechanism with the domestic institutions of ICBC Group to jointly
serve and expand its base of key customers and quality businesses, leveraging its platform advantage spanning the Mainland
China and Hong Kong. It was among the first batch to launch southbound trading under the Bond Connect programme and
the Cross-boundary Wealth Management Connect scheme and innovated and upgraded main products such as GBA Trade
Finance Online Solutions to support the development of Greater Bay Area and fully integrate Hong Kong into the overall
national development of China. Furthermore, the Bank promoted business cooperation in the Asia Pacific region. Based on
the advantages of Hong Kong as a “dual circulation” hub and ICBC (Asia) as the flagship of ICBC Group’s overseas business,
the Bank expanded its services and products to the Asia Pacific by leveraging its functions as the Syndicated Loan Centre and
Cash Management Centre in the region to serve customers under China’s Go Global strategy and support the high-quality
development under the Belt and Road Initiative.

Accelerating key business transformation and upgrading to enhance the quality and efficiency of business operation and
development. The Bank’s transaction banking business recorded stable development with the treasury centre, IPO receiving
bank and global cash management business, achieving excellent performance. Diversified service scenarios such as payment,
clearing and settlement improved and trade financing services for key enterprises and their upstream and downstream
customers were enhanced in quantity and quality. As for the investment banking business, the Bank improved its service
system that saw increases in both syndicated loans and bond underwriting and participated in underwriting the first local
government offshore Renminbi bond in Mainland China and the first offshore Renminbi green bond issued by Hong Kong
government. In the asset management business, the Bank launched the largest exchange-traded fund (ETF) product in
Hong Kong tracking Chinese government bonds and policy bank bonds. The ICBC CSOP FTSE Chinese Government Bond
Index ETF continued to grow and the asset custody business recorded double-digit growth. In the financial market business,
revenue from transaction business saw rapid year-on-year growth. The Bank ranked first among Chinese banks and the top
10 globally in the offshore Renminbi trading scale on the Electronic Broking Services (EBS) platform and was appointed as
a qualified market maker for Exchange Fund Bills and Notes in Hong Kong. As for green finance, the Bank is supporting
efforts to reach local and national carbon reduction targets by establishing several sustainable development-related loans. The
total annual green bond investment increased by more than two times year-on-year and the Bank was awarded the “Carbon
Neutrality Partnership” certificate by the Hong Kong HKSAR Government.
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Enhancing risk control and compliance capability for the foundation of steady development. The Bank implemented
ICBC Group’s new credit approval regulations and credit management model, optimised its credit management policies and
systems and enhanced its basic capabilities for credit management. The Bank also proactively optimised its credit grants by
conducting the investigation and forward-looking management of potential risks, strengthening the collection and disposal
of existing non-performing loans and striving to promote high-quality development of the credit business. In addition,
the Bank observed ICBC Group’s latest requirements on risk management and “Three Lines of Defence” by improving its
comprehensive risk management system, enhancing risk management and intelligent control capabilities. It also promoted
the implementation of new regulatory standards for market risks and the interest rate benchmark reform, strengthened the
research and judgment of market risk models and the immediate control of credit risks and was among the first banks to
complete climate risk stress tests. In addition, the Bank carried out the “Year of Value Creation” activities for internal control
and compliance to improve its internal management mechanism, strengthen the “Three Lines of Defence” and consolidate
its business philosophy of “upholding internal control and compliance”. It established a Financial Crime Compliance
Department to strengthen its anti-money laundering management and improved the compliance culture and inspection and
rectification system with the application of regulatory technology in line with regulatory trends.

Further strengthening core competencies to enhance operational and development momentum. The Bank facilitated a
comprehensive digital transformation with technology innovation, accelerated the upgrade and promotion of its integrated
marketing platform and construction of the smart credit risk control system, and invested in major projects, including the
information support platform, which improved its internal management efficiency. It also implemented a network defence
plan to build a full-process, automated security system. Based on the coordination platform of the Process Optimisation
and Improvement Committee, the Bank enhanced the systematisation and integration of operational processes through
digital technologies and tools including robotic process automation (RPA). It also promoted the transformation of business-
intensive operations to reduce transactional work for more efficient use of labour and lower operational costs. The Bank drove
innovation in its talent development mechanism by refining the structure of its professional talent team and enriching its
professional and sales teams, resulting in a growth of its fintech and digital talent. It also enhanced the vitality of the workforce
under the Elite talent cultivation program. Moreover, the Bank inaugurated the Southeast Asia Research Centre to promote
the analysis and judgment of regional operations to anticipate and adapt to complex changes in the business environment and
serve ICBC Group’s strategy of “Global Operation from an International Vision”.

Fulfilling corporate citizenship responsibilities to support the social prosperity and stability of Hong Kong. During the
pandemic, the Bank as a responsible Chinese entity focused on serving society by introducing financial policies and relief
measures to assist local SMEs and the general public in fighting the pandemic and overcoming difficulties together. Adhering
to the concept of serving the community, the Bank cared for youth and disadvantaged groups. It has participated in the
government youth employment scheme for many years and provided Hong Kong youth with exchange opportunities through
the Greater Bay Area Youth Employment Scheme. The Bank is also passionate about local charity and culture. It became the
sole financial institution partner of Hong Kong China Delegation to the Tokyo 2020 Olympic Games. It also sponsored the
compilation of the Hong Kong Chronicles, organised volunteer activities and donations in communities through the ICBC
(Asia) Charitable Foundation and participated in The Community Chest Walk for Millions, an annual charity event. The
Bank was awarded the logo of Caring Company for the 19th consecutive year. It also promoted environmental protection by
advocating the concept of carbon reduction through activities such as the Green Office Project and the Plantation Enrichment
Project and obtained the Hong Kong Green Organisation Certification.
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In 2022, despite challenges arising from the volatile macro environment, the global and local impacts of the pandemic, the
acceleration of major central banks in adopting exit monetary policies and the complex geopolitical energy situation, the
banking industry in Hong Kong is still offered historic opportunities for business innovation. The Hong Kong government
is planning to develop the Northern Metropolis near the border with Mainland China while it is actively responding to the
national “dual circulation” strategy. The opportunities are also bought by the implementation of the Regional Comprehensive
Economic Partnership (RCEP) and the high-quality development under the “Belt and Road” initiative. Looking forward,
by upholding its strategic vision of “Taking Root in Hong Kong, Connecting with Mainland China, Spanning Asia Pacific,
Facing the World”, the Bank will earnestly implement ICBC Group’s strategic plans leveraging ICBC (Asia) " role as a flagship
in overseas markets and a multi-functional platform centre. It will take advantage of ICBC Group’s abundant resources and
its comprehensive and distinctive cross-border banking services to help Hong Kong integrate into the national development
to ensure the city’s prosperity and stability for the long term. The Bank will drive the transformation of its various
businesses with financial technology and press ahead with its “One Core, Two Wings” strategy. It will strive to make greater
contributions to the economic and financial liberalisation of China’s market and the country’s regional economic and trade
integration.

In the past year, the Bank attained solid operating results despite the complex and harsh operating environment. This has been
due to the guidance of the parent bank and the Board of Directors of the Bank, the dedication of the management team and the

diligence of the entire staff. I am very grateful to all of them. On behalf of the Bank, I would also like to express my gratitude to
the customers for their trust and the community for their support.

Gao Ming
Chairman

24 March 2022
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded profit after tax of HK$5,665.3 million for the year 2021, representing an increase of HK$140.1 million as
compared to the previous year.

Net interest income decreased by HK$468.7 million, or 4.8%, to HK$9,367.5 million. Net fee and commission income
increased by HK$150.9 million, or 7.6%, to HK$2,129.8 million. The ratio of non-interest income to total operating income
was 23.2%.

Total operating expenses were 2.7% higher than the previous year. The cost to income ratio increased from 29.3% in 2020 to
31.0% in 2021.

Operating profit after impairment losses was HK$6,445.4 million, an increase of HK$480.6 million, or 8.1%, as compared with
2020.

The Group recorded HK$584.8 million of net gain from disposal of financial investments as compared to HK$547.2 million in
2020.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2021, ICBC (Asia)’s total assets amounted to HK$927.9 billion, representing a decrease of HK$3.2 billion,
or 0.3%, as compared with the previous year-end position.

As at 31 December 2021, ICBC (Asia)’s loans amounted to HK$462.1 billion, representing a decrease of HK$17.5 billion, or
3.7%, as compared with the previous year-end position.

As at 31 December 2021, total outstanding customers’ deposits amounted to HK$548.3 billion, representing an increase of
4.9% as compared to the position as at 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, total outstanding certificates of deposit issued amounted to HK$5.6 billion, representing a decrease
0f 20.1% as compared to the position as at 31 December 2020.

CAPITAL AND LIQUIDITY MANAGEMENT

The capital adequacy ratio of the Group was 22.71% as at the end of 2021 (the end of 2020: 21.11%). The average liquidity
coverage ratio for the year 2021 amounted to 197.70% (average of 2020: 207.08%).

ASSET QUALITY

As at the end of 2021, credit impaired loans amounted to HK$6,182.0 million while the impaired loan ratio increased by 41
basis points to 1.32% as compared with 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, the cumulative loan impairment allowances aggregated to HK$7,648.1 million (2020: HK$7,710.8
million). This included impairment allowances of HK$1,439.6 million (2020: HK$2,900.0 million) for credit impaired
exposures and HK$6,208.5 million (2020: HK$4,810.8 million) for non credit-impaired exposures.

As at 31 December 2021, total overdue advances decreased by HK$1,766.6 million, to HK$1,991.5 million, as compared to the
previous year-end position.
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Corporate Banking

In 2021, the COVID-19 pandemic had a profound impact on the global economy which led to a severe economic slump in
Hong Kong. Despite the volatile market, the Bank continued to explore possibilities for business development. While devoted
to local business, the Bank also developed two other strategic markets which are the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater
Bay Area and the Asia Pacific region, and achieved breakthroughs in its innovation capabilities in traditional business and
cross-border business.

For local business development, the Bank seized market opportunities as a lead arranger for a number of large syndicated
loans that were met with enthusiastic responses from the market. The Bank also assisted clients in issuing bonds as a lead
underwriter several times. This greatly enhanced the overall competitiveness and awareness of the investment and financing
business. In addition, it optimised and upgraded its traditional products in response to market demands, as well as providing
customers with targeted and innovative green financial solutions while ensuring compliance and risk management.
Furthermore, the Bank capitalised on the national strategy of promoting the use of Renminbi in cross-border transactions by
providing comprehensive solutions for cross-border financing and settlement in Renminbi to local customers and mainland
Chinese enterprises that invest globally, or “go global”. These services leverage the abundant resources of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Group (“ICBC Group” or the “Head Office”) and the Bank’s capability to effectively cooperate
with the latter’s business units. During the year, the Bank continued to support our local small and medium-sized enterprises
(SME) by providing relief measures and the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme. This helped them to continue their
productions and operations during this difficult period. The relief measures implemented is part of the initiative to support
the local economy as the Bank is one of the domestic systemically important banks in Hong Kong.

In terms of business development within the Greater Bay Area, the Bank has fully implemented the Group’s regional strategy
to strengthen the connectivity by sharing customer resource, cultivating product innovation, and staff exchanges with
other ICBC Group institutions in the Greater Bay Area. With the close collaboration including Joint Meeting Mechanism,
management visits, video seminars, and training at these institutions, the Bank was able to achieve a remarkable business
performance in the Greater Bay Area as a whole.

The Bank also made progress in the development of its business in the Asia Pacific region. Since the establishment of the
Asia Pacific Syndicated Loan Centre by ICBC Group in 2018, the Bank followed up 177 major projects as at the end of 2021.
It has also cooperated with 21 overseas institutions of ICBC Group, relevant business departments at the Head Office and a
policy bank in underwriting 37 syndicated loans, of which more than HK$77.8 billion worth of loans were underwritten and
granted by the ICBC Group. The loans, which were granted in 15 countries and regions around the world, were denominated
in multiple currencies. The companies that have taken out the syndicated loans included mainland Chinese and Hong Kong
enterprises which are “going global”, companies involved in the Belt and Road Initiative and connectivity related projects, and
well-known enterprises in Asia Pacific.

In 2022, the Bank will continue to build its corporate banking business and seize business opportunities bought by the Belt

and Road Initiative and the Greater Bay Area. It will further develop the local, Greater Bay Area and Asia Pacific markets by
working in tandem with the institutions of ICBC Group to serve the real economy of the region.
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Retail Banking

In 2021, Hong Kong’s retail business environment was challenging and deeply impacted by various unfavourable factors,
such as the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and tightened immigration controls. To counteract these factors, the Bank adopted
strategies to strengthen its wealth management business and tap into the potential of high-net-worth customers. It also
implemented measures to diversify income sources, save costs, contain risks, and enhance competitiveness of the branch
network and FinTech capabilities. These actions, together with opportunities from market volatility and the Greater Bay Area,
enabled the retail banking business to achieve rapid growth in profit before tax. Contribution to the Bank’s profit continued to
increase, the customer base remained stable, and the structure of assets and liabilities continued to improve.

In its intermediary business, the Bank’s strategy on strengthening wealth management business was successful. The Bank
achieved a record high income from its intermediary business by optimising its transaction channels, and enhancing the
Bank’s service competency through product innovation, sales promotions and frontline staff training. Income generated
from securities, insurance, and mutual funds also achieved historic highs. In addition to seizing opportunities in the
financial markets, the Bank enriched its range of investment products by launching new competitive insurance plans and
funds through new strategic partnerships with Chinese and foreign capital-based fund houses. It also enhanced customer
experience by enabling online structured deposit products and modifying the fund analysis platform during the year. In the
securities business, the Bank improved customer experience and launched market promotions to increase brand exposure
in local high-traffic media and the branch network. By promoting product features and privileges, the Bank broadened its
customer base and increased the overall securities customer scale. At the same time, the Bank accelerated product innovation
and development and drove digital transformation to increase the proportion of total transactions on the ICBC Smart Invest
application and provide better securities services and customer experience. The Bank’s efforts were recognised with the
Excellent Brand of Mobile Application for Securities Services Award in 2021 from Metro Finance.

In its loan business, the Bank contained low credit risks by focusing on quality secured lending, such as mortgage and assets-
pledged loans. The loan portfolio grew steadily. As for deposit business, the Bank was also able to maintain a steady portfolio
and optimised its deposit portfolio structure with a significant increment on low-interest savings deposits.

In its cross-border banking business, the Bank received regulatory approval on 18 October 2021 as one of the first batch
of eligible banks in Hong Kong to launch the Cross-boundary Wealth Management Connect Pilot Scheme. The businesses
generated from southbound and northbound customers has continued to grow steadily since then. The Bank also enhanced
customer experience on its Greater Bay Area Loan - Mortgage service. In light of travel restrictions, the procedures were
streamlined so that customers could drawdown and repay in Hong Kong without the need to travel to the Mainland China.
The service covers nine major cities in the Greater Bay Area and won the “Award for Excellence in GBA Banking Product”
by Ming Pao. To further capitalise on the development of the Greater Bay Area, the Bank provided exclusive Greater Bay
Area Premier Banking Services for its VIP customers, allowing free access to VIP facilities and priority services at designated
branches in the area.

In its retail service network, the Bank elevated its efforts on FinTech, and continued to enhance user experience on Internet
banking, mobile banking and product digitalisation to meet customers’ needs. As of the end of 2021, the Bank provided
services through 52 retail outlets and 143 automated teller machines in areas with high pedestrian traffic.

In 2022, the business environment is full of challenges and opportunities. The Bank will continue to make progress while
ensuring stability, enhance its wealth management capability, further develop cross-border business, improve service
channels’ competency, and innovate in technology. The Bank is committed to creating better value to customers and
ultimately, increase contribution to the Bank. In the future, ICBC (Asia) will continue to improve its retail services to offer
quality and comprehensive cross-border banking services to customers.
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Renminbi Business

In 2021, ICBC (Asia) drew on the opportunity created by China’s national strategies, such as the internationalisation of the
Renminbi and the development of the Greater Bay Area. It is building a full-scale Renminbi business to enhance the Bank’s
influence and competitive advantage.

To support the national strategy, the Bank launched Southbound Trading under Bond Connect and the Cross-Boundary
Wealth Management Connect scheme, turning a new page in the course of financial market interconnectivity between
Mainland China and Hong Kong. ICBC was one of the pilot banks to launch Southbound Trading under Bond Connect. The
Bank is its second custody bank and is serving clients with a full range of products through multiple channels. The Bank was
also among the first local banks to provide Cross-Boundary Wealth Management Connect services for eligible investors in the
Greater Bay Area.

In a prime example of Renminbi business innovation, the Bank drove adoption of Renminbi in the settlement of bulk
commodities and issued the first digital cross-border Renminbi Letter of Credit with blockchain technology. It was a first
for the Bank to promote Renminbi use in bulk commodity settlement by digitalisation. In 2021, the Bank made a number of
substantial breakthroughs. These include implementing a strategy of upgrading competitiveness of priority regions, under
which the Bank worked with ICBC branches in Mainland China to help a state-owned enterprise to finance Renminbi under
an FT account for the first time. Leveraging the advantages of the ICBC Group, the Bank realised quadruple growth year-on-
year in the volume of cross-border Renminbi business from key state-owned enterprises. The Bank helped numerous state-
owned enterprises to realise funds repatriation to China via cross-border Renminbi cash pooling. The Bank is also playing a
key role in the development of green finance: it served as the joint coordinator to assist the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region to issue a Renminbi Green Bond for RMB5 billion, supporting Hong Kong’s efforts to become
a green finance centre.

In terms of the financial infrastructure development, the Bank has facilitated the globalisation of the Renminbi by providing
digitalised services. The Bank has opened a real-time offshore Renminbi exchange rate on Bloomberg, to provide financial
institutions and clients worldwide with offshore and onshore Renminbi NDS real-time quotation. The Bank is now connected
to the mainstream digital foreign exchange transaction platform 360T, where clients can complete their forward or swap
business delivery automatically.

The Bank was widely recognised in 2021 for its contribution to the internationalisation of Renminbi. It was named “Bond
Connect Top Custodian” from Bond Connect Company Limited for the fourth consecutive year. Asiamoney also recognised

the Bank as a market leader in its 2021 survey for “Best Overall Global Renminbi Products and Services”, “Best Overall
Offshore Renminbi Products and Services” and “Client Satisfaction Scores for Offshore Renminbi Products and Services”.

Looking ahead to 2022, ICBC (Asia) will continue to play a vital role as one of the Domestic Systematically Important Banks

to promote Renminbi business and facilitate Renminbi globalisation. It will reinforce Hong Kong’s status as an offshore
Renminbi business hub and drive the economic development of both Mainland China and Hong Kong.
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Institutional Business

The Bank made adjustments to its institutional banking business to better cope with the complicated and volatile external
environment in 2021. The Bank improved its customer scope and diversification, innovated and optimised products and
services to ensure the sound, efficient and stable operation of its institutional business while securing various achievements in
terms of business innovation over the year.

During the year, the Bank continued to expand new institutional clients. It conducted thorough research and proactive
marketing which resulted in growth in the number of customers and greater customer diversification. The Bank participated
in a variety of projects for business development, including bilateral financing, syndicated loans, initial public offering (IPO)
financing and bond issues of institutional customers. It enhanced the competitive advantage of its investment and financing
business. The Bank also seized tremendous opportunities brought by the development strategies of China’s four dynamic-
economic regions by strengthening its collaboration with both bank customers in trade finance and non-trade related risk
participation, together with the synergies among ICBC domestic branches. Leveraging its advantages as a direct participating
bank of Cross-border Interbank Payment System (CIPS) and the Bond Connect scheme, the Bank expanded business
cooperation with overseas financial institutional customers, which covered banks, non-banks, public sectors and global
sovereign institutions.

The Bank is also devoted to service innovation to address business customer needs. It introduced a number of innovative
products and services to provide better and diversified business options to customers, including second-hand syndicated
loans and standby letters of credit for reinsurance business. The Bank improved the functions of its institutional business
and manifested its advantage as ICBC Group’s flagship within the overseas business. As a result, the institutional business
coordinates the development among the Bank and other business units in different regions within the Group. In addition,
the Bank refined the formulation of the system, unified the management for extending credit and heightened protection of
customer data. These measures have enhanced the Bank’s regulatory compliance and risk management.

In 2022, the market is still subject to instability. The fifth wave of the local coronavirus outbreak and tightened community
restrictions have led to a widespread economic slowdown. Facing the economic hardship, the Bank will continue to keep
abreast of economic changes and financial market trends so that it can meet customer needs and continue to expand the
customer base of its institutional business. It will also strengthen coordination between its corporate banking and retail
banking businesses and continue to develop transaction banking to provide a comprehensive range of financial services that
can meet customers’ operational needs amid the development of the Greater Bay Area. The Bank will seek closer cooperation
with institutional customers and strengthen the interconnection among the institutional customers in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. This will allow all the Bank’s financial institutions customers advance their business development together
by complementing each other.
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Global Market Business

In 2021, the global markets were faced with uncertainties and externalities, including the variants of COVID-19, escalating
geopolitical risk, global supply chain disruption and the accelerated tapering by major central banks. All these factors posed
severe challenges to the Bank’s global market business. The Bank continued to leverage its extensive business experience by
capturing market opportunities for business expansion under prudent risk management. That dedicated effort paid off as the
operations recorded sustainable growth in both revenue and profit during the year.

The global economy achieved a strong rebound in 2021 after the easing of the pandemic situation. However, the global
economy was under pressure from rising inflation due to supply and demand imbalances. The central banks of major
economies began tapering and signalled intentions to hike interest rates in 2022. Bond yields soared with higher rates
expectations. The Bank promptly adjusted its bond portfolio strategy to contain the anticipated market and credit risks in this
monetary tightening cycle. The team explored the opportunities for investing in US dollar and Renminbi bond markets. By
strengthening its dynamic investment approach, the Bank maintained the overall rate of return of the portfolio and recorded
an increase in annual portfolio interest income. It adopted a prudent credit analysis process for bond selection to maintain the
high credit quality of its bond portfolio.

The revenue from the Bank’s business of foreign exchange trading on behalf of customers in 2021 was solid amid a fluctuating
business environment. Steady growth in corporate and institutional sales revenue offset the decrease in revenue from
investment products in a weak market. As a result of its product innovation and sales channel expansion, revenue from minor
currencies transactions and e-channel business increased, resulting in a greater contribution to overall global market business

revenue.

The Bank’s market-making business profit hit a record high in 2021. The Bank strengthened its position as one of the major
market makers by providing competitive quotes in the offshore Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar markets. The Bank remained
a top-ranked market player in terms of trading volume on mainstream trading platforms. For the first time, the Bank received
the award for “2020 EBS Top (volume) CNH Institution in the Category of Global Chinese Institution” from CME Group
(Chicago Mercantile Exchange Group). In Asiamoney’s 2021 Global Renminbi Poll, the Bank was one of the top-ranked
for “Best Overall Global Renminbi Products and Services”, “Best Overall Offshore Renminbi Products and Services” and
“Client Satisfaction Scores for Offshore Renminbi Products and Services”. In addition, the Bank upgraded its digital trading
platform and expanded market coverage of its online market-making business, which showed steady growth in the number of

customers and trading volume.

Looking forward in 2022, the external environment remains uncertain. The Bank will not only continue with its prudent risk
control strategy but will also explore opportunities arising from interest rate benchmark reforms and market fluctuations.
It will conduct in-depth analysis with timely adjustments in its business strategy. The Bank will also identify growth
opportunities from the deepening and widening of mutual access of the financial markets of the Mainland China and Hong
Kong and the Greater Bay Area initiatives. It will enhance its core competitive strength for steady global market business
development.
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Asset Management

ICBC Asset Management (Global) Company Limited (ICBC AMG), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank, maintained steady
development in its overall business in 2021.

Although the equity market and US dollar bond market in Hong Kong fluctuated greatly in 2021, ICBC AMG employed
prudent investment and rigorous risk management to ensure there were no default and liquidity risk events across its actively
managed portfolios. The fixed income mutual fund, ICBC Asset Management RMB Fixed Income Fund, achieved positive
return within the year. By means of strategy optimisation, differentiated risk-return characteristics among three equity mutual
funds were formed. ICBC AMG continued to improve its multi-asset investment strategies and model portfolios for new
product development. It also initiated post-investment management for alternative investment projects to seek optimum
exit strategies. ICBC AMG was rated as “Best RMB Fund Manager” by a renowned media in Asia Pacific region Insights &
Mandate in its Professional Investment Awards 2021. The ICBC Asset Management China Emerging Enterprise Fund won the
“Equity Emerging Markets Global - Best Fund over Three Years” award in Refinitiv Lipper Fund Awards Hong Kong 2021, co-
organised by Refinitiv and Hong Kong Economic Journal.

As to corporate and institutional business, ICBC AMG serves the asset management needs of Chinese enterprises investing
globally, seizing the opportunities brought by Renminbi internationalisation and harnessing the global operation advantages
of ICBC Group to promote investment opportunities in the Chinese capital market to overseas institutional investors. In
addition, ICBC AMG also successfully launched the Hong Kong-domiciled China Treasury + Policy Bank Bond Index
Exchange Traded Fund (ETF), enriching offshore Renminbi-denominated financial products and enhancing the development
of the offshore Renminbi market in Hong Kong.

As to retail business, ICBC AMG further strengthened fund distribution through local channels in Hong Kong, and enlarged
its client portfolio via the connect schemes between Mainland China and Hong Kong. Moreover, ICBC AMG assisted ICBC
Wealth Management Co., Ltd. with the issuance of cross-border wealth management products and participated in the first
batch of southbound trading under the Bond Connect scheme.

ICBC (Asia) Equity Investment Management (Shenzhen) Company Limited, ICBC AMG’s wholly owned subsidiary in
Shenzhen, cooperated with onshore and offshore institutions within ICBC Group. It advanced innovation of cross-border
private equity investment to support the development of the real economy and the formation of the Greater Bay Area.

In 2022, ICBC AMG will continue to raise its own competitiveness. It will increase research coverage and active investment
management capabilities, expand distribution channels and marketing activities, improve product lines and implement
compliance and risk management controls. It will also maintain its focus on developing discretionary investment
management services for corporate and institutional clients and on cross-border asset management business, responding to
the “Preferred Bank for Domestic Foreign Exchange Business” strategy of ICBC.
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Global Capital Financing

In 2021, ICBC (Asia)’s bond underwriting, syndicated loans and loan asset trading businesses continued to grow and played
an important role in the development of Asia-Pacific’s capital markets.

2021 was a challenging year for the global bond market and Hong Kong’s offshore bond market. Despite the complex
and volatile environment, the Bank achieved breakthroughs in the bonds underwriting business. The Bank saw double-
digit growth in both underwriting fees and underwriting volumes. During the year, the Bank won a series of high-
quality appointments, with influence in overseas markets and domestic policy highlights, including the Hong Kong
SAR government’s first overseas Renminbi transaction and its first 30-year green bond project, the mainland Chinese
government’s first overseas bond project, ICBC’s first perpetual capital securities project and its first overseas multi-branch/
multi-currency bond project, and the first Asian corporate preferred shares project. It closely followed the “Opinions on
Financial Support for the Development of the Guangdong-Hongkong-Macao Greater Bay Area” and the official launch of
southbound trading under the Bond Connect scheme, attaining remarkable results in product innovation.

As one of the top three underwriters in the Chinese offshore bond market throughout the year, the Bank also continued
to play the global coordinator role in a high proportion of its bond underwriting transactions, with significantly enhanced
performance. During the year, the Bank underwrote a total of 77 public offering bonds with a total issuance volume of
HK$34.96 billion, including bonds in local and foreign currencies and medium-term notes. ICBC (Asia) was recognised by
The Asset magazine for “Best Green Bond - Government”, “Best Green Bond-Policy Bank”, “Best Sustainability Bond - Real
Estate, Best Bank Capital Bond”, and “Most Innovative Deal”.

The Bank continued to steadily develop its loan syndication business and arranged HK$40.4 billion in syndicated loans in
2021, achieving double-digit growth year-on-year. It strengthened ICBC Group’s lead arranger position in the Hong Kong
and Macau syndicated loan markets. During the year, acting as syndicated loan lead arranger, the Bank arranged a series of
high-quality syndicated loans and club deals for various large central and state-owned enterprises, as well as onshore and
offshore private leading enterprises, covering a range of sectors, including internet, energy, infrastructure, manufacturing,
financial institutions, and real estate. The Bank also acted as agent and coordinator in syndicated loans and club deals, using
the synergy across different product lines to provide well-rounded syndicated loan services.

Committed to diversifying its business, the Bank also launched structured finance and advisory services in the fields of
cross-border mergers and acquisitions, privatisation, project financing, and equity investment and financing, including the
ownership restructuring of state-owned enterprises, public utilities, manufacturing, internet, and entertainment and media,
to apply its expertise to financing projects. The Bank received The Asset award for “Best Green Loan” for its role of mandated
lead arranger in Beijing Capital Group Company’s US$500 million green term-loan facility. The Bank actively participated in
the secondary loan market, with its asset income and liquidity improved. Its loan asset trading constitutes a major share of the
market, with its loan asset trading network in Asia-Pacific expanded in 2021.

In 2022, the Bank will continue to seize the plentiful opportunities presented by the development of the Greater Bay Area,
the globalisation of Renminbi and the Belt and Road Initiative. It will remain dedicated to providing customers with
comprehensive capital financing solutions. The Bank will give full play to the strengths of its cross-border financial services in
liaison with ICBC Group and continue to reinforce its prominence in the Asia-Pacific capital market.
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Development of Financial Technology and Internet Finance Business

ICBC (Asia) is keeping pace with the trends of emerging financial technology applications and digital advancement
in financial services. It aims to build a first-rate digital bank of effective services, excellent experience and innovative
development, and is keen on promoting the digital transformation of retail and corporate financial services to seize market
opportunities. In 2021, the Bank continued to optimise its business transformation and development model, improved the
level of security and compliance, and consolidated its information security system. It is committed to providing customers
excellent mobile and online banking services.

The Bank is accelerating the growth of online wealth management in retail banking. It launched diversified online products,
including Structured Deposits in Personal Internet Banking and Mobile Banking, and Silver Bonds and iBonds in Personal
Internet Banking during the year. The Bank is establishing wealth management in Mobile Banking, continuously upgrading
the online fund services, and optimising the trading and information functions of the ICBC Smart Invest Application, to
provide customers with quality and convenient online wealth management services. In addition, to support the development
of the Greater Bay Area, the Bank launched Cross-boundary Wealth Management Connect Services in Mobile Banking to
enrich the investment choices for cross-border customers.

The Bank also enhanced online services of corporate customers. It launched the “Lite” version, complementing the “Full-
featured” version of online Commercial Internet Banking, and providing differentiated and customised services to corporate
customers. It has also been building Commercial Internal Banking problem-solving measures to tackle customers’ pain points,
enhancing user experience for corporate customers. Other mobile financial services enhancements include inquiries and
authorisations of trading command services on the Commercial Mobile Banking Application. It has made a breakthrough in
the Trade Finance Services of Commercial Mobile Banking services.

During the year, ICBC (Asia) focused on the fundamental requirement of risk control and compliance management while
driving digital transformation. During the year, the Bank adhered to safety standard and implemented various measures to
establish sound and robust risk management control mechanisms, safeguarding its business for sustainable development.
For example, the integration of development and operation in one DevOps capability significantly improved management
automation and operational stability. The Bank also improved its information security management mechanism with
an automated, multi-level, three-dimensional security protection system that integrates detection, analysis, response,
interception, and prevention. As a result, The Bank earned the “Cyber Security Enterprise Excellence Award” from the
Cyber Security and Technology Crime Bureau of the Hong Kong Police Force. Other initiatives included: transformation
of information technology (IT) architecture; implementation of the research and development (R&D) concepts of
“Platformisation, Productisation, Servitisation, Modularisation” and “Light Code/No Code”; establishment of a diversified
R&D model; and achievement of both the quality and efficiency of R&D and management. Promoting innovative applications
of financial technology (FinTech), ICBC (Asia) built a number of FinTech application technology platforms, and launched
a number of innovative products with market competitiveness and industry leadership in a timely manner, including
Smart POS, Two-Way Transfer System, and the ICBC Smart Invest Application. These brought customers a brand-new
business model and user experience. The Bank also developed a number of operation and management platforms for digital
transformation and development, including the Fixed Assets Lifecycle Management System, iCloud Document, Graphical
Workflow Management Platform, and Sales and Marketing System (SMP), supporting the development of its related
businesses.

In 2022, the Bank will continue with its digital transformation strategy and innovation in financial services to strengthen the
coverage of online banking products and improve service quality. The Bank will continue to integrate technology and business
to construct a digital, intelligent and open financial service system that give customers a comprehensive and cutting-edge
experience.
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Cash Management Business

ICBC Group’s Asia-Pacific Cash Management Centre was established in ICBC (Asia) in 2011, the first regional cash
management centre in ICBC Group. ICBC (Asia) actively engages in payments and cash management business. After
more than a decade of development, the Bank’s four major product lines of payments and cash management business are
well established, including account management and information services, receivables and payment solutions, liquidity
management, and interest optimisation products for short-term investment. These comprehensive financial services have
become an important tool to attract customers and played a vital role in the growth of the payments and cash business. By the
end of 2021, the Bank had provided cash management services to over 4,700 local and cross-border customers.

In response to customers’ needs and rapid market changes, the Bank has continued to innovate and enhance payments and
cash management products to develop its business and improve both its competitiveness and service capability. During the
year, the Bank further enhanced its “Host-to-Host Service” to provide more efficient, safe, and direct one-stop financial
solutions for conglomerates. It also introduced multiple online cross-border payment services to satisfy the needs of large-
scaled enterprises and treasury centres towards global treasury activities. In addition, the Bank has further optimised its
diverse online banking, including assisting customers in online processing of “Global Payroll Service” covering the world,
“Smart Account” to meet the diverse needs of customers of treasury centres, and “Account Aggregation Service” that bring
customers a fast experience. It also enables customers to handle more banking services without leaving their homes under the
pandemic.

ICBC (Asia) values the support from the Hong Kong SAR government’s preferential policies to develop Hong Kong as a hub
of corporate treasury. To expand its business in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Asia-Pacific, ICBC (Asia) continues to
cooperate with both the domestic and overseas business units of ICBC Group to promote and develop its payment and cash
management business. The Bank has become a major bank partner of many corporations to set up their treasury centres in
Hong Kong, which has led to the rapid growth of its cross-border and local cash management customers. In 2021, the Bank’s
payment and cash management business was recognised by the industry and received several awards, including “Excellence
in Product Innovation” and “Best Ecosystem Service Bank”. These recognitions represent the continuous enhancement of the
Bank’s outstanding cash management services. Meanwhile, the Bank was ranked as one of the top IPO receiving banks with
frozen funds of more than HK$300 billion in public offerings, a record high for ICBC (Asia).

In 2022, ICBC (Asia) will continue to take advantage of the Hong Kong SAR government’s preferential policies, support
customers to set up treasury centres and act as receiving bank in IPO projects. The Bank will also continue to strive for product
innovation to meet enterprises’ business needs by enhancing its cash management product systems. This will enable the Bank
to build up an ecosystem for payment and cash management business, improving its competitiveness and promoting steady
development of its payments and cash management business.
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Private Banking

In 2021, confronting the ongoing challenge of COVID-19, the Bank focused on maintaining good relationships with its base
customers, anchoring in local market, growing customers’ financial assets, increasing product penetration, and promoting
product innovation. At the same time, the Bank continued to enhance risk management. Riding on the benefits of the ICBC
Group’s extensive global network, the Bank cooperated with the ICBC head office and the ICBC Group’s domestic and global
branches to provide its high-net-worth customers with comprehensive, secure and reliable wealth management solutions that
connect domestic and global markets, as well as personalised and non-financial value-added services.

In terms of customer expansion, the Bank identified potential customers through referrals from domestic and overseas
branches of ICBC Group, and the referral reward programme for current customers, focusing on high-net-worth customers,
such as corporate investors and senior executives of Hong Kong-listed and local companies. Leveraging the Bank’s
comprehensive service coverage and customer network advantages in Hong Kong, the number of private banking customers
steadily increased year-on-year.

In financial services, the Bank continued to enrich its private banking product portfolio by integrating internal resources
and selecting products from third-party institutions in the market, to further provide customers with a full range of wealth
management solutions. The amount of private banking investment transactions reached a new high in recent years, achieved
by optimising the product transaction process and enhancing the customer experience.

In terms of non-financial value-added services, the Bank has adopted an “Individual + Family + Entrepreneur + Society”
global services ecosystem strategy to target corporate investors. It launched the “Entrepreneur Cheer-up Station” campaign
through both online and offline modes, targeting Hong Kong cross-border entrepreneurs. The one-stop campaign covers
eight areas, including family and corporate services, financial investment, health management, legal and tax management,
second generation cultivation, cultural inheritance, quality living and philanthropy.

Looking ahead to 2022, the Bank will continue to deepen local market penetration by keeping abreast of customers’ needs
and promoting product innovation. It will also enhance its products and service system with the application of FinTech. The
Bank will use ICBC Group’s resources, including its robust global network and service platforms, and will capitalise on Hong
Kong’s competitive advantage as an international financial centre, connected to Mainland China to provide innovative wealth
management solutions to its private banking customers.
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Consumer Finance Business

In 2021, the COVID-19 pandemic kept the local business environment under pressure. In response to the changing market
conditions and consumer behavior, the Bank launched a number of new products and services for consumer finance
during the year, and explored different business cooperation opportunities, to provide local customers with safer and more
convenient consumer finance services.

In product and service innovation, the Bank’s ICBC Greater Bay Area Credit Card was awarded the “2020 Mastercard Product
Award (Greater Bay Area Credit Card)” by Mastercard in 2021, while ICBC Pay (QR code payment product) received the
“2020 Card Issuance Innovation Award (QR Code Wallet)” by UnionPay International in Hong Kong and Macau. The Bank is
promoting digital and online transformation of the consumer finance business, and launched new mobile and online banking
services to allow customers to link their credit cards to bank accounts. The Bank also enhanced the Octopus instant automatic
value-added service in mobile banking, optimising the smart mobile banking credit card service, for a quality and convenient
online customer experience.

For customer development and marketing, the Bank launched unique credit cards for high-net-worth customers. They
include the Visa Infinite credit card called the “ICBC Essence Card”, which is tailor-made for Private Banking customers, and
the “ICBC Elite Club Card”, which is for retail wealth management customers. In addition, the Bank launched digital credit
cards for the Visa, Mastercard and UnionPay payment brands. Other services launched by the Bank during the year include a
credit card online spending reward programme, personal unsecured loan, cash instalment, spending and statement instalment
plans to cater to different customer needs. The Bank supported the Hong Kong SAR Government in launching various
services for pandemic relief. These included the 100% Personal Loan Guarantee Scheme to help unemployed people with a
source of financing, and, in cooperation with WeChat Pay HK, the Bank provided an extra consumption stamp programme on
top of the government’s Consumer Voucher Scheme.

In merchant acquiring business, general consumer transactions gradually shifted online during the ongoing pandemic.
In 2021, ICBC (Asia) developed e-payment for property management fees and tuition fees through cooperation with a
local property management company and an education platform, to fit different application scenarios and diversify online
payments. Through the enhancement on offline smart terminals, point-of-sale (POS) system integration and merchant service
platform optimisation, the Bank promotes business opportunities on the projects with medium to large chain merchants and
large acquiring projects. ICBC (Asia) is aiming to partner with merchants on FinTech opportunities for the next generation of
e-payments.

Looking forward to 2022, due to the volatile epidemic, there will continue to be uncertainty in the economic environment and
consumer behavior patterns may change significantly. There will be challenges and opportunities in the market. The Bank will
continue with the digital transformation of its consumer finance business for market expansion and strategic marketing, and
strive for innovative products and better service quality. With emphasis on the development of cross-border business in the
Greater Bay Area, the Bank will focus on building a cross-border payment platform between Mainland China and Hong Kong,
promoting the interconnectivity of people’s livelihood in two places, and bringing more diverse, high-quality and innovative
payment and consumer finance experiences to customers.
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Chinese Mercantile Bank

In 2021, Chinese Mercantile Bank (CMB), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank, saw stable and accelerating development
of its overall operation. While its pre-provision profit for 2021 increased by 4.2% to HK$1.869 billion, net profit surged by
25.0% to HK$1.141 billion and net income from its intermediate business grew 37.7% to HK$224 million. Both the provision
coverage (242.72%) and the loan provision rate (3.32%) at the end of 2021 were improved, compared to the beginning of the
year, indicating CMB’s increasing ability to manage risks.

CMB also optimised its asset and debt structure during the year. While maintaining asset stability, supporting real economic
development, and accelerating adjustment of its asset structure, CMB’s various loans increased by HK$8.373 billion compared
to the beginning of the year. On the liability side, by increasing the amounts of customer deposits and continuously optimising
the maturity of debt, customer deposits increased by HK$3.371 billion compared to the beginning of the year. Its liability base
was further consolidated. CMB aimed to enhance the ability of initiative debt and successfully issued RMB2 billion financial
bonds. CMB retained stable liquidity and continuous compliance with core liquidity regulatory requirements.

CMB accelerated the pace of reform and innovation and continued to increase its support to the real economy. CMB
implemented “The Project of Improvement of Credit Service about the Quality and Efficiency of the Real Economy” and “The
Project of Providing Small and Medium-Sized Enterprises with Convenient and Quick Financial Service”, which aim to serve
the real economy and expand the depth and breadth of financial inclusion. Supporting the national green finance policies,
CMB improved the operating capacity of green credit in a broader sense by introducing “CMB Green Credit Strategy”. It also
supported the national strategy of Renminbi internationalisation by developing cross-border Renminbi settlement business.

CMB has always maintained a prudent approach in its operation. Constantly strengthening risk control and compliance
management, CMB solidified a foundation of sustainable development. First, placing credit risk prevention as the top priority
of risk control, CMB continued to maintain risk monitoring and investigation, and optimised the post-loan management
mechanism. Second, CMB improved its comprehensive risk management capabilities and risk governance and management
mechanisms. It strengthened mechanisms for its supervisory committee and responsibility identification committee
to identify the accountability for all types of risks. Third, CMB improved the ability of the internal control compliance
management to cultivate compliance awareness and enhance systematic concept, securing its internal firewall.

CMB continued to build its brand image and brand influence. It was given the highest credit rating of AAA by China
Chengxin International Credit Rating Company Limited, and the outlook for the credit rating was considered to be stable.
CMB also won other awards in 2021, including the “Headquarters Enterprise Contribution Award” from Shenzhen Municipal
Government, the “Operational Growth Support, the Financial Industry Development Service Support”, and the “Internal
Institution Support from Futian District Government”, and the “Annual Brand Growth Award” from Shenzhen Special Zone
Daily.

Looking ahead, CMB will continue to operate according to the principle of “striving for progress while maintaining stability”.
It will be guided by the theme of high-quality development, continue to progress with business transformation and innovation
under the premise of assured compliance and controllable risks, and expedite the journey to becoming a top-ranking,
distinctive boutique bank in the Greater Bay Area.
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Human Resources

The Bank always regards its staff as its most valuable asset. It applies a “people-oriented” management philosophy and updates
its human resources management practices to move with the times. This drives the growth of both the Bank and its employees.

In 2021, the Bank proactively acquired talent through diverse recruitment channels and optimised its workforce. As at the
end of 2021, the total number of employees of ICBC (Asia) and its subsidiaries was 3,003. The Bank continued to invest in
the comprehensive development of its employees, optimise its policy on career development, strengthen the capabilities of
staff members at different levels and actively promote cross-departmental exchange and learning. The Bank is committed to
expanding employees’ scope of expertise in different fields to nurture interdisciplinary talent. The Bank also introduced a
series of high-quality training programmes aligned to its digital transformation strategy, to cultivate digital skills. To adapt
to pandemic situation, the Bank made use of its rich online learning and training resources and continued to conduct online
leadership development programmes. This has enhanced the staff’s capabilities to fulfil their duties and develop their careers.

The Bank is committed to implementing a sound bank culture based on the three pillars developed and promoted by the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority. During the year, the Bank enhanced its risk management capabilities and compliance awareness
by improving internal policies and processes, raising staff awareness and optimising employee feedback mechanisms. The
Bank also continued to enhance its performance management and incentive measures. It published the “Core Competencies
of ICBC ASIA Model” to guide and motivate staff, promoting its overall strategy development. During the year, the senior
management of the Bank maintained effective communication with the staff. The Bank held several communication sessions
with employees at all levels to listen to their views and exchange ideas with them on many areas of the Bank’s operation and to
encourage them to continue to contribute their ideas.

The Bank responded positively to the call of the Hong Kong SAR Government and various social organisations to maintain
stable local employment levels. It invested in creating financial and banking job opportunities in both Guangdong and Hong
Kong for university graduates. For example, it participated in the Greater Bay Area Youth Employment Scheme, the New
Graduates - New Opportunities Scheme and the Internship Programme for College Students, organised by the Hong Kong
SAR Government and the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association. The Bank also won the “Good MPF Employer Award”
from the Mandatory Provident Fund Authority for the fourth consecutive year.

During the pandemic, the Bank implemented special work arrangements to reduce the flow of people and social contact
in the workplace, in line with the government’s anti-pandemic measures. It offered periodic anti-pandemic necessities,
meal allowances and office lunches to its employees, arranged COVID-19 nucleic acid tests and provided vaccination leave
for employees by referring to the government policy to safeguard their health and safety. The Bank also organised various
online recreational activities to relieve employee stress. The employee care measures manifested the Bank’s people-oriented
approach and are aimed at improving the employees’ life and working environment.

In 2022, the Bank’s human resources management will focus its efforts on developing regional operations, building

organisational capability, digital transformation, and cultivating team capability. All these are aimed at contributing to the
harmonious progress and development of both the Bank and its employees.
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Green Finance

In response to China’s goal to peak carbon emissions by 2030 and achieve carbon neutrality by 2060, ICBC (Asia) focused on
green and sustainable development in 2021 by expanding green financial business and climate risk management initiatives to
promote the balanced development of the economy, environment and society.

In terms of corporate governance, the Bank has built a preliminary green finance governance system by strengthening the
leadership and supervisory roles of the board and defining the promotion functions of management and relevant professional
committees. It also formed a cross-departmental working group on green finance. The Bank also incorporated green finance
into its overall development strategy to promote green and sustainable development: it set strategic goals for green finance
development, defined the focus of climate risk management, and set out green operation goals and action plans.

With regard to business development, the Bank strengthened the expansion of green financial business by issuing green
bonds and green loans. For green bonds, the Bank promoted the investment, underwriting, and issuance of green bonds, and
provided financing support for a variety of green projects in public utilities, transportation, renewable energy and other areas.
At the end of 2021, the balance of green bond investments increased by 59% year-on-year. The Bank also assisted customers
such as governments, financial institutions, and enterprises in pricing their first or largest green bonds. Underwriting for all
types of green bonds increased by approximately 83% year-on-year. The Bank also participated in ICBC Group’s global multi-
currency “carbon neutrality” overseas green bond project and successfully issued US$1 billion of senior bonds. This project
won the Outstanding Award for Green and Sustainable Bond Issuer (Global Commercial Banking Industry) — Largest Amount
of Carbon Neutrality Themed Green Bond from the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Authority (HKQAA). In terms of green
loans, the Bank prudently guided the fund to be invested in the fields of green finance and net-zero transition. By the end of
the year, the Bank had taken the lead in organising several green and sustainable syndicated loans, successfully carrying out
the first green and sustainable loan project as a consultant. The growth rate of green loans was higher than general loans, and
the comprehensive service capacity of the green credit business improved.

The Bank also explored climate risk management. The stress test on climate risk was completed in the middle of the year, in
accordance with the relevant guidelines of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority, and the Bank was the first batch to submit
the stress test results. Furthermore, the Bank deepened external cooperation and communication by joining the Hong Kong
Association of Banks” Green Commercial Banking Committee and the data working group of the Green and Sustainable
Finance Cross-Agency Steering Group. The Bank conducted voluntary studies and discussions on the topic of green finance,
and also signed a memorandum of cooperation with the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Authority (HKQAA) to establish a
long-term cooperative relationship in green finance.

Looking ahead to 2022, the Bank will continue to follow the carbon neutrality policy direction of Mainland China and
the HKSAR to further green finance development. Through measures to further improve green investment and financing
management, the climate risk management system, and green and low-carbon operations, the Bank will promote green
finance as a driving force for the Bank’s innovation, transformation, and sustainable development. The Bank will continue to
contribute to Hong Kong’s economy and society by moving towards low-carbon transformation and sustainable development.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

The Bank believes in fulfilling its corporate social responsibility by giving back to society on multiple fronts. It has integrated
the ESG (Environmental, Social and Governance) concept into its daily operation and encouraged employees to volunteer
for charitable activities in the areas of sport and culture, environmental protection, and financial inclusion. In 2021, ICBC
(Asia) collaborated with the Sports Federation & Olympic Committee of Hong Kong, China for the first time, and became
the exclusive financial institution partner of Hong Kong, China Delegation to the Tokyo 2020 Olympic Games. The Bank
was proud to give its full support to local athletes to compete on the stage of world sports and to advocate for sustainable
development of the local sports industry.

The Bank was awarded the logo of “Caring Company” for the 19th consecutive year in 2021 by The Hong Kong Council of
Social Service, in recognition of its dedication to community service. The ICBC (Asia) Charitable Foundation also carried out
a wide range of charitable projects. The Bank launched the “Love Around the City” campaign with a focus on the northern
metropolitan area of Hong Kong, to cover youth sports exchange programmes, sharing sessions, residential home visits,
donations of epidemic prevention supplies and testing kits to convey its care for the whole community in practical ways.

As the Chairman of Caritas Hong Kong Fund Raising Committee for 23 consecutive years, the Bank helped Caritas
Hong Kong raise more than HK$3 million in 2021 through the ICBC (Asia) & Caritas Charity Golf Day, donating to the
Caritas annual TV fund raising show, sponsoring charity sales of cookies, and selling Caritas raffle tickets on behalf of the
organisation. All the funds raised went to programmes that benefit the community and families in need. The Bank also
participated in The Community Chest Walk for Millions for the 10th consecutive year, over 100 employees joined the virtual
walk to contribute to the charity.

The year 2021 also marked the third year of the five-year Plantation Enrichment Project, jointly conducted by the Bank,
the Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation Department of the Hong Kong SAR government and a local environmental
group, The Green Earth. Bank staff have participated in field studies and maintenance of the planted trees since 2019, to help
conserve the ecosystem and biodiversity of Hong Kong’s afforestation areas. The Bank also extensively promoted the “Green
Office” concept by taking measures to reduce waste, save energy and reuse materials. The Bank was certified by the Hong Kong
Green Organisation for its efforts in environmental protection and carbon reduction.

In regard to financial inclusion, the Bank is also dedicated to promoting financial knowledge and wealth management
concepts to the public. During the year, it participated in workshops to educate the public on the importance of sound
financial management and “Smart Use of Online Banking for Elderly”, a programme organised by The Hong Kong
Association of Banks to promote the usage of online banking among the elderly.

In 2022, the Bank will continue to drive sustainable development as an integral part of its long-term development and

operation. By adopting ESG concept, it will champion Hong Kong’s charitable causes through corporate social responsibility
events, and support society through the ICBC (Asia) Charitable Foundation for the long-term well-being of the community.
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As at 24 March 2022

Ms. Gao Ming (Chairman & Executive Director)

Ms. Gao, aged 56, was appointed as the Chairman and Executive Director of the Bank in February 2017. She is the Chairman
of Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee of the Bank. Ms. Gao holds two Master’s Degrees, one in Applied Finance
from Macquarie University and another in English from Jilin University of Technology. She is very experienced in banking
business and served in several positions including the Chairman of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Europe) S.A.
the General Manager of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Luxembourg Branch and the General Manager of the
International Business Department of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited.

Mr. Shen Xiaodong (Vice Chairman & Executive Director)

Mr. Shen, aged 58, was appointed as the Vice Chairman and Executive Director of the Bank in March 2021. He is a Member
of Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee of the Bank. Mr. Shen holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Industrial Management
Engineering from Jilin University of Engineering (Now known as “Changchun University of Technology”) and a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from China Europe International Business School. Mr. Shen is very experienced in
banking business and served in several positions including Deputy General Manager and General Manager of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited, Guangdong Branch.

Mr. Wu Long (Vice Chairman, Executive Director ¢ Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Wu, aged 50, was appointed as the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank in August 2018 and
was appointed as the Vice Chairman of the Bank in January 2019. He is a Member of Strategy and Corporate Governance
Committee and Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors of the Bank. Mr. Wu holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
National Economic Management from Henan University of Finance and Economics (Now known as “Henan University of
Economics and Law”), a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Sun Yat-sen University and an Executive Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from China Europe International Business School. Mr. Wu is very experienced in banking
business and served in several positions including Vice Chairman, Executive Director and General Manager of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited, Vice President of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, Anhui
Provincial Branch and President of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, Guangdong Jiangmen Branch.

Mr. Lu Jian (Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive & Alternate Chief Executive)

Mr. Lu, aged 45, joined the Bank in February 2017 as the Assistant Chief Executive. He was appointed as the Deputy Chief
Executive of the Bank in August 2017 and was appointed as the Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of the
Bank in October 2017. Mr. Lu is a Member of Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors of the Bank. Mr. Lu holds
a Bachelor’s Degree in International Finance from Dongbei University of Finance & Economics and a Master’s Degree in
Financial Analysis from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst
Charterholder. Mr. Lu is very experienced in banking business. He had served in the Bank for over 8 years from April 2007 to
July 2015 and once served as the Executive Director and Chief Executive of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Thai)
Public Company Limited.

Mr. Hong Guilu (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Hong, aged 55, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Bank in December 2016. He is the Alternate Chairman
of Audit Committee and a Member of Remuneration Committee and Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee of the
Bank. Mr. Hong holds a Master’s Degree in Accounting from George Washington University. Mr. Hong is very experienced in
banking business and is the Senior Expert and Accredited Director of Administration Office of Directors and Supervisors to
Subsidiaries of Corporate Strategy and Investor Relations Department of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited.
He is currently the Non-executive Director of Chinese Mercantile Bank, ICBC Credit Suisse Asset Management Co., Ltd.,
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited and Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Canada).
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As at 24 March 2022

Mr. Hu Yimin (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Hu, aged 54, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Bank in September 2020, and he is also the Alternate
Chairman of Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors and a Member of Nomination Committee of the Bank.
Mr. Hu holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Infrastructure Economics from Renmin University of China and a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration from Tsinghua University. Mr. Hu is very experienced in banking business and is the Senior Expert
and Accredited Director of Administration Office of Directors and Supervisors to Subsidiaries of Corporate Strategy and
Investor Relations Department of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited. Mr. Hu is currently the Non-executive
Director of Chinese Mercantile Bank, ICBC Asset Management (Global) Company Limited, ICBC Wealth Management Co.,
Ltd, ICBC International Holdings Limited and Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Thai) Public Company Limited.

Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, s8.5.,J.p. (Vice Chairman, Independent Non-executive Director)

Professor Wong, aged 69, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in July 2000 and has been
appointed as the Vice Chairman of the Bank in January 2019. He is a Member of the Strategy and Corporate Governance
Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the Bank. Professor Wong holds a PhD in Economics from
the University of Chicago. He is Professor of Economics at The University of Hong Kong. He has been active in advancing
economic research on policy issues in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China through his work as founding Director
of both the Hong Kong Centre for Economic Research and Hong Kong Institute of Economics and Business Strategy.
Professor Wong was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star in 1999 by the Government of the HKSAR for his contributions in
education, housing, industry and technology development. Professor Wong is currently an Independent Non-executive
Director of Great Eagle Holdings Limited, Pacific Century Premium Developments Limited and Sun Hung Kai Properties
Limited, all of them are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. Tsui Yiu Wa, Alec (Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Tsui, aged 72, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in August 2000. He is the Chairman
of Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors and also a Member of Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee,
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Bank. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Science and a Master’s Degree
in Industrial Engineering from University of Tennessee. He has completed the Program for Senior Managers in Government
at the John F. Kennedy School of Government at Harvard University. Mr. Tsui was the Adviser and Council Member of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange from July 2001 to June 2002 and was the Chief Executive of Regent Pacific Group Limited,
a Hong Kong listed investment company, from August 2000 to February 2001. He was also the Chairman of Hong Kong
Securities Institute from December 2001 to December 2004. He joined The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in 1994
as an Executive Director of the Finance and Operations Services Division and became the Chief Executive from 1997 to
2000. He was also the Chief Operating Officer of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited from March 2000 to July 2000
and the General Manager (Finance, Technology & Human Resources), and then Assistant Director (Licensing), and at the
same time the General Manager (Human Resources) of the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong from 1989 to
1993. Mr. Tsui also involved in numerous government and community activities, including being a former Chairman of the
Supervisory Committee of Tracker Fund of Hong Kong and the Organising Committee of Independent Commission Against
Corruption Professional Ethics Programme for the Securities, Futures and Investments Sectors, a former member of the
Standing Committee on Company Law Reform, the Hong Kong Trade Development Council Financial Services Advisory
Committee, The Community Chest of Hong Kong Corporate and Employee Contribution Programme Organising Committee
(Banking and Finance Group), the Banking and Finance Industry Training Board of the Vocational Training Council and
the Investment Sub-Committee of the Government Committee of the Beat Drugs Fund Association. Mr. Tsui is currently an
Independent Non-executive Director of COSCO SHIPPING International (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd., Pacific Online Limited,
Hua Medicine and Brii Biosciences Limited, all of them are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and Melco Resorts &
Entertainment Limited, a company listed on the NASDAQ and an Independent Director of ATA Creativity Global, a company
listed on NASDAQ.
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Mr. Yuen Kam Ho, George, FHKIoD (Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Yuen, aged 77, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in April 2003. He is the Chairman
of Remuneration Committee and also serves as a Member of Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors and Strategy
and Corporate Governance Committee of the Bank. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree (Honors) in Economics and Political
Science from The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Yuen had attended post-graduate studies in marketing management at the
International Marketing Institute, Cambridge, Massachusetts, U.S.A. and had completed the Hong Kong Administrators
Course (commissioned by the Hong Kong Government) in public administration and international relations at Oxford
University, the United Kingdom, and the International Executive Program in INSEAD, France respectively. In June 2003,
Mr. Yuen was admitted to the Leadership in Development Program organised by Kennedy School of Government, Harvard
University. In June 2004, Stanford University, California, U.S.A. had also invited Mr. Yuen to participate in its “Corporate
Governance” forum and in early 2006 the University awarded a fellowship to Mr. Yuen as a non-profit leader at its Centre for
Social Innovation. Mr. Yuen had been Chief Executive of The Better Hong Kong Foundation for nine years since September
1997. Prior to his joining the Foundation, he was the Assistant Director/Acting Deputy Director of the Information Services
Department of the Hong Kong Government. Mr. Yuen plays an active role in organising international business conferences
in Hong Kong and also takes part in numerous government and community activities, he is currently a board member of
the Hong Kong Society for the Aged. Mr. Yuen was the Panel member of the Central Policy Unit of the Government of the
HKSAR on the Pan-Pearl River Delta between 2003-2007. From January 2006 to January 2013, Mr. Yuen had been a member
of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, Guangxi Autonomous Region, China; an advisor of the Institute
of Finance and Trade Economics, Chinese Academy of Social Sciences, China; an advisor of The Shanghai Academy of Social
Sciences, China and an advisor of The Board of International Investment of Guangzhou Municipality, China. At present,
Mr. Yuen is a member of the Court of The University of Hong Kong and a member of Business Advisory Council of United
Nations Economic and Social Commission for Asia and the Pacific. Mr. Yuen is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors, a member of the British Institute of Management and the Institute of Marketing, United Kingdom, and was also
commended by the former U.S. President, George W. Bush for his efforts in support of coalition’s campaign against global
terrorism.

Dr. Wu Jie Si (Independent Non-executive Director)

Dr. Wu, aged 70, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in March 2013. He is the Chairman
of Nomination Committee and also a Member of Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee and Risk Management
Committee of Board of Directors of the Bank. Dr. Wu holds a Doctorate Degree in Economics from Graduate School of the
People’s Bank of China and has got a Professor’s Qualification at Tianjin Nankai University. Dr. Wu is very experienced
in investment and corporate management and was previously the President of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Limited, Shenzhen Branch, the Deputy Mayor of the Shenzhen Municipal Government and the Assistant to the Governor of
Guangdong Province. Dr. Wu is currently the Chairman of the Shenzhen Fuhaiyintao Asset Management Co., Ltd. and he is
also an Independent Non-executive Director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. Dr. Wu is also an Independent Non-executive Director of China Citic Bank International Limited.
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Dr. Or Ching Fai, s.B.s., .p. (Independent Non-executive Director)

Dr. Or, aged 72, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank in December 2018. He is the Chairman
of Audit Committee and also serves as a Member of Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors and Strategy and
Corporate Governance Committee of the Bank. Dr. Or holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics and Psychology from the
University of Hong Kong. He was conferred an Honorary Doctor of Social Science by the City University of Hong Kong in
2014 and Honorary Fellow by Hang Seng Management College in May 2017 (it renamed as The Hang Seng University of Hong
Kong in October 2018). He was awarded a Silver Bauhinia Star from the Government of HKSAR and Honorary University
Fellow from The University of Hong Kong in 2009. Dr. Or is very experienced in Insurance, Banking and Financial Industries,
he was the General Manager and Director of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, Chairman of HSBC
Insurance Limited, Vice-Chairman and Chief Executive of Hang Seng Bank, Chairman of Hang Seng Insurance Company
Limited and Hang Seng Bank (China) Limited and Independent Non-executive Director of Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China Limited. He was also the Non-Executive Chairman of the Board and Non-executive Director of Esprit Holdings
Limited, the Director of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited, Hutchison Whampoa Limited and a Vice Chairman and an
Independent Non-executive Director of G-Resources Group Limited, an Independent Non-executive Director of Television
Broadcast Limited, all of them are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He was the Deputy Chairman and a Non-
executive Director of Aquis Entertainment Limited (a company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange). Dr. Or takes
part in numerous government and community activities, he is currently a Vice Patron of the Board of the Community Chest
of Hong Kong and a Justice of the Peace. Dr. Or was previously the Chairman of Executive and Campaign Committee of the
Community Chest of Hong Kong, the Chairman of the Hong Kong Association of Banks in 2000 and 2003 and was Vice-
Chairman of Hong Kong Association of Banks in 2001, 2002, 2004 and 2005, a Director of the Hong Kong Interbank Clearing
Limited, a Vice President and a Council Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. Dr. Or has also been Chairman of
the Financial Services Advisory Committee and a Member of the Services Promotion Programme Committee of the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council. He has been a Member of the Risk Management Committee of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited, a Member of the Aviation Development Advisory Committee, Deputy Council Chairman of the Council of
City University of Hong Kong, a Council Member of the University of Hong Kong, an Adviser of the Employers’ Federation
of Hong Kong, a member of the 5th East Asian Games Planning Committee and Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference Beijing Committee and a Director of 2009 East Asian Games (Hong Kong) Limited. Dr. Or is currently the
Chairman and Non-executive Director of China Strategic Holdings Limited, and an Independent Non-executive Director of
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited, Regina Miracle International (Holdings) Limited and Playmates Holdings Limited,
all of them are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Leung Ming Hym, Peter (Deputy Chief Executive & Alternate Chief Executive)

Mr. Leung, aged 59, joined the Bank in July 2001 and was appointed as the Deputy Chief Executive of the Bank in August
2011. He was appointed as the Alternate Chief Executive of the Bank in May 2016. Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Accounting and Financial Analysis from Newcastle University, UK and a Bachelor’s Degree in Laws from University of
London, UK. Mr. Leung is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (UK).

Mr. Gu Xuan (Deputy Chief Executive)

Mr. Gu, aged 48, joined the Bank in March 2018 as the Deputy Chief Executive. Mr. Gu is currently responsible for the Bank’s
retail banking & wealth management business, channel management, private banking business, consumer finance business,
credit card business, internet finance business and securities brokerage business. He has extensive experience in the banking
industry. Mr. Gu holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Chinese from Soochow University and a Master’s Degree in International Trade
from Nanjing University.

Mr. Wang Chaoming (Deputy Chief Executive ¢ Chief Information Officer)

Mr. Wang, aged 51, joined the Bank in May 2011 and was appointed as the Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Information
Officer in July 2015. He was appointed as the Deputy Chief Executive of the Bank in October 2017. He is currently responsible
for the Bank’s financial technology, operations management, management information and general administration. Mr.
Wang has extensive experience in the banking industry. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree and a Master’s Degree in Electrical
Engineering from Zhejiang University and a Master’s Degree in International Business Administration from Fudan
University and The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Li Dong (Deputy Chief Executive)

Mr. Li, aged 46, joined the Bank in May 2016 and was appointed as the Assistant Chief Executive in November 2016. He was
appointed as the Deputy Chief Executive of the Bank in February 2018. He is currently responsible for the Bank’s corporate
banking business, Greater Bay Area corporate banking business, Asia-Pacific business, global capital financing business,
payments and cash management and trade finance business. Mr. Li has extensive experience in the banking industry. He
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in engineering (industrial and civil engineering) from Nanjing Institute of Architectural and Civil
Engineering (Now known as “Nanjing Tech University”) and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from SouthEast
University.

Mr. Chen Yinbin (Deputy Chief Executive)

Mr. Chen, aged 52, was appointed as the Assistant Chief Executive of the Bank in November 2017. He was appointed as
the Deputy Chief Executive of the Bank in January 2019. He is currently responsible for overseeing the business of Chinese
Mercantile Bank, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank. Mr. Chen has extensive experience in the banking industry.
He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Physics from Wuhan University, a Master’s Degree in International Trade from Nanjing
University and a Master’s Degree in International Business Administration from Fudan University and The University of
Hong Kong.

Mr. Lu Qiang (Assistant Chief Executive & Chief Risk Officer)

Mr. Lu, aged 44, joined the Bank in July 2017 as the Chief Credit Approver and Head of Credit Department and was appointed
as the Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Risk Officer in September 2021. He is currently responsible for the Bank’s credit
approval, risk management, loans administration and credit and investment management. Mr. Lu has extensive experience
in the banking industry. He holds a Master’s Degree in Technical Economics and Management from Renmin University of
China.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Bank have pleasure in submitting
their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group (the Bank together with its subsidiaries hereinafter referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of banking and related
financial services. Other particulars of the Bank’s subsidiaries are set out in Note
32 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 77.

The Board has not recommended the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

RESERVES
Profit attributable to shareholders of HK$5,665,254,000 (2020:
HK$5,525,152,000) has been transferred to reserves. Details of movements in

the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in Note 40 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$4,180,000.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year are set out
in Notes 29 and 30 to the financial statements.
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ISSUE OF SHARES

Details of the Bank’s issued shares are set out in Note 38 to the financial
statements.

FIVE YEAR’S FINANCIAL SUMMARY

DL 7 7 4 B 2 T B B4R B 22 64 - A I A R A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
oo five financial years is set out below.
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
T-#oL TH#TT T AR FHsT
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
4k Results
I8 BRI A ¥ ) Profit attributable to shareholders 5,665,254 5,525,152 8,302,598 8,278,163 7,767,358
¥ K Assets and liabilities
B A Total assets 927,875,188 931,092,538 953,563,756 893,618,387 898,109,027
:Efimuﬁﬁ Total liabilities 784,282,460 793,325,463 819,708,662 776,300,898 806,422,987
B2 4 Total equity 143,592,728 137,767,075 133,855,094 117,317,489 91,686,040
E DIRECTORS
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The list of Directors of the Bank is set out in the “Corporate Information” of
this Annual Report. The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors & Senior Management” of this Annual Report.

The following change in the Board occurred during the year and up to the date of
this Report:

Mr. Shen Xiaodong was appointed as Vice Chairman and Executive Director of
the Bank with effect from 9 March 2021.

The Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Bank are not appointed for specific term but subject to the retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and re-election at the annual general
meeting in accordance with the Articles 94(1) and 94(2) of the Articles of
Association. Accordingly, Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard, Dr. Wu Jie Si and
Dr. Or Ching Fai will retire by rotation and, all being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with the
Articles of Association.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Bank, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Bank, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries, or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Bank or any other body corporate.

LIST OF DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The list of all directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries of the
Bank (included in the annual consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021) during the year and up to the date of this Report
are available on the Bank’s website at www.icbcasia.com under “About Us -
Corporate News — Corporate Governance” section on the home page.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered into or existed
during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Bank during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provides that every director, secretary, or other
officer of the Bank shall be entitled to be indemnified by the Bank against
all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by him/her in the
execution and/or discharge of his/her duties and/or the exercise of his/her
powers and/or otherwise in relation to or in connection with his/her duties,
powers or office. The Bank has maintained insurance for the benefit of the
Directors against liability which may lawfully be insured by the Bank.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank is committed to maintaining and upholding high standards of
corporate governance practices. Details of the Bank’s corporate governance
practices are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” of this Annual
Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE BANKING
(DISCLOSURE) RULES

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions as set out in the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year 2021 of the Bank have been
audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who has been appointed as new auditor of
the Bank at the annual general meeting held on 21 May 2021 upon the retirement
of KPMG. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire and offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ms. Gao Ming
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 March 2022
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The Bank is committed to maintaining and upholding high standards of
corporate governance practices. The Bank has followed the guidelines set out
in the Supervisory Policy Manual entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorized Institutions” issued by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (“HKMA”).

In order to show its continuous commitment to the development of sound
corporate governance, the Bank has adopted its “Corporate Governance
Manual” and will revamp and strengthen relevant measures according to market
trend as well as guidelines and requirements issued by regulatory authorities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
OF THE BANK
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Details of the composition of the Board and each of the Board Committees of the
Bank are set out in “Corporate Information” of this Annual Report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board

The Board has responsibility for leadership and control of the Bank and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Bank by directing
and supervising the Bank’s affairs. The Board sets strategies for the Bank and
monitors the performance and activities of the senior management. The Board
ensures prudent management of the Bank with high degree of honesty and
within the legal and regulatory framework, and the Board takes into account the
legitimate interests of shareholders, depositors and other relevant stakeholders.

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are segregated. The Bank
benefits from the segregation in which the Chairman is responsible for ensuring
that the Board properly discharges its responsibilities, conforms to good
corporate governance practices and procedures and all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board timely, and the Chief Executive Officer is
responsible for leading the Senior Management and implementing important
policies adopted by the Board, managing the Bank’s operations and relevant
issues.

The Board reviews and evaluates its work process and effectiveness annually,
with a view to identifying areas for improvement and further enhancement.
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BEZEZZHFE=AZ+UH Ik
As at 24 March 2022

Board Structure

As at the date of this report, the Board consisted of eleven Directors comprising
four Executive Directors, two Non-executive Directors and five Independent
Non-executive Directors (INED”). Both the number and percentage of the
INED are well above the requirements set by relevant rules and regulations.
The Bank benefits from the professional expertise as well as business and
banking experience of its Directors. Biography of the Directors is set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” section under this
Annual Report.

Board Meetings

Board meetings are held at least once every quarter. Such regular Board meetings
will normally involve the active participation, either in person or through other
electronic means of communication, of a majority of Board members. Special
Board meetings will be held when necessary. The Board held five meetings
during the year 2021.

Directors are consulted on matters to be included in the agenda of regular Board
meetings. Directors may seek independent professional advice or request pre-
meetings ahead of Board or Board Committees meetings with the consent of the
Chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer when appropriate to assist him/her
in discharging his/her duties to the Bank. Besides, all Directors have been given
rights on fully and timely access to all relevant information of the Bank and have
separate and independent access to the management of the Bank so that they can
make an informed decision in discharging their duties and responsibilities as
Directors. All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure due compliance with the Board procedures, and all applicable
rules and regulations.

Board meeting dates of each year are normally determined before the end of
the previous year in consultation with the Directors. Formal notice of meeting
shall be given to all Directors by the Company Secretary at least two weeks
before the date of the meeting to provide sufficient notice to give all Directors an
opportunity to attend. Under special circumstances, the Company Secretary will
promptly contact all Directors by way of telephone. Agenda and accompanying
papers containing analysis and background information are circulated to all
Directors not less than 7 days before the intended date of Board meeting.

Minutes of the meetings of the Board and the Board Committees have been
recorded in sufficient detail including the matters considered by the Board and
the Board Committees, decisions reached, and concerns raised by Directors
or dissenting views (if any) expressed. Draft and final versions of the minutes
of the Board and the Board Committees are sent to all Directors or members
of the Board Committees (as the case may be) for their comments and records
respectively.

Minutes and papers of the meetings of the Board and all the Board Committees,
and relevant materials are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter (including material transaction
with connected persons) which the Board has determined to be material, the
relevant matter will be dealt with at a Board meeting in accordance with the
requirements as set out in the Companies Ordinance, the Articles of Association
and the Directors’ Conflict of Interest Policy of the Bank.
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Appointments and Re-election of the Board

The Bank uses a set of formal, prudent and transparent procedures for the
appointment of new Directors to ensure the Directors have the necessary
competencies and skills to support the development and growth of the Bank.
The suitability of new Directors will be evaluated in various aspects and the
appointment of new Directors will be discussed by the NC before recommending
to the Board for consideration and approval after due deliberation. A candidate
who is to be appointed as an INED should ensure he/she meets the independence
requirements and also the requirements of the guidance on “Empowerment
of Independent Non-Executive Directors in the Banking Industry in Hong
Kong” issued by the HKMA. In accordance with the requirement under the
Banking Ordinance, approval from the HKMA shall also be obtained for any
appointment of new Directors. According to the Bank’s Articles of Association,
all new Directors are subject to election by shareholder(s) of the Bank at the
next scheduled annual general meeting after their appointments have become
effective, and shall then be entitled for re-election. The Non-executive Directors
and the INED of the Bank are not appointed for specific term but subject to
the retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting in
accordance with the Bank’s Articles of Association. The NC conducts review of
the independence of the INED, additional assessment will be conducted during
rotation for those INED who have been serving on the Board for more than 9
years, the NC will make recommendations based on the results of the assessment
on the suitability of the INED to continue to act as director to the Board for
approval.

At each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not exceeding one-third, shall retire from office by rotation. All the retiring
Directors are eligible for re-election. Professor Wong Yue Chim, Richard,
Dr. Wu Jie Si and Dr. Or Ching Fai will offer themselves for retirement and
being eligible, will be entitled for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Bank.

Save for the above-mentioned retiring Directors, who will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Bank, as at the date
of this report, no Director held office for over three years since last re-election.

Directors’ Liability Insurance Policy

During the year, the Bank has arranged for appropriate cover on Directors’
Liability Insurance Policy to indemnify the Directors for liabilities arising from
corporate activities. The coverage and the amount insured under such policy are
reviewed annually by the Bank.

Evaluation of the Board and Directors

During the year, the Bank had conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness
of the Directors, the Board and the Board Committees of the Bank in the
form of a questionnaire to all Directors individually. Based on the completed
questionnaire, the Bank analysed the results and a report delineated the results
had been reviewed by the NC and submitted to the Board.
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Directors’ Training and Professional Development

To ensure that the newly appointed Directors have adequate understanding
of the Bank’s business operations and to enable Directors to update their
knowledge regularly so as to provide informed recommendation and advice
and make contribution to the Bank, the Board establishes a set of written policy
specifying guidelines on Directors’ induction and training upon appointment.

The Bank also provides regular updates to Board members on material
changes to regulatory requirements applicable to the Directors and the Bank
on a timely basis. In addition, Board members are encouraged to participate
actively in continuous training programmes and the Bank also arranges relevant
professional training programmes for Board members. In 2021, all Directors
have attended continuous training programmes to update their knowledge and
technique.

Disclosure on remuneration

According to HKMA’s Supervisory Policy Manual CG-5 “Guideline on a Sound
Remuneration System”, authorised institutions are required to make disclosures
in relation to their remuneration systems as appropriate. The Bank has fully
complied with HKMA’s disclosure requirements set out in Part 3 of the said
Guideline. Disclosure on remuneration of the Bank will be included in the
Annual Banking Disclosure Statement posted on the Bank’s website.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up five committees which are delegated with different
responsibilities to assist the Board in performing its duties. They are Audit
Committee, Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee, Risk Management
Committee of Board of Directors, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Each of these Board Committees has specific written Terms of
Reference which state clearly its objectives, functions and responsibilities.

All Board Committees are comprised mainly of Non-executive Directors and
INED and report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations on
a regular basis. Material matters are reserved for the approval of the Board
according to the terms of reference of such committees. The Board will conduct
regular review and update on the terms of reference of such committees.

Audit Committee

AC assists the Board in monitoring the Bank’s financial reporting process
independently and external audit function, ensuring an effective system of
internal control and compliance (including risk management system), and
supervising the internal audit function. Meanwhile, the committee is also
responsible for reviewing the Bank’s compliance with applicable rules, including
but not limited to the requirements and guidelines of regulators, businesses or
laws.

AC comprises four members and three of them are INED. Generally, meetings of
AC shall be held not less than once in each quarter. It held four meetings during
the year and all the meetings were with the participation of the relevant senior
management, internal audit officers of the Bank and representatives from the
external auditor of the Bank.
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AC is also responsible for making recommendations on the appointment,
re-appointment, removal and remuneration of the Bank’s external auditor.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is the external auditor of the Bank. A statement
by the external auditor with respect to their responsibilities is included in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 69 and 76 of the Bank’s 2021 Annual
Report.

Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee

SCG aims to enhance the strategic development and planning of the Bank and
to strengthen the corporate governance framework of the Bank, including
but not limited to reviewing the Bank’s strategic development plan, strategic
capital deployment and major institutional restructuring and adjustment plans,
and makes recommendation to the Board. Meanwhile, the committee is also
responsible for reviewing the Bank’s compliance with legal, regulatory and
corporate governance standards, providing advice on corporate governance
practice, enhancing the transparency and quality of information disclosure of the
Bank and keeping abreast of changes in regulations, with the aim to maximise
sustainable corporate values and shareholder’s interests.

SCG comprises nine members and five of them are INED. Meetings of SCG shall
be held not less than once in each year. It held one meeting during the year.

Risk Management Committee of Board of Directors

BRMC reviews the Bank’s position in various risks and approves risk
management, internal control and financial crimes principles, major policies,
guidelines and risk appetite of the Bank. It also monitors and reviews the
effectiveness of the risk management system of the Bank, including its ability
to withstand stress conditions. The key risks it oversees include credit, market,
operational, interest rate, legal and compliance, liquidity, reputation and
strategic risks. BRMC delegates to the Financial Crime Compliance Committee
to execute the works related to prevention of money laundering and terrorist
financing based on the frameworks and policies approved by the BRMC.
Senior Executive Risk Management Committee is delegated by the BRMC to
establish Policy related to risk appetite including risk appetite monitoring and
management process. The Group’s risk appetite framework covers three aspects,
namely profit, capital and risk. The risk appetite consists of quantitative and
qualitative description of types and level of risks that the Group is willing and
able to accept in pursuit of its strategic and business goals. The Policy is reviewed
at least annually and approved by the BRMC to ensure the Group operates within
the risk appetite.

BRMC comprises seven members and four of them are INED. Generally,
meetings of BRMC shall be held not less than once in each quarter. It held four
meetings during the year.

Remuneration Committee

RC is responsible for overseeing the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Bank to ensure their remuneration is appropriate for their
duties and consistent with the Bank’s culture, strategy, market condition and
control environment. RC is also responsible for advising and assisting the Board
in discharging its responsibilities for the Bank’s culture-related matters and
recommending to the Board on the Bank’s remuneration policy framework.



SRR
Annual Report 2021

HiMZ B et =AM E > HoP s w4 8 AT
HoHMEEERBEERD AN - KE®k - ZZEE
JAF BT T R

A R T F T R 2 R T AR SR AT B
FMfaE17 o

RUZAT

RAZETATAARITIA R ZERFE LEREIA
AT A A6 8 A 18 5 70 S i) S AR L %A AT MR
Ak o P4 % B E TR EUE IR 2 BN A
Sif 36§ 5 A REHE AT RTAE

RAZRGIA AR b fim s E AT E
HoRATREANBHEERDAH - KEHk - ZZET
RN BT T — Ik

ERERE 2 W

g R AL G AR AT 2 B SN R AT
By RE 7 T 2 ME ) W T A SRAT R AR LS o SRt
1o A L A 2 A W AR S R R
i B RS g At 2 A (B LR ARG - e E
B~ SR S 2E S Rl OO DL S B R B K B ) DA BR
T RESF A SRAT 2 5 BB e B A AR TG R ) e

BEEERELZE g RS RTZEGIR
G RER - AUt G T s 4l
W L A o A 5 O E R T - et
TR A RS S EAT E AR - T R B G R HEEA
WATEMEE - MG A ERBERFEHMBEL K
AR B AT AT B - BT B > DR DB
B -

B A B % VA S B

A A TTAT A L A SR AT 72 R [ A IR T R
A0 JEL B Ak BT R R B o R PR AR SRAT e 5L M MERR A M A
JUCHA L B A S R N S B R A Sl R A L
o T A T A R B Rt~ B R B -

JRRL o A B B TR IS B AR A B A A BN I 9 R K REE I
5 H EE A0 R > Sl R BRSO A O B RO s R
F 4 SR IE 48 3 B9 1R 78 -

o R SRAT () AR A

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

BEZEZZHFE=AZ+UH Ik
As at 24 March 2022

RC comprises three members and two of them are INED. Meetings of RC shall be
held not less than once in each year. It held two meetings during the year.

Information relating to the remuneration of each Director for 2021 is set out in
Note 17 to the financial statements of the Bank.

Nomination Committee

NC is responsible for assessing the suitability of the candidates and
recommending to the Board all new appointments of Directors and senior
management executives. NC also reviews the structure and composition of the
Board on a regular basis, and assesses the efficiency of the Board.

NC comprises three members and two of them are INED. Meetings of NC shall
be held not less than once in each year. It held one meeting during the year.

DELEGATION OF THE BOARD

The Board assumes the responsibility for leadership and governance of the Bank
and delegates aspects of its management and administration functions to the
senior management. The Board sets up clear guidelines governing the powers
delegated to the senior management, in particular, with respect to reporting
mechanism and the matters that are subject to the approval of the Board (such
as substantial changes in the management structure, the business objectives,
strategies and business plans, the policies and manuals which may have a
material impact on the financial and risk management of the Bank).

Apart from the Board Committees, the Board has also established the Executive
Committee, which reports to the Board. The Executive Committee has specific
written Terms of Reference which state clearly its functions and responsibilities.
The Board will conduct regular review and update on the terms of reference of
the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee was established to supervise
the overall operation of the Bank. The Executive Committee is chaired by the
Chairman of the Board of Directors and consists of Executive Directors, Chief
Executive Officer, Deputy Chief Executives and Assistant Chief Executives, as
members.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and extent
of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Bank’s strategic objectives, and
ensuring that the Bank establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems. The Board oversees the
senior management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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Systems, policies and procedures are in place to identify, measure, control and
monitor the major types of risks the Bank faces. Business units are responsible
for the assessment of individual types of risk arising from their area of operations
where risks are managed and reported in accordance with risk management
procedures and arrangements. The senior management, Senior Executive Risk
Management Committee and risk management function review and revise
the risk management policies and procedures on a regular basis. Details of
the policies and procedures for management of each of the major types of
risks, including credit, market, liquidity, interest rate, operational, legal and
compliance, reputation and strategic risks, are included in Note 4 to the financial
statements of the Bank.

To identify and manage all potential risks in a more holistic and effective
manner, the Bank has adopted a risk management and internal control structure,
referred to as the “Three Lines of Defence”, to ensure it achieves its commercial
aims while meeting regulatory and legal requirements, and its responsibilities
to shareholder, customers and staff. All business units of the Bank, as the first
line of defence of internal control framework, are primarily responsible for
identifying, assessing and monitoring the risks in their respective areas. The
risk management and compliance functions of the Bank, as the second line of
defence, are primarily responsible for monitoring and controlling the designated
risks and providing guidance to business units to ensure compliance with
applicable regulatory requirement. The Internal Audit Department plays an
important role in the Bank’s third line of defence of internal control framework,
regular audits will be conducted to ensure compliance with relevant policies and
procedures.

In accordance with the internal audit plan approved by the AC, the Bank’s
internal audit conducts independent reviews on such aspects as financial
activities, main business areas, major kinds of risks, operations and activities.
Reports are submitted directly to the AC. It also reports to the AC at least four
times each year on significant findings on internal control. The Bank’s internal
audit closely follows up on the items that require attention in a systematic way
and reports to the AC and the Chairman of the Board in a timely manner.

The Bank is committed to upholding good corporate governance practices and
the internal control system of all subsidiaries are reviewed regularly. During the
year, continuous improvements on the organisation structure and segregation
of duty and the risk management policy and procedure have been undertaken by
the Bank.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
IN RELATION TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the financial statements
of the Bank. The Bank has adopted appropriate accounting policies which
have been consistently applied and supported by reasonable judgements and
estimates, and that all accounting standards which they consider to be applicable
have been followed.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF INDUSTRIAL AND
COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (ASIA)
LIMITED

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 77 to 275, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Expected credit loss (“ECL”) allowance of loans and advances to customers at

amortised cost

We identified the determination
of ECL on loans and advances
to customers at amortised cost
as a key audit matter due to its
complexities and estimation
uncertainty involved.

As at 31 December 2021, as set out
in Notes 25 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group’s
gross amounts of loans and
advances to customers at amortised
cost amounted to HK$454,393
million, with the ECL allowance
amounting to HK$7,648 million.

As detailed in Notes 2.7.1(vii)
and 4.2(h) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group
classifies loans and advances
to customers at amortised cost
into three stages and recognises
the ECL for the next 12 months
for exposures classified as
stage 1 or ECL for the entire
lifetime of the financial asset for
those classified as stage 2 or 3.
Exposures are classified as stage
1 unless the credit risk on that
financial asset is considered to
have increased significantly as
at the reporting date since initial
recognition (Stage 2) or the
financial asset is considered to
be credit-impaired (Stage 3).

Our audit procedures in relation to the ECL
of loans and advances to customers included:

Understanding, evaluating and testing
the key controls over the management’s
impairment assessment process in
relation to ECL models under Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 97),
including model set up and approval and
selection and application of assumptions
and key inputs into the model;

Assessing the reasonableness and
appropriateness of the management’s
judgement on staging criteria for
determining if significant increase
in credit risk (“SICR”) has occurred
(stage 1 or 2) or the financial asset is
credit-impaired (stage 3) and the basis
for classification of exposures into the
three stages as required by HKFRS 9
and examining supporting documents
on a sample basis to assess the
appropriateness of the classification of
staging of loan exposures as at the end
of the reporting period;

Evaluating, together with our internal
experts, the reasonableness and
appropriateness of the ECL models
and assumptions, information and
parameters used in the models in
establishing the forward-looking
information, and the relationship
between the forward-looking
information and the key inputs,
including PD and LGD, in the ECL
model to determine the ECL of loans
and advances to customers in stage 1
or 2;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Expected credit loss (“ECL”) allowance of loans and advances to customers at
amortised cost

The Group’s measurement of Testing the accuracy and completeness
ECL involves (i) the selection of of key data sources applied in the ECL
appropriate models and key inputs computation on a sample basis by
used in the ECL models, including checking to the Group’s supporting
the probability of default (“PD”) documents, such as the relevant loan
and loss given default (LGD”), files and external data sources, as
and (ii) the selection and use applicable;

of reasonable and supportable

forward-looking information Testing the mathematical accuracy of
available without undue cost the calculation of ECL on a sample basis;
or effort in the ECL models to

estimate the future movement of With respect to the estimation of lifetime
different economic drivers and ECL on credit-impaired assets classified as
how these drivers will affect each stage 3:

other and the correlation with

the key inputs, including PD and - Corroborating and challenging
LGD. management’s assessment

and expectation of reasonably
possible outcomes on the
recoverability of the loans and
advances to customers and the
estimated fair value and future
cash flows from the collateral
against our understanding of the
circumstances and our industry
knowledge from reading public
announcements and other
externally available information on
a sample basis;

- Assessing the reasonableness
and appropriateness of the
management’s key estimations and
assumptions used in the individual
impairment assessment for the
estimated future cash flows from
borrowers on a sample basis; and
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Expected credit loss (“ECL”) allowance of loans and advances to customers at

amortised cost

In determining the lifetime
ECL on credit-impaired assets
classified as stage 3, the Group
performs individual assessments
using a discounted cash flow
methodology by considering the
amount and timing of future
cash flows, guarantees, value
of the collateral received from
the customers. The estimation
of expected future cash flows
is based on (i) the Group’s
historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are
specific to the borrowers which
include any significant financial
difficulty of the borrowers,
breach of contract or probability
that the borrowers will enter
into bankruptcy and the status
and progress of financial
restructuring, (ii) general
economic conditions and (iii)
both the current conditions of
borrowers’ repayment ability
and value of collateral at the
reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions
with significant judgements
involved.

Examining the estimated future cash flows
from realisation of collateral including:

- Obtaining the value of collateral
and assessing the competence and
independence of the third party
professional valuers and their
experience in conducting valuation
of similar financial instruments or
assets;

- Assessing whether the selection
of the valuation methodology is
appropriate for the collateral;

- Assessing the reasonableness of
the assumptions and judgements
used by management in
determining the current status
and future development of the
collateral against publicly available
information and other information
from third party professional
valuers, if any;

Assessing whether the disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements
reflected the Group’s exposure to ECL in
accordance with prevailing accounting
standard.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit
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Key audit matter

Valuation of level 3 financial assets measured at fair value

We identified the valuation of
level 3 financial assets measured
at fair value as a key audit matter
due to the significant judgement
and estimation made by the
management in the valuation
process. In determining the
fair value of level 3 financial
assets measured at fair value,
management make judgement
on the selection of valuation
approach and inputs into
valuation models. Significant
unobservable inputs into these
valuation models include
discount rate, equity value/
earnings before interest, taxes
and amortisation multiple,
price-to-sale multiple and
marketability discount.

At the reporting date, carrying
amount of level 3 financial
assets measured at fair value
is HK$3,236 million and
accounted for approximately
0.4% of the total assets of the
Group. Disclosures in relation to
level 3 fair value measurement of
these financial assets were made
in Note 4.6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Our procedures in relation to valuation of level 3
financial assets measured at fair value included:

Understanding and evaluating the key
controls over management’s process in
relation to the valuation of level 3 financial
assets measured at fair value of the Group;

Performing, on a sample basis,
independent valuations of level 3
financial assets measured at fair value
and comparing these valuations with the
Group’s valuations with the involvement
of our internal valuation specialists,
where necessary. Our independent
valuation included developing models,
obtaining inputs independently, verifying
the inputs, evaluating appropriateness
of the methodologies and checking
mathematical accuracy; and

Assessing whether the disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements
reflected the Group’s exposure to financial
assets valuation risk in accordance with
prevailing accounting standard.
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020, were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified
opinion on those statements on 24 March 2021.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Eric Tong.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
2021 2020
B 51 T#x T
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
FLE WA Interest income (6) 16,091,873 20,740,563
FE 3 Interest expense (6) (6,724,420) (10,904,399)
AR B Net interest income (6) 9,367,453 9,836,164
U 2 B AR A A Fee and commission income (7) 2,364,654 2,202,804
- e Ean Fee and commission expense (7) (234,860) (223,926)
W2 % O 4 W N ¥ Net fee and commission income (7) 2,129,794 1,978,878
A A Net trading income (8) 600,159 164,552
PAAPEE A 48 R A MRS RLE A X Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at
AEZ T kiE) i fair value through profit or loss ) (416,408) 224,826
AR A &R E 2 BRI A Dividend income from financial investments (10) 79,712 35,582
Hofth 25 25U A Other operating income (11) 442,290 325,020
BREBA Operating income 12,203,000 12,565,022
BEXH Operating expenses (12) (3,776,868) (3,677,247)
R ABRALIE R 2 A Operating profit before impairment losses 8,426,132 8,887,775
S RlE FE 2 W (E AR VR AR Net impairment losses on financial assets (14) (1,980,718) (2,922,974)
TR WA R 2 28 A Operating profit after impairment losses 6,445,414 5,964,801
A DL PR E A H AL 2 Y ss AR Net gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value
A T B 2 VIR A through other comprehensive income 576,594 553,269
HH B DU S A A RR 4 Rl Net gain/(loss) on disposal of financial assets at
Tzt (EiE) amortised cost 8,196 (6,072)
GXfEid-L/ES 72| Revaluation loss on investment properties (29) (12,234) (5,500)
B W 3 N B < T s Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (15) (3,449) (1,908)
BB A Rl 2 e Net gain on disposal of an associate 30 =
B Operating profit 7,014,551 6,504,590
JREAG ¥ 75 % ) e 4R Share of loss of associates (40,898) (44,735)
5 B i it Profit before tax 6,973,653 6,459,855
B8 B 3 i Income tax expense (16) (1,308,399) (934,703)
AR Y 7S BT B SR HE AT i A Profit for the year attributable to shareholders
of the Bank 5,665,254 5,525,152
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ReE2EWAEE
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE_ZE_—F+_HA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Tl TG
HK$’000 HK$’000
AE % A Profit for the year 5,665,254 5,525,152
AW ERH A BELEFBRIRFXZHEH : Items that will not be reclassified to the consolidated
income statement:
DA 18 (8 A8 Ath 4 17 i 2 A HRAE £ Change in fair value reserve of equity investments measured
PG 2 O T AR ot 5 ) at fair value through other comprehensive income 267,310 (804,983)
ST 15 5 2 Income tax effect - -
267,310 (804,983)
SRAT I E AL B R Revaluation surplus on bank premises 28,861 845
P15 Bl R 28 Income tax effect (4,501) (2,128)
24,360 (1,283)
WA R TR A W EE AW TR ZHEH :  Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the
consolidated income statement:
TE TR B 8 o U P TR AP BT 4 Net movements under cash flow hedges due to fair value of
Bl B 2 ) hedging instruments recognised and reclassified 302,459 (486,433)
P 19 Bl R 28 Income tax effect 31,841 (63,685)
334,300 (550,118)
DA S48 (L A HC Al 4 T Wi 2 AR Change in fair value reserve of financial assets measured
4 Tl E EE 2 N 11 (A A at fair value through other comprehensive income 472,534 285,380
RS DA ST (5 R At 4 T i 4 AR Reserve reclassified to the consolidated income statement on
CRIEEGEEN S EES SR HEZ disposal of financial assets measured at fair value through
fit s other comprehensive income (370,562) 189,121
4 G 2 (R R O R AR Net impairment losses on financial assets 31,967 9,811
JiT A5 i R 2 Income tax effect (30,058) (64,059)
103,881 420,253
HRGIG AN B A m SERR A AR 2 T S B Exchange differences arising from translation of results
of foreign subsidiaries 726,725 616,186
AR BRBLAR I A 2 W 2% (P 3X) Other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year,
net of tax 1,456,576 (319,945)
AR P BRBEAR 4 i M it A Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 7,121,830 5,205,207
Attributable to:
7 SRAT B SO 5 2 2 i 2 AR Shareholders of the Bank 7,121,830 5,205,207
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
WoE_—E+ZA=+—H
As at 31 December 2021
TR TR R
+ZA=+—H +ZHA=+—H
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
fiiE Tl T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
¥ Assets
4 K AESRATIR) 26 K HoAh 4 B iM% 2 Cash and balances with banks and other financial
LEER institutions (20) 175,996,587 118,727,991
TEERAT IR 2 % Hofth 4 A A 2 A7 3K Placements with banks and other financial institutions (21) 49,639,753 103,478,432
FEsC 5 i &R E = Financial assets held for trading (22) 92,807 -
DA P EEASE R RA IR & RUEE  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (23) 6,341,847 5,093,540
itk &M TE Derivative financial instruments (24) 10,974,572 16,465,187
R % HAh AR IH Advances and other accounts (25) 462,056,166 479,562,460
SR Financial investments: 207,717,227 186,966,866
— DA (A A 4 T o 2 AR - measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (26) 149,244,455 140,006,031
— DAHESH AR AR - measured at amortised cost (26) 58,472,772 46,960,835
TR AN 2 Investments in associates 27) 309,611 200,509
AT B 15 B Current income tax assets 1,621 -
T e LA e T R Goodwill and other intangible assets (28) 1,017,804 1,021,525
8- LY/ES Investment properties (29) 145,300 131,929
EVE ] Property, plant and equipment (30) 2,204,495 2,163,802
A SV Deferred income tax assets (35) 957,381 657,377
oAb Other assets (31) 10,420,017 16,622,920
¥ e Total assets 927,875,188 931,092,538
£ 1 Liabilities
SRAT [F] 2E Ko HoAth 4 Rl 2 773K Deposits from banks and other financial institutions (33) 189,310,235 205,998,447
i 4 m T E Derivative financial instruments (24) 8,584,456 15,624,197
KA Deposits from customers (34) 548,303,790 522,484,014
AT Certificates of deposit issued 5,632,713 7,045,548
TS Debt securities in issue (36) 20,546,764 25,136,923
JREAST BT A5 A Current income tax liabilities 435,760 1,037,278
HoAfth & 1 Other liabilities (37) 11,468,742 15,999,056
£ fi Total liabilities 784,282,460 793,325,463
B Equity
Jige A Share capital (38) 44,187,631 44,187,631
% B i A1) Retained earnings 66,481,715 62,329,014
HoAto s Other reserves 5,254,617 3,614,723
S S A AN SRAT S TR 75 AR AE Total equity attributable to shareholders of the Bank 115,923,963 110,131,368
OIS T H Additional equity instruments (39) 27,668,765 27,635,707
2 B8 B Total equity 143,592,728 137,767,075
i e £ 15 A1 Total equity and liabilities 927,875,188 931,092,538

RERGR —F T AE=H TP H A KA RET .

L] e
AT AL BATHF
HH FATEAH

Gao Ming
Chairman,
& Executive
Director

Wu Long
Vice Chairman,

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2022.

Executive Director, &
Chief Executive Officer
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BWE_E - FLH=1—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
AR
WHRE AP fatt
Hhiftd B CRWER) B bR
Bank  (WH#M)  Fairvale B Ti
JeA premises  Fairvalue reserve  Cashflow — BEXUHf —HEE RENEA  Additional
Share  revaluation reserve (non- hedge  Exchange General Retained equity it
capital reserve  (recycling)  recycling) reserve reserve reserve earnings  instrument Total
ik T T T T T T T T T T
Note HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
REBZ-F—f—H At January 2021 44,187,631 607,239 669,349 (714,114) (687,890) (25,130) 3,765,269 62,329,014 27,635,707 137,767,075
R Profit for the year - - - - - - - 5665054 - 5665054
Epfzn Other comprehensive income/
le-val:bil (expense) for the year:
WATEESILMAT  Changein fair value reserve
WEARERAREZ  offinancial assets measured
AFRER S at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - 472,534 267,310 - - - - - 739,844
HEDATERESILE  Reserve reclassified to the
REMGEAREBER  consolidated income statement
FEFABELGAWE  on disposal of financial assets
4 1] measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income - - (370,562) - - - - - - (370,562)
R RE R /MEEM LA Net movements under cash flow
I FREREESSR  hedges due to fair value of
il BEg hedging instruments recognised
and reclassified - - - - 302,459 - - - - 302,459
SREEZHERRIFE  Netimpairment losses on financial
assets - - 31,967 - - - - - - 31,967
RTFEERRS Revaluation surplus on
bank premises - 28,861 - - - - - - - 28,861
Bibu Income tax effect (%) - (4500 (30,038) - 31841 - - - - (718)
BEGSMEATES  Exchange differences arising from
EECERER translation of results of foreign
subsidiaries - - - - - 726,725 - - - 726,725
e eer Total comprehensive income
for the period - 24,360 103,881 267,310 334,300 726,725 - 5,665,254 - 7,121,830
R oy Redemption of an additional equity
instrument’ (39) - - - - - - - (33,168)  (7,738,332)  (7,771,500)
BORMNER TR Issuance of an additional equity
instrument’ (39) - - - - - - - - 7,771,390 7,771,390
HEDMREEAE  Partil transfer of retained earnings
— bkt to general reserve - - - - - - 183,318 (183,318) - -
BMERTHZME  Distributions to additional equity
instruments - - - - - - - (1296067) - (1,296067)
S Sy g At31 December 2021
=1—H 44,187,631 631,599 773,230 (446,804) (353,590) 701,595 3,948,587 66,481,715 27,668,765 143,592,728
2 MoFE—F LA Z+—H > RE|ITEEE _F—RF L 3 On 21 July 2021, the Bank redeemed the US$1 billion Non-Cumulative
Aot — B8 2108360k BR R EEAN — R EARES o Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities which was issued on 21 July
2016.

2 RoFECAEEA B ARTBRITFODEREAR
fh5E =2 I BB BRI MR E AR SR
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On 21 July 2021, the Bank issued Basel ITI-compliant Non-Cumulative

Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities in the aggregate amount of
US$1 billion.
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WE-E-FEF+ A=+ —HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

NHEE
#aEE  ATEE [
Bkl B (RE)  Rah BN
Bk (EE)  Fairvalue Rl IR
s premises  Fair value reserve  Cashflow  EEJLRHf i REER Aditional
Share  revaluation reserve (non- hedge  Exchange General Retained equity izt
capital reserve  (recycling) recycling) reserve reserve reserve earnings  instrument Total
(i Tk Titx T T T TiEx T T Tt Tt
Note HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
BZZZZE-R-H  Atl January 2020 44,187,631 608,522 249,09 90,869 (137,772) (669.457) 3,727,757 58,162,741 27,635,707 133,855,094
B Al Profit for the year - - - - - - - 55505 - 55505
EREMAERE,/  Other comprehensive income/
(F%) - (expense) for the year:
DIAFAREA A2 Change in fair value reserve
WAREREEZAT  offinancial asets measured
i at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - 285,380 (804,983) - - - - - (519,603)
HEUAPRELIME  Reserve reclassified to the
ZENGEAREBAE  consolidated income statement
FEMMHEGAUE  on disposal of financial assets
E74 1 | measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income - - 189,121 - - - - - - 189,121
RREHABEHWLE  Net movements under cash flow
AFREFEESER  hedges dueto firvalue of
il BER hedging instruments recognised
and reclassified - - - - (486,433) - - - - (486,433)
SRMEEZWERRIFE  Netimpairment losses on financial
assets = = 9,811 = = = = = = 9811
RiREERE Revaluation surplus on
bank premises - 845 - - - - - - - 845
fidhze Tncome tax effect (35) = (2,128) (64,059) = (63,685) = = = = (129872)
BEAMEATESE  Exchange differences arising from
HZENER translation of results of a foreign
subsidiaries - - - - - 644,327 - (28,141) - 616,186
MRAT (%) / Total comprehensive (expense)/
ekt income for the period - (1,283) 420253 (804,983) (550,118) 644,327 - 5,497,011 - 5,205,207
EE R R A Partial transfer of retained
— Ikt earnings to general reserve - - - - - - 37,512 (37,512) - -
BAMERTAZIMK Distributions to additional equity
instruments - - - - - - - (1,293,226) - (1,29326)
REFFEFN At31 December 2020
=t-H 44,187,631 607,239 669,349 (714)114) (687,890) (25,130) 3765269 62,329,014 27,635,707 137,767,075
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BE-E - —F+-H =t —HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
2021 2020
B 5 T#HL T U T
Notes HK$’000 HKS$’000
(ZHE51)
(Restated)
BENH B ERE Cash flows from operating activities:
B A T Vi A Profit before tax 6,973,653 6,459,855
At AT TH B A Adjustment for:
G Rl E 2 (R AR ST A Net impairment losses on financial assets 1,980,718 2,948,980
DL 63 B AR A BR 22 B B AT 1 55 1 Amortisation of debt securities in issue measured at
amortised cost - (4,877)
TV e 6 Amortisation of intangible assets (28) 8,253 7,322
EEE T Depreciation of fixed assets (30) 105,685 112,643
{5 A T Depreciation on right-to-use assets (30) 485,054 515,391
DA 8 B AS AR 22 4% (8 A5 T RS 3 Interest expenses on subordinated debts measured at
i amortised cost - 184,534
B AT 5 A B S Interest expenses on debt securities in issue (6) 582,743 669,875
T B RS S Interest expenses on lease liabilities 26,079 29,303
W8, (W Ie]) 8k S H A BR TH V5 48 Net written off/(recovery) of loans and advances 48,659 (26,006)
LB ) S B AR 2 M R AR Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  (15) 3,449 1,908
CINESS-C/E Y ZEi=! Revaluation loss on investment properties (29) 12,234 5,500
LB B DA P08 i 50 At A T i i A Net gain on disposal of financial assets measured at
& il 2 U I A fair value through other comprehensive income (576,594) (553,269)
B DL S AR A AR 4 il E 2 T Net (gain)/loss on disposal of financial assets
(U 3%) /548 measured at amortised cost (8,196) 6,072
DAN P E 48 18 1 R A IR 4 Rl 7 Net loss/(gain) on financial asset and liabilities at fair
KB fE 2 W R (I fE) value through profit or loss 9) 416,408 (224,826)
JRE Ao Wi 25 2 ) e 4R Share of loss of associates 27) 40,898 44,735
0B T4 ) 22 T A A Net gain on disposal of an associate (30) -
KAANTEERSERZRZAR LW Dividend income from listed financial assets at fair
S RE E 2 BB A value through profit or loss (10) (71,712) (27,382)
2 A {5 R A At 4 T i 2 A R Dividend income from unlisted equity securities
I bR AR R A 2 B A measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (10) (8,000) (8,200)
[fE b8, 75 %0 2 5 2% Effects of foreign exchange differences 583,433 954,887
10,602,734 11,096,445
mAEGE (B Wb (Increase)/decrease in operating assets:
JRENHH & = A LA b2 R17[R 2 Placements with banks and other financial institutions
T At 4 Pl M 9 2 A 3K with original maturity beyond three months 49,086,631 8,084,855
FER T G &Rl E = Financial assets held for trading (92,807) 492,484
DL PAE (A 5848 i 3= A IR 2 42 il
A Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (1,122,937) 112,797
DA PB4 Hofth 2 T i 25 AR 22 Financial assets (non-equity) measured at fair value
SREE (JE R E) through other comprehensive income (8,295,170) 12,585,038
D)4 63 B A A R 4 Tl Financial assets measured at amortised cost (11,546,091) (361,187)
A R S H A R IR DA % At Advances and other accounts and other assets 23,235,008 (7,868,391)
A AR 4 P TR Derivative financial instruments 4,635,975 (5,446,226)
SR, (WD) ¢ Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
SRAT ] 2 Ko HoAth 4 Rl AR A A7 2K Deposits from banks and other financial institutions (16,688,212) (1,076,358)
B Deposits from customers 25,321,837 (12,793,083)
17 3K % Certificates of deposit (1,412,835) (1,599,970)
oA £ A Other liabilities (4,716,069) (8,838,971)
A4l T H Derivative financial instruments (6,800,537) 6,877,795
B H &R BlE Cash generated from operations 62,207,527 1,265,228
B A A i I 15 B Hong Kong profits tax paid (1,857,453) (1,691,330)
BENRETINE e Overseas tax paid (348,101) (292,328)
BH, (AR & 268 2 545 Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 60,001,973 (718,430)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Wi 5 T#L T
Notes HK$’000 HKS$°000
(R 5)
(Restated)
BEEH B G Cash flows from investing activities:
[ = S Purchase of intangible assets (28) (4,243) (12,202)
Il ) 2 R A Purchase of property, plant and equipment (30) (76,972) (125,815)
th 5 ) 2 B AR T A5 5KO0E Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 60,532 22,103
REEAE 2 & Capital injection of an associate (150,000) (75,000)
WSk 2 ] VA& I AR 2 3 L Distribution from liquidation of an associate 30 -
2 A AR RS 4 AR R AR B Dividend income from listed financial assets at fair
il = 2 B A value through profit or loss (10) 71,712 27,382
2 A {5 R A At 4 T i 2 A MR Dividend income from unlisted equity securities
I LT RE A R S 2 R A measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (10) 8,000 8,200
FH P £5 05 B 2 B4 T Net cash used in investing activities (90,941) (155,332)
Pl T B) 2 B i Cash flows from financing activities:
FAHME 2 LH 2 4 IR A Distribution paid on additional equity instruments (1,296,067) (1,293,226)
BEAT DA SN A AR 2 ©EE AT S5 Issuance of debt securities in issue measured at
amortised cost 2,451,452 -
S ] L 48 6 AR A\ IR 22 % A i IH Redemption of subordinated debts measured at
amortised cost - (3,889,974)
DL 89 i AS AR 2 B 85 AT 5 25 21 1 Redemption on maturity of debt securities in issue
fiy fi ] measured at amortised cost (8,127,386) (5,482,336)
fBED AT EELHGERARZD Redemption on maturity of debt securities in issue
BEAT fE S5 B 1 I I ) designated at fair value through profit or loss - (985,990)
I [e] 8 AMRE £ T HL Redemption of an additional equity instrument (7,771,500) -
BATRISMESR TR Issuance of an additional equity instrument 7,771,390 -
DA 8 B AS AR 2 4% 18 A5 2 2 S A Interest paid on subordinated debts measured at
B amortised cost - (201,714)
CE TS 2 BT FE Interest paid on debt securities in issue (595,332) (679,683)
AL B AR Payment of lease liabilities (519,175) (546,097)
A Bl 4 1) 2 B 45 1 A Net cash used in financing activities (8,086,618)  (13,079,020)
e 5t 2 2 5 228 Effects of foreign exchange differences 683,849 954,260
Bl KSR BLEEH SN, (57)  Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 52,508,263 (12,998,522)
A —H — H 2 B4 55 ) Bl 6 H Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 127,767,547 140,766,069
BT ZH=+HZB & RkERB4  Cashand cash equivalents at 31 December
HH 180,275,810 127,767,547

AR A BT R RN S > Bl LB e S I H A R A

RV 2 = AR A SR 2 &5 R

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash

equivalents comprise the following balances with original maturity of three

months or less:

2021 2020
T#L Tt
HK$’000 HKS$’000

B4 R AEERAT IR 2E I HoAth & Bl ## ~  Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions
#i i 3 154,994,679 108,366,871
TESRAT ] 2 Ko HoAh 4 Rl A% A 2 A7 2K Placements with banks and other financial institutions 25,281,131 19,400,676
180,275,810 127,767,547

U5 H SCEEBIE B S 25 © Cash flows from operating activities included:

FLE A Interest received 17,378,503 22,523,650
FE 3 Interest paid 7,106,036 12,280,132
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of banking, financial
and other related services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are
shown in Note 32 to the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Bank is a licensed bank incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong
and has its registered office and principal place of business at 33/F, ICBC
Tower, 3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for certain buildings modified
by the revaluation, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”), financial assets and financial
liabilities held for trading, financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and derivative financial
instruments which have been measured at fair value.
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WEF - —F+_H=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Details of judgement made by the management in the application of

HKEFRS that have significant effect on the financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Impact of new/revised HKFRSs and HKASs

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group:

. Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKERS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2

Amendments to HKAS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKERS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2

Managing interest rate benchmark reform and any risks arising
due to reform

Overview

A fundamental reform of major interest rate
benchmarks is being undertaken globally, including
the replacements of interbank offered rates (“IBORs”)
with alternative nearly risk-free rates (referred to as
“IBOR reform”). The Group has exposures to IBORs
on its financial instruments that will be replaced or
reformed as part of these market-wide initiatives. The
Group anticipates that IBOR reform will impact its risk
management and hedge accounting. The Group has
established a project to manage the transition for any
of its contracts that could be affected. The project is
coordinated by a Deputy Chief Executive and involves
senior representatives from functions across the Group
including the asset and liability management, front
line business and product management, legal and
compliance, finance, risk management, operations and
technology. The project team provides monthly progress
updates to the senior management.
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

WEF - —F+_H=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Impact of new/revised HKFRSs and HKASs (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKEFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 (continued)

A.  Managing interest rate benchmark reform and any risks arising

due to reform (continued)

iii.

Modification of financial assets, financial liabilities and
lease liabilities

A practical expedient is introduced for modifications
required by the reform (modifications required as a
direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark
reform and made on an economically equivalent basis).
These modifications are accounted for by updating
the effective interest rate. All other modifications are
accounted for using the current HKFRSs requirements.
A similar practical expedient is proposed for lessee
accounting applying HKFRS 16.

Derivatives held for risk management purposes and
hedge accounting

Derivatives

The Group holds interest rate swaps for risk
management purposes, which are designated in cash
flow hedging relationships. The interest rate swaps have
floating legs that are indexed to either Euribor, HIBOR
or USD LIBOR. The Group’s derivative instruments are
governed by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association (“ISDA”)’s Master Agreement. ISDA
fallback protocol and supplement was released on 23
October 2020, and the group has included new fallback
clauses with its derivative counterparties. Most of
derivative instruments have been modified to include
the new fallback clauses as at 31 December 2021.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Impact of new/revised HKFRSs and HKASs (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKEFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 (continued)

Managing interest rate benchmark reform and any risks arising
due to reform (continued)

Derivatives held for risk management purposes and
hedge accounting (continued)

Hedge accounting

The Group evaluated the extent to which its cash flow
hedging relationships are subject to uncertainty driven
by IBOR reform as at 31 December 2021. The Group’s
hedged items and hedging instruments continue to be
indexed to IBOR benchmark rates which are Euribor,
HIBOR and USD LIBOR. IBOR benchmark rates are
quoted each day and IBOR cash flows are exchanged
with Group’s counterparties as usual.

However, the Group’s cash flow hedging relationships
extend beyond the anticipated cessation date for USD
LIBOR. The Group expects that USD LIBOR will
be discontinued after 30 June 2023. The preferred
alternative reference rate is Secured Overnight
Financing Rate (“SOFR”).

This transition may occur at different times for the
hedged item and hedging instrument, which may lead
to hedge ineffectiveness. The Group has measured
its hedging instrument indexed to USD LIBOR using
available quoted market rates for LIBOR-based
instruments of the same tenor and similar maturity and
has measured the cumulative change in present value of
hedged cash flows on a similar basis.
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

WEF - —F+_H=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Impact of new/revised HKFRSs and HKASs (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKEFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 (continued)

Managing interest rate benchmark reform and any risks arising
due to reform (continued)

Derivatives held for risk management purposes and
hedge accounting (continued)

Hedge accounting (continued)

Additionally, the calculation methodology of Euribor
changed during 2019. In July 2019, the Belgian Financial
Services and Markets Authority granted authorisation
to The European Money Markets Institute under
the European Union Bendmarks Regulation for the
administration of Euribor, which allowed market
participants to continue to use Euribor for both existing
and new contracts and the Group expects that Euribor
will continue to exist as a benchmark rate for the
foreseeable future.

Besides, the Working Group on Sterling Risk-Free
Reference Rates is formed by market participants to
catalyse the transition from the interest rate benchmark
GBP LIBOR towards Sterling Overnight Index Average
(“SONIA”) in sterling markets. The Group has been
replacing GBP LIBOR with SONIA in offering new
products.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Impact of new/revised HKFRSs and HKASs (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKEFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 (continued)

Specific policies applicable for hedging directly affected by IBOR
reform

For the purpose of evaluating whether there is an economic
relationship between the hedged items and the hedging
instruments, the Group assumes that the benchmark interest
rate is not altered as a result of IBOR reform.

For a cash flow hedge of a forecast transaction, the Group
assumes that the benchmark interest rate will not be altered
as a result of IBOR reform for the purpose of asserting that
the forecast transaction is highly probable and presents an
exposure to variations in cash flows that could ultimately affect
profit or loss. To determine whether the designated forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the Group assumes
that the interest rate benchmark cash flows designated as a
hedge will not be altered as a result of IBOR reform.

The Group will cease to apply the amendments to its
assessment of the economic relationship between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument when the uncertainty arising
from IBOR reform is no longer present with respect to the
timing and the amount of the interest rate benchmark-based
cash flows of the hedged item or hedging instrument, or when
the hedging relationship is discontinued.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Impact of new/revised HKFRSs and HKASs (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKEFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 (continued)

C.  Financial instruments impacted by IBOR reform

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments related to changes in the
basis for determining the contractual cash flows of financial
assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities as a result of
interest rate benchmark reform, specific hedge accounting
requirement and the related disclosure requirements applying
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (“HKFRS 77).

As at 1 January 2021, the Group has several financial assets,
financial liabilities and derivatives, the interests of which are
indexed to benchmark rates that will or may be subject to
interest rate benchmark reform. The following table shows
the total amounts of these outstanding contracts. The amount
of financial assets and liabilities are shown at their carrying

FH 5| H o amounts and derivatives are shown at their notional amounts.
R MBHAT RFMBHT oIS HemBssg
FEFEMR WEFEMR WEFMEAR WEFMEHR
MR —4E—J—H At 1 January 2021 USDLIBOR GBPLIBOR EURLIBOR  JPYLIBOR
HEEL HE®L HE®L HHEEL
HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$m
I AT A4 4l Non-derivative financial assets 82,667 12,408 16,700 32
FEAITAE 4 B R Non-derivative financial liabilities 18,851 - - =
MAETEXRFXEGHEH Derivative notional contract amount 304,633 - - 495

DR T AR AR T AR R :

Gross carrying amount excluding allowances for ECL

91



o B ST () AR A

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

WE-Z=—FE+-H=+—H I
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 EEGEBURME AR @)

2.2 BAT /RS RT R s B 5 i o R 1) Je (O
WEEHED) Z BE @)

CF 8 S 85 0 o R B0) S0k ~ (e dr st e )
SE399R ~ (R B M ) 8758 ~ (el
4 ) S0 e B A ¥ U0 5 i 38 Y ) 4
165 Z MY [ 3 48 e o — 2R BE | (47)

C.  SZIBORZ #2251 LA (%)

THRINMAEER -F = —F+=H
=t—AHARBEEERS BRI RNE
RERAT R ESFAEFI R MO - R B
S A T 208 DU T30 6 BT ) S 0 £
HEH o

b 7 R R A S S % 4 A 2 2 R
A= PRI T3 A B 5 o 3 I 2
B o 7R SR T S TE SRAT (] 3 K HoAt 4
FRTR AR 1) 45 B ~ 7 SR (7] 3 T HL A <2
TS A7 30 BB B SR S Al R
T DA B HE At 45 ff 9 JS0 A w4 9 <l T R
I] ) 256 ik v ok 8 T S B0 45 A B B Ui B
SEH) R W AT REE T

AF o A 5 A A8 0 Ja e 19 5 s - AR R
T S AT A0 1 T AT IR UL T BELAR B R
QT ¥ ) 23R Bl A2 04 A 5 2B Y R 5 b
G o i ME AT AL o B A AR R R R
A T A B AR AR B AR > P e 5| A
R P e ) A T R fr s v L B
1

A% B2 [ IE w2 2 7 5 A 5 A BB RT
AR B ] ok > HC R R IR P IBORF
S B K I R PR ME R A (i i
ST S T S I D G 4 1) UG B v i i v
HITBORA = g Ji 25 R 22 7% Fil 3¢ -

2

ZEREER
Annual Report 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Impact of new/revised HKFRSs and HKASs (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKEFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 (continued)

Financial instruments impacted by IBOR reform (continued)

The table below shows the Group’s exposures at 31 December
2021 to significant IBORs that have yet to transition to
alternative reference rates. The table excludes exposures to
IBOR that will expire before transition is required.

The amendments have had no impact on the consolidated
financial statements as none of the relevant contracts has
been transitioned to the relevant replacement rates during
the year. The Group will apply the practical expedient in
relation to the changes in contractual cash flows resulting from
the interest rate benchmark reform for balances with banks
and other financial institutions, placements with banks and
other financial institutions, debt investment, advances and
other accounts and other financial instruments measured at
amortised cost.

As part of the Group’s risk management for transition, new
contracts entered into by the Group are linked to the relevant
alternative benchmark rates or interest rates which are not
subject to reform to the extent feasible. Otherwise, the Group
ensured the relevant contracts include detailed fallback clauses
clearly referencing the alternative benchmark rate and the
specific triggering event on which the clause is activated.

The Group is planning to transition the majority of its
remaining IBOR-linked contracts through introduction of, or
amendments to, fallback clauses into the contracts which will
change the basis for determining the interest cash flows from
IBOR to alternative reference rate at an agreed point in time.

Koot B HAT G BORAT B BRAT  H oo AT
CES R IESNTES YL PIE SNTE S Y RIE STE S YRR S

R4 =T —H At 31 December 2021 USDLIBOR GBPLIBOR EURLIBOR  JPY LIBOR
HEWET [ER: X LEE: i HEEL

HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$m

IE A7 A 4 i Non-derivative financial assets' 77,459 10,142 - 6
FEAT A= <5 A 1 Non-derivative financial liabilities 10,015 - - =
ik TRAFEARHEH Derivative notional contract amount 228,664 = - -

! A B TR A T R 2 S R T AR

92
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

WEF - —F+_H=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Impact of new/revised HKFRSs and HKASs (continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

beyond 30 June 2021

Accounting policies

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has elected
to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether the
change is a lease modification if all of the following conditions
are met:

. the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

. any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

. there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions in the
same way it would account for the changes applying HKFRS
16 “Leases” if the changes are not a lease modification.
Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for
as variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the event occurs.

Transition and summary of effects

The Group has applied the Amendment to HKFRS 16 “Covid-
19-Related Rent Concessions” for the first time and early
applied the Amendment to HKFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021” in the current year
retrospectively. The application has had no impact to the
opening retained earnings at 1 January 2021 and immaterial
impact to the consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Possible impacts on application of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective for
the year ended 31 December 2021

A number of amendments and new standards are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 January 2022 and earlier application is
permitted. The Group has not early adopted any new or amended
standards in preparing this financial report. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or
after
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use 1 January 2022
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts
- Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 1 January 2022

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of

Liabilities as Current or Non-current

and related amendments to Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 (2020) 1 January 2023
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting

Policies 1 January 2023
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of
Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction 1 January 2023
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an A date to be

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture determined
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

Possible impacts on application of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries and attributable share
of results and reserves of its associate (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The directors of the Bank have, at the time of approving the
consolidated financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities, including structured entities,
controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by
the Group and other parties) are considered.

All intra-group transactions and balances are eliminated on
consolidation.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the acquirer measures the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss, if any, in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as
appropriate.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
and measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted for on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had disposed
directly of the previously held equity interest.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at
its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Bank’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Bank’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(b)

Associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting, except when the investment,
or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case
it is or the portion so classified is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5. Any retained portion of an investment in an
associate that has not been classified as held for sale continues
to be accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate.
Changes in net assets of the associate other than profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are not accounted for
unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership interest
held by the Group. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.



b Sl SR

Annual Report 2021

2

T2 FBOR BE AR (50

24 A

(b)

B HE ()

B 2 Al ()

A4 B ST AR S A BRI -
B o> FHE S AT R AT AE WUAE o WA AL TR
BT - B2 W B 2 A R T
(ELHE 7 2 M % FRCR s Er st MR D) 26 36
SRR AN R A o S H T
1o 5 (APl A 0 BEL B (L0 o 5
A T B 22 R ) B SR T DL AT
EW L o M7 RBAT TBUE RS > A B
RS & 70 TIE T A Al S A3 R T —
oy B (RGP o B8 2w [ml
SRR G > R o 8 &t HE R
365t At ik (4R O it R A Ay 4B ]

WAL A BB AN R AR R
J1IE > MR ARRS B R AR 2 A
AR AR o PR A 2 AR SR AR R R
4t RS o i A% 4 B AR B T AE RO A
Fl 2 MEAR o TR IR B 2 MEAR A (i A S
st Y J) S5 o % 6 I3 1y 2 4 il E o I
A G B A 4 fR P M 2 2 H 2 PR
R o T A% 1 18 (B 450 20 ) 0 e R AR
B R A I 2 ST AR © T i H 0
VAEIPAL € 75U WS /N
2 T {0 SELAE e % B HEE i A ] o 65 T
By F A B AR P AR B 2 R 2
ZEH o BLAb > RSB F) H A
B B - LR E 2 A BRI
SELZA S T8 7 A £ 45 A ) B A
LAt 4 ThT W4 e RR 2 BT AT AR IELBT L 2 A
HRAEVEARIR o PRIUL - i 5% W o 28 ) 2 A
8 FEA 22 T i 2 A e R Wi B 1R 1
B 7E R B R R R R
R o A AE )R A AH B
BN EIRE > A7 B 22 i s B0 1R R A 4R
R B AR AR (fF 2 — TR 0 MR
) o

TEWE N AR BN S B R E >
A B U A F B 2 AL
o AHE B AR R R AR 5 o 7E T A
A5 B8 AR W B > AL A EH A
R AT B A o

2

o T SRAT (W) A R4

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

WEF - —F+_H=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(b)

Associate (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in
the former associate and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of the relevant interest in the associate is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
on the same basis as would be required if that associate had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of
the relevant associate.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Basis of consolidation (continued)

(b)

Associate (continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if
that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that
are not related to the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the consolidated
income statement for all interest-bearing financial instruments using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of
allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.
When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or
received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums
or discounts.

For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit-impaired.

Non-interest income

Fee and commission income and expense

Income from service is recognised when the Group fulfils its
performance obligation, either over time or at a point in time on a
basis when a customer obtains control of the service.

Commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down are
deferred (together with related direct costs) and recognised as an
adjustment to the effective interest rate on the loan. For commitment
fees for loans that are unlikely to be drawn down, it is recognised as
fee and commission income over the period of the commitment.

Fee income from services are recognised over time at a fixed or
variable price on a systematic basis over the life of the agreement
when the contract requires services to be provided over time such as
credit card fees and remmittee fees, or recognised at a point in time
under transaction-based arrangements when service has been fully
provided to the customer such as securities and brokerage fees and
loan syndication arrangement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2]

Non-interest income (continued)

Net trading income

Net trading income comprises all gains and losses from changes in
the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities measured
at fair value through profit or loss and fair value through other
comprehensive income except for the dividend income. Gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives to the extent
as described in the accounting policy set out in Note 2.7 are reported
as “Net trading income”, except for those designated in cash flow
hedging relationships.

Gains and losses on foreign exchange trading and other transactions
are also reported as “Net trading income” except for those gains and
losses on translation of foreign currencies recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2.11.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income received under operating leases is recognised as
other operating income in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals receivable are recognised as
income in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividend income
Dividends are recognised in the consolidated income statement
when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities

it Recognition and initial measurement
The Group initially recognises loans and advances,
deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated
liabilities on the date on which they are originated. All
other financial instruments (including regular-way
purchases and sales of financial assets) are recognised
on the trade date, which is the date on which the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured
initially at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

ii.

Classification
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
measured at: amortised cost, FVTOCI or FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL:

. the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

A debt instrument is measured at FVTOCI only if
it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

. the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”). This election is made
on an investment-by-investment basis.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at
FVTPL.

In addition, on initial recognition, the Group may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised
cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that
would otherwise arise.

103



o R R SRAT () A R4

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

WE-Z=—FE+-H=+—H I
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 EEGEBURME AR @)

27 HMEE - SWMEEWM  SRAME -
1A A ih T H R & 5 (s

2.7.1 4 e K A b BB (D)
i. ()
Ev v B ar
AL B AR 40 A B TR R B R4
SV 2 B > R 2 %t he R it
SEAE LY vk M 1) A B L
a7 3K e e AR AL

o LA RBEEBORM E L &
% S5 BOAR B0 T B R AT -

T HE S R SRR
R HEEA AR B A - 4
o o 2 1 R R A~ % 4
T 1) U PR BEL A 5% 4 A 4R
ML 4 oA B R R
56 35 B 4 0 2 BRI IR
HHAE 5

o MBI RBUITET AL & 2
TALENE G

o UBZETIER (N oz R A
TR A E) KRB
B LA R i A7 2L % 46

o EBEH AR WM E
A — {81 o R 5 R
L 1) 2 SF- 18 (B s T OB
MERBERERE 5 K&

o BRI A R - S
Fe th 5 IR B - o 6 AU DA B
R A6 B TG W) i TE M o R
T > A B 8 8 3 B (9 B ORE R
N TR AE R
R Ak A A B L O T
T 322 A AE A S S BB
T RBIA — AR o

R 22 o) i s B8 R R B 1
B A6 ) < T 7 T DA A
B AR R R AR B 5 A 55
AR WORE M B - AN S R
M5 WA B 5 A B < i A A e R <
o

104

2

ZEREER
Annual Report 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

ii.

Classification (continued)

Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of a
business model in which an asset is held at a portfolio
level because this best reflects the way the business is
managed and information is provided to management.
The information considered includes:

. the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio
and the operation of those policies in practice.

In particular, whether management’s strategy
focuses on earning contractual interest revenue,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of the liabilities that are funding those
assets or realising cash flows through the sale of
the assets;

. how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated
and reported to the Group’s management;

. the risks that affect the performance of the
business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks
are managed;

. how managers of the business are compensated
- e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash
flows collected; and

. the frequency, volume and timing of sales in
prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its
expectations about future sales activity. However,
information about sales activity is not considered
in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of
how the Group’s stated objective for managing the
financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are
realised.

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed
and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis
are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held
to collect contractual cash flows nor held both to collect
contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

ii.

Classification (continued)

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely
payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is
defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the
time value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a
particular period of time and for other basic lending
risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative
costs), as well as profit margin. In assessing whether the
contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and interest, the Group considers the contractual terms
of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could
change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows
such that it would not meet this condition. In making the
assessment, the Group considers:

. contingent events that would change the amount
and timing of cash flows;

. leverage features;
o prepayment and extension terms;
. terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows

from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse asset
arrangements); and

. features that modify consideration of the time
value of money - e.g. periodical reset of interest
rates.

Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their
initial recognition, except in the period after the Group
changes its business model for managing financial
assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

ii.

iii.

Classification (continued)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, other
than financial guarantees and loan commitments, as
measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire (see also (iv)), or it transfers the rights
to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset (or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset
derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any
new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in
profit or loss except for equity instruments designated at
FVTOCI.

Any cumulative gain/loss recognised in OCI in respect of
equity financial investments designated as at FVTOCI is
not recognised in profit or loss on derecognition of such
securities. Any interest in transferred financial assets
that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained
by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers
assets recognised on its statement of financial position,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. In
such cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised.
Examples of such transactions are securities lending and
sale-and-repurchase transactions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

iii.

Derecognition (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

When assets are sold to a third party with a concurrent
total rate of return swap on the transferred assets, the
transaction is accounted for as a secured financing
transaction similar to sale-and-repurchase transactions,
because the Group retains all or substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of such assets.

In transactions in which the Group neither retains nor
transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by
the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value
of the transferred asset.

In certain transactions, the Group retains the obligation
to service the transferred financial asset for a fee.
The transferred asset is derecognised if it meets the
derecognition criteria. An asset or liability is recognised
for the servicing contract if the servicing fee is more than
adequate (asset) or is less than adequate (liability) for
performing the servicing.

107



o R R SRAT () A R4

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

WE-Z=—FE+-H=+—H I
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 EEGEBURME AR @)

27 HMEE - SWMEEWM  SRAME -
1A A ih T H R & 5 (s

2.7.1 &b B K A b A 4% (D)
iv.  EREERE AN ERT

2B

0 4 Tl A R BRI R T - AR AR
AL R RS B R B T R R
HHBERER - WMBESRERE
MAEE S MRS EEHERE
B 0 RE R I A5 2% i T o A G IS
VLT > JR 4 Rl A IR TR (L
(i) » 3728 F A RR T 4 Bl
o

T ARAE AT 2 LA 85 R AS AR 10 B
B R R > QRZERT A
BB U AU TRERE o TR
TEULT > ARG PN 20T it 5 % <l
A Y ARR (B - Sl 2 A R
] e A R T (B4R 1 4 R KRBT 4R
a0 MAEAT AT R e A At B
s TR 8 (R (vii)) - FUJHE 7 LR
HE—BET] - TR > HiF 2515
FB WA o

LA

AL E I (H G A% H €
TS HE SRR B ~ T S 9 TR A% 1 2
AR - BRI SR A R
e T {0 B A A0 R AR ARABE 22 T 1 2
TR AR AR T T o

BN A ER K LR A s
FERNERT - AR B < B T 2 B T
ERHEERTR NG F Bl i i 2 Bl
(BFTST - % < il £ 2 S BT R A
HRARBL o WO AR 2 28 oy AR B
1% R e 25 A6 ke A 4 i 4 R 2 MR T
(L S T 5 2T R P i - S <
BT T EL1F 2 AR AT 9 R 3 i A
Wl 2 HATE R 45 AfERD o

108

2

ZEREER
Annual Report 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

iv.

Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Group
evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified
asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are
substantially different, then the contractual rights to
cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed
to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset
is derecognised (see (iii)) and a new financial asset is
recognised at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at
amortised cost are not substantially different, then
the modification does not result in derecognition of
the financial asset. In this case, the Group recalculates
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and
recognises the amount arising from adjusting the gross
carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit
or loss. If such a modification is carried out because of
financial difficulties of the borrower (see (vii)), then
the gain or loss is presented together with impairment
losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest income.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities
that do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount
of the relevant financial liabilities will be calculated
at the present value of the modified contractual cash
flows discounted at the financial liabilities” original
effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred
are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial liabilities and are amortised over the remaining
term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial liability is recognised in profit or loss at the
date of modification.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

iv.

Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities
(continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows as a result of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows of a financial asset or financial liability to
which the amortised cost measurement applies as a
result of interest rate benchmark reform, the Group
applies the practical expedient to account for these
changes by updating the effective interest rate, such
change in effective interest rate normally has no
significant effect on the carrying amount of the relevant
financial asset or financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is required by interest rate benchmark reform
if and only if, both these conditions are met:

. the change is necessary as a direct consequence
of interest rate benchmark reform; and

. the new basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis (i.e. the basis immediately
preceding the change).

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only
when permitted under HKFRS, or for gains and losses
arising from a group of similar transactions such as in
the Group’s trading activity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Vi.

Fair value measurement

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date in the principal or, in its absence,
the most advantageous market to which the Group has
access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its
non-performance risk.

When one is available, the Group measures the fair value
of an instrument using the quoted price in an active
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as
active if transactions for the asset or liability take place
with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the
Group uses valuation techniques that maximise the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of
unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique
incorporates all of the factors that market participants
would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial
instrument on initial recognition is normally the
transaction price - i.e. the fair value of the consideration
given or received. If the Group determines that the fair
value on initial recognition differs from the transaction
price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted
price in an active market for an identical asset or
liability nor based on a valuation technique for which
any unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant
in relation to the measurement, then the financial
instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted
to defer the difference between the fair value on initial
recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently,
that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an
appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no
later than when the valuation is wholly supported by
observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid
price and an ask price, then the Group measures assets
and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short
positions at an ask price.



ZERFER
Annual Report 2021

2

T2 FBOR BE AR (50

27 HMEE - SWMEEWM  SRAME -
1A A ih T H R & 5 (s

2.7.1 4k

175

Vil.

¥ A B 4 i £ A (D)

LS FAE (E 7] ()

RS2 T 5 B e AT RGBS (Eh A 4
] DA T 5 5K A5 G B i A R A
) 4 Rl E K e B B AR
5 B AR > DL B R A R
T (B e v 4 e B S AT AR AR B
FHE S o YEAH A R T Y SR R
(1) o 4% 93¢ 0 35 A fz o O 5T Y
B R A R R ) > ik
A A TR 45 T L A A S L o o o
HE ) i 25 1 Bl A E D LA -

AL 1 AR (B A3 A 0 <l
BRI AP R A DI & BRI
W > B %R A R R
B HERASE

A% 52 0 TR R A R i R A TR A
O S {58 B 56 A% 2 [H] s B9 A o
%o

0 (e

HERATR I DA SR E R 45 R AR
S TR HAGE R - AL
i 52 s TR AR A

o BT HRS MR (I
e SR AT [R] 28 o H Ath 4 il 44
M &5 Bk ~ 7E SR AT A 2 I H A
S Tl M O A7 K > B K R
b B TE 4 A~ G e
W)

o AR

. BN ERIEREH s K&

o B 25 1 B ORES ©

AR 08 AR i 45 R (ARG o

2

o T SRAT (W) A R4

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

WEF - —F+_H=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Vi.

Vii.

Fair value measurement (continued)

Portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are exposed to market risk and credit risk that are
managed by the Group on the basis of the net exposure
to either market or credit risk are measured on the
basis of a price that would be received to sell a net long
position (or paid to transfer a net short position) for the
particular risk exposure. Portfolio-level adjustments —
e.g. bid-ask adjustment or credit risk adjustments that
reflect the measurement on the basis of the net exposure
— are allocated to the individual assets and liabilities on
the basis of the relative risk adjustment of each of the
individual instruments in the portfolio.

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand
feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the
amount payable on demand, discounted from the first
date on which the amount could be required to be paid.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred.

Impairment

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on the
following financial instruments that are not measured at
FVTPL:

. financial assets that are debt instruments (such
as balances with banks and other financial
institutions, placements with banks and other
financial institutions, advances and other accounts,
financial investments, other receivables);

. lease receivables;
. financial guarantee contracts issued; and
o loan commitments issued.

No impairment loss is recognised on equity investments.

111



o R R SRAT () A R4

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

WE-Z=—FE+-H=+—H I
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 EEGEBURME AR @)

27 HMEE - SWMEEWM  SRAME -
1A A ih T H R & 5 (s

2.7.1 &b B K A b A 4% (D)
vii. i {E ()
A 45 9] DA 5 6] A 49 3 TR 2 76 345
B M S BRI > LT
BRAh > %45 DA12fE A DL R TE (5
BLGHE

o R OB E 2 RS T
JE\ B 2 s < M K

. 00 s il DA A€ AR T L B
RA KN L T B F A 2 T
B (AR RN -

JRE W FEL <6 22 e 1R 458 A A A S 7] 5 4
J A 2 TS TR S T

B AR TR B AT AR R TR AR
B A E T W T BCERR | > BIA
SEEAR 2 B A AR LR » 12
J1 LA TR AR AR AR I R B4
1248 A 4 b L AT AR L B G
KRR B EIA (R R o

B A 0
HU 2 R 455 2 5 A L 2 W
At SR RITEIT

. EMEE:REBESAOEMT
AEH 2 A& A B &R
SHLAR S [ 2 A % 0 REE A 2R T
W 2 B R TR 2
T Sl P D U R I R
Z L BEA ZAGBL 5

o REVIEFOK ¢ HE K
s A AR R B P 5 A4 B4 T
8 LA AR (o] 0D B R B
iz M BE &

o EMERE A A AR
A5 R TE0 AT
AN AT 3R 2 BE R Sk
T RE AN~ B N B
AT HoAt 7 SR 2 AR AT

112

2

ZEREER
Annual Report 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Vii.

Impairment (continued)

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL, except for the following, for which they
are measured as 12-month ECL:

. debt financial investments that are determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

o other financial instruments (other than lease
receivables) on which credit risk has not increased
significantly since their initial recognition.

Loss allowances for lease receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

The Group considers a debt security to have low credit
risk when their credit risk rating is equivalent to the
globally understood definition of ‘investment grade’.
12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Measurement of ECL
ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
They are measured as follows:

. financial assets: as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, on probability-
weighted outcome, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition;

. undrawn loan commitments: as the present value
of the difference between the contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group if the commitment
is drawn down and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive; and

. financial guarantee contracts: the present value of
the expected payments to reimburse the holder for
a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that
the Group expects to receive from the holder, the
debtor or any other party.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Vii.

Impairment (continued)

Restructured financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or
modified or an existing financial asset is replaced with
a new one due to financial difficulties of the borrower,
then an assessment is made of whether the financial
asset should be derecognised and ECL are measured as
follows:

. If the expected restructuring will not result in
derecognition of the existing asset, then the
expected cash flows arising from the modified
financial asset are included in calculating the cash
shortfalls from the existing asset.

. If the expected restructuring will result in
derecognition of the existing asset, then the
expected fair value of the new asset is treated as
the final cash flow from the existing financial asset
at the time of its derecognition. This amount is
included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the
existing financial asset that are discounted from
the expected date of derecognition to the reporting
date using the original effective interest rate of the
existing financial asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Vii.

Impairment (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
financial assets carried at FVTOCI are credit-impaired.
A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable data:

. significant financial difficulty of the borrower or
issuer;

. a breach of contract such as a default or past due
event;

. the restructuring of a loan or advance by the

Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

. it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

. the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties.

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration
in the borrower’s condition is usually considered to be
credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk
of not receiving contractual cash flows has reduced
significantly and there are no other indicators of
impairment. In addition, a retail loan that is overdue for
90 days or more is considered impaired.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
vii.  Impairment (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)
In making an assessment of whether an investment in
sovereign debt is credit-impaired, the Group considers
the following factors:

. The market’s assessment of creditworthiness as
reflected in the bond yields.

. The rating agencies’ assessments of creditworthiness.

. The country’s ability to access the capital markets
for new debt issuance.

. The probability of debt being restructured,
resulting in holders suffering losses through
voluntary or mandatory debt forgiveness.

. The international support mechanisms in place
to provide the necessary support as ‘lender of last
resort’ to that country, as well as the intention,
reflected in public statements, of governments and
agencies to use those mechanisms. This includes
an assessment of the depth of those mechanisms
and, irrespective of the political intent, whether
there is the capacity to fulfil the required criteria.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Vii.

Impairment (continued)

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of
financial position

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement
of financial position as follows:

. financial assets measured at amortised cost: an
allowance account as a deduction from the gross
carrying amount of the assets;

. loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts: generally, as a provision;

. where a financial instrument includes both a
drawn and an undrawn component, and the
Group cannot identify the ECL on the loan
commitment component separately from those
on the drawn component: the Group presents a
combined loss allowance for both components.
The combined amount is presented as a deduction
from the gross carrying amount of the drawn
component; and

. debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: no
loss allowance is recognised in the statement of
financial position because the carrying amount of
these assets is their fair value. However, the loss
allowance is disclosed and is recognised in the fair
value reserve.

Write-off

Loans and debt securities are written off (either partially
or in full) when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Group determines
that the borrower does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the
Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

viii.

Designation at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets

At initial recognition, the Group has designated certain
financial assets as at FVTPL because this designation
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch, which would otherwise rise.

Financial liabilities
The Group has designated certain financial liabilities as
at FVTPL in either of the following circumstances:

. the liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported
internally on a fair value basis; or

. the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch that would otherwise

arise.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Perpetual instruments, which include no contractual
obligation for the Group to deliver cash or other
financial assets or the Group has the sole discretion
to defer payment of distribution and redemption of
principal amount indefinitely are classified as equity
instruments.

Repurchase of the Bank’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity
instruments.

2.7.2 Cash and cash equivalents
‘Cash and cash equivalents’ include notes and coins on hand,

unrestricted balances held with central banks and highly liquid

financial assets with original maturities of three months or less
from the date of acquisition that are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Group in

the management of its short-term commitments.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the

statement of financial position.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge

accounting (continued)

2.7.3 Trading assets and liabilities

‘Trading assets and liabilities” are those assets and liabilities
that the Group acquires or incurs principally for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near term, or holds as part of
a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit or
position taking.

Trading assets and liabilities are initially recognised and
subsequently measured at fair value in the statement of
financial position, with transaction costs recognised in profit
or loss. All changes in fair value are recognised as part of net
trading income in profit or loss.

2.7.4 Derivatives held for risk management purposes and hedge

accounting

Derivatives held for risk management purposes include all
derivative assets and liabilities that are not classified as trading
assets or liabilities. Derivatives held for risk management
purposes are measured at fair value in the statement of
financial position.

The Group designates certain derivatives held for risk
management as well as certain non-derivative financial
instruments as hedging instruments in qualifying hedging
relationships. On initial designation of the hedge, the
Group formally documents the relationship between the
hedging instrument(s) and hedged item(s), including the
risk management objective and strategy in undertaking the
hedge, together with the method that will be used to assess the
effectiveness of the hedging relationship. The Group makes an
assessment, both at inception of the hedge relationship and on
an ongoing basis, of whether the hedging instrument(s) is(are)
expected to be highly effective in offsetting the changes in the
fair value or cash flows of the respective hedged item(s) during
the period for which the hedge is designated, and whether the
actual results of each hedge are within a range of 80-125%. The
Group makes an assessment for a cash flow hedge of a forecast
transaction, of whether the forecast transaction is highly
probable to occur and presents an exposure to variations in
cash flows that could ultimately affect profit or loss. These
hedging relationships are discussed below.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.4 Derivatives held for risk management purposes and hedge

accounting (continued)

i.

Fair value hedges

When a derivative is designated as the hedging
instrument in a hedge of the change in fair value of a
recognised asset or liability or a firm commitment that
could affect profit or loss, changes in the fair value of
the derivative are recognised immediately in profit or
loss together with changes in the fair value of the hedged
item that are attributable to the hedged risk (in the same
line item in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as the hedged item).

If the hedging derivative expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the hedge no longer meets the criteria
for fair value hedge accounting, or the hedge designation
is revoked, then hedge accounting is discontinued
prospectively. However, if the derivative is novated to
a central clearing counterparties by both parties as a
consequence of laws or regulations without changes
in its terms except for those that are necessary for the
novation, then the derivative is not considered expired
or terminated. Any adjustment up to the point of
discontinuation to a hedged item for which the effective
interest method is used is amortised to profit or loss as
part of the recalculated effective interest rate of the item
over its remaining life.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.4 Derivatives held for risk management purposes and hedge

accounting (continued)

ii.

iii.

Cash flow hedges

When a derivative is designated as the hedging
instrument in a hedge of the variability in cash flows
attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability that could affect profit or
loss, the effective portion of changes in the fair value
of the derivative is recognised in other comprehensive
income and presented in the hedging reserve within
equity. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair
value of the derivative is recognised immediately
in profit or loss. The amount recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
as a reclassification adjustment in the same period
as the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss, and in
the same line item in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. If the hedging
derivative expires or is sold, terminated or exercised,
or the hedge no longer meets the criteria for cash flow
hedge accounting, or the hedge designation is revoked,
then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively.
However, if the derivative is novated to a central clearing
counterparties by both parties as a consequence of
laws or regulations without changes in its terms except
for those that are necessary for the novation, then the
derivative is not considered expired or terminated.

Net investment hedges

When a derivative instrument or a non-derivative
financial liability is designated as the hedging
instrument in a hedge of a net investment in a foreign
operation, the effective portion of changes in the fair
value of the hedging instrument is recognised in other
comprehensive income and presented in the translation
reserve within equity. Any ineffective portion of the
changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. The amount recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss as a reclassification adjustment on disposal of the
foreign operation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.4 Derivatives held for risk management purposes and hedge

accounting (continued)

iv.

Other non-trading derivatives

If a derivative is not held for trading, and is not
designated in a qualifying hedge relationship, then all
changes in its fair value are recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a component of gain or loss on financial
assets and liabilities at FVTPL.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts that contain
financial asset hosts within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not
separated. The entire hybrid contract is classified and
subsequently measured in its entirety as either amortised
cost or fair value as appropriate.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
that are not financial assets within the scope of HKFRS
9 are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics
are not closely related to those of the host contracts and
the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Generally, multiple embedded derivatives in a single
instrument that are separated from the host contracts
are treated as a single compound embedded derivative
unless those derivatives relate to different risk exposures
and are readily separable and independent of each other.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.5 Loans and advances
‘Loans and advances’ captions in the statement of financial
position include:

. loans and advances measured at amortised cost and at
FVTOCI (see 2.7.1(ii)); they are initially measured at
fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs, and
subsequently at their amortised cost using the effective
interest method;

. loans and advances mandatorily measured at FVTPL or
designated as at FVTPL; these are measured at fair value
with changes recognised immediately in profit or loss;
and

. lease receivables.

When the Group purchases a financial asset and
simultaneously enters into an agreement to resell the asset
(or a substantially similar asset) at a fixed price on a future
date (reverse repo or stock borrowing), the arrangement is
accounted for as a loan or advance, and the underlying asset is
not recognised in the Group’s financial statements.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets, impairment of financial assets, financial
liabilities, derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (continued)

2.7.6 Financial investments
The ‘financial investments’ caption in the statement of
financial position includes:

. debt investments measured at amortised cost (see
2.7.1(ii)); these are initially measured at fair value plus
incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently at
their amortised cost using the effective interest method;

. debt and equity investments mandatorily measured at
EVTPL or designated as at FVTPL; these are at fair value
with changes recognised immediately in profit or loss;

. debt investments measured at FVTOCI; and

. equity investments designated as at FVTOCL

For debt securities measured at FVTOCI, gains and losses
are recognised in OCI, except for the following, which are
recognised in profit or loss in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost:

. interest revenue using the effective interest method;
. ECL and reversals; and
. foreign exchange gains and losses.

When debt security measured at FVTOCI is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

The Group elects to present in OCI changes in the fair value of
certain investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading. The election is made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

Gains and losses on such equity instruments are never
reclassified to profit or loss and no impairment is recognised
in profit or loss. Dividends are recognised in profit or loss
unless they clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of
the investment, in which case they are recognised in OCI.
Cumulative gains and losses recognised in OCI are transferred
to retained earnings on disposal of an investment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Sale and repurchase agreements

Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements (“repos”) are
reclassified in the financial statements as pledged assets when the
transferee has the right by contract or custom to sell or repledge
the collateral; the counterparty liability is included in deposits from
banks and other financial institutions or deposits from customers,
as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell
(“reverse repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to customers
and banks or placements with banks and other financial institutions,
as appropriate.

The difference between sale and repurchase prices is treated as
an interest and accrued over the life of the agreements using the
effective interest method. Securities lent to counterparties are also
retained in the financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements,
unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchase
and sale are recorded with the gain or loss included in the trading
income. The obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a
liability.

Repossessed assets

In the recovery of credit impaired loans and advances, the
Group may take possession of the collateral assets through court
proceedings or voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers.
In accordance with the Group’s accounting policy set out in Note
2.7.1 (vii), impairment allowances for credit impaired loans and
advances are maintained after taking into account the net realisable
value of the collateral assets, usually resulting in a partial write-off of
the loans and advances against impairment allowances. Repossessed
assets are reported under other assets if it is highly probable that
the future economic benefits will flow to the Group, their carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use and the assets are available for sale in their
present condition. Related loans and advances are then written off.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of an entity: (a) that engages

in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur

expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions

with other components of the same entity), (b) whose operating

results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision
maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segment and assess its performance, and (c) for which discrete
financial information is available.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translations at year- end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement, except when
deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items that are
measured at fair value whose fair value changes recognised in
the consolidated income statement, such as equity held at fair
value through profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
items that are measured at fair value whose fair value changes
recognised in the equity, such as equity investments in respect
of which an election has been made to present subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income are
recorded as other comprehensive income and included in the
fair value reserve in equity.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the group entities
(none of which has a functional currency which is the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities of these entities are translated at the
closing rate at the end of the reporting period;

. their income statements are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions); and

. all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate
component of equity.

On consolidation, the exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other currency instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are included in a separate
component of equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.



SR AR o 7 ST () AR A
Annual Report 2021 Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

WEF - —F+_H=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 EEGEBURME AR @) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Py E T %M 2.12 Property, plant and equipment
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Bank premises and properties comprise mainly branches and offices.
Bank premises and properties are shown at fair value, based on
periodic, but at least triennial, valuations by external independent
valuers, less subsequent depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation
at the date of revaluation is restated proportionately with the change
in the gross carrying amount of the asset so that the carrying amount
of the asset after revaluation equals its revalued amount. All other
items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or
losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases
of property, plant and equipment.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the consolidated income statement in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in
the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of
bank premises and properties are credited to other reserves in
shareholders’ equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of
the same asset are charged against bank premises revaluation
reserve directly in equity; all other decreases are expensed in the
consolidated income statement.

If a property becomes an investment property because its use has
changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
(including the relevant leasehold land classified as right-of-use
assets) at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in revaluation reserve. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of the property, the relevant revaluation reserve
will be transferred directly to retained earnings.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost or revalued amounts to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Bank premises and properties Over the remaining lease period of
the land on which the properties
are situated or their estimated
useful lives of 50 years, whichever
is shorter

Leasehold improvements Over the lease term of the leased
premises or their estimated useful
lives of 10 years whichever is

shorter
Furniture and equipment 5to 10 years
Right-of-use assets Period of lease term, ranging from

1 year to 10 years

The residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount, with the amount charged directly to
the consolidated income statement.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the consolidated income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of
the reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to
retained earnings as a movement in reserves.
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2 EEGEBURME AR @) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 REY#E 2.13 Investment properties
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Property that is held for long-term yields or for capital appreciation
or both and that is not occupied by the companies in the Group is
classified as investment property.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including
related transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at fair value. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If this information is not
available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods such as
recent transaction prices on less active markets or discounted cash
flow projections. These valuations are performed in accordance
with the guidance issued by the International Valuation Standards
Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by external
valuers.

The fair value reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows that
could be expected in respect of the properties. Some of those
outflows are recognised as liabilities; including contingent rent
payments, are not recognised in the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is added to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13

2.14

Investment properties (continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. Properties
that are being constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties are classified as investment properties under development
and stated at cost until construction or development is completed, at
which time they are reclassified and subsequently accounted for as
investment properties.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the
date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of property,
plant and equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets
and liabilities assumed of the acquired subsidiaries at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
goodwill and other intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisition of an
associate is included in “Investments in associate”. The carrying
amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. Goodwill is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or group of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest level at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.



ZERFER
Annual Report 2021

2 EEGEBURME AR @)

2.15 M EE (5 BIEHE)

A1 ] S B 1 08 T S S i R IR 2 RS R
18 o TSRS & IR P SO TR S 1 S AR T T Ui
M A P (EAE o Y A T A A
FEAL 7 2 A PR ) R e BRI W o B A R AR
W 2 AT AR A T 68 0 4 U A G
S 7 AT B SR B S T TR B (L IR A AT U
{H AT AR -

HA A PR A AR ) 2 S 6 2 8 ) e
S 77 1 7 DA 45 B B JBE A TR IR AT AR o

# L e BRI IR B 2 AR AR TG R B BT A R
T L TR 2 R ﬂtﬁ(‘ﬁ%tﬁ&
B i JHU L IR P A WAL i 2R T e R

(@) L
PR 2 T T 72 2 i
A O SE WP B IR BL 23 I T
DL o 45 LA T 68 4
(HIU4F) pu s -

S [ % B AfE G TR I A 1R AR 2K B 2 R
A JAE AR R R S o BB
T B L v A G T 4 i B A E
A - A HAR AT RER *@L)%Fii&ﬂj
HR A 2 B8P 2 2 JRA - T HERE 2

EHEE ET%J&ZIS@%@&#F%%?AEJ&
R T AT B M T ST G 2 A E A o

it 58 20y e T 8 22 R A B A
T HAS w1 AT AR A CF A I 45
S -

b) XG5
LHEARTT B ERIET B AL A
FRS 7] B8 R HOfE AT 20 5 2 HER > HAT
i R il P 4F 300 > S 4 4 4 4T Bek 2 B0 o
AT B N T RS o T AR A
HEATARET > DB 2 0 PR A I 2 BR AL R
B AT R SR > U0 o B Pl 4 R A

55 1% A B 22 ol PR A4 303 5 4 4 7 e A e

= A

o T SRAT (W) A R4

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

WEF - —F+_H=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.

Gains or losses from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated
income statement when the assets are derecognised.

(a)  Computer software
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful life of four years.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer
software programmes are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the production
of identifiable and unique software products controlled by
the Group, and that will probably generate economic benefits
exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible
assets. Direct costs include the software development
employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads.

Computer software development costs recognised as
intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life
(not exceeding four years).

(b)  Trading rights

Trading rights represent eligibility rights with indefinite useful
lives to trade on or through The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and are tested for impairment annually. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life is reviewed
annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable, if not, the change in the useful
life assessment from indefinite to infinite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16

2.17

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and depreciation, but are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the consolidated income statement in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other
than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation), had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such impairment loss is credited to the consolidated
income statement in the period in which it arises.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the end of
the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, if the deferred income tax arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for as
deferred income tax. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.
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2 EEGEBURME AR @) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 i3 Ht () 2.17 Income tax (continued)
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Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associate, except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of financial
investments measured at FVTOCI and cash flow hedges, which are
charged or credited directly to equity, is also credited or charged
directly to equity and is subsequently recognised in the consolidated
income statement together with the deferred gain or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of the reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

(b)  Pension obligations
The Group operates a defined contribution retirement scheme
under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the
“ORSO Scheme”) and another defined contribution retirement
scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for those employees of the
Group who are eligible and have elected to participate in the
schemes. The Group’s contributions to the ORSO Scheme are
made based on a percentage of the eligible employees’ basic
salaries and those made to the MPF Scheme are made based
on a percentage of the eligible employees’ relevant income as
defined in the MPF Scheme. These contributions are expensed
as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees of the Group who leave the schemes prior
to the contributions vesting fully. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when (i) the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events; (ii) it is more likely than not that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
(iii) the amount can be reliably estimated. Restructuring provision
includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring,
which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the
restructuring and not associated with the ongoing activities of the
entity.

Where there is a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow of resources will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.

(i)

(ii)

The Group as a lessor

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised
as receivables at commencement date at amounts equal to net
investments in the leases, measured using the interest rate
implicit in the respective leases. Initial direct costs (other than
those incurred by manufacturer or dealer lessors) are included
in the initial measurement of the net investments in the leases.
Interest income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model. Variable lease
payments for operating leases that depend on an index or a rate
are estimated and included in the total lease payments to be
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as income when they arise.

As a lessee

When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on
a lease-by-lease basis. For the Group, low-value assets are
typically copiers. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an expense
on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, using
arelevant incremental borrowing rate. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred. After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2.12), except for the following
types of right-of-use asset:

- right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment
property carried at fair value in accordance with note
2.13;

- right-of-use assets related to leasehold land and
buildings where the Group is the registered owner of the
leasehold interest are carried at fair value in accordance
with note 2.12.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made
to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded
in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property in ‘Property, plant and
equipment’, and presents lease liabilities in “Other liabilities”.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21

222

223

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’
maturity from the date of acquisition, including cash and balances
with banks and other financial institutions and placements with
banks and other financial institutions.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the
Group’s control.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the Group’s control, or a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised either because an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation but is not probable or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When the inflow is virtually certain, it will be recognised as
an asset.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent. Key management
personnel are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Bank and its holding company, directly
or indirectly, including any directors (whether executive
or otherwise), executive committee members and senior
management (as defined under the remuneration policy)
of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Related parties (continued)

(®)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group.

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity).

The entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by that person in their dealings with the entity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24

2.25

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained earnings within the equity section of the
statement of financial position, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Bank’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary
capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of
individuals, trusts, retirement benefit plans and other institutions.
These assets and income arising thereon are excluded from these
financial statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

3.1

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Group have made in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

(i)  Impairment losses

Note 4.2(h) provide details that the Group made significant
judgement on establishing the criteria for determining
whether credit risk on the financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition, determining
methodology for incorporating forward-looking information
into measurement of ECL and selection of models used to
measure ECL.
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

3.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies (continued)

(ii)

Determining the lease term

As explained in the above accounting policies, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term. In determining
the lease term at the commencement date for leases that
include renewal options exercisable by the Group, the Group
evaluates the likelihood of exercising the renewal options
taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise the
option, including favorable terms, leasehold improvements
undertaken and the importance of that underlying asset to the
Group’s operation. The lease term is reassessed when there
is a significant event or significant change in circumstance
that is within the Group’s control. Any increase or decrease in
the lease term would affect the amount of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets recognised in future years.

3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,

and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of

the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year.

(i)

(ii)

Impairment losses

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for
financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVOCI and
with exposure arising from loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts, is an area that requires the use of complex
models and significant assumptions about future economic
conditions and credit behavior (the likelihood of customers
defaulting and the resulting losses). Refer to Note 4.6(h)
credit risk for the explanation of the inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques used in measuring ECL.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

If the market for a financial instrument is not active, the
Group establishes fair value by using a valuation technique.
Valuation techniques include using discounted cash flow
model, market-comparable approach and net asset value
model. To the extent practicable, valuation technique makes
maximum use of market inputs. However, where market
inputs are not available, management needs to make estimates
on such unobservable market inputs. Note 4.6 provides further
information on the Group’s fair value accounting policy and
process.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iii) Estimated impairment of goodwill

(iv)

(v)

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been
determined based on the value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates of discount rate and
long-term growth rate.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in determining
the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Fair values of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers. The
determination of the fair value involves certain assumptions of
market conditions which are set out in note 4.7.

In relying on the valuation report, the Group have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the method of valuation
is reflective of the current market conditions. Whilst the
Group considers valuations of the Group’s investment
properties are the best estimates, the ongoing Covid-19
pandemic has resulted in greater market volatility depending
on how the Covid-19 pandemic may progress and evolve,
which have led to higher degree of uncertainties in respect of
the valuations in the current year.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1

Overall risk management

Pursuant to the implementation of the New Capital Accord since
January 2007, the Group has been practising sound risk management
in congruence with the principles and requirements of the New
Accord. Increased attention to corporate governance, Board
oversight and a top-down approach permeated through the Group’s
risk management structure, processes, policies and internal control.
In particular, following the establishment of the Basel IIT framework
which promotes the resilience of banks’ liquidity risk profile, the
Group has been sufficiently upgrading its liquidity risk management
standards. For its business plan and activities, the Group identifies,
assesses, monitors, controls, reports and reviews the major risks to
ensure capital adequacy, compliance with regulatory guidelines, and
adherence to the Board’s risk appetite, including during times of
stress.

Risk management structure and principles

The Group has established policies and procedures for the
identification, measurement, control and monitoring of risk factors
(including credit, liquidity, market, interest rate, operational,
reputation, strategic, legal and compliance risks). Central to the
Group’s risk management is the Board’s oversight, which ultimately
endorses all core risk management policies and their subsequent
amendments. Two Risk Management Committees, one at Board
level and the other at senior executive level, reinforce the Board and
management’s oversight in the risk management structure, process
and policies. The management of the Group, the relevant functional
committees and the Risk Management Department review and
revise these policies and procedures on a regular basis. The Group’s
Internal Audit Department also performs regular independent
review on compliance with policies and procedures.

Launch of new products and services

The launch of new banking products and services has to go through
the essential steps of a development and approval process to
ensure their commercial viability, ethical suitability and statutory
compliance. The Payments and Cash Management Department or
other relevant business unit is responsible to prepare a proposal
for any new product or service to the New Product & Business
Committee (chaired by a Deputy Chief Executive of the Bank) for
discussion. The main objective of the process is to identify and assess
the risks associated with the product, and to implement steps to
mitigate or control these risks.

In accordance with New Capital Accord, the Group adopts the
following approaches for its credit, market and operational risk
exposure in the calculation of its capital adequacy ratio (“CAR”):

Credit risk
Market risk
Operational risk

- Standardised approach
- Standardised approach
- Basic indicator approach
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4

Overall risk management (continued)

4.1
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4.1

Launch of new products and services (continued)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a borrower or counterparty of the Group
will be unable or unwilling to honour a repayment obligation.
The Group has standards, policies and procedures and designated
functional departments in place to control and monitor these risks.

The Group devotes considerable resources to maintaining sound
credit risk management. Management has set credit policies and
systems to identify, measure, monitor and control risks inherent
in various lending businesses. This process ensures prudence,
minimises operational omissions in credit matters, and aims at early
detection of potential problems, thereby minimising business loss.

High-level credit policies of the Group are set, reviewed and
constantly updated by the relevant functional departments and
committees, and for prominent issues, by the management or even
the Board to take balanced account of dynamic market situations,
regulatory requirements, the Group’s usual prudent lending
practices and its latest business strategies. All these credit policies,
processes and practices, as they are developed, updated, reviewed
and revised, are written from time to time into Credit Manuals and
supplementary lending product manuals for internal control and
compliance purposes. Given the Bank’s privatisation in late 2010
and its subsequently more intimate alignment with the policies and
risk appetite of ICBC (the “Parent Bank”), the Bank’s credit risk
management have been increasingly taking into account the Parent
Bank’s credit process, policies and information. This is with an
ultimate goal to fit constructively into the Parent Bank’s unified and
consolidated credit risk policy.

Credit authorities are delegated to individual approvers for
efficiency and productivity purposes, the Group requires a “dual”
approval whereby loan proposals shall require joint approval by the
Business Line and Credit Function. The Bank’s Credit Committee,
which deliberates all credit policies and large loans, within its credit
authority approved by the Parent Bank, shall not pass any credit-
related proposal if its Credit Function approvers disagree. Only the
sizable loan proposals deliberated by the Credit Committee would be
submitted to final approver for signature.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2

Credit risk (continued)

The Credit Approval Department (“CAD”) and the Loans
Administration Department (“LAD”) are the centralised
departments in the Bank mandated to carry out credit assessment
and credit administration respectively. They perform independent
credit assessment, post-approval credit administration and other
credit control functions to ensure that the credit process complies
with credit policies and guidelines laid down by the management.
Apart from the independent credit assessment and matrix approval
process, regular post-approval inspection by the Credit and
Investment Management Department (“CMD”) and internal audit
are conducted on specific loan portfolios or operating units in the
credit process. To maintain their independence, the Credit Approval
Department, Loans Administration Department and Credit and
Investment Management Department of the Bank have direct
reporting lines to a Deputy Chief Executive who is independent of
business. The same control, supplemented by system support and
regular mark-to-market by the Risk Management Department, also
applies to the counterparty credit risk of all derivative products.

The Group employs risk adjusted return on capital (“RAROC”)
techniques to help ensure that its loan assets are commensurately
priced on a credit risk-adjusted basis according to Basel Internal
Rating principles.

Management spares no efforts in monitoring the quality and
behavior of the loan portfolio. The Group’s internal credit
risk grading system consisting of 21 grades built on Basel
Internal Rating—Compliant Attributes is adopted for credit risk
differentiation purposes. With internal data to be constantly
enriched through years of experience, it is expected that the Group
can make further use of the credit statistics to profile and track down
credit risk migration, to measure loan default probabilities and to
practise other credit risk management processes, of which the new
credit rating model is and will substantially be an integral part.

The Group’s credit risk appetite is spelt out, disseminated and
referred to in daily credit decisions. The purpose is to limit the range
of credit proposals presented in the credit approval process to those
that fit the Group’s risk appetite developed out of the Group’s past
experience, the Board’s preference and risk/reward evaluation.

The Bank is vigilant about risk concentration and has therefore been
practising credit risk exposure limits to individual customers in
absolute amount and as a percentage of the Bank’s equity, to industry
sectors and to geographical markets.
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4 E?J‘%EL Fﬁ%ﬁ (%) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 'f% Pﬂ EL Fﬁi (%) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
AEMZFER—EAREITEEFEERIIAE The Group’s quarterly credit guidelines and loan portfolio review
AT o B AR SR - xR have been implemented for years. In economic bad times, it is
R B B 42 5 o DA B R T AR A R EOR basic to the mechanism for initiating pre-emptive measures to help
MEZER o BUIER I BT 0945 R B R stabilise the quality of the Group’s loan asset portfolio. These have by
ZRES] ~ AT RIS R BORIERH - now been supplemented by the Parent Bank’s credit risk appetites,
BEAT 1915 0 0 U 3 A 4R ) 1) R E S A I industry and common customer credit policies. The credit resources
Bits > Ase % PPk - i - SRR Rk of the Parent Bank have been significantly useful to the Group in its
SRIRIK © loan business, in customer selection, screening, credit review and

decision.
7 45 [ AR L B A B A N EE AR o (R B IR The Group attaches increasing importance to post-approval risk
R B i o VA LB A B o B T monitoring. This is performed by the Credit and Investment
B RN B o B A0 A G & P R HE A o Management Department which reviews potentially problematic
B 5K BN A A At S O 1 i A A borrowing accounts and performs group review of special mention
&SR E S o accounts and customers in high risk portfolios. It is also performed
by Business Line relationship managers and Credit Approval
Department who identify and review Early Warning List customers.
(a)  FFFA T gy 26 A (5 B0 58 765 it T 2 (a)  Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other
K5 J credit enhancements
2021 2020
T#L T
HK$°000 HK$’000
AFRREARRNZ Credit risk exposures relating to on-balance sheet assets are as
A W B A follows:
Bl 4 J AE SR AT (7] 3 B A
G A 2 45 R Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions 176,006,890 118,729,432
TE SR AT [ 2 J At 4 il e i 2 Placements with and advances to banks and other financial
K B institutions 49,665,516 103,512,480
FrER 5 i & Rl & 7 Financial assets held for trading 92,807 -
PLA P R ARG B EZE  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 6,341,847 5,093,540
Rigask{: mie:t Derivative financial instruments 10,974,572 16,465,187
AR B HAh R IR Advances and other accounts 469,704,217 487,273,252
DA T8 (B 58 5 Ath 4 17 i 4 Financial investments measured at fair value through other
AR 45 Bl % comprehensive income 149,244,455 140,006,031
DA B S AR AR 4 Rl i e Financial investments measured at amortised cost 58,544,681 46,990,393
HAh & 7E Other assets 10,489,772 16,698,192
AREEafiRUZ Credit risk exposures relating to off-balance sheet items are as
15 W B gt A follows:
B FOR R M HA(E B B R G Loan commitments and other credit related commitments 222,792,547 192,046,083
P I R S HAm A SEAHBH 5 /A 4 8 Financial guarantees and other credit related contingent liabilities 28,648,368 21,713,910

R R 1 A R R

At the end of the reporting period

1,182,505,672

1,148,528,500
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(b)

Credit quality

Loans and advances

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances at the
end of the reporting periods can be assessed by reference to the
internal rating system adopted by the Group.

The Credit Function and Credit Committee decide an
individual borrower’s credit rating. Credit rating is a function
of quantitative and management attributes that include
economic outlook, account conduct and industry risk. The
Group has a different rating scale for large corporates and
SMEs. The external ratings of S&P, Moody’s and Fitch will be
referenced, if available.

The following table gives a mapping of the internal rating
of the portfolio of loans and advances that were not credit
impaired to the loan classification framework adopted by the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”).

Pass Grades Ato]
Special Mention Grades KtoL
Grades A - J: Loans where borrowers are currently meeting
commitment and full repayment of interest and principal
is not in doubt. There are 10 grades within the performing
category from A to J.

Grades K - L: All pass grade borrowers which have overdue
loans for a period exceeding one month are downgraded
to special mention rating or below, unless with strong
justification irrespective of the internal ratings. Borrowers
exhibiting one or more of the characteristics per the HKMA’s
special mention or non-performing grades definition or as
the general economic environment deteriorates, may also be
graded K & L, notwithstanding the absence of overdue loan
or default record. This is a stringent credit rating approach to
raise the Group’s credit risk alertness.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(b)

Credit quality (continued)

Loans and advances (continued)

Loans and advances individually impaired

The Group has a policy to govern customers downgraded
to the non-performing loan (“NPL”) grades when their
unsecured loans are overdue over 90 days. It is very seldom
that a borrower with an unsecured loan outstanding due for
over 90 days would be retained in performing loan instead
of credit-impaired. Credit-impaired borrowing accounts
are typically transferred to management by the Credit and
Investment Management Department, so that the prospect
and means of recovery can be more independently evaluated,
decided and implemented. The Special Assets Management
Centre under Credit and Investment Management
Department may not take any immediate recovery action. The
Bank may even render support in circumstances where the
customer in question is deemed to be able to be rehabilitated
and the collateral is important to the customer’s continued
business operation. The Group may at times join or seek
agreement with other creditor banks to stand still in concert.
Otherwise, the Group will take appropriate measures to
preserve the customer’s assets, to maximise recovery and to
quickly realise property collateral in a timely manner either by
private sale or by public auction at prices that are in acceptable
proximity to the average of several external valuations.

The Group adopts an objective individual impairment policy
in compliance with the requirement of HKFRS 9. Impairment
requirement, if any, can be traced back to reasonably expected
discounted repayment cash flows and/or the assessed net
realisable value of the collateral.

Renegotiated loans that would otherwise be past due or
impaired

Restructuring activities include extended payment
arrangements, approved external management plans,
modification and deferral of payments. Following
restructuring, a previously overdue customer account is reset
to a normal status and managed together with other similar
restructured debts by the Special Assets Management Centre
under Credit and Investment Management Department.
Restructuring policies and practices are based on indicators
or criteria which, in the judgement of management, indicate
that payment will most likely continue. These policies are
kept under continual review. Renegotiated loans that would
otherwise be past due or impaired totalled HK$30 million
as at 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$143 million). They are
retained in non-performing loans as long as there is no
sufficiently good reason to believe that the obligor will be able
to sustainably meet the re-scheduled loan repayment terms.
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4 E?J‘%EL Fﬁ%ﬁ (%) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 'f% Pﬂ EL Fﬁi (%) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(b) [FEHF (#) (b)  Credit quality (continued)
BT H Al TE () Loans and advances (continued)

BB R PN

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 2021

fi5 Bk AT A T#x T# T T#x

Credit rating Internal rating HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

1E A Pass grade A-E 155,873,313 841,616 - 156,714,929

F-H 220,636,578 757,879 - 221,394,457

1] 58,774,627 2,972,296 - 61,746,923

B 1 S A Special mention grade K-L 4,135,422 14,550,828 - 18,686,250
WA~ W] 5E ~ BEHR AR Substandard, Doubtful, Loss

grade M-O - - 6,182,041 6,182,041

At Total 439,419,940 19,122,619 6,182,041 464,724,600

BB 5 RE B 5= B

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 2020

f5 EEREAR TR A T T#ET TET T

Credit rating Internal rating HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000

1E A Pass grade A-E 149,698,671 12,323,941 - 162,022,612

F-H 228,712,469 2,724,060 - 231,436,529

-] 63,942,524 2,489,478 - 66,432,002

B T 5 A Special mention grade K-L 3,140,848 14,731,707 = 17,872,555

WA~ AT 5E ~ AR AR Substandard, Doubtful,
Loss grade M-O - - 4,421,728 4,421,728
st Total 445,494,512 32,269,186 4,421,728 482,185,426
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(b)  Credit quality (continued)
Loans and advances (continued)

ZEREER
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Reconciliation of gross carrying amount of loans and

advances is as follow:

W B—REB R B BB At
Gross amount Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Tl Tl T T#L

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

W ZEZ—F—H—H At 1 January 2021 445,494,512 32,269,186 4,421,728 482,185,426
R 2 A — P B Transfer to Stage 1 2,010,401 (2,003,626) (6,775) -
L1 N 1 Transfer to Stage 2 (10,321,544) 10,324,325 (2,781) -
EE R = B Transfer to Stage 3 (254,240) (4,502,052) 4,756,292 -
JeEL 55 26 S8l 3% Net change on exposure 1,209,286 (17,059,789) (1,070,907) (16,921,410)
1% 85 Write-offs - - (1,955,250) (1,955,250)
e 5t 2 1 S HoAth Exchange difference and others 1,281,525 94,575 39,734 1,415,834
R ZE T4~ H =+4—H  At31 December 2021 439,419,940 19,122,619 6,182,041 464,724,600
B R E 5 P B 5= PR B A5t
Gross amount Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
T T#ET TET T

HK$’000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000

W ZEZEFE—-H—H At 1 January 2020 433,269,817 36,605,604 4,983,758 474,859,179
R A 58 — [ B Transfer to Stage 1 2,777,333 (2,767,193) (10,140) -
R B Transfer to Stage 2 (10,308,095) 10,308,095 =
B R = B Transfer to Stage 3 (251,616) (409,088) 660,704 -
JE\ g 52 ) ¥t Net change on exposure 15,917,257 (11,509,871) (144,178) 4,263,208

ff? il Write-offs = = (1,131,895) (1,131,895)
Ve 5t 7 1 S FoAth Exchange difference and others 4,089,816 41,639 63,479 4,194,934
R ZFEZFES ZH =1—H  At31 December 2020 445,494,512 32,269,186 4,421,728 482,185,426

T~ RESN A B C e = Boa IR R8 1Y The following table sets out information about the overdue
B o status of loans and in Stages 1, 2 and 3.

BB BB B BB A5t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
T T T#T T
e Sy o 2021 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
IR Current 438,817,773 18,788,581 41,461 457,647,815
781 ) N e A 30 H Past due up to 30 days 602,167 298,020 - 900,187
i i31-60 H Past due 31-60 days - 20,273 4,141,375 4,161,648
i 1H61-90 H Past due 61-90 days - 15,745 7,704 23,449
w0 H LA Past due over 90 days - - 1,991,501 1,991,501
Hast Total 439,419,940 19,122,619 6,182,041 464,724,600
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(b) [FEHF (#) (b)  Credit quality (continued)
B A e TH (#F) Loans and advances (continued)
FME B E B Bt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Tl ikt Tkt it G
SRORE 2020 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
R 4 Current 445,425,500 31,222,868 253,847 476,902,215
780 1) N e A 30 H Past due up to 30 days 68,280 244,879 250,919 564,078
M H31-60H Past due 31-60 days 732 541,458 105,398 647,588
i 161-90 H Past due 61-90 days - 259,981 53,434 313,415
w90 H LA | Past due over 90 days - = 3,758,130 3,758,130
st Total 445,494,512 32,269,186 4,421,728 482,185,426
B B e AR IR IE Ah > R ZF — —4F & Other than loans and advances, no financial assets were past
TR TRAR ik B A RRE I 4 AT T due but not credit-impaired at the end of the reporting periods
S RV E 2 L AR R AR R IR of 2021 & 2020.
127 K 7 a8 57 Debt and equity securities
FRIRA T ZH = H IR AR The table below presents an analysis of financial investments
I8 EF 2 WAL G AT > TR A e by rating agency designation at 31 December, based on S&P’s
W2 R AR AR R R A B 2 ratings or their equivalent to the respective categories of
EREAT o FERA ZF BT RN financial investments. In the absence of such issue ratings, the
LR o HIER A B AT N8R Al 2 BF 56 rating scale adopted by the issuers is used.
Rl 22 5 P 78 4 i 4 e Financial assets held for trading
2021 2020
At HEt
Total Total
T#T TH#TT
HK$°000 HK$’000
AAA AAA - -
AA—FAA+ AA- to AA+ 24,393 -
A—FA+ A-to A+ 68,414 -
LA A- Lower than A- - _
At B Unrated - =
o Total 92,807 -
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4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(b)  Credit quality (continued)
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125 K 7 7 5 (4%) Debt and equity securities (continued)
DA P00 4 48 9 2 36 A MR 4 il % g Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
2021 2020
At HEt
Total Total
R A T# T
HK$’000 HKS$°000
AAA AAA - _
AA-FBAA+ AA-to AA+ - -
A-FA+ A-to A+ - .
A A- Lower than A- - _
K AFAR Unrated 6,341,847 5,093,540
st Total 6,341,847 5,093,540
A2 {8 B A HG At 22 TAT o 25 A JR 8 il 3¢ Financial investments measured at fair value through other
j comprehensive income
B—REB Wk B BERB A5t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Tt Tt T T
TR 4R 2021 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AAA AAA 5,262,156 - - 5,262,156
AA-FAA+ AA-to AA+ 37,389,420 - - 37,389,420
A-FEA+ A-to A+ 76,850,335 - - 76,850,335
KA A- Lower than A- 19,490,555 110,321 - 19,600,876
KT Unrated 10,141,668 - - 10,141,668
Tt Total 149,134,134 110,321 - 149,244,455
DA P58 1 466 L A 2 T o i A R 45 ol 45 Financial investments measured at fair value through other
& comprehensive income
P B 5 BB 5 =B Mgt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
T T SR Tt T
“E-TE 2020 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA AAA 2,228,224 - - 2,228,224
AA-FAA+ AA-to AA+ 32,950,762 - - 32,950,762
A-F A+ A-to A+ 74,575,716 - - 74,575,716
KA A- Lower than A- 18,366,906 315,211 = 18,682,117
Ak Unrated 11,569,212 - - 11,569,212
Hast Total 139,690,820 315,211 - 140,006,031
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(b) [FEHF (#) (b)  Credit quality (continued)
125 K 7 7 5 (4%) Debt and equity securities (continued)
DL B 8 AN A\ W 4 ik B Financial investments measured at amortised cost
BB B BB WERB Bk
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
T#xL T#xL T#x T#x
TR 2021 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
AAA AAA 3,828,274 - - 3,828,274
AA-EAA+ AA-to AA+ 14,450,297 - - 14,450,297
A- EA+ A-to A+ 23,012,772 - - 23,012,772
R A- Lower than A- 3,673,532 - - 3,673,532
Ktk Unrated 13,579,806 - - 13,579,806
st Total 58,544,681 - - 58,544,681
DLIEG AN AR & i B Financial investments measured at amortised cost
BB BB 5= B Fik
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
T-# 70 T o T o AR
R R4 2020 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000
AAA AAA 8,368,143 = = 8,368,143
AA- BAA+ AA-to AA+ 2,532,600 = = 2,532,600
A- EA+ A-to A+ 18,693,977 = = 18,693,977
K A- Lower than A- 2,221,193 = = 2,221,193
Ktk Unrated 14,937,707 236,773 = 15,174,480
s Total 46,753,620 236,773 = 46,990,393
BEHE Investment portfolio

MRoE -+ H=+—H  A%EH
ZE A A B2,04608 W o0 > B T
FAE+ T H =1+ — H 21,8460 i o 1
Jin119% » H 5501 i o0 B A A 2 27%H%
R T ARSI o A RIS E
JG ~ Wt K N R EHE o i R DR T
Bt HAb & W SHE - 2G5 RF
7197 LA 2 ST A5 (1 4% HAth 4 T i 26 AR
B E - AL EAEMA SRS
Te AR 2 ol B A AR 2R 48 4% > A4S A B
AT 2 ARG 5] - %A R
BER G| G EE B G K EE AR
BT B O T — L -

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s debt securities portfolio
amounted to HK$204.6 billion, a 11% increase over the
HK$184.6 billion as at 31 December 2020. HK$55 billion or
27% of the portfolio will mature in 2022. The majority of the
portfolio is denominated in USD, HKD and CNY whereas the
rest are in other currencies, such as AUD and EUR. 71% of the
portfolio is kept in the measured at FVTOCI book category.
The Group’s debt securities portfolio operates under a strict
and prudent risk management framework and is in compliance
with all pre-determined internal investment guidelines, which
are reviewed and approved annually by the Credit Committee
and ALCO.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Derivatives

The Group maintains strict control of counterparty credit risk
limits, which subject to pre-settlement risk and settlement
risk, on open derivative positions. The pre-settlement risk is
measured using Current Exposure Method, which included
the current fair value of the instruments that are favorable
to the Group (i.e. assets where their fair values are positive)
and the potential future exposure depending on the type of
the instrument and the remaining maturity. Settlement risk is
controlled and minimized through delivery versus payment,
payment versus payment or such delivery is via central
clearing house, and otherwise, a daily settlement limit to the
counterparty is required and subjected to daily monitoring.
The counterparty credit risk exposure is managed as part of
the overall lending limits with counterparties on nominal
amounts, collateral or other security is obtained for credit
risk exposures either in the form of margin deposits or when
the accrued mark to market loss exceeds a predetermined
threshold.

Master netting arrangements

The Group further restricts its exposure to credit risk by
entering into master netting arrangements with counterparties
with which it undertakes a significant volume of transactions.
The Group’s preferred agreement for documenting derivatives
activities is the ISDA Master Agreement, which provides the
contractual framework within which dealing activities of over-
the-counter (“OTC”) transactions are conducted. Master
netting arrangements do not generally result in an offset of
assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position, as
transactions are usually settled on a gross basis. However, the
credit risk is reduced by a master netting arrangement to the
extent that if an event of default occurs, all amounts with the
counterparty are terminated and settled on a net basis. It is
also common for the Group to execute a Credit Support Annex
(“CSA”) in conjunction with the ISDA Master Agreement.
Collateral is passed between counterparties to further mitigate
the credit exposures under a CSA.

Credit-related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that
funds are available to a customer to settle his obligations
as required. Guarantees and standby letters of credit which
represent irrevocable assurances that the Group will make
payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its
obligations to third parties carry the same credit risk as loans.
Documentary and commercial letters of credit which are
written undertakings by the Group on behalf of a customer
authorising a third party to draw drafts on the Group up to
a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions are
collateralised by the underlying shipments of goods to which
they relate and therefore carry less risk than direct lending.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(e)

(1)

(g)

Credit-related commitments (continued)

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of
authorisations to extend credit in the form of loans, guarantees
or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments
to extend credit, the Group is potentially exposed to loss in an
amount equal to the total unused commitments.

However, even in the worst scenario, loss is likely to be less
than the total unused commitments, as most commitments
to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining
specific credit standards. The Group monitors the term
to maturity of credit commitments because longer-term
commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk
than shorter-term commitments.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group holds collateral against loans and advances to
customers in the forms of mortgages over property, other
registered securities over assets, cash deposits and guarantees.
Collateral generally is not held over loans and advances to
banks, except when securities are held as part of reverse
repurchase and securities borrowing activity. Collateral held
as security for financial assets other than loans and advances is
determined by the nature of the instrument.

Credit risk stress test

In accordance with the HKMA’s supervisory policy guidelines,
the Group runs the credit risk stress test periodically in
estimation of the probable credit loss in mild, moderate and
severe crisis scenarios. The Group performs the credit risk
stress test on the basis of the empirical data gathered during
the Asian financial crisis spanning 1998 and 2004 (including
the 2003 SARS epidemic and the 2008 financial tsunami) and
the economic downturn in 2019-2020. The Senior Executive
Risk Management Committee reviews the stress test, its
parameters and their impact on the Group’s regulatory capital
adequacy ratio. Contingency measures will be devised to
control possible adversities, if deemed necessary.

Based on the stage transition of credit exposures estimated
under the stress scenarios, expected credit loss of exposure
are calculated leveraging on existing HKFRS 9 models. For
credit risk risk-weighted asset (“RWA?”), credit risk stress test
takes into account the projected migration of ratings of credit
exposures to estimate the impact to RWA. Past due exposure is
subject to 150% risk weight.

All the above credit risk reports are reviewed quarterly by
the Senior Executive Risk Management Committee and the
Risk Management Committee of the Board of Directors.
Warning signals or breach of stress-testing triggers, if any,
will be investigated, discussed, rectified or dealt with, and, if
necessary, be reported to the Risk Management Committee
of the Board of Directors in due course for information,
instruction or approval.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(h)

Amounts arising from ECL

Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and expert credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The objective of the assessment is to identify whether a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred for an exposure
by comparing:

- the remaining lifetime probability of default (“PD”) as at
the reporting date; and

= the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that
was estimated at the time of initial recognition of
the exposure (adjusted where relevant for changes in
prepayment expectations).

The Group uses three criteria for determining whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk:

- quantitative test based on movement in PD;
- qualitative indicators; and
- a backstop of 30 days past due

Credit risk grades

The Group allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade
based on a variety of data that is determined to be predictive
of the risk of default and applying experienced credit
judgement. Credit risk grades are defined using qualitative and
quantitative factors that are indicative of risk of default. These
factors vary depending on the nature of the exposure and the
type of borrower. Credit risk grades are defined and calibrated
such that the risk of default occurring increases exponentially
as the credit risk deteriorates so, for example, the difference
in risk of default between credit risk grades 1 and 2 is smaller
than the difference between credit risk grades 2 and 3.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(h)

Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Credit risk grades (continued)

Each exposure is allocated to a credit risk grade on initial
recognition based on available information about the
borrower. Exposures are subject to ongoing monitoring, which
may result in an exposure being moved to a different credit
risk grade.

The table below provides an indicative mapping of how the
Group’s internal credit risk grades relate to PD and, for the
loan portfolio.

T HEF- 34
15 H A% NEF34 Weighted
Credit rating Internal rating average PD
1EH A Pass grade A-E 1.28%
F-H 2.17%
1-J 2.71%
[ RE & Special mention grade K-L 2.83%
WAL~ FTEE ~ R A Substandard, Doubtful, Loss grade M-O 100%
B 1 A SR AE 4 Generating the term structure of PD
{5 P JL g & 31 T e S JaRL g 1 9 40 R A Credit risk grades are a primary input into the determination

SIS R I T B A\ B o AR A
I L £ T Ja B ) A B 7 ) R - LA
TR 1 i [ DA % i B A KON TR L
B A7 P Ja B SR At 23 o i T LA
& - IR e 00 I 3 555 225
HO R o AR AR B AT R R AR T 0 A
L3 00 Boh K A RHEBR I B8R T & 403 Y
AR L B R S I e g A
JE AL o

T E (5 e 2 R S

A B A AR BT AG AR TR B
) b2 i DA AR 7 S T - 1 E AR T
JRRL o A 7 S A - < il TR R A K
UNGUEEE - SRV RIS ok
B R AR RS S 45 52 R R

s P B 8 2% 19 00 0 i o DA AR B
S0 > TR B AR I 45 T LB G B
FPAMBZENE > HoRLEEEE &
I AT B IR R A TR W o A AT AR
JR i M ) ) e g bt B G AR DL - 5 A
AL IR o 7% 5 TEE R T R
S P BT B A B AR A A

of the term structure of PD for exposures. The Group collects
performance and default information about its credit risk
exposures analysed by jurisdiction or region and by type of
product and borrower as well as by credit risk grading. For
some portfolios, information purchased from external credit
reference agencies is also used. The Group employs statistical
models to analyse the data collected and generate estimates
of the remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these are
expected to change as a result of the passage of time.

Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly
The Group assesses whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition at each reporting date.
Determining whether an increase in credit risk is significant
depends on the characteristics of the financial instrument and
the borrower, and the geographical region. What is considered
significant differs for different types of lending, in particular
between wholesale and retail.

The credit risk may be deemed to have increased significantly
since initial recognition based on qualitative factors linked
to the Group’s credit risk management processes that may
not otherwise be fully reflected in its quantitative analysis on
a timely basis. This will be the case for exposures that meet
certain heightened risk criteria, such as exposure on a watch
list. Such qualitative factors are based on its expert judgment
and relevant historical experiences.

157



o R R SRAT () A R4

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

BE_ZE_—F+_HA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

4 B E| B A B (an)
42 17 HEBE (80

(h) EHEHEHRLZ 25 4#)

R 1 T e 77 R T ()

1 Fy AR KR e AR AR 58 oy A5 T ol B
FEH B - RN B I — T Em
AL 30 H o 48 ) B i RE J5 iR R UL
3 4 BT B i LAE R FE 2
fift 7 B 1 1 IR S S 25 i A 7] 7T REAR T i
AN A TR

ik A R R A S A 0 A R R A5 P
o B A B > H—TH T HL A s 1
AT 0148 LhaoE H Bk SE B E 3R 2k s
B o o T B A5 T B 3 o ) 5 R A R
(91 T3 O S AR A mT RE B TR % 48
S T o A 2 A0 B 119 18 T AR SR A A - B
ST > AR R U
A B < A T R BLR A o AR
P58 WS TR R I TR o 8
A& KB AERT > BUR HAEA &
A TR RS B0 e B E LAY
A B R AN R B AT BRI 2 R AR A
I A HBEER o

A B2 1) 1 4% P DAHE 22 A5 R J i 2 484
1A Y R A5 A 20 - ER R E S A T D i
AE S

— AR B L B 7 A T L B A S A
B B 8 5

—  RxME N B —JE G 30 H Y IRF 2
R—% 5

— T R T L L B A 2 [H]
4 7 24 I [H] 2% 5 2

= JaB Al 28 H B R I
FRAR R R i e A T W
K

— A H 1M HE LR (5 —
Br) BLA A AR (55 PR B
[ 2 A 1Y e 4R B 4 1) R 5 3
W) -

158

4

ZEREER
Annual Report 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(h)

Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly (continued)
As a backstop, the Group considers that a significant increase
in credit risk occurs no later than when an asset is more than
30 days past due. Days past due are determined by counting the
number of days since the earliest elapsed due date in respect
of which full payment has not been received. Due dates are
determined without considering any grace period that might
be available to the borrower.

If there is evidence that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk relative to initial recognition, then the
loss allowance on an instrument returns to being measured
as 12-month ECL. Some qualitative indicators of an increase
in credit risk, such as delinquency or forbearance, may be
indicative of an increased risk of default that persists after the
indicator itself has ceased to exist. In these cases, the Group
determines a probation period during which the financial
asset is required to demonstrate good behaviour to provide
evidence that its credit risk has declined sufficiently. When
contractual terms of a loan have been modified, evidence that
the criteria for recognising lifetime ECL are no longer met
includes a history of up-to-date payment performance against
the modified contractual terms.

The Group monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify significant increases in credit risk by regular reviews
to confirm that:

- the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increases in credit risk before an exposure is in default;

- the criteria do not align with the point in time when an
asset becomes 30 days past due;

- the average time between the identification of a
significant increase in credit risk and default appears
reasonable;

- exposures are not generally transferred directly from
12-month ECL measurement to credit impaired; and

- there is no unwarranted volatility in loss allowance from
transfers between 12-month PD (Stage 1) and lifetime
PD (Stage 2).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(h)

Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
Definition of default
The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held);

- the borrower is more than 90 days past due on any
material credit obligation to the Group. Overdrafts are
considered as being past due once the customer has
breached an advised limit or been advised of a limit
smaller than the current amount outstanding; or

- it is becoming probable that the borrower will
restructure the asset as a result of bankruptcy due to the
borrower’s inability to pay its credit obligations.

In assessing whether a borrower is in default, the Group
considers indicators that are:

- qualitative: e.g. breaches of covenant;

- quantitative: e.g. overdue status and non-payment on
another obligation of the same issuer to the Group; and

- based on data developed internally and obtained from
external sources.

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is
in default and their significance may vary over time to reflect
changes in circumstances. The definition of default largely
aligns with that applied by the Group for regulatory capital
purposes.

The Group reviews its portfolios to assess lifetime ECL credit
impaired on a monthly basis. In determining whether a credit
impaired lifetime ECL should be recorded in the income
statement, the Group makes judgements as to whether there
is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio
before the decrease can be identified with an individual in that
portfolio.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(h)

Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Definition of default (continued)

The estimation of expected future cash flows is based on (i) the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the borrowers which include any significant
financial difficulty of the borrowers, breach of contract or
probability that the borrowers will enter into bankruptcy and
the status and progress of financial restructuring, (ii) general
economic conditions and (iii) both the current conditions
of borrowers' repayment ability and value of collateral at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions with
significant judgements involved.

The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and
actual loss experience.

Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Group incorporates forward-looking information into
both the assessment of whether the credit risk of an instrument
has increased significantly since its initial recognition and the
measurement of ECL.

The Group formulates three economic scenarios: a base case,
which is the median scenario assigned a 50% probability
of occurring, and two less likely scenarios, one upside and
one downside, assigned a 8.75% and 41.25% probability of
occurring respectively.

The Group has identified and documented key drivers of
credit risk and credit losses for each portfolio of financial
instruments and, using an analysis of historical data, has
estimated relationships between macro-economic variables
and credit risk and credit losses.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

—E+ A=t —HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

(h) EHBEHEHREZS 25 (41 (h)  Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
TIA B bE & F (4%) Incorporation of forward-looking information (continued)
SR G AR R B ) B S R R A The key drivers for credit risk for loan portfolios are: China
KRR PEIRHIES SR - %‘\%ﬁﬁ % Unemployment Rates, China Current Account Balance,
Wy SEAE AR TR W - s A W SEEAS 4R Hong Kong Commercial Property Price Index, Hong Kong
T v T il B R 1 e Residential Property Price Index and Hong Kong Volume of
Imports of Goods and Service.
WoE o+ HA=+—HRERN The economic scenarios used as at 31 December 2021 included
BEBENEIEU TRE _FE - FF the following key indicators for the years ending 31 December
ToNETFZH =1 —H L& FEER B 2022 to 2026.
HSHE -
2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
R KR (4 E) China Unemployment Rates & i Base 5.46% 5.30% 4.95% 4.93% 4.93%
(Percentage) ik Upside 4.91% 4.62% 4.29% 4.21% 4.16%
RN Downside 6.02% 5.84% 5.72% 5.71% 5.74%
Hhr e A8 % HR S8R % (7142 ) China Current Account HHE Base -0.73% -0.52% -0.32% -0.17% -0.12%
Balance (Percentage) ik Upside 0.34% 0.80% 1.22% 1.49% 1.61%
] | Downside -2.08% -2.07% -1.91% -1.87% -1.87%
ERLTEEXTES LTS Hong Kong Commercial
(B E) [ 5> L) Property Price Index B Base -20.65% 2.98% 3.18% -0.52% 1.55%
(Percentage change) Mt Upside -10.86% 4.25% 3.39% 1.73% 3.21%
T Downside -27.70% 1.00% -1.55% -3.27% 0.37%
%%&%’ W) 2E RS AR B Hong Kong Residential Hife Base -4.70% 0.55% 1.03% -1.48% 0.39%
fffff B H ) Property Price Index ] [ Upside -1.83% 1.30% 2.51% 2.55% 2.76%
(Percentage change) fi] & Downside -8.05% -1.35% -0.02% -2.69% -2.14%
A T i R A Hong Kong Volume of S UE Base 8.23% 5.76% 5.62% 5.88% 5.99%
(A 2y k) Imports of Goods and 1] b Upside 6.63% 4.16% 4.01% 4.30% 4.41%
Service (Percentage) RN Downside 10.88% 7.85% 7.71% 7.99% 8.10%
I S 5 A7 L < T % AL S I E A Ml Predicted relationships between the key indicators and default

5 25 2 [ B9 T A B AR ) 2R 0 20 A 2520
A 1 JRE S A O T S e

and loss rates on various portfolios of financial assets have

been developed based on analysing historical data over the past

20 years.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Incorporation of forward-looking information (continued)

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term
structure of the following variables:

- probability of default (“PD”);
- loss given default (“LGD”); and
- exposure at default (“EAD”).

ECL for exposures in Stage 1 is calculated by multiplying the
12-month PD by LGD and EAD. Lifetime ECL is calculated
by multiplying the lifetime PD by LGD and EAD. The
methodology of estimating PDs is discussed above under the
heading ‘Generating the term structure of PD’.

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default.
The Group estimates LGD parameters based on the history
of recovery rates of claims against defaulted counterparties,
taking into account forward-looking economic assumptions
where relevant. The LGD models consider the structure,
collateral, seniority of the claim, counterparty industry and
recovery costs of any collateral that is integral to the financial
asset.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(h)

Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Incorporation of forward-looking information (continued)

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default.
The Group derives the EAD from the current exposure to the
counterparty and potential changes to the current amount
allowed under the contract and arising from amortisation.
The EAD of a financial asset is its gross carrying amount
at the time of default. For lending commitments, the EADs
are potential future amounts that may be drawn under the
contract, which are estimated based on historical observations
and forward-looking forecasts. For financial guarantees, the
EAD represents the amount of the guaranteed exposure when
the financial guarantee becomes payable. For some financial
assets, EAD is determined by modelling the range of possible
exposure outcomes at various points in time using scenario
and statistical techniques.

As described above, and subject to using a maximum of a
12-month PD for Stage 1 financial assets, the Group measures
ECL considering the risk of default over the maximum
contractual period (including any borrower’s extension
options) over which it is exposed to credit risk, even if, for
credit risk management purposes, the Group considers a
longer period. The maximum contractual period extends to
the date at which the Group has the right to require repayment
of an advance or terminate a loan commitment or guarantee.

However, for credit card facilities that include both a loan and
an undrawn commitment component, the Group measures
ECL over a period longer than the maximum contractual
period if the Group’s contractual ability to demand repayment
and cancel the undrawn commitment does not limit the
Group’s exposure to credit losses to the contractual notice
period. These facilities do not have a fixed term or repayment
structure and are managed on a collective basis. The Group
can cancel them with immediate effect but this contractual
right is not enforced in the normal day-to-day management,
but only when the Group becomes aware of an increase in
credit risk at the facility level. This longer period is estimated
taking into account the credit risk management actions that
the Group expects to take, and that serve to mitigate ECL.
These include a reduction in limits, cancellation of the facility
and/or turning the outstanding balance into a loan with fixed
repayment terms.
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4 E?J‘%EL Fﬁ%ﬁ (%) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 'f% Pﬂ EL Fﬁi (%) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(h) EHBEHEHREZS 25 (41 (h)  Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
I 2R BN 4 R CC B Y s 1R A The following tables show reconciliations from the opening to
) BRI 7R A4 6% 1 IR o the closing balance of the loss allowance by class of financial
instrument.
%P > BT R EZ Sk BRI RE D K& Loans and advances to customers, banks and trade bills
RS 18 )% YN measured at amortised cost
FEA5 FWRAR

AHMAZ 1 WAL 1
B4 K AHMAZ
12 H U Lifetime ECL  TMI45 MR K

T4 AR K not credit- Lifetime ECL A5t
12-month ECL impaired  credit-impaired Total
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
R4 2021 T T#x T#x T#x
WA EE) Movement in impairment allowances:
R-Z_—HF—H—H At 1January 2021 4,234,142 576,636 2,900,014 7,710,792
R 21218 H LA TE IS A48 Transfer to 12-month ECL 29,462 (29,462) - -
W E IR 15 F Y Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit-
AR Z HAE % impaired (162,477) 162,477 - -
W 2 (5 L BEN
RN 2 EIE BRI Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit-impaired (11,276) (50,379) 61,655 -
s 45 188 M 1) EE T VR AR Net remeasurement of loss allowance
(/B 4% T 5050 58 (including exchange adjustments) 244,642 279,761 633,972 1,158,375
T8 AR SO 2 < New financial assets originated or
purchased 2,536,837 27,736 20,389 2,584,962
ERIEHERZ EMEE Financial assets that have been
derecognised (1,408,754) (220,861) (269,872) (1,899,487)
1% 8 Write off - - (1,912,380) (1,912,380)
e 1] 5 i A% 5 1) <52 Recoveries of amount previously written
off - - 5,789 5,789
R-F-_—FE+ZH=+—H At 31 December 2021 5,462,576 745,908 1,439,567 7,648,051
LA Comprising of:
& F R Advances to customers 5,417,022 745,891 1,439,567 7,602,480
SRATIR] 3K Advances to banks 40,382 - - 40,382
[HE£2 Trade bills 5,172 17 - 5,189
5,462,576 745,908 1,439,567 7,648,051
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“EF - Et+ A=+ —HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

(h)  Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loans and advances to customers, banks and trade bills

LR35 18 1) % YN JE )] measured at amortised cost (continued)
A5 R AELHY
HHMNZ 15 s E
FEHIE HEE BHMKZ
121 H LA AT Lifetime ECL  TAMI{F A%
FHE A EE not credit- Lifetime ECL At
12-month ECL impaired  credit- impaired Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
DR 2020 T T T T T
Yﬁiﬁﬁ"% ) Movement in impairment allowances:
RoZ—RE—-F—H At 1 January 2020 2,280,274 797,972 2,469,280 5,547,526
W = 1208 H LLNFE (S AR Transfer to 12-month ECL 27,301 (27,301) = -
AR 28 JF {5 W (E 1Y Transfer to Lifetime ECL
RN 2 EIE R E K not credit-impaired (28,946) 28,946 - -
AR 25 15 P A Transfer to Lifetime ECL
GHMAZ FEEREE credit-impaired (5,623) (132,208) 137,831 -
N 45 188 A 1) 2 M T T AR Net remeasurement of loss allowance
(6045 E 5. 70 %% ) (including exchange adjustments) 449,867 85,866 944,321 1,480,054
T A B 22 B4 T New financial assets originated or
purchased 2,148,292 45,362 - 2,193,654
B AR TR 2 4 E Financial assets that have been
derecognised (637,023) (222,001) (6,439) (865,463)
A Write off - - (670,985) (670,985)
Wi I 5 i A 6 ) 46 A Recoveries of amount previously written
off - - 26,006 26,006
REFFREF =4~ At 31 December 2020 4,234,142 576,636 2,900,014 7,710,792
fE - Comprising of:
PR Advances to customers 4,195,498 576,634 2,900,014 7,672,146
SRAT IR SE R Advances to banks 31,059 - - 31,059
[HE£:%) 1 Trade bills 7,585 2 - 7,587
4,234,142 576,636 2,900,014 7,710,792

165



o R R SRAT () A R4

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

ZEREER
Annual Report 2021

BE_ZE_—F+_HA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

4 B E| B A B (an) 4
42 17 HEBE (80
(h) EHEMEHARZ 25 (H) (h)

FF -~ BT 2 S0k B AR B A K v
SR DL AP U A il 2 i o 2k A DR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 Credit risk (continued)
Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loans and advances to customers, banks and trade bills
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

A5 1 WAL Y 15 1 WAL Y
FHMHZ FHMRZ
REANK  FONERER SO REX
MG MK Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL At
12-month ECL  credit- impaired  credit- impaired Total
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
SR 2021 T T TH#T T
WA A E) Movement in impairment allowances:
WoE o —HF—H—H At 1 January 2021 20,488 - - 20,488
W E 128 H VNS F482%  Transfer to 12-month ECL - - - -
T 2 IR A5 L Y Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit-
ARBNZ EHEREE impaired (4,835) 4,835 - -
AR 2 5 ) IR (B Y
E RN I E R Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit-impaired - - - -
Ji TR AR ) BB R AR Net remeasurement of loss allowance
(455 E 50, 8 ) (including exchange adjustments) 2,304 (3,152) - (848)

U8 AR SO 2 4 il

New financial assets originated or
purchased 506 - - 506

CA LR SR EE Financial assets that have been
derecognised (15,521) - - (15,521)
REFZ—FEFZH=+—H At 31 December 2021 2,942 1,683 - 4,625
A5 H BUE I {5 FRAE Y
FHRMNZ HHRMRNZ
124 A LK EHGEREL HBFEAEEK
WG 4L Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL At
12-month ECL  credit- impaired  credit- impaired Total
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
R 2020 T Ti#ET Ti#ET Tk
o 1P 138 M Movement in impairment allowances:

R-EE $ H—H At 1 January 2020 12,971 = = 12,971
g 25 1240 H DLAFE (S FI 2% Transfer to 12-month ECL = = = =
& IR 15 W Y Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit-

AHBAZ G R impaired = = = =
W 2 (5 L BEN
BHINZ EIME R #E K Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit-impaired - - = =
e AR B A 1 EE R R R A Net remeasurement of loss allowance
(45 BE 5 5 4% ) (including exchange adjustments) 5,013 = = 5,013
TR A S 2 4 T New financial assets originated or
purchased 4,864 - - 4,864
ERIEHRZ EMEE Financial assets that have been
derecognised (2,360) - - (2,360)
REFZFEFZA=+—H  At31 December 2020 20,488 - - 20,488
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4 E?J‘%EL Fﬁ%ﬁ (%) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 'f% Pﬂ EL Fﬁi (%) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(h) EHBEHEHIERS 5 () (h)  Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
DX B 83 0 A A MG 4 i Bt % Financial investments measured at amortised cost
A WAL 15 F WAV g
FHBAHZ FHRMHZ
LRAANKN  BEEHEE G HEER
T4 MR Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL A5t
12-month ECL  credit-impaired  credit- impaired Total
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
DR 2021 Tl T#x T#xL T#x
W E) Movement in impairment allowances:
R-ZF_—HF—H—H At 1January 2021 27,267 2,291 - 29,558
43 2 1048 H DL TE IS FA$8C Transfer to 12-month ECL 1,297 (1,297) - -
5 IR A5 Y Transfer to Lifetime ECL not
HRINZ HEE K credit-impaired - - - -
W 2 (5 L BEN
AHMINZ EIE HEE Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit-impaired - - - -
s R B8 M 1) EE T VR AR Net remeasurement of loss allowance
(45 B 5050 %) (including exchange adjustments) 2,579 (994) - 1,585
U5 A= SR 2 4 T New financial assets originated or
purchased 45,322 - - 45,322
ERIHR &M EE Financial assets that have been
derecognised (4,556) - - (4,556)
AFE 4+ H=+—H  At31 December 2021 71,909 - - 71,909
A5 HWER 15 WA Y
GRIMANZ RN Z
RMEA A BEREL sEAEK
TEWIME R Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL sk
12-month ECL  credit-impaired ~ credit-impaired Total
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
S 2 2020 T T T T
WA A E) Movement in impairment allowances:
RoF—RE—-F—H At 1 January 2020 25,614 4,961 - 30,575
B E 120 B DL TEBIE 82K Transfer to 12-month ECL 136 (136) = =
& IR 15 A Y Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit-
FHBNZ EHE HEE impaired - - - -
T 2 {5 L BUE W
A RN HAE K Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit-impaired - - - -
e SR HB A 1) BT R A VR Net remeasurement of loss allowance
(355 BEE 505 %) (including exchange adjustments) (1,238) (2,534) = (3,772)
T8 AR SO 2 < New financial assets originated or
purchased 5,802 - - 5,802
CA IR SR g E Financial assets that have been
derecognised (3,047) - - (3,047)
REF R =1+—H At 31 December 2020 27,267 2,291 = 29,558
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(h)  Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
Financial investments measured at fair value through other

#H comprehensive income
FEA5 AR 1 £ T WAL 1y
HRBAZ HRBAZ
2 AW B A NG EE
B4 AR Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL Mt
12-month ECL  credit- impaired  credit- impaired Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
SR 2021 T Tl Tl T
WA ) Movement in impairment allowances:
WoFE—FE—H—H At 1 January 2021 115,461 466 - 115,927
A 2 120 H LA FAAE FIE2L Transfer to 12-month ECL - - - -
A 2 (5 FUE Y Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit-
HHIR 2 G FAR K impaired (4,500) 4,500 - -
AR 25 05 P W Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit-
BRBNZ G REE impaired - - - -
e AR BB A 1 F R R A Net remeasurement of loss allowance
(455 T 50, 4 ) (including exchange adjustments) 27,263 - - 27,263
TR B 2 5 4 Tl New financial assets originated or
purchased 48,940 - - 48,940
BRI 2 S E Financial assets that have been
derecognised (27,907) (466) - (28,373)
R-FZ—FEFZH=+—H At 31 December 2021 159,257 4,500 - 163,757
15 WA 5 R BER
GRMNZ HHRMNZ
1248 A LK EHGEREL  EBFERAEK
FWIME 4 Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL Azt
12-month ECL  credit- impaired  credit- impaired Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
e 2 2020 T TH#T T T
W) Movement in impairment allowances:
AEERE—H—H At 1 January 2020 107,905 5,728 = 113,633
W 1200 A LRSS K Transfer to 12-month ECL 2,941 (2,941) = -
R E IR Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit-
I 2 B R R impaired . i . .
AR 2 15 P WA Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit-
RN G R impaired _ _ _ _
N 45 188 A 1) 2 M T T AR Net remeasurement of loss allowance
(0 15 BEE 5, 5 8% ) (including exchange adjustments) 2,717 (263) - 2,454
TR A S 230 4 L New financial assets originated or
purchased 39,540 - - 39,540
B AR R 2 4 E Financial assets that have been
derecognised (37,642) (2,058) - (39,700)
REF TR ZH=+—H At 31 December 2020 115,461 466 - 115,927
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.2 Credit risk (continued)

(h)  Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

B4 B ACHUT I 38 B 30 A NG 2 A2k Cash, placement with banks and other financial institutions
A WAL 15 F WAV g
FHBAHZ FRBHZ
RFAHADAN  BUNEHBR SO EE
T4 MR Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL i
12-month ECL  credit-impaired  credit- impaired Total
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—Eo— 2021 T T T T#L
WA E) Movement in impairment allowances:
EG#E:JrF H—H At 1 January 2021 35,489 - - 35,489
e AR B A 1 FE R R R A Net remeasurement of loss allowance
(/6455 BEE 500 %8 (including exchange adjustments) 15,102 - - 15,102
TR B 2 5 4 Tl New financial assets originated or
purchased 20,708 - - 20,708
BRI 2 W E Financial assets that have been
derecognised (35,233) - - (35,233)
R-FZ—FEFZH=+—H At 31 December 2021 36,066 - - 36,066
F A5 FBUE 15 AR Y
FRWNZ RN Z
AR G REL G REK
TEWIME A Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL st
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R R 2020 THIT THIT TH# T T T
B 1% 5 ) Movement in impairment allowances:
A .S $ A—H At 1 January 2020 34,797 - - 34,797
s SR HB8 A 1 BT A VR Net remeasurement of loss allowance
(/B 455 B 5050 %) (including exchange adjustments) 1,912 - - 1,912
T8 AR SO 2 G New financial assets originated or
purchased 33,121 - - 33,121
EA LR SR EE Financial assets that have been
derecognised (34,341) - - (34,341)
“Z-FEFA=+—H At 31 December 2020 35,489 = = 35,489
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4 E?J‘%EL Fﬁ%ﬁ (%) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.2 'f% Pﬂ EL Fﬁi (%) 4.2 Credit risk (continued)
(h) EHBEHEHREZS 25 (41 (h)  Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
£k Rk X mE R S8 Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts
FE A7 P BRAL 4% P BRA
FHEWMAZ FHRWMANZ
RMAAUA  FEEHEE BOIE R
FWI4E 4R Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL st
12-month ECL  credit-impaired  credit-impaired Total
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
—EF 2021 Tl T#x T#x T#x
W E) Movement in impairment allowances:
R-ZF_—HF—H—H At 1 January 2021 192,678 4,053 - 196,731
W E 128 H VNS 48 Transfer to 12-month ECL 1 (1) - -
T 2 IR A5 (Y Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit-
AR HEE K impaired (9,997) 9,997 - -
W 2 (5 L BEN Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit-
RN Z EREREK impaired - - - -
e AR B A 9 BB SRR A Net remeasurement of loss allowance
(45 BEE 5050 %) (including exchange adjustments) (28,259) (1,414) - (29,673)
U5 A= SR 2 4 T New financial assets originated or
purchased 241,325 791 - 242,116
AR SR EE Financial assets that have been
derecognised (99,307) (1,863) - (101,170)
AZFZHE+ZH=+—H  At31 December 2021 296,441 11,563 - 308,004
FREMER A
RN Z HHRMRZ
R2fEA LA BIERHEA G EK
WIS AR Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL A5t
12-month ECL credit-impaired  credit-impaired Total
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—Z_ZHF 2020 TiET TiET T T
W) Movement in impairment allowances:
R_FEZFE-H—H At 1 January 2020 71,675 3,512 - 75,187
O Z 120 H LN B K Transfer to 12-month ECL 2,459 (2,459) = =
o 2 R A5 L 1Y Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit-
FHMNZ EHE HEE impaired (13) 13 - -
T 2 {5 BUER Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit-
RN Z EREREK impaired - - - -
Ji TR A0 ) BB R AR Net remeasurement of loss allowance
(/6 4% M 5050 %) (including exchange adjustments) 32,393 130 - 32,523
TR A S 2 0 4 R New financial assets originated or
purchased 132,034 3,835 - 135,869
O 4 IR TERR 2 4 Pl Financial assets that have been
derecognised (45,870) (978) - (46,848)
REFZRIEFZA=+—H  At31 December 2020 192,678 4,053 = 196,731
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3

Market risk management

Market risk is the risk that market rates and prices on assets,
liabilities and off-balance sheet positions change, thus causing
profits or losses. Generally, the Group’s market risk is associated
with its positions in foreign exchange, the money market, debt
securities and derivatives. Most off-balance sheet derivative
positions arise from the execution of customer-related orders and
positions taken for hedging purposes. Structured products are
basically offered to customers in most cases on a back-to-back basis
to maintain the Bank’s market competitiveness at minimal market
risk, commensurate with the Group’s risk appetite.

The objective of the Group’s market risk management is to optimise
return and control market risk in ways consistent with the Group’s
risk appetite and its status as a premier provider of financial
products and services.

The Group categorises market risk exposures into either trading or
non-trading portfolios. Trading portfolios include those positions
arising from market-making and proprietary trading positions.
Non-trading portfolios primarily arise from the effective foreign
exchange and interest rate management of the Group’s retail,
corporate and commercial banking assets and liabilities.

(a) Market risk management framework

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is
managed within risk limits and guidelines approved by the
Board Risk Management Committee (“RMC”), the Senior
Executive Risk Management Committee (the “SERMC”) and
Market Risk Committee (the “MRC”). Exposures are measured
and monitored against limits on Value-at-Risk (“VaR”),
sensitivities (FX NOP, IR DV01, CS01, Option Greeks) and
Stop-loss. Daily risk monitoring is carried out independently
by Market Risk Section of the Risk Management Department,
which ensures all dealing activities are conducted in a proper
manner and within approved limits. The Group’s market
risk exposures are periodically reviewed by the Board RMC,
SERMC and MRC. Stress tests are performed regularly to
estimate the possible losses under extreme circumstances. The
Group’s Internal Audit Department also performs regular
review and testing on dealing activities to ensure compliance
with all internal guidelines.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(b)

(c)

Measurement of market risk

Measurement techniques used to quantify the market risk
arising from the Bank’s trading and non-trading activities
include VaR metrics, sensitivity analysis and stress testing.
Sensitivity measures, concentration and stop-loss limits are
also used as the risk management tools. Limits are set for each
portfolio, product and risk type. Stress tests are performed
regularly (at least monthly) to assess the potential losses under
extreme circumstances. The Board RMC, SERMC and RMC
review stress test results on a regular basis.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the Group’s position may
be adversely affected by a change in market interest rates.
Interest rate risk arises mainly from the mismatch of repricing
tenors of interest-bearing assets and liabilities and yield curve
movements. Interest rate risk exposures are managed within
risk limits approved and monitored by the ALCO. Interest rate
risk exposures in the non-trading portfolio are measured on a
daily basis and the results are reported to the ALCO monthly
and SERMC and the Board RMC quarterly.

The Group manages its interest rate risk by way of entering
into on- or off-balance sheet interest rate risk hedging
instruments. The effectiveness of the hedging activities is
assessed regularly in accordance with HKFRS 9.

The Group will use and count on stop-loss limits, management
trigger limits, stress testing and a software system in installation
to manage its interest rate risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Trading portfolio

The Group’s control of interest rate risk is based on restricting
individual operations to trading within the market risk limits,
and a list of permissible instruments authorised by the Board
RMC, and MRC where authority delegated. In particular,
trading in the derivative products is supported by robust
control systems whereas more complicated derivatives are
basically undertaken on a back-to-back basis. VaR, sensitivity
measures, concentration and stop-loss limits are used as risk
management tools. Risk limits are independently monitored
by Market Risk Section of Risk Management Department on a
daily basis.

Non-trading portfolio

The principal objective of interest rate risk management of
non-trading portfolios (also known as “banking book”) is to
optimise net interest income but without exposure to excessive
risk. This is done on a daily basis by the Global Markets and
Trading Department (“GMT”) taking over the interest rate
risk management under the supervision of the ALCO. When
the behavioural characteristics of a product differ from its
contractual characteristics or for products with no defined
maturity or re-pricing characteristics, the behavioural
characteristics are assessed to determine their actual
underlying interest rate risk profile. The ALCO monitors all
such behavioural assumptions and interest rate risk positions
to ensure they comply with the prevailing interest rate risk
limits which are set for the purpose of governing the interest
rate risk arising from the non-trading portfolio. The limits are
measured and independently monitored on a regular basis.

There are three primary forms of interest rate risk faced by
the Group with regard to its banking book: gap risk, basis risk
and option risk. Interest rate risk is measured in relation to the
impact of changes in interest rates on earnings or economic
values assuming all other factors remained constant, e.g., no
action taken by GMT or other business units to mitigate the
impact of this interest rate risk and interest rates at all term
points move by the same amount.

From 1 July 2019, the Group has aligned with the new
requirements set by HKMA, in which new assumptions,
such as optionality and behaviour of certain products, are
incorporated in the exposures measurement.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

(i) Interest rate exposures in banking book
The interest rate risk sensitivity figures presented in
the table below represent the effect of six interest rate
scenarios defined by HKMA IR-1 on the change in
economic value of equity (“EVE”) as well as the effect
of the two parallel shock scenarios on the net interest
income (“NII”) in the banking book as at 31 December
2021 and 31 December 2020.

3ok A 1248 H 3 BB 1Y
A5 B
S 208 AL 089 A ) 30 0% Adverse Impact on NII'
HE®IL In HK$ Million Adverse Impact on EVE Over the next 12 months
L] Period 31/12/2021 31/12/2020 31/12/2021 31/12/2020
AT ) B2 Parallel up? 8,078 6,760 810 828
AT ] R? Parallel down? = = 3,743 3,711
AP Steepener® 3,440 3,217
5 R ] Flattener* 233 19
Ji ) % b Tt Short rate up® 1,956 1,820
FLHAF R ke Short rate down® 903 1,460
I5e W7 Maximum’ 8,078 6,760 3,743 3,711
A Period 31/12/2021 31/12/2020
— A Tier 1 capital 139,083 134,082
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Note 1 Disclosure of the impact on earnings is only required for
the two parallel scenarios.

Note 2 Interest rate shock across all tenors move by +200bps for
HK &US dollar and +250bps for on/off shore Renminbi.
Note 3 Short-term rates decrease and long-term rates increase.
Note 4 Short-term rates increase and long-term rates decrease.
Note 5 Short-term rates increase more than long-term rates.
Note 6 Short-term rates decrease more than long-term rates.

Note 7 "Maximum” indicates the most adverse interest rate
scenario as shown in the table.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

®

(i)

Interest rate exposures in banking book (continued)

As of 31 December 2021, the most adverse of the six
interest rate scenarios with regard to AEVE was the
“Parallel up” scenario, resulting in a change of the
economic value of equity of negative HK$8,078 million,
representing a reduction of 5.81% of tier 1 capital, which
is well below the regulatory outlier test of 15% of tier 1
capital. The AEVE increased by HK$1,318 million by
comparing December 2021 with December 2020. The
changes were mainly driven by changes in balance sheet
composition between US$ and Reminbi portfolios.

As of 31 December 2021, the most adverse of the two
parallel interest rate scenarios with regard to ANII over
the next 12 months was the “Parallel down” scenario,
resulting in a potential change of the net interest income
of negative HK$3,743 million, representing a reduction
of 2.69% of tier 1 capital. The ANII increased by HK$32
million, comparing December 2021 with December
2020. The changes were mainly driven by changes in
statement of financial position.

Interest rate exposures in trading book

The tables below show the last stress tests on the
Bank’s trading and investment portfolios conducted in
December 2021 and 2020 respectively, which sets out
the effect on Bank’s income statement of a reasonable
possible change in interest rates. Key assumptions
include no management actions taken to mitigate the
impact of interest rate risk and all other non-interest rate
risk variables remain constant:

175



o R R SRAT () A R4

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

WE-Z=—FE+-H=+—H I
For the year ended 31 December 2021

4 B E| B A B (an)
4.3 T % E B B (80

(c) FIZEE S (4
(i) RS T2 Ay 3k

ZEREER
Annual Report 2021

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
(ii) Interest rate stress test for interest rate trading

(T#x) 1 5t
(HK$'000) Scenario
e LA Jite T
Light Moderate Extreme
—100fE JE 8 +100M8 26 —200M 2L M +200M 2L —300fH FE M +3004H B M
e 2 < oy 4% 4% ) Yield curve shift -100 bps +100 bps -200 bps +200 bps -300 bps +300 bps
Z®R - —4+"H December 2021 (5,755) 5,755 (9,652) 9,652 (13,548) 13,548

M 22 oy 2 T 3 JBE 7 Bk

Interest rate stress test for interest rate trading

(F#0) 1 5%
(HK$'000) Scenario
A 1A fige B
Light Moderate Extreme
Wi 4 2R (i 47 5 ) Yield curve shift —100fE 3B +1001H HE B —2001R HE B +200fH KL BE 30018 JE B +30011H Jk B
-100 bps +100 bps -200 bps +200 bps -300 bps +300 bps
TR TFAE+F T H  December 2020 (8,405) 8,405 (11,978) 11,978 (15,551) 15,551
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(d)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates.

The Group’s foreign exchange exposures mainly comprise
foreign exchange dealing by GMT, and currency exposures
originated from the Group’s banking business. Currency
exposures arising from non-trading businesses are transferred
to GMT for centralised management within foreign exchange
position limits approved by the MRC. Management has set
limits on positions by currency. Positions are independently
monitored by Risk Management Department against the
approved limits on a daily basis.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency exchange risk. Included in the tables are the Group’s
assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, excluding derivative
financial instruments, categorised by currency.
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4 E?J‘%EL Fﬁ%ﬁ (%) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.3 T 5 A B () 4.3 Market risk management (continued)
(d) BB 4 (d)  Currency risk (continued)
&t EH N A Bk
HKS$ US$ CNY Other Total
T#L T T T T
—Z -4+ ZH=+—H 31December2021 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
243 Assets
B4 RAESRAT IR 26 o Cash and balances with banks and
At 4 M A 2 4 B other financial institutions 74,848,535 71,762,887 24,669,008 4,716,157 175,996,587
2 $R47 A 3 T oA Placements with banks and other
& R 2 A K financial institutions 8,174,237 39,957,831 1,507,685 - 49,639,753
FER S RGeS g = Financial assets held for trading 7,985 11,497 73,325 - 92,807
DAY (B 58 48 4 R Financial assets at fair value through
NS A Y profit or loss 5,783,352 558,495 - - 6,341,847
B S HoAth e T Advances and other accounts 247,114,231 75,327,536 112,687,612 26,926,787 462,056,166
DL A {458 1 A 2 1 Financial investments measured
Wi 25 AR 4 4% A at FVTOCI 32,763,405 72,207,322 34,682,381 9,591,347 149,244,455
DL B AR AR 4 b % S Financial investments measured at
amortised cost 667,953 31,321,937 25,226,404 1,256,478 58,472,772
A A 2 B Investments in associates 189,403 - - 120,208 309,611
[k P ER LRSI Goodwill and other intangible assets 1,010,536 - 7,268 - 1,017,804
(ig-L/E 3 Investment properties 116,100 - 29,200 - 145,300
LEI G Property, plant and equipment 1,913,657 - 290,838 - 2,204,495
Hi e » AHEBAT & Other assets, including current and
R HE Bl T deferred tax assets 1,758,232 6,955,317 2,432,079 233,391 11,379,019
% BB (A Total assets (excluding derivative financial
M4BT H) instruments) 374,347,626 298,102,822 201,605,800 42,844,368 916,900,616
£ Liabilities
AT IR 2 R A Deposits from banks and other
4 R I 2 A7 3K financial institutions 28,743,890 78,274,446 58,523,124 23,768,775 189,310,235
&P Deposits from customers 245,686,585 185,437,579 91,872,544 25,307,082 548,303,790
BBITFKE Certificates of deposit issued - 5,632,713 - - 5,632,713
1T &S Debt securities in issue 11,027,377 9,519,387 - - 20,546,764
Hih & i > GEBAT R Other liabilities, including current and
I HE B TE £ A deferred tax liabilities 7,124,700 1,806,490 2,014,235 959,077 11,904,502
A HE (A Total liabilities (excluding derivative
M4 w1 H) financial instruments) 292,582,552 280,670,615 152,409,903 50,034,934 775,698,004
% £ A R Net on-balance sheet position 81,765,074 17,432,207 49,195,897 (7,190,566) 141,202,612
15 BEmRk Credit commitments 93,485,081 100,727,205 51,269,463 5,959,166 251,440,915

178



ZERFER
Annual Report 2021

4 B E| B A B (an)

4.3 T % E B B (80

(d) B A

o T SRAT (W) A R4

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

WEF - —F+_H=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

T E NG HAty 5
HK$ US$ CNY Other Total
T T Tt Tt ot T T Tt ot
CECFESTH=+—H 31 December 2020 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
¥R Assets
B4 T A SRAT[R] 2 Cash and balances with banks and other
oAt 4 R A 2 4 financial institutions 39,524,632 55,002,720 14,551,655 9,648,984 118,727,991
TESRAT ) 26 K HoAth Placements with banks and other financial
& R 2 £E 3K institutions 6,003,874 82,480,216 14,742,488 251,854 103,478,432
FHER S g E E Financial assets held for trading - - - - -
DA P (5848 4 3% Financial assets at fair value through
NS Y profit or loss 4,551,843 541,697 - = 5,093,540
AR A R IR Advances and other accounts 247,930,690 90,714,597 109,012,392 31,904,781 479,562,460
DA 168 1 46 2 T
Wi 25 AR 4 % Financial investments measured at FVTOCI 23,187,367 73,503,073 34,039,612 9,275,979 140,006,031
DL 8 AR AR 4 Bl A% Financial investments measured at
amortised cost 1,195,378 22,536,799 22,250,467 978,191 46,960,835
BB A Z & Investments in associates 90,191 = = 110,318 200,509
T 2 A T Goodwill and other intangible assets 1,011,770 - 9,755 - 1,021,525
BEY*E Investment properties 93,100 - 38,829 - 131,929
LEI G Property, plant and equipment 1,917,898 = 245,904 - 2,163,802
Hi e » AT & Other assets, including current and
I SE R TE deferred tax assets 2,755,245 11,182,075 2,919,183 423,794 17,280,297
B (A Total assets (excluding derivative financial
M4 T 5 instruments) 328,261,988 335,961,177 197,810,285 52,593,901 914,627,351
114 Liabilities
SRAT IR 3 I Hopt Deposits from banks and other
& Rl 2 AE 0 financial institutions 21,082,742 104,907,025 49,403,030 30,605,650 205,998,447
&P Deposits from customers 228,896,450 183,428,937 84,400,055 25,758,572 522,484,014
O 847 7 Certificates of deposit issued = 7,045,548 - = 7,045,548
C TS Debt securities in issue 14,662,923 10,474,000 = = 25,136,923
Hi &> BEsT Rk Other liabilities, including current
I HE B TE £ A and deferred tax liabilities 7,796,235 6,263,786 1,850,077 1,126,236 17,036,334
2105 B8 1 4 F8 A Total liabilities (excluding derivative
AEEBT ) financial instruments) 272,438,350  312,119296 135,653,162 57,490,458 777,701,266
Y BB A R Net on-balance sheet position 55,823,638 23,841,881 62,157,123 (4,896,557) 136,926,085
5 Bkl Credit commitments 81,425,720 83,043,000 41,930,996 7,360,277 213,759,993
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

Stress test

The tables below show the last stress tests conducted in
December which calculated the change in dollar term of
a reasonably possible movement of spot rates and foreign
exchange volatility for 2021 and 2020, with all other variables
held constant.

B0 Sy 2021
A HE 47 ¢ Bl B JE )y 05 Risk stress testing for foreign exchange position
(F#x) W 5t
(HK$°000) Scenario
[ 271 LA e T
Light Moderate Extreme
W81 (10%) W30 (12%) W1 (15%)
Spot (10%) Spot (12%) Spot (15%)
WM (4%) B Wi (6%) Yol (10%)
Volatility (4%) Volatility (6%)  Volatility (10%)
5 A B A R 3 i 5 Worst of spot and volatility change
UNE (excluding CNY) (83,730) (355,272) (975,941)
(F#x) W 5t
(HK$’000) Scenario
Lt LA e
Light Moderate Extreme
W39 (3%) W81 (5%) B I (79%)
Spot (3%) Spot (5%) Spot (7%)
Wi (3%) W (4%) W W (6%)
Volatility (3%) Volatility (4%) Volatility (6%)
5 1% BRIV e i 42 ) (N R H) Worst of spot and volatility change (CNY) (510,570) (867,287) (1,225,596)
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

JEE Ty Bt (4) Stress test (continued)
CERCRE 2020
A1 TEE £ i Sl b JBR o ) 5 Risk stress testing for foreign exchange position
(F#s0) 1% 5%
(HK$°000) Scenario
L3 1 fH B
Light Moderate Extreme
B (10%) B30 (129%) A9 (15%)
Spot (10%) Spot (12%) Spot (15%)
5 R (49%) P (6%) MR (10%)
Volatility (4%) Volatility (6%) Volatility (10%)
5 A R A R 3 i 5 Worst of spot and volatility change
VN7 (excluding CNY) (197,721) (1,099,271) (2,717,841)
(F#t) 1% 5%
(HK$’000) Scenario
R i A e H
Light Moderate Extreme
R (3%) R (5%) R A (7%)
Spot (3%) Spot (5%) Spot (7%)
P (3%) PR (4%) P (6%)
Volatility (3%) Volatility (4%) Volatility (6%)
5 A1 BRIV e i i 4 ) (N R Worst of spot and volatility change (CNY) (417,453) (697,874) (980,286)

181



o R R SRAT () A R4

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

WE-Z=—FE+-H=+—H I
For the year ended 31 December 2021

4 B E| B A B (an)
4.3 T % E B B (80

(e) JRFIEHE
e S5 1 A% B T e SR AL 1 2 SR AR
5 T 5 K P B A1 A S A (B A AL i T
W 2 JE B o 45 IR SR 22 i 355 JE B I
i BOAR 33 A K -

AR F A R R AE
1E W wE26 [l 5 & | BTl 2 [ DA P 1H
(AR L A 22 T WS i A\ IR < S T | B3 o
FrfE2e o B B R A M RE22 BT i 2 455
VB2 5 i e | o 15055516 52 Bl B
B 2 1 M BT AR

Rt EATT R AR - AREMEE F
I8 252 J I A 7 JR g o W) — AT

247 B B 5 G D 2 A (8 1 7 o
T RS W I S RE L -

4

ZEREER
Annual Report 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.3 Market risk management (continued)

(e)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of the equity
portfolio decrease as the result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual stocks. Market risk
positions on equity are relatively not sizeable at this stage.

The Group’s equity exposures in 2021 and 2020 are mainly
long-term strategic equity investments which are reported as
“measured at FVTOCI financial investments” set out in Note
26 “Financial investments”. Equities held for trading purposes
are included under “Financial assets held for trading” set out
in Note 22. These are subject to risk management control
procedures.

The Group takes into account its equity exposure as part of
risk-weighted assets for the purpose of calculating the capital
adequacy ratios.

Valuation and technique methodologies applied on equity
investments are detailed in Note 2 of the financial statements.

2021 2020
T#n T# T
HK$’000 HK$’000
A B B s B A IR Cumulative realised gains arising from sales and
AR B liquidations of equity exposure - -
TE 74 [ B ot A 0 FERD, - HIRA Total unrealised gains recognised in the Group’s reserve
REKR A WA R ARAY AR B 4R but not through the consolidated income statement
Y 465 (446,804) (714,114)
F T B AR S AR B LA A Unrealised gains included in the Group’s supplementary
A5 B2 T 0D BRI A 19 19 A B B A i capital for capital adequacy ratio purpose (446,804) (714,114)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group cannot meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due. A sound liquidity risk
management framework is therefore essential to ensure there is
adequate cash flow to meet all financial obligations, including
matured borrowings, deposits withdrawal either on demand or
at contractual maturity, etc under both normal and contingency
circumstances in a cost-effective manner. The Group must comply
with the statutory Liquidity Coverage Ratio (“LCR”), net stable
funding ratio (“NSFR”) and regulatory liquidity-related ratio. To
ensure this, the Group maintains a stable and diversified funding
base of retail and corporate customer deposits and a strong portfolio
of highly liquid assets.

To manage liquidity risk, the Group has established liquidity risk
management policies that are reviewed and approved by ALCO,
SERMC and Board RMC. Liquidity is managed and forecasted
on a daily basis to enable ALCO and relevant departments to act
proactively in view of changing market conditions and to implement
contingency plans on a timely basis. Also, liquidity risk management
reports are prepared and reported to ALCO on a monthly basis; to
SERMC and Board RMC on a quarterly basis for effective liquidity
risk management oversight. Stress tests, with various crisis scenarios
covering bank-specific, general market and a combination of both,
are regularly conducted for both internal and regulatory purposes
in order to assess the adequacy of the Group’s liquidity to meet
any contingent funding needs under severe conditions. ALCO
examines and discusses the stress test results to consider the need
for preventive and mitigating actions. These actions include but are
not limited to limit the Bank’s exposures, build up more liquidity
cushion, and/or adjust the structural maturity profile of the Bank’s
assets and liabilities. Stress tests are conducted for all currencies in
aggregate and separately for positions in significant currencies (e.g.
HKD, USD, CNY).

Management information systems are in place to extract data from
various sources and produce the essential management information
reports, including statutory LCR, NSFR, other regulatory liquidity-
related ratios and cash flow positions on a daily basis for timely
monitoring by relevant parties and reporting to management.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group maintains a diversified portfolio of liquidity cushion
that is largely made up of the most liquid and readily marketable
assets (“tier 1 assets”), such as cash, EF debt securities and other
high quality government debt securities or similar instruments,
that can be easily or immediately monetised with little or no loss
or discount at all times. The Bank also widens the composition of
the liquidity cushion by holding other liquid and marketable assets
(“tier 2 assets”) which can be used to cater for the longer end of the
stress period without resulting in excessive losses or discounts. The
Bank calculates the required liquidity cushion, which is compared
to the liquidity cushion held by the Bank to ensure that the latter is
sufficient in all circumstances.

The ALCO, authorised to set up by CEO, is appointed by CEO and by
SERMC to manage liquidity risk. This includes but is not limited to:

Asset and Liability Management
. monitor and manage the Bank’s assets and liabilities

. review the assets and liabilities mix and formulate appropriate
assets and liabilities management policies and strategies

. review and discuss items or matters that have significant
impact on assets and liabilities as well as capital

Liquidity Management

. identify, assess, monitor and control the liquidity risk

. formulate, review and update the liquidity risk management
policy

. strengthen the Bank’s liquidity and monitor the liquidity risk
indicators, cash flow and intraday liquidity
. review the liquidity stress testing on a regular basis

. build up contingency plan on liquidity, including but is not
limited to solicit customer deposits, issue CDs, sell bonds, etc.

Funding Management

. review the funding needs and enhance the sources and uses of
funds

. review the internal FTP policy and plan
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

To ensure an effective liquidity risk management, frontline business
units:

. report the customer fund in/out flow in time and monitor the
trend of deposits withdrawal

. attract relatively stable deposits at reasonable rate (e.g. longer
tenor, larger depositor base, etc.)

. fulfill the deposit growth targets set by senior management

. simultaneously comply with the deposit growth target when
developing assets business which consumes liquidity

. implement liquidity management plans as agreed in ALCO or
CEO when the liquidity is relatively tight

. price lending properly, taking into account the Bank’s liquidity
cost and availability

. slow down or cease committing to new loans, and/or defer or
regulate loan drawdown, and/or work together on loan sale
during times of liquidity stress

The Banking (Liquidity) Rules (“BLR”) detail the implementation
of the LCR and NSFR in Hong Kong. The BLR stipulates the
minimum LCR and NSFR with which all Category 1 authorised
institutions (“Als”) need to comply. Also, the latest versions of
Supervisory Policy Manual LM-1 and LM-2 issued by the HKMA
provide guidance to the Als on the application of the BLR and the
key elements of a sound liquidity risk management framework
respectively.

The Group continues to seek to diversify its funding channels
to control excessive concentration on funding sources. Funding
support from the Parent Bank, ICBC, has also proven to be efficient
in strengthening the Group’s liquidity capability.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

The matching and controlled mismatching of assets and liabilities
are fundamental to the liquidity management of the Group. It is
unusual for bank’s assets and liabilities to be completely matched
in tenors, as transactions often entail uncertain terms and are
frequently of different types. While an unmatched position
potentially enhances profitability, it increases the liquidity risk (as
well as the interest rate risk) of an entity.

A substantial portion of Group’s assets is funded by customer
deposits. Of total customer deposits, 9% consist of demand and
current account deposits, 33% of savings deposits, and 58% of time,
call and notice deposits (2020: demand and current account 8%,
savings 32%, time, call and notice 60%). These customer deposits,
which are widely diversified by type and maturity, represent a stable
source of funds. The Group places great emphasis on the stability
of these deposits, which are sustained through the Group’s retail
banking activities and by maintaining depositor confidence in the
Group’s capital strength. Although many customer accounts are
contractually due for repayment on demand or at short notice, in
practice inflows and outflows are broadly matched, keeping short-
term deposit balances stable.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the
commitments because the Group does not generally expect its third
parties to draw funds concurrently under the agreements. The total
outstanding contractual amount of commitments to extend credit
does not necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many
of these commitments will expire or be terminated without being
funded.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

The Bank’s Asset and Liability Management Department manages
the liquidity risk according to established policies and supports
ALCO by implementing liquidity risk monitoring and control. The
Group has always maintained high vigilance with regard to liquidity
risk management, relying much more significantly on customer
deposits than on inter-bank funding, particularly at volatile
times. The Group will continue to take the necessary measures
commensurate with its scale and complexity of operation to
strengthen its liquidity capability, including meeting various stress
scenarios and any new liquidity risk requirements.

The contingency funding plan (“CFP”) is reviewed and approved
by ALCO, SERMC and the Board RMC at least annually with the
objective of ensuring that the Group has practical and operational
plans in place to enable it to cope with a liquidity crisis. The CFP
is a practical tool for managing liquidity during a crisis event. It
sets out the options available to the Group for garnering liquidity
and funding, and an agreed course of action in the event of an
unexpected crisis. The CFP includes detailed action steps as well
as roles and responsibilities of relevant parties. As a practical set of
guidelines for the crisis management team and its support team to
evaluate the liquidity crisis situation and execute action steps during
any crisis, the CFP also consists of a sound balance sheet maturity
analysis, and spells out all potential funding sources giving due
consideration to their reliability, priority and the lead time during a
crisis.
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4 B L B B (a0 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.4 {ﬁyj ﬁﬁlﬂ Fﬁ (%) 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
R S B R R E S A B H 2 R R The tables below analysis assets and liabilities of the Group and
W A E R ASRGR - A=+—H the Bank as at 31 December into relevant maturing groupings
ZOEE N A BB AL - based on the remaining period at the end of reporting period to the
contractual maturity date.
ERBA
WHER )
Repayable on ~WAk —EZWA ZEFCE) —~E1i% TERL  EEEE it
demand Uptoonemonth  1-3months  3-12months 1-5years  Over 5 years Undated Total
TH#% T T Ti#n T Ti#n T Ti#n
= e o N | 31 December 2021 HKS00  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS00  HKS$000  HKS000
{3 - Assets
B BRI ER L R Cash and balances with banks and other
i - financial institutions 108,311,622 67,684,965 - - - - - 175,996,587
ERTRER LSRR Placements with banks and other financial
. institutions - - 28,718,146 20,921,607 - - - 49,639,753
RELH ARG HERE Financial assets held for trading
~ K% ) N - other debt securities _ _ _ UAT5 68,332 _ _ 92,807
bl /qu BESRGRARZAMERE  Financial assets at fair value through profitor loss
-REEs -investment funds _ _ _ - _ - 5794977 5,794,977
- - other - - - - - 851 546870
fit 2B TA Dertvatve financial instruments 9077 1435063 909591 5081804 LAO430L 2,053,086 SIS (X/%7/)
2
SRR Advances and other accounts SOLB  RSG6 BIAMI  0IEEE  I8I5LI54 105735016 - 462036,166
UAFEEEEB2TIEA Financial investments measured at FVTOCI
Ry
e .
7@%%% - treasury bils - 7,399,895 21,933,760 1,857,755 4,605,561 3,966,964 - 39,763,935
~ IR - equity securities - - - - - S 335605
kYA - certificates of deposit held - - _ - - - - -
AfE - other debt securie S L9N6 IS FIEIS 3470 10624405
DEERAAREBRE Financial investments measured at amortised cost
il - treasury bill - 2TIR0 - S598 GIB09 3859779 - 1606556
—BifA L fa - certificates of deposit held - - R - R - - -
b - otherdeb securiies - 568 LTI 356 2906 1523367 - nue6
BT 5 Investments in associates - - - - - - 309,611 309,611
1% R T B Goodwill and other intangible assets _ _ _ _ _ _ 1,017,804 1,017,804
# ﬁ%% Investment properties - - - - - - 145,300 145,300
i %& B4 Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 2,204,495 2,204,495
e ’ﬂfﬁfﬁﬁ& Other assets, including current and
REFEBEE deferred income tax assets 55,880 1,459,479 498,735 2,870,512 2,577,007 342,156 3,575,250 11,379,019
BEsH Total assets 116,749,262 113,580,275 92,429,598 138,166,511 285,658,831 164,937,808 16,352,903 927,875,188
fif ) Liabilites
ROTREREMERERZ Deposits from banks and other financial
- institutions 26,909,047 55,452,926 31,105,805 61,929,257 13,913,200 - - 189,310,235
fESRTR Derivative financial instruments - 150150 76571 QU369 210249 1971540 - 8584456
EFfiak Deposits from customers BLIGHE 94720602 100544073 102388070 19,545,899 - - 548,303,790
EEITEE Certifcates of depositissued - 935,598 4,697,115 - - - - T
CETRE Debt securites in ssue - - - 66318 13893577 - - 20546764
AMAE BERTR Other liabiities, including current and deferred
REfEBALK income tax liabilities 2,512,195 3,149,494 1,058,264 3,686,882 1,326,963 84,396 86,308 11,904,502
ARHH Total liabilities 260,526,388 155,778,770 138,281,828 176,771,092 50,782,138 2,055,936 86,308 784,282,460
gy kg | Net liquidity gap (3777,126)  (4198495)  (45,852,230)  (38,604381) 234876693 16881872 16266395 143,592,728
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4 B R B e 4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.4 WEYE 4 EBE (8D

4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

ERFA
MEER  —HAR
Repayeble on Upto —2ZfA ZZtZfA Sk TENE  EENES a5t
demand ~ onemonth  I-3months  3-12months 1-5years  Over5 years Undated Total
Fib T i T i Fibr Fin Fin
“ECEEFCHET-H 31 December 2020 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
% Assets
Be RAERTRERLY Cash and balances with banks and
SRERZ SR other financial institutions 62206815 56,501,176 = = = = - 187791
ERTAER LM Placements with banks and other financial
Bl A institutions = S GTI098 3550749 = 5 - 1347843
MR REERERE Financial asets held for trading
~Hib % - other debt securities - - - o = = o =
WATEESRERARZEMAR  Financial assets atfair value through profit or loss
-RE%E - investment funds = = = = = s 4,597,800 4,597,800
— Kt - other - - - - - 470,123 25,617 495,740
fit2MTH Derivative financial instruments 111,00 1,486,405 2,091,969 4115435 5743420 2,916906 - 1646587
B RIS Advances and other accounts 6997484 27986010 36996617 118739519 189462361 99,380,469 - 479562460
DATEES L2 E G Financial investments measured at FVTOCI
AESRBE
-EHEE - treasury bill = 4369938 17808403 298,568 2,932,447 3,190,310 - 28619666
-RE# % - equity securities - - - - - S4B 242369
kYA - certificates of deposit held - 587,074 - 154162 - - - 741,236
— {5 - other debt securities - 667,893 1,056,582 6595649 50543530 49,358,206 - 108221860
DS RA AR S B E Financial investments measured at amortised cost
~FEHER - treasury bills - - S 6906 6424919 763958 - 20998565
S YA - certificates of deposit held - - - 385477 - - - 385,477
—HMt% - other debt securities - 1,631,811 403,509 3646713 16390347 3504413 - BT6TS
REEATZRE Investments in associates - - - - - - 200,509 200,509
WERAMEY G Goodwill and other intangible assets - - - - - - 1,021,525 1,021,525
REnE Investment properties - - - - - - 131,929 131,929
VEVEL ] Property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 2,163,802 2,163,802
HgE  AfBTk Other assets, including current and
EEmEHEE deferred income tax assets 117329 2923439 1347372 3,151,436 3048472 436790 6255459 17,080297
jift bl Total assets 69452678 96153746 127695435 179508471 274545498 166896799 16819910 931,092,538
fifk Liabilities
EOEEYENET T iz Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 48,577,256 40204166 22346575 59241452 35,628,998 - - 205998447
fit4MIA Derivative financial instruments = 1,338,059 1,848,071 4374239 4165172 3,898,636 S XN
EFfea Deposits from customers 0578626 84098706 95493442 9L 13141019 - - 5484014
C#IRENE Certificates of deposit issued - - 7,045,548 - - - - 7,045,548
CRTES Debt securities in issue = = = 1998756 23,138,167 = - B3I
RUsR - Ak Other liabilities, including current and deferred
REMERAR income tax liabilties 3137975 6,421,041 1,179,474 4,819,790 571,017 859,529 47508 17,036,334
AR Total liabilties 262293857 13206972 127913110 189606458 76644373 4758185 47508 793305463
LI A0 Net liquidity gap (192,841,179)  (35,908,226) Q7675 (10077,986) 197901125 162138614 16772402 137,767,075
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that
will be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that
will be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities
at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages
the inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash
inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a net basis include:

- Foreign exchange derivatives: over-the-counter currency
options; and

- Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements and OTC interest rate options.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

- Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency
swaps; and

= Interest rate derivatives: cross currency interest rate swaps.
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4 HR R KA B (50 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.4 {ﬁyj ﬁﬁ’-ﬁ Fﬁ (%) 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
R H =MA =%
WP 4R 7/ . | W)
Repayableon 3 months 312 —REE% KDL o it
demand or less months 1-5years  Over 5 years Undated Total
T#L T T TH#x T#L T#L T
REZZZ—4+ZH=1—H Asat31 December 2021 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
5L Financial liabilities
BRAT I 3 B FA 4 Deposits from banks and other
Bz A7 financial institutions 26,909,047 86,772,749 62,172,451 15,134,253 - - 190,988,500
KFEH Deposits from customers 231,105,146 196,080,314 102,919,012 22,313,545 - - 552,418,017
BB AT 17 2 Certificates of deposit issued - 5,634,818 - - - - 5,634,818
EBITER Debt securities in issue - - 6,987,531 14,160,671 - - 21,148,202
HoAh 4 b A 15 Other financial liabilities 2,512,195 2,676,997 3,054,830 1,249,009 84,396 86,308 9,663,735
BB Total financial liabilities 260,526,388 291,164,878 175,133,824 52,857,478 84,396 86,308 779,853,272
AR 40 Derivative cash flow
DR EMESMTH Derivative financial instruments
settled on net basis - (17,129)  (158,870)  (1,046,257)  (1,398,241) - (2,620,497)
AHTALH Total contract inflows - 12,843,486 49,049,907 119,032,361 94,220,063 - 275,145,817
AHTL A Total contract outflows - (12,860,615) (49,208,777) (120,078,618) (95,618,304) - (277,766,314)
DA SM TR Derivative financial instruments
settled on gross basis
A SR Total inflows - 467,215,141 191,128,671 23,592,116 973,571 - 682,909,499
it i 4 Total outflows - (465,132,641) (175,921,707) (23,607,698)  (961,702) - (665,623,748)
BEAKKMER Off-balance sheet items 3 1/8)
No later —&h4E T4 E L
than 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
T#L T T T
KRB+ =Z4—H At 31 December 2021 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BHOR Loan commitments 159,818,976 21,967,354 41,006,217 222,792,547
IR ~ B2A5  RHCA B s Guarantees, acceptances and other
financial facilities 28,648,368 - - 28,648,368
A B Forward deposits placed - - - -
it Total 188,467,344 21,967,354 41,006,217 251,440,915
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4 HR R KA B (50 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.4 {ﬁyj ﬁﬁ’-ﬁ Fﬁ (%) 4.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
K R E = A =%
et 2 wUF WA —FEHFE HEME i
Repayableon 3 months 3-12 1-5 Over 5 Hi# 5
demand or less months years years Undated Total
T T T T 0 T T
REFZZ4EFZH=1—H Asat31 December 2020 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
5L Financial liabilities
SRAT I 3 o At 4 ol e A Deposits from banks and other
A financial institutions 48,577,256 62,657,300 59,836,588 37,181,020 = - 208,252,164
KFEHR Deposits from customers 210,595,848 180,475,824 120,124,890 15,418,186 = - 526,614,748
BB AT A7 2 Certificates of deposit issued - 7,048,152 - - - - 7,048,152
EBITER Debt securities in issue = = 2,221,540 23,759,906 - - 25981446
oAl 4 b 1R Other financial liabilities 3,016,929 5,705,051 3,751,447 378,808 859,529 47,508 13,759,272
SRR Total financial liabilities 262,190,033 255,886,327 185934465 76,737,920 859,529 47,508 781,655,782
RAB 4 Derivative cash flow
DR EMESMTH Derivative financial instruments
settled on net basis (6) 109,716 (614,085)  (1,255,693)  (1,394,686) - (3,154,754)
A Total inflows 15 27729490 54,666,038 133,942,097 89,724,333 - 306,061,973
it i Total outflows (1) (27,619,774)  (55280,123) (135,197,790)  (91,119,019) - (309,216,727)
DR SM TR Derivative financial instruments
settled on gross basis
AL Total inflows 23 399,899,777 176,097,372 28,745,297 - - 604,742,469
it i 4 Total outflows (29) (399,455,786) (176,328,769)  (28,656,630) = - (604,441,214)
EEAEFINEE Off-balance sheet items —EH LT
No later —ZH4E HEMUE Mgt
than 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
Tt SRV T T
REZ-RETZHA=T—H At 31 December 2020 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
B Loan commitments 145,714,654 17,094,616 27,754,256 190,563,526
BRE - REER Guarantees, acceptances and other
i A 7 financial facilities 21,713,910 = = 21,713,910
A WA Forward deposit placed 1,482,557 - - 1,482,557
#it Total 168,911,121 17,094,616 27,754,256 213,759,993
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.5 Strategy in using financial instruments

By their nature, the Group’s activities are principally related to
the use of financial instruments including derivatives. The Group
accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating rates,
and for various periods, and seeks to optimise the interest margins
by investing these funds in high-quality assets. The Group seeks to
increase these margins generally by consolidating short-term funds
and lending for longer periods at higher rates, while maintaining
sufficient liquidity in the process to meet all claims that might fall
due.

The Group also seeks to raise its interest margins, net of allowances,
through lending to commercial and retail borrowers with a range of
credit standings. Such exposures involve not just on-balance sheet
loans and advances but also guarantees and other commitments such
as letters of credit and performance and other bonds.

The Group also manages the risk of financial instruments by
taking positions in OTC instruments to take advantage of short-
term market movements in currencies, interest rates and securities
prices. The management places risk limits on the level of exposure to
financial products.

(a)  Fair value hedges
The Group hedges part of the existing Hong Kong dollar and
foreign currency interest rate risk in its fixed rate assets by
means of interest rate swaps. The net fair value of these swaps
as at 31 December 2021 was HK$416 million negative (2020:
HK$1,940 million negative).

(b)  Cash flow hedges
The Group uses interest rate swaps and commodity swaps to
protect against exposures to variability in future cash flows
on non-trading assets and liabilities which bear interest
at variable rates. The net fair value of these swaps as at 31
December 2021 was HK$500 million negative (2020: HK$115
million positive).

(c)  Net investment hedges
The Group uses foreign currency deposits to protect against
exposures to variability in foreign currency exposures arises
from net investment in subsidiaries. The net fair value of these
deposit as at 31 December 2021 was HK$24 million positive
(2020: HK$122 million negative).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Financial instruments measured at fair value using a valuation
technique

Fair values of standardised financial assets and financial liabilities
that are traded in active market are based on quoted market prices.
For all other financial instruments, the Group determines fair
values using valuation techniques. In general, quoted prices in
active market will be used if available. When quoted prices in active
markets are not available, an appropriate valuation technique will be
employed.

Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash
flow models, comparison to similar instruments for which market
observable prices exist, Black-Scholes and polynomial option pricing
models and other valuation models. Assumptions and inputs used in
valuation techniques include risk-free and benchmark interest rates,
credit spreads and other premia used in estimating discount rates,
bond and equity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, equity and
equity index prices and expected price volatilities and correlations.
The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value
measurement that reflects the price of the financial instrument that
would be received to sell the asset or paid to transfer the liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the reporting
date.

The Group uses widely recognised valuation models for determining
the fair value of the common financial instruments. The market
data inputs are independent and observable in the market which
avoids any manipulation of the fair values. The Group has also an
established Valuation Committee to set up control framework with
respect to the measurement of fair values. Valuation Committee is
responsible for review of all market prices and rate sources used as
well as curves, methodology and models for valuation of financial
instruments.

A Credit Valuation Adjustment (“CVA”) is applied to the Group’s
over-the-counter derivative exposures to take into account the
counterparty’s risk of default when measuring the fair value of
the derivatives. CVA is the mark-to-market adjustment to the fair
value to reflect potential credit risk from counterparties in the
Group’s over-the-counter derivative portfolio. CVA is calculated
by multiplying the expected loss rates and the exposure value of the
instruments at deal level.

The Group estimates the expected loss rates by referencing the
historical loss rates of the counterparties at similar internal credit
grading level. A Debit Valuation Adjustment (“DVA”) is applied
to incorporate the Group’s own credit risk in the fair value of
derivatives, using same methodology as for CVA.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Determination of fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e.
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e
observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1,
and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs. This category includes all
instruments for which the valuation technique
includes inputs that are not observable and the
unobservable inputs have a significant effect
on the instrument’s valuation. This category
includes instruments that are valued based
on quoted prices for similar instruments for
which significant unobservable adjustments or
assumptions are required to reflect differences
between the instruments.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded
in active markets are based on quoted market prices or counterparty
quotations. For all other financial instruments the Group determines
fair values using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques
include net present value and discounted cash flow models and
various market recognised option pricing models. Assumptions
and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free and
benchmark interest rates, equity prices, foreign currency exchange
rates, index prices, historical or implied volatilities and correlations.
The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value
measurement that reflects the price of the financial instrument that
would be received to sell the asset or paid to transfer the liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the reporting
date.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Determination of fair value hierarchy (continued)

The Group uses widely recognised valuation models to determine
the fair value of common and simple financial instruments, such as
interest rate and currency swaps, that use only observable market
data and require little management judgement and estimation.
Observable prices or model inputs are usually available in the market
for listed debt and equity securities, exchange-traded derivatives and
simple over-the-counter derivatives such as interest rate swaps. The
availability of observable market prices and model inputs reduces
the need for management judgement and estimation and also
reduces the uncertainty associated with determining fair values. The
availability of observable market prices and inputs varies depending
on the products and markets and is prone to changes based on
specific events and general conditions in the financial markets.

For more complex instruments, the Group uses valuation
models, which usually are developed from recognised valuation
methodologies. Some or all of the significant inputs into these
models may not be observable in the market, and are derived from
market prices or rates or are estimated based on assumptions.
Valuation models that employ significant unobservable inputs
require a higher degree of management judgement and estimation in
determination of fair value. Management judgement and estimation
are usually required for selection of the appropriate valuation model
to be used, determination of expected future cash flows on the
financial instrument being valued, determination of probability of
counterparty default and prepayments and selection of appropriate
discount rates.

Fair value estimates obtained from models are adjusted for any other
factors, such as liquidity risk or model uncertainties, to the extent
that the Group believes that a third party market participant would
take them into account in pricing a transaction. Fair values reflect
the credit risk of the instrument and include adjustments to take
account of the credit risk of the Group entity and the counterparty
where appropriate. For measuring derivatives that might change
classification from being an asset to a liability or vice versa - e.g.
interest rate swaps - fair values take into account both CVA and
DV A when market participants would take this into consideration in
pricing the derivatives.

Model inputs and values are calibrated against historical data and
published forecasts and, where possible, against current or recent
observed transactions in different instruments and against broker
quotes. This calibration process is inherently subjective and it yields
ranges of possible inputs and estimates of fair value. Management
uses judgement to select the most appropriate point in the range.



b Sl SR
Annual Report 2021

4 B E| B A B (an)

4.6 SxihEE & HEZ AP HEE @)

JEETE 25T (53 ()

o T SRAT (W) A R4

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

BHE-ZF

—E+ A=t —HILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Determination of fair value hierarchy (continued)

FH— SH BH= Hm
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Tk Tk TR Tk
s S Y N | 31 December 2021 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
R0 P A T AR R Recurring fair value measurements
SWHEE Financial assets
/T A Derivative financial instruments
wIIME S K Forward foreign exchange contracts - 3,225,861 - 3,225,861
A RRIESME 5 4 Structured foreign exchange contracts - 611 - 611
1 i 1) Currency swaps - 757,476 - 757,476
A1 A 1 FX options - 185,910 - 185,910
] 26 451 141 Interest rate swaps - 3,120,914 - 3,120,914
[EERECE ] Commodity swaps - 16,974 - 16,974
2 & Interest rate futures - 331 - 331
i 5 4 14 Equity swaps - 3,666,495 - 3,666,495
- 10,974,572 - 10,974,572
DA T8 (B 468 H A 2 7 i 4 A B Loans and advances to customers, banks
EF ST 2 S R H AR and trade bills measured at fair value
DY TESE through other comprehensive income
EFER Advances to customers - 595,664 - 595,664
ELS Trade bills - 10,441,078 - 10,441,078
- 11,036,742 - 11,036,742
UATFEEBEGREARER Loans and advances to customers, banks and
SRATIR) 2 2 Bk R A AR TH other accounts measured at fair value
through profit and loss
%P B Advances to customers - 4,274,648 - 4,274,648
FER S Bk &g = Financial assets held for trading
fi % Debs securities - 92,807 - 92,807
DA T8 (R 45 % AR Financial assets at fair value through
ZEMEE profit or loss
WE RS Investment funds - 5,794,977 - 5,794,977
Hos Others - 546,870 - 546,870
- 6,341,847 - 6,341,847
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Determination of fair value hierarchy (continued)
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4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

HFHh— &3 - FH= HE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
T#L T#L T#L T#L
SR AEFSAZTH 31 December 2021 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
DA -1 i A6 Al 2 T 2 A R Financial assets measured at fair value through
ZEMEE other comprehensive income
% Debt securities - 146,008,840 - 146,008,840
&g Equity securities - - 3,235,615 3,235,615
- 146,008,840 3,235,615 149,244,455
SMEERE Total financial assets - 178,729,456 3,235,615 181,965,071
S Financial liabilities
AT R 2 B H A 4 R A B 2 A K Deposits from banks and other financial
institutions - 15,279,584 - 15,279,584
ik &M LTR Derivative financial instruments
M AME A 4 Forward foreign exchange contracts - 3,231,625 - 3,231,625
HE RSN E G 4 Structured foreign exchange contracts - 3,682 - 3,682
jEgEr Currency swaps - 635,357 - 635,357
A1 EE 1 FX options - 182,935 - 182,935
] 26 45 141 Interest rate swaps - 3,718,563 - 3,718,563
[HEEEE:! Commodity swaps - 355,730 - 355,730
% 80 & Interest rate futures - 54 - 54
B 5 4 A Equity swaps - 456,510 - 456,510
- 8,584,456 - 8,584,456
& 78 LA {5 (B 4848 45 = AR Financial liabilities designated at fair value
ZERMAR through profit or loss
BB ES Debt securities in issue - 7,960,057 - 7,960,057
L Total financial liabilities - 31,824,097 - 31,824,097
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Determination of fair value hierarchy (continued)

4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

L — E— Eif = MR
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
T T TH#TT T TT THsTT
R _RELHA=1—H 31 December 2020 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FEH PR A PRI Recurring fair value measurements
L% Financial assets
fAEEmTE Derivative financial instruments
A SN E A 4 Forward foreign exchange contracts = 6,312,598 = 6,312,598
45 MRS BE 5 A Structured foreign exchange contracts - 3,418 - 3,418
B Mg 1 Currency swaps - 974,079 - 974,079
471 e 49 FX options - 182,513 = 182,513
) 451 51 Interest rate swaps = 5,055,515 - 5,055,515
[GETELR ] Commodity swaps - 871,614 - 871,614
R & Interest rate futures = 2,339 = 2,339
J5E S 451 4 Equity swaps - 3,063,111 - 3,063,111
- 16,465,187 - 16,465,187
LA S8 46 H At 2 T i 25 A B Loans and advances to customers, banks and
FE -~ 847IR FE 2 SO HAh AR T trade bills measured at fair value
DY TEE 513 through other comprehensive income
KSR Advances to customers = 1,180,511 = 1,180,511
[GE 2% Trade bills = 2,284,108 = 2,284,108
- 3,464,619 - 3,464,619
AT EESEREARKES - Loans and advances to customers, banks and
SRAT[R] 2 2 Bk Sy HoAth IR TE other accounts measured at fair value
through profit and loss
KPR Advances to customers - 4,250,429 - 4,250,429
FRVERR o) & 4 il & 7 Financial assets held for trading
i % Debts securities - - - -
DA B (B 2848 42 R AR Financial assets at fair value through
2 4 B e profit or loss
BB RS Investment funds 4,248,354 349,446 = 4,597,800
HoAt Others = 495,740 = 495,740
4,248,354 845,186 - 5,093,540
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4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

JEE 25T (3 (4#) Determination of fair value hierarchy (continued)
R — E3 ) EH= A%
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
T T T T
=T H=1—H 31 December 2020 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
DA S8 (B A Ath 4 17 i 4 A MR Financial assets measured at fair value through
2 4 B other comprehensive income
iz Debt securities 119,729 137,463,033 - 137,582,762
% 5 v 5 Equity securities = = 2,423,269 2,423,269
119,729 137,463,033 2,423,269 140,006,031
<5 P E AR Total financial assets 4,368,083 162,488,454 2,423,269 169,279,806
&k A A Financial liabilities
SRAT 7] 3 Ko L Ath <5 Bl B A 2 77 5K Deposits from banks and other financial
institutions - 24,019,534 - 24,019,534
i A 4 b T E Derivative financial instruments
i B AN E A 4 Forward foreign exchange contracts = 6,487,683 = 6,487,683
ARSI S A Structured foreign exchange contracts = 3,414 = 3,414
B W 4 Currency swaps - 841,962 - 841,962
41 HE S FX options - 193,412 = 193,412
7 5 451 4] Interest rate swaps - 7,307,358 = 7,307,358
T i 4 Commodity swaps - 380,500 = 380,500
F =M Interest rate futures = 1,032 = 1,032
JBe 57 452 381 Equity swaps = 408,836 = 408,836
- 15,624,197 - 15,624,197
i 7E LA 5848 45 R AR Financial liabilities designated at fair value
Z A A through profit or loss
C AT iR Debt securities in issue - 7,373,240 - 7,373,240
G b B AR Total financial liabilities - 47,016,971 - 47,016,971
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Determination of fair value hierarchy (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Information about significant unobservable inputs in Level 3

valuations
EEFBES W JEE
Significant unobservable input(s) Range
2021 2020

A2 {5 {8 46 H At 2 T i 35
AR Z 4 RiE B

I i B 8

Financial assets measured at
FVTOCI

Unlisted equity securities

S 2 B 4 O o Y
Discounted cash flow
model

7 35 e i
Market-comparable
approach

B

Net asset value

B AE RNk rd e U ENc S LK

73 B % T 2 A 1 2R

Prinx

Discount rate

6.07%-10%

i AP (ECAH B B 3B 48 4 A 16.1-34.7
Rk o

Equity Value/Earnings before

interest, taxes and amortisation

(“EBITA”) multiple

TIT 8 A 2.2-55.1
Price-to-Sales multiples

LR EE T 20%-30%
Marketability discount

EN b A3 1
N/A N/A

6.0%-10%

14.1-30.1

7.3-97.2

20%-30%

A H
N/A

Effects of changes in significant unobservable assumptions to

reasonably possible alternative assumptions:

2021
SRR HE SR b2 5
Effect recorded directly in equity
A (A F)
Favourable (Unfavourable)
T#T T#T
HK$’000 HK$’000
DA P8 8 48 HoAth 2 T i 25 AR 2 & Rl & 416,910 (414,285)
Financial investments mearsured at fair value through other comprehensive income
416,910 (414,285)
2020
JEREATIE 9/ E i A
Effect recorded directly in equity
A A (A1)
Favourable (Unfavourable)
T#TT T#TT
HK$°000 HKS$°000
DA S (626 At 2 T R 6 A MR 2 <6 L 432 385,928 (385,669)
Financial investments mearsured at fair value through other comprehensive income
385,928 (385,669)
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il AR A A s A A AR R TR AR AR AE
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TR (E 2 WU - RIS BT AT 2 5
1B E B EE R Y IE ~ £ 10% YA (B Y S AT 52 )

L REF 72 FR =M LA #E)
TR 1% AP EE S IR 2 5 Jigéﬁﬁlfﬁ%
B B A0 2 47 ) B LB AR A R AR 2 )

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Determination of fair value hierarchy (continued)

The fair values of financial instruments are in certain circumstances,
measured using valuation models that incorporate assumptions
that are not supported by prices from observable current market
transactions in the same instrument and are not based on observable
market data. The table above shows the sensitivity of fair values due
to parallel movement of plus or minus 10 per cent in reasonably
possible alternative assumptions.

Movements in level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value
The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening and
closing amounts of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities which are
recorded at fair value:

RHERE I3
IS k2 R AR
TR e %2 48 781 +=A
=Ji]=[g] Total =qr=[F
At gains At
1 January bick 3 recordedin 31 December
2021 Addition equity 2021
T# T T T L
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
4 Financial assets
DA T8 468 2 Ath 4 T i £ Financial investments measured at fair value
A2 ﬁ il 45 through other comprehensive income
¥ B2 7 Equity securities 2,423,269 501,107 311,239 3,235,615
S MR = 4 T E AR Total level 3 financial assets 2,423,269 501,107 311,239 3,235,615
A HE R N S
i IRz ERTERAE
. (5 18) #a%H +=H
—H—H Total =F—1
At (losses) At
1 January A recordedin 31 December
2020 Addition equity 2020
SR Tt Tt Tt
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
A b Financial assets
DA T 18 (4% At 4> T Wi 25 Financial investments measured at fair value
)\EEZ &R through other comprehensive income
e 2255 5 Equity securities 2,468,172 750,770 (795,673) 2,423,269
S = AR A Total level 3 financial assets 2,468,172 750,770 (795,673) 2,423,269

202



ZERFER
Annual Report 2021

4 B E| B A B (an)

4.6 SxihEE & HEZ AP HEE @)
R — R 2 A

o T SRAT (W) A R4

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

WEF - —F+_H=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Significant transfers between Level 1 and 2

H 5 B — R 2 A —
Transfers from Level 1 to Level 2
TR It 2
+2A=+—H +ZA=+—H
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
T Tt
HK$’000 HKS$°000
DA T8 (B 58 5 Ath 4 17 i 4 Financial investments measured at fair value through
ARZ SRR E other comprehensive income
2% Debt securities - 55,370,680
DL -8 (8 K8 48 4 R AR Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Z 4 b
B S Investment funds 4,059,613 52,638

HI % 8 R R

Transfers from Level 2 to Level 1

e —E o
+=A=+—H +tZA=+—H
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
T#x TH#TT
HK$’000 HKS$’000
DA T8 465 S Ath 2 T i 2 Financial investments measured at fair value through
AMRZ & B other comprehensive income
&% Debt securities - =
DL -8 (8 58 48 4 R AR Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
2 Tl
G4 Investment funds - 157,662

T TS o Rl F A A

By M H4F AR — R AR AR

754 R 5 4 RUIRE o 3R e A o 4

= o

For the year-ended 2021, the above financial assets were transferred from
Level 1 to Level 2 as they have not bee actively traded.

No financial assets were transferred into or out of Level 3 at the end of
reporting period.
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(a)  7EERTT[A] 5 At 2 B 2 A7 AR R A7
i{jv
T2 S5 A7 SRR B 0 A K T {5 £ B R
T B > [ 52 Pl 347 3R (AR D T —4F)
B At w1 R R - 2 2 A B B B e v
T AT 88 W T 35 ) 2 B R B AE I REAL o
PRI A > JHC A SP B R A 5 R H R T A

(b)) HHRAAIEA

AR A B 7 10 B B8R (L 485 465 4% 51
M o BR/NER 2> % P AT K S H A R T AL
HERERII DL B A 5t B o A4 BT A
& F RT3 2 SR R HABRIE 2 &
SR IRF 2% R A B 22 i 35 ) 3 2 4T B
WALHEA > S T T B 4 1 (2 AR B IR
AT A (Sl I K 2 -

(c) UUBEEE AR &
DA 88 B AR A IR B Y A BB TS 2 18
A A T B B 2 o T 3 R A I A R
B~ (AR 42 e i A ol L A A
G

(d) HKEFF ~ AT KR M2
KR ATER
AR RE BB H AR A7 3R B A B 09 A A
TEE 2% R e 5 R I 80 > %7 B
A ER AP {E ELBP A HMR T (H

SE B TR 26 A7 K % 5 AE ST 48 T 35
> A w20~ 8 R A Ul B R 4
2 PR T [ S0 R 21 ) RSB A5 A R
S A R S A BRI R 1 R A R IR
AT A W D — AR TR (A SR
HARM (A
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are estimated as

follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Balances and placements with banks and other financial
institutions

The fair values of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits are their carrying amounts. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest-bearing deposits, all of which are less than one
year, is based on the discounted cash flows using prevailing
money-market interest rates and the remaining maturity.
Therefore, the fair value is approximately equal to the carrying
value.

Advances and other accounts

Advances and other accounts are net of allowances for
impairment. All items, except a very insignificant portion of
loans and advances to customers, bear interest at a floating
rate. The Group has assessed the fair values of loans and
advances to customers and banks, after taking into account
the relevant market interest rates and net of allowances for
impairment. It is noted that the total fair value is not materially
different from the total carrying value.

Investment measured at amortised cost

The fair value of investment measured at amortised cost
determined with reference to the available market value. If
quoted market prices are not available, then the fair value
is estimated on the basis of pricing models or using other
valuation techniques.

Deposits and balances from customers, banks and other
financial institutions
The estimated fair value of deposits and balances with no
stated maturity is the amount repayable on demand. The fair
value of those balances having an interest at a floating rate is
their carrying value.

The estimated fair values of the fixed interest-bearing deposits
of banks and deposits from customers without quoted market
prices is based on discounted cash flows using interest rates for
new debts with similar remaining maturity. As their maturity
is normally less than one year from the end of the reporting
period, their fair values are approximately equal to their
carrying values.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.6 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

(e)

Certificates of deposit issued

The Group has assessed the fair value of certificates of deposit
issued after taking into account the relevant yield curve and
noted that the total fair value is not materially different from
the total carrying value.

Other assets and other liabilities

The estimated fair value of the other assets and other liabilities,
which are normally non-interest-bearing, is their carrying
values.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments

carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.7 Fair values of non-financial assets and liabilities

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s bank
premises and properties and investment properties measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for
which market data are not available

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs

Fair value at 31 December 2021

HFH— FH FH=
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
T#T T# T# T#T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FEH PR A PRI Recurring fair value measurement
SRAT 5 B ) 2 Bank premises and properties 597,666 - - 597,666
HEWE Investment properties 145,300 - - 145,300

WoERFEF A= —HZAPEEA Fair value at 31 December 2020
ER— E LTI
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
T# T TH#TT T 75 T#TT
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
KA (A = Recurring fair value measurement

SRAT I B ) 2 Bank premises and properties 615,992 - - 615,992
BEWE Investment properties 131,929 = = 131,929
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

47 FEEREEKARZ A TFEAAE 3D 4.7 Fair values of non-financial assets and liabilities (continued)
LS TAE (] (A1) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
AL T A 4R G W) 3 DA ERAT R EE SR All of the Group’s investment properties and bank premises and
CERCAET A Z=ZT - HEBGE o AR properties were revalued as at 31 December 2021. The valuations on
TG W UL T RAT 5 B X 3 2 A E B the Bank’s investment properties and bank premises and properties
7 BRSE A RS A (L P R A s AR AT A BR A were carried out by an independent professionally qualified valuer,
FHEAT o AN SRAT B R 4 W B G W 3 LA SR AT A.G. Wilkinson & Associates. The investment properties and bank
5 B 2 2 A (A AR A 2 ST S premises and properties of the Bank’s subsidiary were carried out
A A (L R R 11 T B R B A E R M S M by an independent professionally qualified valuer in the Mainland
TR i 5 A A PR ) EAT o 0o S A BT Y R China, Shenzhen GuoZhongLian Asset and Real Estate Appraisal
A T i (EL 90 3 T 7 M 25 A0 9 SE 55 Rl 2 4 10 £y Consulting Co., Ltd. The valuers are with recent experience in
(B 48 B o 7 4 ] 22 45 B g L B ) A R A 4% the location and category of property being valued. The Group’s
w3 B A BE R H A AT Al (ELIE BT 22 A management has discussion with the surveyors on the valuation
B B Al (A 45 AT b o assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed
at each interim and annual reporting date.
B R =2 FEE T2 EF Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
A5 8.5 % A BLEE i A L 2021 2020
Valuation Unobservable £y | i 1
techniques input Range Range
— 1 1A Hs B <2 v 2 B 5 7 A B
TR 1755 1 2 1=
Investment properties
- Hong Kong Investment method Market yield 2.38% - 2.74% 2.55% — 2.85%
- Mainland China Discount cash flow Risk adjusted discount rate 5.3% 4.7%
Expected market rental growth 2% - 5% 3% - 5%
Expected occupancy rate 70% - 95% 95%
RIT I 5 Re ) %
— i B W HENF B 2 It
— [ Rl 75 A H B <2 Vi 5 7 B B 5
TEH] 117 4 7 2 1=
— [ ) Al T A2 B 117 5315 i B %

Bank premises and properties
- Hong Kong

- Mainland China method 1

- Mainland China method 2

Direct comparison approach

Discount cash flow

Direct comparison approach

Discount on

characteristic of the properties

(20.74)% - 8.07%

(3.34)% - (21.75)%

Risk adjusted discount rate 4.5% 4.5%
Expected market rental growth 3.5% - 5% 5%
Expected occupancy rate 97% 97%
Market value discount rate 6% 6%
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.7 Fair values of non-financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

For investment properties classified under level 3, the fair values are

valued by:

i)

investment method of valuation and have assessed the
contractual rental income and the expected future market
rental income after allowing for outgoings and maintenance
requirements at appropriate market yields as perceived in the
actual market; and

discounting a projected cash flow series associated with the
properties using risk adjusted discount rates. The valuation
takes into account expected market rental growth and
occupancy rate of the respective properties. The discount
rates used have been adjusted for the quality and location
of the buildings and the tenant credit quality. The fair
value measurement is positively correlated to the expected
market rental growth and the occupancy rate, and negatively
correlated to the risk adjusted discount rates.

For bank premises and properties classified under level 3, the fair

values are determined by:

i)

discounting a projected cash flow series associated with the
properties using risk adjusted discount rates. The valuation
takes into account expected market rental growth and
occupancy rate of the respective properties. The discount
rates used have been adjusted for the quality and location
of the buildings and the tenant credit quality. The fair
value measurement is positively correlated to the expected
market rental growth and the occupancy rate, and negatively
correlated to the risk-adjusted discount rates; and

using direct comparison approach to value properties in
their respective existing states and uses on the market basis
assuming sale with immediate vacant possession and by
making reference to comparable sales evidence. The valuations
take into account the characteristic of the properties which
included the location, size, shape, view, floor level, year of
completion and others factors collectively. Higher premium
for properties with higher characteristic will result in a higher
fair value measurement.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

BT SER = 2T E (71 2 BH ()
SER =R R A B 2 R A 2 B

4.7

Fair values of non-financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)
The movements during the period in the balance of these Level 3 fair

B value measurements are as follows:

T#1

AT X% - Bank premises and properties: HK$°000
A-E - —F—H—H At 1 January 2021 615,992
i Transfer out (24,455)
e % 5 Exchange adjustment (6,569)
NI Depreciation charge for the year (16,163)
CER P RS Surplus on revaluation 28,861
R _F_—F+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2021 597,666
T

GRAT = X Bank premises and properties: HK$°000
MoFEZFFE—HA—H At 1 January 2020 607,192
[T 2% 34 Exchange adjustment 24,715
NPT S Depreciation charge for the year (16,760)
AL R Surplus on revaluation 845
A_F_FAEFH="+—H At 31 December 2020 615,992
T#x

BeFEWE - Investment properties: HK$’000
AN FE - —FE—H—H At 1 January 2021 131,929
HYSRAT 5 7 B W) SE R Transferred from bank premises and properties 24,455
8T 7 Fair value adjustment (12,234)
T 2% 3] Exchange adjustment 1,150
iy S e e 2| = At 31 December 2021 145,300
TH#TT

BEYWE Investment properties: HKS$°000
ATECRIE—H—H At 1 January 2020 135,234
NS 7 3 Fair value adjustment (5,500)
[T 22 R B Exchange adjustment 2,195
ATERCRETFZH=+—H At 31 December 2020 131,929
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.8

Capital management

The Group’s objective for managing capital is to allocate capital
in an efficient and risk-based approach to optimise risk-adjusted
return to the shareholders. The Group periodically reviews its
capital structure and maintains a strong capital base to support the
development of its business. The privatisation of the Bank in 2010
facilitates greater responsiveness than before to the Group’s need
for capital injection from the Parent Bank as and when it arises. This
was evidenced by the various capital injections from the Parent Bank
thereafter.

The Group manages its capital to execute its strategic business
plans and support its growth and investments in an efficient way.
The Group adjusts its business and lending strategy from time to
time to optimise its risk-return profile. To ensure compliance with
regulatory requirements, detailed capital management and capital
adequacy ratio management policies have been drawn up by the
Bank.

The HKMA requires the Bank to maintain a prescribed ratio of
total regulatory capital to risk-weighted assets (the “CAR”). Certain
subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to statutory capital
requirements from other regulatory authorities, such as the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Commission. Capital adequacy and
the use of regulatory capital are closely monitored by management,
employing techniques based on the Capital Rules. The required
information is filed with the HKMA on a quarterly basis.

During the two years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group
complied with all of the capital requirements externally imposed by
the HKMA.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.9

4.10

Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of unexpected financial losses resulting
from inadequate or failed internal processes, people, systems or
from external events. The Group follows the definition by BASEL
Committee which includes legal risk, but excludes strategic and
reputation risks. Operational Risk is inherent to every aspect of
daily business operations within an organisation, which covers a
wide spectrum of issues and root causes. The Group adopts the
“Three Lines of Defence” approach to manage operational risk. The
Operational Risk Committee is established to provide adequate
oversight to ensure operational risks (including technology risk)
are identified, assessed, mitigated, and reported with adequate
control measures and procedures. Operational risk is also monitored
through the implementation of various management tools,
including key risk assessment, key risk indicators, operational loss
data collection and incident reporting etc. The Group will keep on
pursuing proactively the effective operational risk management
practice in accordance with the relevant guidelines and principles
issued by the Basel Committee and the HKMA respectively.

Legal and compliance risk management

Legal risk is the risk arising from the potential claims that
unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or adverse judgments may disrupt
or otherwise negatively affect the operations or financial conditions
of the Bank. Compliance risk is the potential risk of compliance
sanctions, financial loss, or reputational loss that the Group may
suffer as a result of violations of, or non-compliance with, applicable
laws and regulations with respect to the conduct of business.

Legal and compliance staff members advise the management on
legal and regulatory developments and assist the management in
establishing policies, procedures and monitoring programmes to
ensure compliance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements.
Compliance staff conducts regular compliance checking so that the
Bank can identify potential non-compliance issues and take remedial
actions on a timely basis. Legal and compliance staff also arranges
regular training sessions to update staff members with relevant
legal and regulatory requirements. Regular reports on related legal
and compliance issues including non-compliance issues and legal
and regulatory developments are presented to various Board-level
Committees.
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SEGMENT REPORTING

5.1

Class of business

The Group comprises seven operating segments. Asia Pacific
Business represents the banking business in Asia Pacific Region.
Corporate and investment banking mainly comprises corporate
banking, the provision of debt capital market and investment
banking. Commercial banking represents commercial lending
and trade financing. Retail banking represents retail banking,
wealth management, hire purchase and leasing, and credit card
business. Global markets and trading represents foreign exchange,
money market and capital market activities. Institutional banking
represents financial institution business. Chinese Mercantile Bank
represents the business of the Bank’s subsidiary in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”). Unallocated items mainly comprise the
central management unit, bank premises, inter-segment elimination
entries and any items which cannot be reasonably allocated to the
specific operating segments.
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5 EEE @ 5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
5.1 %%@ﬂ (%) 5.1 Class of business (continued)
RER
b
BKEEH  Corporate SR BT
Asia- and  WERE  BERL Global MM AT Chinese
Pacific  investment Commercial Retail marketsand Institutional — Mercantile iy 5k
Business banking banking banking trading banking Bank Others Total
T T#x T#x T  T#x T#x T#x T#x T#x
“ECEFTAZT-H 31December2021 HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
BB IA Net interest income 33,147 1379264 1,060,898 1560456 1440411 723174 2569170 280,933 9,367,453
ik RS Fee and commission income 68,164 462410 274924 887,750 1 296295 235307 139,803 2,364,654
S S ESET Fee and commission expense - (9,928) (650)  (175,242) - (85 (1L130)  (37,825)  (234,860)
e YUEA N T Net fee and commission income 68,164 452482 274274 712,508 1 296210 24177 101978 2,129,794
WRBIA/ () Net trading incomel (expense) 14350 106411 198,644 164310 766,368 34,885 (546,721)  (138,088) 600,159
U/A\ﬂz BEEREEAR Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and
SHEERAR (EE) liabilities at fair value through
/Wt profit orloss - - - - (537,652) 14,607 167 106470 (416,408)
KHEBREZRERA Dividend income from financial investments - - - - - - - 79,712 79,712
Hfb A Other operating income - - 210 6,876 3 7,300 4435 353446 442,290
LELUN Operating income 45,661 1,938,157 1534026 2444150 1,669,151 1,076,176 2,321,228 784451 12,203,000
S Operating expenses (93,291)  (249372)  (461,082) (1,567,905)  (343413)  (280,673)  (506,222)  (274910)  (3,776,868)
RABRHERKZEHRR Operating profit before impairment losses M0 1688785 1072944 876245 1325738 795503 1815006 509541 8,426,132
SREEBRERKTFH Net impairment losses on financial asset (165,162) 75200 (232978)  (31,152) 161 3,095 (558,296)  (1,071,678)  (1,980,718)
MR B AR K 2B LT Operating profit after impairment losses 177,08 1764077 839,966 845,093 1325899 798598 1256710  (56,137) 6,445,414
HENATEES Net gain on disposal of financial assets
A2 AR at fair value through other
£ 8- GYAEREE | comprehensive income - - - - 546,098 - 30,496 - 576,59
i bl HE IR AR Net (loss)/gain on disposal of financial
SHE @:Z (E48) assests at amortised cost
VAisxit - - - - (u68) - 29,881 - 8,196
B RENEER Revaluation loss on investment properties - - - - - - (10,779) (1,455) (12,234)
PR R Net loss from property, plant and equipment - - (89) (3,280) - - - (80) (3,449)
HEREAT G Gain on disposal of an associate - - - - - - - 30 30
B Operating profit 177,08 1764077 839,877 841813 1850312 798598 1306308 (563,642 7,014,551
FEG B A R R Share of loss of associates - - - - - - - (40,898) (40,898)
BT A (65 Profit (loss) before tax 177,08 1764077 839,877 841813 1850312 798598 1306308  (604,540) 6,973,653
PG R Segment assets 27,947,331 121,778,600 89,080,881 93,465,036 185,672,462 19,939,398 156,755,556 232,926,313 927,565,577
REEAT Interest in associates - - - - - - - 309611 309,611
BEE Total assets 7,947,331 121,778,600 89,080,881 93,465,036 185,672,462 19,939,398 156,755,556 233,235,924 927,875,188
Ak Total liabilities 277,645930 120,296,246 87,976,509  93,718960 159,150,774 36,800,295 138,462,689 120,231,057 784,282,460
B, Capital expenditure 9 98 A6 263,369 155 58 107,538 281558 653,526
il R s Depreciation and amortisation charge 6,565 8,810 8776 253,642 14,629 7,219 59748 219603 598,992
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5 EEE @ 5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
5.1 %%@ﬁ (%) 5.1 Class of business (continued)
e d ]
b
BKEEH  Corporate LW R
Asia- and  WEREG  FERA Global ~ BEHE ST Chinese
Pacific  investment Commercial Retail markets Institutional ~ Mercantile Jfy Wt
Business banking banking banking  and trading banking Bank Others Total
T T T#x T#x T T T#x T T
SEZEEFZAStH 31December2020 HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$000
B EIA Net interest income 364957 1222469 1248672 153021 1337875 63,126 2343086 1164658 9,836,164
YA Fee and commission income 84,604 499,195 246,970 789,708 1 254,414 184,721 143,100 2,202,804
IS JUESE Fee and commission expense = (13,281) (845)  (156,123) = (453)  (1911)  (31313)  (223.926)
e YU EAON T Net fee and commission income 84694 485914 6125 633585 1 253,961 162,810 111788 1978878
BB/ () Net trading income/(expense) 14,839 130,584 160,979 191,060 201,628 29066 (440,635)  (122969) 164,552
UATEESRGEAR Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities
SHEERAR (6 at fair value through profit or loss
VA i¢::z = - - - (47,618) 74,291 5872 192,281 204,826
KHEBREZRE A Dividend income from financial investments - - - - - - - 35,582 35,582
HlEFERA Other operating income - 7,137 66 13,400 - 7,300 54,878 242,39 325,020
BERA Operating income 464490 1846104 1655842 2361166 1491886 995744 2126211 1623579 12,565,022
CEST Operating expenses (97914)  (262327)  (654632)  (1466404)  (324298)  (273,662)  (450,708)  (147,302)  (3,677,247)
A @3&@@%2%%%‘&% Operating profit before impairment losses 366576 1583777 L00L210 894762 1167588 722082 LE7S503 1476277 8,887,775
BB E R R KR Net impairment losses on financial asset (62,853) 3006 (770,163)  (119314)  (11871) 874 (777,035 (1,40308)  (2,922,974)
MR B AR K 2B LR Operating profit after impairment losses 303723 1,613,803 231,047 775448 1155717 750,826 898,268 235969 5,964,801
B EUAFEES B ATE Net gain on disposal of financial assets at fair
MESHEREZ I F 5 value through other comprehensive income - - - - 440,026 - 113,243 - 553,269
HEDBHRAAREREELZ Netloss on disposal of financial assets at
RS amortised cost - - - - (6,072) - - - (6,072)
WERGE 2 BREE Net loss from property, plant and equipment - - (1) (1,707) (6) - (11) (183) (1,908)
B RENEER Revaluation loss on investment properties - - - - - - - (5,500) (5,500)
e Operating profit 303,723 1,613,803 231,046 73741 1,589,665 750826 LOILS00 230286 6,504,590
FEG B A R R Share of loss of associates - - - - - - - (44,735) (44,735)
BB A Profit before tax 303,723 1,613,803 231,046 773,741 1,589,665 750826 1,011,500 185551 6,459,855
ARG Segrment assets 31489397 124990301 99,865,328 91796472 175990381 20576425 146,828,598 239,355,127 930,892,029
BB A 2 Interest in associates - 200,509 200,509
BEE Total assets 31489397 124990301 99,865,328 9796472 175990381 20576425 146,828,598 239,555,636 931,092,538
BAK Totalliabilities 17,772,063 107624329 85920654 198,406,711 18,601,409 144388592 130,699,975 89911730 793,325,463
HAMH, Capital expenditure 13 481 535 284097 349 443 3716 STATS 91307
il R E Depreciation and amortisation charge 6,523 9,429 30967 317,869 14937 7,462 53940 194227 635,356
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5 gr#EBEE () 5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
5.2 %I H 43 5.2 Geographical area
AR AT W AE T o I BB The Group operates predominantly in Hong Kong. The geographical
28 4y 2 HIEA AT analysis, which has been classified by the location of the principal

operations, is as follows:

LiE YN ]|
People's
Fi Republic of =3y
Hong Kong China Consolidated
T#x T#x T#x
it Swek 3 2021 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BERA Operating income 9,881,771 2,321,229 12,203,000
R A il et Al Profit before tax 5,663,388 1,310,265 6,973,653
i E AR Total assets 771,125,646 156,749,542 927,875,188
=Eiwk Total liabilities 645,827,536 138,454,924 784,282,460
SR B R I Contingent liabilities and commitments 200,622,399 50,818,516 251,440,915
FENEARMEL Capital expenditure during the year 545,988 107,538 653,526
g AR AL
People's
s Republic of 5E
Hong Kong China Consolidated
T T T
“ECEE 2020 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
- IUN Operating income 10,437,296 2,127,726 12,565,022
R o il Y ) Profit before tax 5,443,526 1,016,329 6,459,855
i E MR A Total assets 784,269,771 146,822,767 931,092,538
A A Total liabilities 662,632,313 130,693,150 793,325,463
8 B R A Contingent liabilities and commitments 168,970,356 44,789,637 213,759,993
FENEAME Capital expenditure during the year 859,391 53,716 913,107
A TE T AR TR TR M B — A No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or
TBE B ¥ T3 5 2 A G AR 4E F A0 A 10% counterparty amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue
AL - in 2021 or 2020.
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6 | B A 6 NET INTEREST INCOME
2021 2020
T T
HK$’000 HKS$’000
LA NIEH Z R B WA Interest income on:
B4 K AE $47 [R] 2 K
HoAh 4 Bl 2 & R Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions 1,063,640 2,558,526
TESRAT [R] 2 B HoAth 4 Al i 22 77k Placements with banks and other financial institutions 442,787 779,436
A R S HoAth BRI Advances and other accounts 10,302,154 12,482,729
DA S {35 (1 6 O A 4 T Wi 4 Financial investments measured at fair value through other
A R 4 il 4% B comprehensive income 3,009,759 3,596,159
DU 85 AR A R 4 Al % féf Financial investments measured at amortised cost 1,273,533 1,323,713
16,091,873 20,740,563
DITFHEHZFE X - Interest expense on:
SRAT IR] 3 Ko HAth 4 Rl AR 2 77 3K Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 2,084,935 2,526,155
EF R Deposits from customers 3,315,666 6,957,912
AT AE KR Certificates of deposit issued 12,860 85,405
CEATE S5 Debt securities in issue 582,743 669,875
HoAt Others 728,216 665,052
6,724,420 10,904,399
AR A Net interest income 9,367,453 9,836,164
PG < L B i 2 FILEL S 526,079,000 70 (& AR Note: Interest expense on lease liabilities is HK$26,079,000 (2020: HK$29,303,000).

29,303,000%5 7C) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

7  NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

2021 2020
T THs T
HK$’000 HKS$’000
B S AR Loans, overdrafts and guarantees 1,017,544 1,002,450
SR M R Securities and brokerage 513,123 467,154
B 5 & Trade finance 106,228 96,776
(RS Credit card 268,705 217,894
EE 55 Remittance 131,828 118,673
PR B Insurance 138,611 126,887
HoAth Z2 5 K S AR AT RS Other retail and commercial banking services 24,613 22,409
ot s HE % Securities arrangement fee 36,058 31,761
HoAt Others 127,944 118,800
0 2 K AR 4 i A Fee and commission income 2,364,654 2,202,804
Wi 2 Je AR 4 52 M Fee and commission expense (234,860) (223,926)
Wiz 25 R AR 4 e A\ TR ER Net fee and commission income 2,129,794 1,978,878
Hodr Of which:
o FEFRVE S 5 R & s LA AP {E{ESE  Net fee income, other than amounts included in determining the
H 7 2 R 4B A < A A effective interest rate, arising from financial assets or financial
Jr 7 A2 2 FUCE N R BL & Rt liabilities that are not held for trading nor at fair value through
HBARZ &8 profit or loss 1,123,772 1,099,226
AEBREELE T FA EEBHE Net fee income on trust and other fiduciary activities where the
ZAGRE R HAhZ 5E NZEHS M EE 2 Group holds or invests on behalf of its customers
EEIE L UN 59,773 44,033
Hrp Of which:
i 7 i AL 2 Wi R A A e A Fee and commission income by product line constitutes not less
A W K AR A WA R E than 10% of the total amount of fee and commission income,
ZF o R as follows:
— SR K - syndication loan 489,269 501,075
— B A - securities and brokerage 513,123 467,154
LIRS - credit card 268,705 217,894
— A K - term loan 272,233 278,802
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8 WRHWA 8 NET TRADING INCOME
2021 2020
T T
HK$’000 HKS$’000
f& ¢ Debt securities
—REVERE 5 Fl ok T - financial assets held for trading 17,690 20,420
— DA A8 45 H At 4 i i 25 - financial investments at FEVTOCI
ARSI E (329,454) (76,572)
fiid: T H Derivatives 520,529 (435,533)
S e Foreign exchange 397,536 655,968
606,301 164,283
HuhiE B 2 (hEi8) s (Loss)/gain from hedging activities
NS S EEERLE Fair value hedges
— 3 i JL oy 2 B 3 e IE E - Net (loss)/gain on hedged items attributable to the hedged risk
(k548 /Wi 1 ¥ 48 (1,206,851) 1,119,477
— ¥ T Bk (B58) 54 - Net gain/(loss) on hedging instruments 1,200,709 (1,119,208)
(6,142) 269
V32 5 e A\ AR Total net trading income 600,159 164,552

TR T AR TR SE Gy W R I A LR B AR A
MR Sl B A I AR BB 1R (% 4R - ) o

There is no gain or loss on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
which is included in total net trading income in 2021 (2020: Nil).

9 DLOA-PE B AR HH #5  ANR S b B 2 S 9  NET (LOSS)/GAIN ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
M2 F (EH) s LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS
2021 2020
Tt Tt
HK$’°000 HKS$’000
LA P 5848 75 R A MR Z & Ml & Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 125,370 290,897
DA A(E S840 25 R A MR 2 5 Ml 4 /5 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (541,778) (66,071)
DA EE AR 5 R A MR Y Rl & Total net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
KEAETF (18) ik 4 S8 through profit or loss (416,408) 224,826
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10 EREBEZ B E WA 10 DIVIDEND INCOME FROM FINANCIAL
INVESTMENTS
2021 2020
T#T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
A H LA EE A H A 2 m i 4 AR Dividend income from unlisted equity securities measured
JE b 2R i 5 2 LR e A at fair value through other comprehensive income 8,000 8,200
R H A TE A 8 45 F AR Dividend income from listed financial assets
T 2 B at fair value through profit or loss 71,712 27,382
R E & FE 2 S A 8% Total dividend income from financial investments 79,712 35,582
11 HApb WA 11 OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2021 2020
T T
HK$’°000 HKS$’000
BHEIRA Management fee income 377,701 258,534
& WA Rental income 23,149 26,618
o AEREAERSRAZ Less: Direct operating expenses arising from investment properties
WaEmEr BEEETH that generated rental income during the year (251) (288)
HoAth Others 41,691 40,156
oA 2 S A KB ER Total other operating income 442,290 325,020
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12 BHELH 12 OPERATING EXPENSES
2021 2020
T#L T
HK$’000 HK$000
B Staff costs:
— ¥ & M HAth — Salaries and other costs 2,095,757 1,928,948
—iBRE - Retirement benefit costs 98,693 100,352
2,194,450 2,029,300
J73 E B St OREL A6 3 85 K 4k 6%) © Premises and equipment expenses (excluding
depreciation and amortisation):
—EEMS — Rental of premises 36,659 40,869
— HAts - Others 262,868 260,394
299,527 301,263
B8 KA 6 S Depreciation and amortisation expenses:
— o IR TS - Depreciation of right-of-use assets 485,054 515,391
— HAb [ B E AT - Depreciation of other fixed assets 105,685 112,643
— T S W A - Amortisation of computer software 8,253 7,322
598,992 635,356
T i I 4 Auditor’s remuneration 6,480 6,360
1T E General administration expenses 78,010 94,384
H: JiE 2 Business promotion expenses 101,034 135,765
A8 51 2 Communication expenses 123,465 123,878
Hofth #2850 Other operating expenses 374,910 350,941
ﬁ’% pag ok Total operating expenses 3,776,868 3,677,247
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13 BRE S 13 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS
B &5 A W RN BR 2 B AR 11 52 48 AR 4L AR 58 The retirement benefit scheme cost charged to the consolidated income
RN SR8 Lom A 5t & (TRZ555T3)) ZEH/E S statement represents contributions payable by the Group to the ORSO
ZHEFK o Scheme and the MPF Scheme (the “Schemes”).
WL AL B TAEM G EH2HEE Under the Schemes, the Group’s contributions are reduced by contributions
A A R AR R S R o D S N R e AT B K forfeited by those employees who leave the Schemes prior to the contributions
T A 5 9] 22 AR S0 AF B Tk = 4F P 6 181 ks i i A 4 vesting fully. Forfeited contributions totaling HK$ 6,000,000 (2020:
6,000,000%5 70 (& —F4E 1 6,000,000 76) £ 5% HK$6,000,000) were utilised during the year leaving HK$ 8,492,000 (2020:
HEFR - BN AE A5 H O £78,492,000% J6 (& —FAF ¢ HK$2,683,000) available at the year-end to reduce future contributions.
2,683,000 7C) B A H AR Fmis ik sk 2 1 -
AR I SR REAT T % S S 2 R (R AR No contributions were payable to the Schemes at the year-end (2020: Nil).
M) o SZAE B R AR LR B AR The assets of the Schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
Ry B A R o independently administered funds.
14 < il B A 2 I E 1 K 14 NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL ASSETS
2021 2020
T#T T T
HK$°000 HKS$’000
e Al e T ok (L 48 2% 57 68 1 4R Net charges for impairment losses on loans and advances 1,770,262 2,684,471
B T 2 VA 4R 2R S B VR R Net charges for impairment losses on other financial assets 210,456 238,503
S Tl EE 2 W E TR O T AR Net impairment losses on financial assets 1,980,718 2,922,974

H 5 4 3 ik i 2 s H A

15

NET LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

2021 2020
T#L TH#sTT
HK$’000 HKS$’000
A ) 2 B Rl 2 M TR AR Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (3,423) (1,912)
SRAT IS R A A (S g) I 3 (Charge for)/write-back-of revaluation deficits of bank premises (26) 4
(3,449) (1,908)

221



o R R SRAT () A R4 ZEREER

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited Annual Report 2021

BE_ZE_—F+_HA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

16 Frfe i 16 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
T W R 1B A AR BE AR B s A T B Ve Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%)
B 16.5% (ZF B4 1 16.5%) YA o 4 B on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year.
AN AT I B g ) R LA i A1) 1 A T e A 4 (9 Taxes on profits assessable for overseas branches and subsidiaries have
JIT 7E I8 K 0 BLAT Bl RO o been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the

Group operates.

i A Wi R S B I BT R 4 The amount of tax charged to the consolidated income statement
represents:
2021 2020
T#x T T
HK$°000 HK$’000
A AE T IE Current tax
— 4 N W R A B A A - Provision for Hong Kong profits tax for the year 1,012,545 1,029,727
— 4 N 1 AP TE AR - Provision for overseas tax for the year 265,688 395,903
AAEBHEAL (B Under /(over) provision in respect of prior years 311,000 (101,698)
A 4B T AR Deferred taxation (280,834) (389,229)
1,308,399 934,703
7 4 [ A [ B B A s ) 2 VB S o BB F B AT R The difference between the tax expense for the Group’s profit before tax
Rist B2 BmB L ZHMT and the theoretical amount that would arise using the current tax rate is as
follows:
2021 2020
R 5 il ¥ A Profit before tax 6,973,653 6,459,855
HEBLA16.5% (& " F4F 1 16.5%) #14 Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) 1,150,653 1,065,876
oA B8 5 A (] B 2 2 o Effect of different tax rates in other countries 134,564 127,188
IR B Z A Income not subject to tax (235,517) (169,485)
RBLHS S R Al s 2 3 Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 26,724 59,871
FEAERM A 2/ (%) Under /(over) provision in respect of prior years 311,000 (101,698)
HAthJE H Others (85,773) (54,430)
A B B IR Share of tax of an associate 6,748 7,381
ol JE 37 i Tax charge 1,308,399 934,703
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2021 2020

T#L Tt

HK$’000 HK$’000

Lk Fees 4,000 3,950
oA 45 Other emoluments:

S <z B R Salaries and allowances 5,763 3,682

i) 1% A€ 4L Discretionary bonuses 3,313 3,538

PR EE K GE 38 M EE13) Contribution to the Schemes (as defined in Note 13) 769 567

13,845 11,737

18

3t W il B2
AR SRAT 1Y BORE R AR AR A SR AT B SR BUMAT SE 1 B A5
O SN FLTE 5 B D AR S o

] I AT AT R KT R 2 IR TH R R
T AN AR AR BT S A RO A B DL ROIE AT EE Y
AR B AT -

fEEMTERFMAGRCT BT R R

A L
. RN

o REYE K E
o DUTR A A S AR SRAT ZE S 1 8 N B RK

o ZRGRAT RO R BT B K HL At A R R

Ry G R AR 1828 o BN 2 B E R B
B -

HX o 18

EEFERARMBEE-F——F+ A =+—H
14RO RR (2 R4 M) o

Remuneration system

It is the Bank’s policy to maintain a fair, equitable and market competitive
remuneration packages based on the Bank’s performance and industry
practice.

The level of fees paid to Non-executive Directors is determined by factors
such as fees paid by others institutions, and the Non- executive Directors’
scope of work and efforts.

In determining the remuneration packages of Executive Directors, the
following factors are considered:

. Business needs

. Business performance

. Economic and market situation

. Individual contributions to the Bank’s business in the past and
future

. Overall risk and non-financial factors of the Bank

To avoid conflict of interest, the Directors will not be involved in the
determination of his own remuneration.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has not recommended the payment of dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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19 #EiEHHE 19 ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS
DATRf
il il DATR BEMAE DR
RuME g BHEEAK Hds Ak JA AR
Held for Held for Measured at Measured at Measured at it
trading hedging FVTPL FVTOCI amortised cost Total
T Tl T Tl T Tl
REZBZ—H+ZH=+—+H  At31December2021 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 Assets
BeRERTAERL SR Cash and balances with banks and
i va other financial institutions - - - - 175,996,587 175,996,587
TESRATR % R A 2 R B HE 2 50 Placements with banks and other
financial institutions - - - - 49,639,753 49,639,753
MEEMTA Derivative financial instruments 10,627,360 347,212 - - - 10,974,572
SRR Advances and other accounts - - 4,274,648 11,036,742 446,744,776 462,056,166
SRTE Financial investments 92,807 - 6,341,847 149,244,455 58,472,772 214,151,881
)73 Other assets - - - - 10,080,011 10,080,011
SREEAH Total financial assets 10,720,167 347,012 10,616,495 160,281,197 740,933,899 922,898,970
FemEE Non-financial assets 4,976,218
ik Total assets 927,875,188
A Liabilities
ST ER M SRBI LR Deposits from banks and other
financial institutions - - 15,279,584 - 174,030,651 189,310,235
fikEMTH Derivative financial instruments 7,321,223 1,263,233 - - - 8,584,456
EF Deposits from customers - - - - 548,303,790 548,303,790
EEffE Certificates of deposit issued - - - - 5,632,713 5,632,713
BEdilieis Debt securities in issue - - 7,960,057 - 12,586,707 20,546,764
g & Other liabilities - - - - 10,112,824" 10,112,824
SHAESE Total financial liabilities 7,321,223 1,263,233 23,239,641 - 750,666,685 782,490,782
fEAE Lease liabilities 1,355,918
FemAk Non-financial liabilities 435,760
ARAH Total liabilities 784,282,460
* BIESMIERASLASRETOREZ HNEHEYL K g It includes ECL on financial guarantee contracts or on loan commitments that

A A AR R i s 5 5 Y B B 9% i R 2 4R
Y B L) DR T D < SRR R (HE ) 408 ORI TR
ERR 2z Bah s (LA s 2 2 M) AT & o
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is subsequently measured at the higher of the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9 and the amount initially recognised
less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised over the
guarantee period.
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19 ®EHHE @) 19 ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS (continued)
DVATELE
1 (3 WA BEMEH DA &
25 HE i BEEEAR e IN. EIN
Held for Held for Measured at Measured at Measured at A5t
trading hedging FVTPL FVTOCI amortised cost Total
T T T T T T
REZZZEFZA=+—H At31 December 2020 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
i3 Assets
BeRERTAERL SR Cash and balances with banks and
i va other financial institutions = = = = 118,727,991 118,727,991
TEGUTIR 3 B Fo o 4 BBE RS 2 773K Placements with banks and other
financial institutions - - - - 103,478,432 103,478,432
MESETE Derivative financial instruments 15,418,465 1,046,722 = = = 16,465,187
SRR MR Advances and other accounts - - 4,250,429 3,464,619 471,847,412 479,562,460
SHBE Financial investments - - 5,093,540 140,006,031 46,960,835 192,060,406
Hi g e Other assets = = = = 16,346,781 16,346,781
SHEEAE Total financial assets 15,418,465 1,046,722 9,343,969 143,470,650 757,361,451 926,641,257
kemEE Non-financial assets 4,451,281
HEAH Total assets 931,092,538
A Liabilities
ST ER M SRBI LR Deposits from banks and other
financial institutions - - 24,019,534 - 181,978,913 205,998,447
it 2B TR Derivative financial instruments 12,752,708 2,871,489 - - = 15,624,197
EF Deposits from customers - - - - 522,484,014 522,484,014
E#ffr Certificates of deposit issued - - - - 7,045,548 7,045,548
BB Debt securities in ssue = = 7,373,240 = 17,763,683 25,136,923
Hig & Other liabilities = = = = 14,719,114 14719114
SHAESE Total financial liabilities 12,752,708 2,871,489 31,392,774 s 743,991,272 791,008,243
fEAE Lease liabilities 1,279,942
FemAk Non-financial liabilities 1,037,278
ARAH Total liabilities 793,325,463
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20 Bl R A SRAT ] 38 M b 4 B A A 2 &5 20 CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS AND OTHER
% FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
2021 2020
THE T8
HK$’000 HKS$’000
B4 Cash on hand 333,177 417,885
L ERAT 2 & R Balances with central banks 68,681,722 23,912,678
H A ERAT K <5 Rl A A 2 45 B Balances with other banks and financial institutions 39,307,026 37,897,693
i — 18 A LA B 2 SR AT [R] 3 K% Placements with banks and other financial institutions maturing
L Al <5 il B8 A A K within one month 67,684,965 56,501,176
AR RI=kE L ] Less: impairment allowance
— 12418 H PATA 7 35 B 2k 12-month ECL (10,303) (1,441)
175,996,587 118,727,991
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5 N A A R 2 R

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

TR ALEB BB EEBEANARBZET > G The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing
TEEL & MIE B 4 2 S5 o YR [ R TS B E A ) A S activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
BHEAEEN G SH SR E RN L RS IS8 from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future

A A Y B < UL EOR A B 4 U A Y A

flows as cash flows from financing activities.

cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
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20 Bl Jo A8 SRAT 7] 36 M 3L b 5 B S 2 A 20 CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS AND OTHER
ﬁ,% (41) FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (continued)
i) VY. 3
DS ATRHE JRAR A2
BAARZ  #HEEARZ  CRAERZ e
vHfifin TR HEATAI B BEATAB Lilgel it
Interest
Debt securities payable on
inissue subordinated
designated Interest debts
Debt securities at fair value payable on measured
inissue at through  debt securities at amortised Lease
amortised cost profit or loss inissue cost liabilities Total
T# T T#L T#L T#L T#L
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
BB —4—-f—H At1January 2021 17,763,683 7,373,240 51,043 - 1,279,942 26,467,908

WEFH B RRE - Changes from financing cash flows:
BT RA AR 5 Issuance of debt securities measured

at amortised cost 2,451,452 - - - - 2,451,452
DA 38 A AR 2 (82 50 Redemption on maturity of debt securities
R measured at amortised cost (8,127,386) - - - - (8,127,386)
L ] D8 R A SR 2 17 Redemption of subordinated debts
EfEE measured at amortised cost - - - - - -
EBMESZELMAAE Interest paid on debt securities in issue - - (595,332) - - (595,332)
AT 5 Payment of lease liabilities - - - - (519,175) (519,175)
(5,675,934) - (595,332) - (519,175) (6,790,441)
T 58 Exchange adjustments 510,053 45,039 - - 1,590 556,682
s : Other changes:
VIS A A IR 2 B 81T Amortisation of debt securities in issue
5 o measured at amortised cost (11,095) - 582,743 - - 571,648
PLATAB 4R 6 R AR Net gain on financial assets and liabilities
SHEERAETKE at fair value through profit or loss - 541,778 - - - 541,778
il & & o i i Net increase in lease liabilities - - - - 567,482 567,482
MEEEZHE I H Interest expense on lease liabilities - - - - 26,079 26,079
Hib g8 s Total other changes (11,095) 541,778 582,743 - 593,561 1,706,987
REEZ—-#+ZH=+—H  At31December 2021 12,586,707 7,960,057 38,454 - 1,355,918 21,941,136
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20 B4 B AESRAT ] 35 T I i 4 il B 2 46 20 CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS AND OTHER

ﬁ,% (41) FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (continued)
HHEL
A DA 3
DR AEEE DA 3 E#T  MAARZ
i%IN ¥4 ARZ  BAARZ k2  RERA )
EEAEF CETEE  GEEE EGHE ENAE O HEAK A5t
Debt Interest
securities payable on
Debt inissue  Subordinated Interest  subordinated
securities designated debts payable on debts
inissueat  at fair value measured debt measured
amortised through  atamortised securities  at amortised Lease
cost  profitor loss cost in issue cost liabilities Total

Tt o Tt Tt FEr Fbc Fbo TEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

BB REN At 1 January 2020 22,447,468 8,425,301 3,889,974 81,171 22,465 1,049,922 35,916,301
Y ¢ PR ?ﬁﬁi?ﬁ] Changes from financing cash flows:
DU A ARG Z 28 Redemtpion on maturity of debt

IR 4 ] securities measured
at amortised cost (5,482,336) - - - - - (5,482,336)
DA (B 484 4 % A MR Redemtpion on maturity of debt
18 55 31 ) s securities measured at fair value
through profit or loss - (985,990) - - - - (985,990)
] D8R R A BR 2 1R Redemption of subordinated debts
fé {2 measured at amortised cost - - (3,889,974) - - - (3,889,974)
ST S 2 B TR Interest paid on debt securities in issue - - - (679,683) - - (679,683)
U ﬁ& fﬁ B AL IR Interest paid on subordinated debts
B AFE measured at amortised cost - - - - (201,714) - (201,714)
FAHE A E Payment of lease liabilities - - - - - (546,097) (546,097)
(5,482,336) (985,990) (3,889,974) (679,683) (201,714) (546,097)  (11,785,794)
0 Exchange adjustments 803,428 = - (20,320) (5,285) = 777,823
Jofbg ) : Other changes:
DA 8 ﬁSiZIU\EEA C#1T Amortisation of debt securities in issue
4 measured at amortised cost (4,877) - - - - - (4,877)
B % 2RI Interest expense on debt securities
in issue - - - 669,875 - - 669,875
g ?ﬁ BAR A B2 M Interest expenses on subordinated debts
ilh=S measured at amortised cost - - - - 184,534 - 184,534
DATEEEBRGEEARSE  Netloss on financial assets and
B R AR liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss - (66,071) - - - - (66,071)
TSR Net increase in lease liabilities - - - - = 746,814 746,814
MEABEZAEL S Interest expense on lease liabilities = = = = = 29,303 29,303
K25 A% Total other changes (4,877) (66,071) - 669,875 184,534 776,117 1,559,578
REBTRETTHET—H  At31December 2020 17,763,683 7,373,240 - 51,043 = 1279942 26,467,908
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21 FESRAT R 36 B At 4 i B v 2 A7 K 21 PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS AND OTHER
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
2021 2020
T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
A —F -+ 8 H B 2 R1T[A 2 Placements with banks and other financial institutions
HAth 4 Rl A% S AT 2K maturing between one and twelve months 49,665,516 103,512,480
AR A=k e: £ ] Less: impairment allowance
— 1218 A BAATE MG A4k 12-month ECL (25,763) (34,048)
49,639,753 103,478,432
22 WHERGHEBEESMEE 22 FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING
2021 2020
T T
HK$’°000 HK$’000
&R & Financial investments
&% - Debt securities:
— A B - Listed in Hong Kong 32,378 -
— A LA SR b [ T - Listed outside Hong Kong 35,954 -
—Jk kT — Unlisted 24,475 =
92,807 -
s Market value of listed securities 92,807 =
EAHRESEUTHEA : Debt securities are comprised of the following items:
— HAh 5% - Other debt securities 92,807 -
92,807 -
B B B AT NBUR A n R Financial investments are analysed by category of issuer as follows:
— W YU K LR AT - Central governments and central banks 24,475 -
— $R 47 [F) 2 T L Ath 4 AR - Banks and other financial institutions 56,834 -
— - Corporate entities 11,498 -
92,807 -
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23 DA/ P M B AR 4R 25 AR AR S R 23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS
2021 2020
T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
SR ) DA S {68 (B AR 4 4 R Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair
AR 4 g value through profit or loss:
WEHE Investments funds 5,794,977 4,597,800
HoAt Others 546,870 495,740
6,341,847 5,093,540
PLA PR R ARG B EE  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
FREEAT N TR are analysed by category of issuer as follows:
— SRAT [R] 2 Je HoAth 45 7l A A - Banks and other financial institutions 5,864,828 4,623,417
— - Corporate entities 477,019 470,123
6,341,847 5,093,540
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B 2 i BRI — S I A 2 4 1O (AR B (R
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group enters into the following equity, foreign exchange and
interest rate related derivative financial instruments for trading and risk
management purposes:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign
currency on a future date.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of
cash flows for another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies, interest
rates (for example, fixed rate for floating rate), or a combination of all these
(i.e., cross-currency interest rate swaps). Except for certain currency swap
contracts, no exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency, interest rate and equity options are contractual
agreements under which the seller (writer) grants the purchaser (holder)
the rights, but not an obligation, either to buy (a call option) or sell (a put
option) at or by a set date or during a set period, a specific amount of the
financial instrument at a predetermined price. In consideration for the
assumption of foreign exchange and interest rate risk, the seller receives
a premium from the purchaser. Options are negotiated OTC between the
Group and its counterparty or traded through the stock exchange (for
example, exchange-traded stock option).



b Sl SR
Annual Report 2021

24 4T H o)

REMPTRAZMESM LRESX ZREERIH
NFEEFESR TR - 2% THN G AR
B o A R 2 R SE RS B B > A T A
13— B AR S B 5K DL 2 1A BT e ) DA R (D
ARz el T H A R o (B2 SR —E M
71 T B B R AR B 4 U e A % S TR
SRR - ATt S B S R A A1 [0 O TR B 94 45 ) sl
5 B o BB E BT AR Sk T H S A O B Y T
2~ T RN B RE 2 A9 ) > A7 Ak 4 i T EL R il
(B AT REE AR HARAT A A CEE) SR H (R 7)) 15%
B o TSR TR A-FEERTE (EELAR A
[ENGPN T

A AR AT 3 TR B AT A FE 2 B B TR H R
BH J % 5 265 o AR BB 5 ST S i b ) i A
JEE ity 52 7y 240 7 e A% R AR AR 5 A D 5 A B o LR
5% o

Ar AR TR 8 ) R LR AT MR A 1 e L B > AT 1
U2 i 44 B A BT A T H T AT 2 B
A T it 5 o T A J g R A8 % 2 OB DA i PR 4
il S A AT 22 o Y e AR 0 R B HLAR i 2 TR IR
T o BRI EE fh 2 B b RO B AH B R AL > D
AT - T AL - R R R

24

o T SRAT (W) A R4

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

WEF - —F+_H=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The contractual/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial
instruments held by the Group are set out in the following tables. The
contractual/notional amounts of these instruments indicate the volume
of transactions outstanding at the end of reporting periods and certain
of them provide a basis for comparison with fair value instruments
recognised on the consolidated statement of financial position. However,
they do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved
or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate
the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The derivative financial
instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as
a result of fluctuations in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates
and equity relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative
financial instruments (assets and liabilities) can fluctuate significantly
from time to time.

The Group trades derivative products (both exchange-traded or OTC)
mainly for customer business. The Group strictly follows risk management
policies in providing derivative products to the customers and in trading
derivative products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking
book. A derivative instrument must be included in the approved product
list before any transactions for that instrument can be made. There are
limits to control the notional amount of exposure arising from derivative
transactions and the maximum tenor of the deal and management alert
limit in profit or loss is set. Every derivative transaction must be input into
the relevant system for settlement, mark to market revaluation, reporting
and control.
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24 4T H @) 24 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

N R AT A A R T H b g E R R - A
St -RZE%/ AREEIME

The following tables summaries the contractual/notional amounts of each
significant type of derivative financial instruments as at 31 December:

ABEE AR
HESHW
Group 2 F R 2 F
contractual/ <43 £ 4%
notional Fair value Fair value
amount assets liabilities
T#x T#x T#x
e SEey: 2021 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1) FHERZ S B ZATETH 1) Derivatives held for trading
a) AREERTA TH a) Foreign exchange derivatives
— i e B T A W A - Currency forwards and currency swaps 659,394,309 3,983,337 (3,866,982)
— AN B IRE R A - OTC currency options purchased 58,732,231 185,902 (3)
— 3 A W RE - OTC currency options written 61,192,594 8 (182,932)
— &= R AN RE T EL - Structured foreign exchange instruments 8,874,796 611 (3,682)
ANERT A T EL AR Total foreign exchange derivatives 4,169,858 (4,053,599)
b) FlRATA4 T H b) Interest rate derivatives
— M4 — Interest rate swaps 215,342,679 2,790,676 (2,811,060)
— M & - Interest rate futures 779,665 331 (54)
R A T H A% Total interest rate derivatives 2,791,007 (2,811,114)
o) AT E TR ¢) Equity derivatives
— e — Equity swaps 6,891,808 3,666,495 (456,510)
JBe A AT A= T H A Total equity derivatives 3,666,495 (456,510)
FfE 2 o Mg AT £ TR Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for trading
G (A A 10,627,360 (7,321,223)
2) FRAEE M & A TR 2) Derivatives held for hedging
a) HE M A FEEE 2 a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
fid TH
— M 41 — Interest rate swaps 36,055,305 330,238 (746,027)
b) 45 7E £ Bl H i 2 b) Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges
fiidE TR
— | 45 1 - Interest rate swaps 6,052,560 - (161,476)
— T A A5 - Commodity swaps 15,279,584 16,974 (355,730)
16,974 (517,206)
FRfES M A2 A TR Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for hedging
G (A M 347,212 (1,263,233)
ERmE T REE Total recognised derivative assets/(liabilities)
(& fH) A5 10,974,572 (8,584,456)
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24 &R TH @ 24 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

KEMEH
2 FE

Group I PEAE N PEAE

contractual/ B s

notional Fair value Fair value

amount assets liabilities

T IT T T THs T

TR AR 2020 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000

1) FefEx g HiE 2z fiitE TH 1) Derivatives held for trading

a) ShFERTA TH a) Foreign exchange derivatives
— 1 W A R 18 s e i - Currency forwards and currency swaps 620,574,952 7,286,677 (7,329,645)
— IR M IRE A - OTC currency options purchased 51,709,228 182,511 (1)
— LN B R - OTC currency options written 57,545,368 2 (193,411)
— GEE AN E T - Structured foreign exchange instruments 337,995 3,418 (3,414)
HhREAT A T H 48 %0 Total foreign exchange derivatives 7,472,608 (7,526,471)
b) R4 T H b) Interest rate derivatives
— Fl 2 — Interest rate swaps 240,475,999 4,880,407 (4,816,369)
— Fil R - Interest rate futures 4,790,674 2,339 (1,032)
B A A T2 A% Total interest rate derivatives 4,882,746 (4,817,401)
c) BAMmAETHR c) Equity derivatives
— IR EE B - Equity swaps 6,852,251 3,063,111 (408,836)
JBeA A A= T H A0 Total equity derivatives 3,063,111 (408,836)
FrER 2 MEfiAd T H Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for trading
Y, (AR #%E 15,418,465 (12,752,708)
2) FEYESh R E AT AE TR 2) Derivatives held for hedging
a) HER/NTEEHHZ a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
itk TH
— | R 45 1A — Interest rate swaps 37,240,164 175,108 (2,115,079)
b) #5EAB &R BB b) Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges
ik TH
— Fil R A — Interest rate swaps 7,041,064 = (375,910)
— P A Y - Commodity swaps 24,019,534 871,614 (380,500)
871,614 (756,410)
FRAEE P G 2 T A LA Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for hedging
i (A A 1,046,722 (2,871,489)
CRATE TR ERE Total recognised derivative assets/(liabilities)
(F 1) A% 16,465,187 (15,624,197)
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24 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The contractual or notional amounts of derivative financial instruments
provide only an indication of the volume of business outstanding at the
end of the reporting period and bear little relation to the underlying risks
of the exposures.

Among the above derivative financial instruments, certain of them were
designated as hedging instruments.

Fair value hedges are used by the Group to protect it against changes in
the fair value of financial assets due to movements in market interest rates.
The financial instruments hedged for interest rate risk mainly include debt
securities measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
The Bank uses interest rate swaps to hedge interest rate risk.

The effectiveness of the hedge based on changes in fair value of the
derivatives and the hedged items attributable to the hedged risk recognised
in the consolidated income statement during the year is presented as
follows:

2021 2020
T#L TH#IT
HK$’°000 HK$’000
OB U AR k518 A Gain/(loss) arising from fair value hedge, net:
— ¥ T A - Hedging instruments 1,200,709 (1,119,208)
— S o L g 2 A IR A ) b TR H - Hedged items attributable to the hedged risk (1,206,851) 1,119,477
(6,142) 269
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B <5 Ui e 3 P G AT S 2 P R A % A
JR A R T 7 S T 4 52 7 e A B O A A 1 L
B o 51 A 20T 20 7 A 2 Wi i B s AR U R A A
i PN 2 B < e 3 et AR e o IO TR B <
TGS IR R B AR S AR R o AT
HARE B 2 7 2R 22 Wi s 1R 9 RIVIRE T 5 6 Wit i 35
RS o AF N > Sz S AR 5 0 A 2 Al R R B 4 i B
S A 2 B ) (R TR ) .

Cash flow hedge consists of interest rate swaps and commodity swaps
entered into that are used to protect the Group against exposures to
variability of assets and liabilities. Gains and losses on the effective portion
of the swaps are initially recognised directly in equity, in the cash flow
hedge reserve, and are transferred to the consolidated income statement
when the forecast cash flows affect the consolidated income statement. The
gains and losses on ineffective portions of such derivatives are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement. During the year, there
was no ineffectiveness recognised in the consolidated income statement
that arose from cash flow hedges (2020: Nil.)
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Below is a schedule indicating as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December

2020, the periods when the hedged cash flows are expected to occur and
when they are expected to affect profit or loss:

—4EN =t ZFENE MNEY L

TR 2021 Within 1 year 1-3 years 3-8 years Over 8 years
HEET HEE T HEET HEEL

HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million

BHamA CEE) Cash inflows (assets) - - - -
Bt (A1) Cash outflows (liabilities) (53) 7) (1) -
I 4 U AR Net cash flow (53) (7) (1) -
—4ER —F=4 =ENE JNAERL E

e St 22 2020 Within 1 year 1-3 years 3-8 years Over 8 years
HE T H T H & T H &0

HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million

HERA (EE) Cash inflows (assets) = = = -
Bl th (AR Cash outflows (liabilities) (105) (30) (5) -
B 4 Ui Net cash flow (105) (30) (5) -

SRR 5 SR A AR P R B A T B R A TR 2
620,594,000% TG EL B B AE A Ukt 2R 0 R AR S
FF FLEMA (2% AT £ 206,732,0009596) °

TR T AR A SR M A T BRI 2 B il e T
LU i BN ITRCES SRR £ SRU IR N Y | e

25 o

During the year, amounted to HK$620,594,000 previously recognised
in equity under the cash flow hedge reserve was transferred to the
consolidated income statement and included in the net trading and the net
interest income (2020: HK$206,732,000).

There were no transactions for which cash flow hedge accounting had to be

ceased in 2021 as a result of the highly probable cash flows no longer being
expected to occur.
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25.1 Loans and advances to customers, banks and other accounts

2021 2020
Tl Tt
HK$’000 HK$’000
AHESE AR ABRZ P~ $R1TIRI2E 2 93K Loans and advances to customers, banks and other accounts
T LAt MR 1 measured at amortised cost
— B — Advances to customers 445,118,192 457,975,806
— SRATIF) FE K - Advances to banks 4,151,715 16,436,770
— PR — Trade bills 4,417,951 4,308,231
DIHESE AR ABER T ~ SR47R 3£ 2 &3 Gross loans and advances to customers,
e At B TF 48 4R banks and other accounts measured at amortised cost 453,687,858 478,720,807
JRE 1 1B Accrued interest 704,969 837,397
454,392,827 479,558,204
BBl c U A A Less: Impairment allowances
— 121 H AN FEAAE F R R - 12-month ECL (5,462,576) (4,234,142)
—JEAE AR & K BN 2
MG Rk - Lifetime ECL not credit-impaired (745,908) (576,636)
— (& AR & 2 2
BHIE AL - Lifetime ECL credit-impaired (1,439,567) (2,900,014)
446,744,776 471,847,412
DA TE(E S oAb 2 Tl s AIRE P Loans and advances to customers, banks and other accounts
SRATIR] 3 2 R B oAb R IA measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
— B P& — Advances to customers 595,664 1,180,511
— R — Trade bills 10,441,078 2,284,108
457,781,518 475,312,031
PIATFEEZIEGFZEAIRE S ~ $817FH  Loans and advances to customers, banks and other accounts
2 B % H A AR IE measured at fair value through profit or loss
— KA — Advances to customers 4,274,648 4,250,429
462,056,166 479,562,460
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25 ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)

25.1 Loans and advances to customers, banks and other accounts

(continued)

2021 2020
T#L TH#TT
HK$’000 HKS$°000

155 P R i JEC At R T A8 R T Gross carrying amount of the credit impaired loans and
advances 6,182,041 4,421,728
R SR 2 U A Impairment allowances made in respect of such loans 1,439,567 2,900,014

& )‘ﬁ ﬁﬁﬁ‘ K 5o At A T A8 MR T (B A Gross carrying amount of the credit impaired loans and
B HALRRIE MR 2 B 4 1 advances as a percentage of total gross loans and advances 1.32% 0.91%
HEAT T (E Market value of collateral 8,379,294 11,924,896

(RN S &Em%lﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁmﬁfg“ﬂ
T8 e Y B o FL R R B A — T I R 5
,\,Azﬁnﬁ‘ﬂﬁﬁﬁm;ﬁ*ﬂ?&%ﬂ’]%# g

MRoF—FE+A=+—H  ZEFEXPHER
PR B LR 1.37% (& A 0.95%) o

s s Ty
R0 5 F BRI I P SR 0850010 5 = I
ey eyl

Credit impaired loans and advances are defined as those loans which
are individually determined to have objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the loans have occurred.

The credit impaired loan ratio of advances to customers was 1.37% as at 31
December 2021 (2020: 0.95%).

There were no credit impaired advances to banks and trade bills classified
as stage 3 as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: Nil).
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25 ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)

25.2 Overdue advances to customers and banks (excluding trade
bills and other receivables)

The gross amount of the Group’s advances to customers and banks

(excluding trade bills and receivables) overdue as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 is analysed as follows:

%R
K giaT 15 WA
) 38 £% 3% 12 &5 W
Tl A 3G I 2 EHEH
% of M am b ot £ PS
BB advances I3 i 1l f Amount Amount of Lifetime
Gross to customers Market value of secured unsecured  ECL credit-
advances and banks  of collateral balance balance impaired
T T#E TR TlR TR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
S Sy 2021
i Overdue for:
Y iEEYaN Six months or less but
B8 =18 over three months 292,858 0.0 350,365 56,077 236,781 255,408
— WU T EERSEA  One year or less but over six months 17,552 0.0 - - 17,552 17,805
A Over one year 1,681,091 0.4 8,028,929 1,315,783 365,308 694,666
1,991,501 0.4 8,379,294 1,371,860 619,641 967,879
&R
JSRAT 7 HBE
IF] 3£ K ERES RGN
Ao A K 2 EMEA
% of e KR EPN
BHAEH  advancesto  HE g T (H Amount Amount of Lifetime
Gross customers ~ Market value of secured unsecured  ECL credit-
advances  and banks  of collateral balance balance impaired
TH# T TH#TT THIT T T T T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
e S 25 2020
i Overdue for:
ANEA LT Six months or less but
fH A =1 H over three months 178,342 0.0 231,613 174,006 4,336 39,379
—AEF LU FERESMH A One year or less but over six months 84,014 0.0 32,267 23,112 60,902 66,501
i — 4 Over one year 3,495,774 0.8 5,074,917 2,898,523 597,251 2,576,813
3,758,130 0.8 5,338,797 3,095,641 662,489 2,682,693
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25 Bk B HABIR I (a0 25 ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)
252 MHIE P RBITHESEX (ARG EE 25.2 Overdue advances to customers and banks (excluding trade

8 T J A Wk IE) (1)
A BT R REN T

o A T (EL B S R S AT A B e E S

555

o RIS THEE  HBREE Tl
R

o ZRERAT S Il R i B ARE A T AR B o
A7 LA AT A BEL#E 5 M

o (HARH S 2 AT R B A o HIHLHE i AR
TR > SAS SRAT ml fife 2 LT 3 7 - o

BRI T ERYE  FRRIRE
A_E AT B R E EAE

ToA=+— 0 WA TR E T
A = (B R (A 4 T 2 552 48 2 R S ek

bills and other receivables) (continued)
The criteria for eligible collateral are as follows:

. The market value of the collateral is readily determinable or
can be reasonably established and verified;

. The collateral is marketable and there exists a readily available
secondary market for disposing of the collateral;

. The Bank’s rights to repossess the collateral is legally enforceable
and without impediment; and

. If the collateral is a movable asset, it should be under the
Bank’s custody, or its whereabouts can be located by the Bank.

The eligible collateral is mainly properties, deposits and shares.
There were no advances to banks (excluding trade bills and receivables)

which were overdue for over 3 months as at 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020.

IH) o
25.3 il 2 3 A 25.3 Other overdue assets
N 2021 2021 2020 2020
HE A B oAb % JEFH AL oA ¥ e
Accrued Other Accrued Other
intereit assets interest assets
T#x T T T Tt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W Overdue for:

N A 5L H R = H Six months or less but over three
months 658 - 1,931 -
s AN E i N (D One year or less but over six months 327 - 916 -
R —4F Over one year 140,007 - 152,073 -
140,992 - 154,920 -

A 7 5 7 2 T 4 B W IR

Other assets refer to trade bills and receivables.
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25 ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)

25.4 Rescheduled advances

2021 2020
T T
HK$’000 HK$’000

A B 3R OR 0 5 780 2 68 48 Rescheduled advances
=R A z &%) (excluding overdue loans over three months) 30,106 143,008
HE KERTT IR SRR AL E 4 As % of advances to customers and banks 0.01 0.03
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MoE-—4E+_A=+—H > KEHAEH
B—H(ZF _FFE+_A=+—H:—IH)
Wi I 1 BLAT T (B £56,170,0009 00 (=% —
THEA+ " H=+—H :52,670,000% C) ° Ui
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25.5

25.6

Rescheduled advances which have been overdue for more than
three months under the revised repayment terms are included in the
analysis of overdue advances in Note 25.2 above.

There were no rescheduled advances to banks as at 31 December
2021 and 31 December 2020.

Repossessed assets

There is one repossessed asset of the Group as at 31 December
2021 (31 December 2020: one) with total current market value of
HK$6,170,000 (31 December 2020: HK$52,670,000). Repossessed
asset only comprises properties which the Group has obtained
control (e.g. through legal actions or voluntary actions by the
borrowers concerned) for releasing in full or in part on the
obligations of the borrowers.

Cash collateral on securities borrowed and reverse
repurchase agreements

In respect of reverse repurchase transactions, there were no
collateral held by the Group which were permitted to be sold or
pledged as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: Nil). No
collateral has been actually sold or pledged by the Group as at the
year end. The transactions are conducted on terms that are usual and
customary to standard lending activities.
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26 E@E 26 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

R4 H=1—H
31 December 2021

PLAE R A
#8 0 Al 2 i V8 3]
L€ YN JA A M 4
Measured at Measured at
FVTOCI amortised cost Total
T T#L T
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
4 ﬁ Financial investments
% - Debt securities:
R ] - Listed in Hong Kong 54,799,962 14,201,029 69,000,991
— A s LA A b s 1 i - Listed outside Hong Kong 46,935,253 18,873,885 65,809,138
—J kT - Unlisted 44,273,625 25,397,858 69,671,483
146,008,840 58,472,772 204,481,612
HE 45 75 75 Equity securities
—3F ki - Unlisted 3,235,615 - 3,235,615
4 Rl KA Total financial investments 149,244,455 58,472,772 207,717,227
bR R Market value of listed securities 101,735,215 33,420,419 135,155,634
EHFEMELTIEA Debt securities are comprised of the following items
— JHFF - Treasury bills 39,763,935 16,026,556 55,790,491
— BT AR — Certificates of deposit held - - -
— H A% - Other debt securities 106,244,905 42,446,216 148,691,121
146,008,840 58,472,772 204,481,612
B A AT A Financial investments are analysed by category of
BRI A B an issuer as follows
— R BURT K S SR AT - Central governments and central banks 51,427,355 22,490,960 73,918,315
— N B - Public sector entities 1,030,345 1,098,911 2,129,256
— 4§47 [7] 2 K Al <5 Bl AR A - Banks and other financial institutions 39,006,465 12,578,073 51,584,538
—{REEH - Corporate entities 57,780,290 22,304,828 80,085,118
149,244,455 58,472,772 207,717,227
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26 EHBE @) 26 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (continued)
SECEREFT A =1+—H
31 December2020
LA FE(E
£ FAth, 2> 1] DAk 7
I 35 AR AN A
Measured at Measured at
FVTOCI amortised cost Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AR P T T T
4 R % Financial investments
&% Debt securities:
— R L - Listed in Hong Kong 49,609,705 10,792,332 60,402,037
— A LA SR b R E T - Listed outside Hong Kong 46,766,050 27,174,685 73,940,735
—J b — Unlisted 41,207,007 8,993,818 50,200,825
137,582,762 46,960,835 184,543,597
HE 45 78 77 Equity securities
—J kT — Unlisted 2,423,269 - 2,423,269
S TP HAE Total financial investments 140,006,031 46,960,835 186,966,866
TR TE Market value of listed securities 96,375,755 38,683,086 135,058,841
A LT IEHE Debt securities are comprised of the following items
— JE — Treasury bills 28,619,666 20,998,565 49,618,231
— TR R ZAE G — Certificates of deposit held 741,236 385,477 1,126,713
— H A& % - Other debt securities 108,221,860 25,576,793 133,798,653
137,582,762 46,960,835 184,543,597
GG T A Financial investments are analysed by category of
BB 40 issuer as follows
— Hp R BRF K Y SR AT - Central governments and central banks 34,866,592 24,236,599 59,103,191
— B - Public sector entities 565,375 895,840 1,461,215
— SRAT [R] 2 B o Ath <5 ol 4 A - Banks and other financial institutions 44,471,219 10,488,496 54,959,715
— {2 =i - Corporate entities 60,102,845 11,339,900 71,442,745
140,006,031 46,960,835 186,966,866
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27 RBEARZRE 27 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
2021 2020
T THs T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
JRE A 5 Share of net assets 309,611 200,509
Wk B R S A 2 Goodwill on acquisition - =
309,611 200,509

DU 51 dAS B 5y L Th £ 3 TR B0 M

INGET

B S A T A M o 8056 e — {3 3 AR 2 AR

The following list contains only the particulars of the associates which are
unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market prices are not available.

LA TR None are considered individually material to the Group:
EHRBEA il B R M CHfRA A2 B P
Form of business Place of incorporation FERH
structure and business Issued shares  Group’s effective interest Principal activity
2021 2020
IEC Investments Limited ([TEC])
(REFZZ6F— A+ R AR gl Hik 100,000/ 2 @Mt 40% 40% £
IEC Investments Limited (‘IEC”) Incorporated Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary shares Inactive
(Dissolved on 12 January 2022)
HREAERARAR (TR R Eik 10,000,000/ 2 % 4 fic 37% % RECEEE R
SINO-CEEF Capital Management Incorporated Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinary shares Provision of asset
Company Limited (‘SCM”) management services
Infinium Holdings Limited 7l A & B 5 1,000f% 2 £ i 15% 15% REHR
Infinium Holdings Limited Incorporated Cayman Islands 1,000 ordinary shares Investment Holding

IECTE B s R S BUEHE I o SRR —

LA

IECZ 40% B HE > 1F 25 R W % 4 - Z!R%@éﬁaigi
A H (R AR 2 1R B 40,000
RRIECH 3 o —F— /N4 H » IEC[H LER 51 1 IR
FETEH A 1 P R AL A (288,928,00035 76) 5 3l
Y2 B IR R K (31,200,0004675) o 7E181F A FAEH
Z A% > IECE =& “FFJUH Bl th B B s i - I
BAESF - FE—H T HBE

TH A 7 B v A = A RO - — N4 E
A 5 E o AR 4 1 B AR 00 FE A R B1100% 8 4 &
37% ° AF N > AR [ R 483,700,000 /8 3% 4 A

\#?

Infinium Holdings Limited 5 — [ 7£ B = 7 5 5 it 5
SEHA T AR BRI R A E AT A PR
) LATE 77 1 B R R BREARAT 385 - AR =& = —
#+ = H =+ — H 7 AInfinium Holdings Limited
15% B MES Z AR — A o R N R
HE B V5 A 5 G BB R R B (B o AR SR TR AR A 1)
Infinium Holdings Limited{¥ % 1.504 # 7T ©

IEC engages in investment holding in Hong Kong. The Group acquired
40% stake of IEC in 2007 as a strategic investment. The Group held
40,000 ordinary shares of IEC up to 12 January 2022 (when the company
was dissolved). In October 2018, IEC paid dividends (HK$288,928,000)
to ICBCA during the project holding period, and repaid the remaining
shareholders’ loan (HK$31,200,000). After 18 months liability period, the
company commenced the relevant voluntary liquidation in September
2020 and has been dissolved on 12 Jan 2022.

SCM engages in asset management services in Hong Kong. The Group
decreased its shareholding in SCM from 100% to 37% as part of the
Group’s restructuring plan in 2016. The Group held 3,700,000 ordinary
shares of SCM during the year.

Infinium Holdings Limited is a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and as the investment holding company held through Fusion Bank
Limited to carry out virtual banking operations in Hong Kong. The Group
held 15% shareholding and appointed a director in the Board of Director of
Infinium Holdings Limited as at 31 December 2021. The above associates
are accounted for using equity method in the consolidated financial
statements. The Group made HK$150 million capital injection to Infinium
Holdings Limited during the year.
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27 R A ZBE a0 27 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
2021 2020
T#L T
HK$°000 HK$’000
A 1 AS SR B A% 2 ) 2 AR R Aggregate information of associates that are
not individually material
A8 59 AS T K I 4 A R TE Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial associates in
S B T R R 22 AR R T L the consolidated financial statements 309,611 200,509
ALEEAE LA AR 2 MG % Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of those associates
V5 B 7 S 1 1R Loss from continuing operations (40,898) (44,735)
2 T B S AR Total comprehensive expense (40,898) (44,735)
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28 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

K 2 S i
[y Computer Trading ak
Goodwill software rights Total
T#L T#T T#L T#L
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AR Cost
MoFE - —HF—H—H At 1 January 2021 999,715 105,187 1,895 1,106,797
NE Additions - 4,243 - 4,243
A Disposals - (45) - (45)
HC Al 4 B Other adjustments - 847 - 847
RoF_—4H+_H=+—H At 31 December 2021 999,715 110,232 1,895 1,111,842
25T 5 Accumulated amortisation
R FZ—FE—H—H At 1 January 2021 - 85,272 - 85,272
£F N 378 Charge for the year - 8,253 - 8,253
i Disposals - (45) - (45)
At 3 4 Other adjustments - 558 - 558
W —HE+—"H=+—H At 31 December 2021 - 94,038 - 94,038
W oR A= —H Net book value
W TR 95 (L At 31 December 2021 999,715 16,194 1,895 1,017,804
o I 35 ) HE
[k Computer Trading B
Goodwill software rights Total
T TH#IT T T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000
JﬁZME Cost
WoFEFE—H—H At 1 January 2020 999,715 286,233 1,895 1,287,843
A Additions - 12,202 = 12,202
fink:a Disposals - (194,273) - (194,273)
HoAth 37 5 Other adjustments - 1,025 - 1,025
RoEREL A=+ —H At 31 December 2020 999,715 105,187 1,895 1,106,797
EA ?ﬂiﬁﬁﬁ Accumulated amortisation
WoERE—~A—H At 1 January 2020 = 271,361 - 271,361
N S5 Charge for the year = 7,322 - 7,322
fink Disposals - (194,273) - (194,273)
H Al o) 42 Other adjustments - 862 - 862
MoF_FEL A=+ —H At 31 December 2020 - 85,272 = 85,272
W oE A=+ —H Net book value
W T V5% (EL At 31 December 2020 999,715 19,915 1,895 1,021,525
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28 B KA E E a0 28 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(continued)
i 5 Notes:
(i) A BRI > AT 8] & SRATUCHEICBC Asia Wa (i)  In 2004, the Bank acquired all the issued share capital of ICBC Asia Wa Pei
Pei Limited 4 [#] & 23 £ 35 17 B AR o B0 IE SIS 2 i Limited group from Fortis Bank. The goodwill of the acquisition amounted to
FysfE2F2m Sk - HK$322 million.
Gi) MROFFE—FERAMA > AT A BT (ii)  On 4 May 2001, the Bank entered into the business transfer agreement
SRAT AR A PR W 5T 57 S50 G p o [ i with its parent bank, Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited,
W AT Z SRATEHS ([ 4347 375 1) - RAEA F30f pursuant to which the Bank agreed to acquire the banking business of the
I Fo A2 12T s G DAAS SR AT 1) Hh B T R AR AT Hong Kong Branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
TRy A PR N T B AT Mo B B 37 3 98 A% S ] 4 S % (“Branch Business”) for a consideration of approximately HK$3,000 million
207 AT - #5088 H kT LA B AT 4% A O X which was to be satisfied as to approximately HK$2,120 million by the issue
AT s T A3 s T B DA B 4 S AT o A A A 2 T R and allotment of new ordinary shares and convertible preference shares
R H A R sEsTer Mk T - by the Bank to Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, as to
approximately HK$580 million by the issuance of subordinated debt due to
ICBC, and as to approximately HK$300 million by cash,. The goodwill arising
from the acquisition amounting to approximately HK$586 million as at the
reporting date.
(i) R R B < A AN AT W o (iii) Impairment tests are performed for cash-generating units containing
goodwill.
7 B [ 422 SE 5 4350 43 T P 2 mT S A ) PR 4 R e B Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”)
i - identified according to business segment as follows:
2021 2020
T#n T#T
HK$°000 HKS$°000
1 B B R AT Corporate and Investment Banking 585,715 585,715
T 2ERAT Commercial Banking 230,450 230,450
TEMRT Retail Banking 142,386 142,386
HoAl Others 41,164 41,164
999,715 999,715

B 4 2 7 B 1) w ol [ 4 AR AR BB RO o BT
AL i B L A oA T T 2 A B D A B S T
BB TR AL T o AR A M AR A Bl T AR R
A [ Ak T A R AR B o i AT 0T A A B 4 O = A
FIZWRR (CE 4 1 3% 5 FE T4 1 3%)
O I 5 BR 4 A LA P AR B AT RIS R

FH A 5 G300 A (1 B R 6% 2 10% (& %
AL 8%E12%) °

TR AR AR 1 A B S YL T 30 R e T A

KB o INAET- 238 1= A4 BLAT S H 0 B AR LR —
HY -
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The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. Such calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimate rates stated
below. The growth rate (2021: 3%; 2020: 3%) which applies to the cashflow
projections over the five-year period does not exceed the long term average
growth rate for the industry of which the CGU operates.

The discount rates used for value-in-use calculations are ranging from 6%
to 10% (2020: ranging from 8% to 12%).

Management determined the budgeted financial performance based on
the past performance and its expectation for market development. The
weighted average growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts
included in industry reports.
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29 HEWE 29 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2021 2020
T Tt
HK$’°000 HKS$’000
h—H—HZHRHE{E Carrying amount at 1 January 131,929 135,234
B SRAT 5 2 S 2 Transferred from bank premises and properties 24,455 -
Al e 15 1 AR Net revaluation loss (12,234) (5,500)
[iEE 5, 25 %A Exchange difference 1,150 2,195
A=+ —HZHRE(E Carrying amount at 31 December 145,300 131,929

AR A 2 T 7 s T v I3 N it 2 B 3 2 FH A A

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Hong Kong and

T Mainland China under the following lease terms:
2021 2020
T T
HK$’000 HKS$’000
TEHWERT A Held in Hong Kong

HRHAFE & (102504F) Medium term leases (10-50 years) 56,100 31,800
R 5 (504E L |) Long term leases (over 50 years) 60,000 61,300

TEAT s DL Ah [ 457 A Held outside Hong Kong
T AT B (102504F) Medium term leases (10-50 years) 29,200 38,829
145,300 131,929

AT EYER -FE_—F+_A=+—HHH
B 7 B3 A A (BRI 2 BT W R AR A TR A BT 85
KR (H 2% S5 B e A% A o) ik Y B 4 (B
1£5116,100,000% 75 (- F —F4F © 93,100,00045 75) ©
AEBITHB A AR EWER T - —HFT_H
= H L B AR A R I T R AR B
JEE A 5 i 7 A A A PR W4 S B T B
I 3 5 Y T A £529,200,000% T (—F T F
4F : 38,829,000 75) ©

The Bank’s investment properties were revalued on 31 December 2021
by A.G. Wilkinson & Associates, an independent professionally qualified
valuer, at HK$116,100,000 (2020: HK$93,100,000) on an open market,
existing use basis, which is highest and best use. The investment properties
of the Bank’s subsidiary were revalued on 31 December 2021 by Shenzhen
GuoZhongLian Asset and Real Estate Appraisal Consulting Co., Ltd., an
independent professionally qualified valuer, at HK$29,200,000 (2020:
HK$38,829,000) on an open market, existing use basis.
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29 BEWHE w0 29 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

g EER Particulars of investment properties

—2=-—4+=-H=+—H 31 December 2021

7 £ 1 2 Bk ) ) 2%

o jik7d ol i ALY Attributable interest
Location Use Remaining lease term of the Group
T v S S5 98 T R 8 R N B B P 26 1 & R E (504E U 1) 100%
Shop B on the Ground Floor Commercial use Long term lease (over 50 years)
No. 8 Causeway Road
Hong Kong
JUHEHBLYE FR S5 78 585 T B eIk [ ik T L (105 504F) 100%
Ground Floor and cockloft Commercial use Medium term lease (10-50 years)
No. 58 Hong Ning Road
Kwun Tong Kowloon
G G 195 - 197 - 199 [EESiFS RMAME (504 Lk F) 100%
B 20155 # €& K b T A & Commercial use Long term lease (over 50 years)
Shop A on Ground Floor
Capital Mansion
Nos. 195, 197, 199 and 201 Shau Kei Wan Road
Shau Kei Wan, Hong Kong
UL A T UE 2335 [EEIEZS T L (105 504F) 100%
W AEE— ~ K =G H N 2358 5 Commercial use Medium term lease (10-50 years)
Unit No.23 on the Portion of the Ground Floor
of the Podium of Blocks 1, 2 & 3 City Garden
No. 233 Electric Road
North Point, Hong Kong
TR i3 P [ i B8 e A% B3 T 6 [ [EEIE:S T HIAH B (10%2504F) 100%

UK A - BIEE

Unit A&B, 2/F, 4 Blocks,
SEG Technology Park,
Zhenxing Road,

Futian District, Shenzhen
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Medium term lease (10-50 years)
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30 MRk 30 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(a) BRYAE Z HHHR (a) Reconciliation of carrying amount
WAT B
yLIES W
Bank b33 UV EL | 16 R
premises Leasehold Furniture Right-of- it
and properties  improvements and equipment use asset Total
T#L T T#L T#x T#L
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
REFZ—F—H—H: At 1 January 2021:
AR B A A Cost or valuation 922,640 452,813 524,071 2,254,563 4,154,087
BEHT 8 R Accumulated depreciation and impairment (306,648) (322,801) (359,068) (1,001,768) (1,990,285)
R_F_—F—[]—H At 1 January 2021 615,992 130,012 165,003 1,252,795 2,163,802
NE Additions - 17,755 59,217 572,309 649,281
L% Transfer out (24,455) - - - (24,455)
i Disposals - (19,134) (44,532) (315) (63,981)
Al (faEG) Revaluation (Note(i)) 28,861 - - - 28,861
AR T AT Depreciation provided during the year (16,163) (33,872) (55,650) (485,054) (590,739)
TEE 5, J L At 7 Exchange rate and other adjustments (6,569) 4 54,602 (6,311) 41,726
RZFZ—F+ZH=1+—HZ Net book value at 31 December 2021
TR (A 597,666 94,765 178,640 1,333,424 2,204,495
WZZZ—E+ZHA=+—H: At 31 December 2021:
AT A Cost or valuation 913,457 434,183 606,304 2,673,186 4,627,130
2R E RBE Accumulated depreciation and impairment (315,791) (339,418) (427,664) (1,339,762) (2,422,635)
R-F_—F+-A=+—HZ Net book value at 31 December 2021
R T A 597,666 94,765 178,640 1,333,424 2,204,495
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30 W Bt (o 30 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
(a) BRI E Z R (40 (a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)
BT B
LES i =eES
Bank #E BRRERME AR
premises Leasehold Furniture Right-of- 5t
and properties  improvements  and equipment use asset Total
SR T T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WoE-FRE—~H—H: At 1 January 2020:
JIAR S A (B Cost or valuation 870,872 420,743 470,926 1,521,014 3,283,555
BT R Accumulated depreciation and impairment (263,680) (283,555) (341,260) (498,993) (1,387,488)
VR FRE-H—H At 1 January 2020 607,192 137,188 129,666 1,022,021 1,896,067
nE Additions - 43,346 82,469 776,843 902,658
A/ () Transfer in/(out) - - - - -
i Disposals = (1,369) (4,213) (18,429) (24,011)
Al () Revaluation (Note(i)) 845 = = = 845
AR TR AT Depreciation provided during the year (16,760) (49,156) (46,727) (515,391) (628,034)
B 3. e At 7 %8 Exchange rate and other adjustments 24,715 3 3,808 (12,249) 16,277

REZFZFF+ZA=+—H2Z Net book value at 31 December 2020

TR A 615,992 130,012 165,003 1,252,795 2,163,802
WoRE-ZE+-H=+—H: At 31 December 2020:
A B A Cost or valuation 922,640 452,813 524,071 2,254,563 4,154,087
2 R Accumulated depreciation and impairment (306,648) (322,801) (359,068) (1,001,768) (1,990,285)

Net book value at 31 December 2020

615,992 130,012 165,003 1,252,795 2,163,802
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30 W3 Al ()
(a) BRI E Z R (40
Wi 3T

O|ITEER _F_—F+_H=+t—HREHH
7. B3 A A il (L R A B A R B AT T AR R 2 A B
WS EETEN - AR ZFEEC R —F _—
A = — BARER P B B S B A
ik 5 % 11 71 1280 AR W 7 Aty b 5 7 A 8 5
A BR 2 B B AE 22 2 B T S5 A (B A AT A o B A L
% (IR F AR FE BT 4S80 ) T4 5t A B R AE 25 b 2 8RAT
[ EAG G o A0 55 ) 2 SRAT I R X A SE A B
A3 B TR S M > B A 2 R T (B 431,227,000
BT (R TRAE ¢ 32,208,000 70) ©

Note:

@

o T SRAT (W) A R4
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)

The bank premises were revalued at 31 December 2021 based on the
open market value by A.G. Wilkinson & Associates, an independent
professionally qualified valuer. The subsidiary’s premises were revalued
at 31 December 2021 based on the open market value by Shenzhen
GuoZhongLian Asset and Real Estate Appraisal Consulting Co., Ltd,
an independent professionally qualified valuer in the Mainland China.
The revaluation surplus net of applicable deferred income taxes was
credited to bank premises revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity.
The carrying amount of the bank premises and properties of the Group
would have been HK$31,227,000 (2020: HK$32,208,000) had they been

stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

A A T 22 ) 2 A7 T A s B vl R A e DL A A

The Group’s properties are situated in Hong Kong and Mainland

A China under the following lease terms:
2021 2020
T#x T T
HK$°000 HKS$°000
EHEBNAE Held in Hong Kong
RYHE (504E 0 ) Long term leases (over 50 years) 292,600 331,850
T AT £ (102504F) Medium term leases (10-50 years) 144,640 122,260
TE 7 s LA AP b e 17 A Held outside Hong Kong
T AT B (102.504F) Medium term leases (10-50 years) 160,426 161,882
597,666 615,992
(b) i FHE & A (b) Right-of-use assets
e R ARE Y R T (N R S o S 0 AT A The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of
T underlying asset is as follows:
ROR=—% R R
+ZHA=Z+—H t+oHA=+—H
At 31 December At 31 December
2021 2020
T#x Tk
HK$°000 HK$’000
EPNE/EVE 1K Included in “Property, plant and equipment”:
RS E— 5 E > FIRHAENA Right-of-use assets - Premises, with remaining lease term of:
— MBI ~ Not later than 1 year 22,081 40,677
— BN RO B R4 - Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years 101,187 94,649
— BN 2AE AN A 54 - Later than 2 years and not later than 5 years 1,083,597 265,430
— 54Dk - More than 5 years 84,999 844,575
1,291,864 1,245,331
o PR RE 8 — HL A sl Right-of-use assets - Other equipment - 74
fift PR 7 — HAth Right-of-use assets - Others 41,560 7,390
1,333,424 1,252,795
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31 Hfh&mE 31 OTHER ASSETS
2021 2020
TWL THs 0
HKS$’000 HK$°000
JRE Wi R S Interest receivable 2,688,097 3,842,299
A OR Prepayments 340,006 276,139
LEEERE Settlement accounts 751,694 2,091,706
C AT RE 42 Margin deposits paid 5,351,882 8,598,136
{531 Factoring 856,506 1,237,252
HAh Others 501,587 652,660
10,489,772 16,698,192
HoAh 2 2 (1 A Impairment allowances for other assets
— 1218 H BA A BEAE ARk - 12-month ECL (54,648) (64,955)
— R A BENE SR - Lifetime ECL credit-impaired
THWIE % (15,107) (10,317)
10,420,017 16,622,920
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32 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of principal subsidiaries of

the Group:
fiRiFa £

R4 s I 4 2 TR C#fT R TR A Interest held
Name Place of incorporation Principal activities Issued and paid-up capital 2021 2020
AT HEARKEAE RATHH N 4,150,000,0007
Chinese Mercantile Bank* People’s Republic of China Banking business RMB4,150,000,000 100% 100%
THREM & A RA A E i i 6,000,000 72
ICBC (Asia) Bullion Company Limited* Hong Kong Provision of bullion business HK$6,000,000 100% 100%
TREWSEARAT CEARBERER) ik 3 Fd 26,000,000 7C
ICBC (Asia) Futures Company Limited*

(In members’ voluntary liquidation) Hong Kong Inactive HK$26,000,000 100% 100%
THRER (2H) FRAA &k Pt 258,828, 8701 76
ICBC Asset Management (Global) Company

Limited* Hong Kong Provision of asset management services HK$258,828,870 100% 100%
THREH AN R Eif AL AR 10,0007 7T
ICBC (Asia) Nominee Limited* Hong Kong Provision of nominee services HK$10,000 100% 100%
TR LS RA A & PR AR A 100,000,000 7¢
ICBC (Asia) Securities Limited* Hong Kong Provision of securities brokerage services  HK$100,000,000 100% 100%
T SRETM {5 o L 7 & P SER T 3,000,000 72
ICBC (Asia) Trustee Company Limited* Hong Kong Provision of trustee services HK$3,000,000 100% 100%
TS AR A R 7 Eif BROL A5 7E R A 10017
ICBC (Asia) Financial Services Company Limited*  Hong Kong Provision of trustee and company services ~ HK$100 100% 100%
TR SEE R () A RAR GEINCE I RSt & 4,000,0005% 1T
TR BRI A R A ) People’s Republic of China Provision of equity investment US$4,000,000 100% 100%
R — R R R A A & FEERAR 370,028, 18380
SINO-CEEF Holding Company Limited* Hong Kong Investment holding company EUR370,028,183 100% 100%

I ARERAT H R B A -

*  The subsidiaries are directly held by the Bank.
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33 $RAT R £ M Hofth 4 B e RE 2 17 5K 33 DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS
2021 2020
THT T 7T
HK$’000 HK$’000

SRAT 7] 3 K A <5 ol AR A 2 A7 K Deposits from banks and other financial institutions

DL 8 A A MR Measured at amortised cost 174,030,651 181,978,913
DL B (B AR 48 25 R AR Measured at fair value through profit or loss 15,279,584 24,019,534
189,310,235 205,998,447
Ml SmMEs s AN _EFE £+ H=+— In respect of repurchase transactions, the fair value of collateral which were
H oo A< B A8 o i ﬁ $ii} Tﬁi E’J HEH AT EAE permitted to be sold or repledged from the Group was HK$38,515,865,000 as
F438,515,865,0000 7T (% R4 : 6,563,388,0007 at 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$6,563,388,000).
JT) °
HEAT 28 G 11 A5 3R g A A e (i B 1% B 19— fe S A Ak The transactions are conducted on terms that are usual and customary to
e standard lending activities.
34 EBEPFEHK 34 DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
2021 2020
T#L THs T
HK$’°000 HK$’000
WA AR O Demand deposits and current accounts 49,234,348 43,609,293
it & 7K Savings deposits 179,015,502 164,292,903
JE ) 2 78 FAT 5K Time, call and notice deposits 320,053,940 314,581,818
548,303,790 522,484,014
MEEL S mE » N X+ H = +— H In respect of repurchase transactions, there was no collateral which were
7 412 [ 37 A 0 L R Y R (R R permitted to be sold or repledged from the Group as at 31 December 2021
ME) o EAT A S A G B A A A A 5T B A — % B (2020: Nil). The transactions are conducted on terms that are usual and
B R - customary to standard lending activities.
35 WEHEFT1S L 35 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
ot BA R A T S o A 4 ] 2 R 9E B TE 45 6% 4 A The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for
T financial reporting purposes:
2021 2020
Tt THs T
HK$’°000 HKS$’000
&R A B BRI R WERR 2 Net deferred income tax assets recognised in the
% L JIT A5 v AR consolidated statement of financial position 957,381 657,377
A G5 A BA TS AR DL R e 5R 2 Net deferred income tax liabilities recognised in the
AR AL BT A5 Bl £ A consolidated statement of financial position - =
957,381 657,377
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35 HEREFT A B (0 35 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
4E R A T A9 B A A M (BRIR] — BB M I 2 The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to
SRR S HT) Z BB AT offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the

year are as follows:

T WA
T2 B 5 it AR
£ ¥ A GLIEERS ft ol s B
Accelerated Not credit-
tax Asset impaired Fair value
depreciation revaluation ECL reserve Others Total
T#x T#x T#x T#x T#x T#x
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
MZEFEZ—4F—A—H AtlJanuary2021 (6,017) (129,248) 905,957 (113,329) 14 657,377
T4 A dd Rk Credited to the consolidated
income statement (10,884) - 241,241 - 50,477 280,834
TEfELE (ZHR) /FCHR  (Debited)/credited to equity - (4,501) - 1,783 - (2,718)
i 51, 26 7 S HO Al 7 8 Exchange difference and other
adjustment 1,538 - 19,392 (692) 1,650 21,888
A TF T4 At 31 December 2021
T=H=H—H (15,363) (133,749) 1,166,590 (112,238) 52,141 957,381
A 15 e (E
B I I NFEE
i EEE (GUIEEES Tt At HAth BE
Accelerated Not credit-
tax Asset impaired Fair value
depreciation revaluation IECIL, reserve Others Total
THETT T T T T THETT
HK$°000 HK$000 HKS$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
RoEEE—~H—H  Atl]anuary 2020 (16,015) (127,120) 507,178 15,464 - 379,507
TR &7 A s R iR Credited to the consolidated
income statement 9,485 - 379,731 - 13 389,229
FERE 4 (ZHR) (Debited) to equity - (2,128) - (127,744) - (129,872)
E 30, 72 %0 Je HoAth #9%  Exchange difference and other
adjustment 513 - 19,048 (1,049) 1 18,513
W E R At 31 December 2020
+=H=+—H (6,017) (129,248) 905,957 (113,329) 14 657,377

255



o R R SRAT () A R4

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

R —

LA

BE —E+ A=t —HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

ZEREER
Annual Report 2021

35 Lﬁ }Eﬁﬁ ﬁ‘}ﬁé (4) 35 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
7 4E [ 7E ok B AR 2 BEE 5 483,015,916 0T (& The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$3,015,916 (2020:
AR 3,020,115 58) > T RR A DAHR B 7 AR % HK$3,020,115) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
R 2 N A 2 R ER B A o R e R TS taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax
A& HB A= A et B S 8 \) o R OR AT B A RERRBE assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have
Y5 1 AT AL Bl P A B 5% S B TE 4R > RO S it G 2 arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for sometime and it is not
5 e w2 20 B B JH O E o considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
tax losses can be utilised.
W oE T —FE+ T HAH=+—H > A=A T At 31 December 2021, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax
J& N ) Z R FN B F - A 5 [H IR HEAE SN E AT 2 liability (2020: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the future earnings
T TE B > A 4R N I AT 2 R A R T R A0 A of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to
HERB(ZE FF ) o additional tax should such amounts be received.
A SRAT ) BB S AN =2 B SR 7 AN A AT i 45 8 4% There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
) dividends by the Bank to its shareholders.
36 CETMEFE 36 DEBT SECURITIES IN ISSUE
2021 2020
T#T T T
HK$°000 HK$000
BB ESF Debt securities in issue
— DU 81 AR AR - measured at amortised cost 12,586,707 17,763,683
— AN B (AR HE 25 £ AR - measured at fair value through profit or loss 7,960,057 7,373,240
20,546,764 25,136,923
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37 HAbRE 37 OTHER LIABILITIES
2021 2020
T THs T
HK$’000 HKS$’000
JRE A 1L, Interest payable 2,196,289 3,173,237
JE At 387 4 KA A Salaries and welfare payable 618,658 619,401
AR Settlement accounts 2,700,286 5,662,497
B S R 7S 4 Margin deposits received 1,387,681 2,346,944
3 Factoring 856,506 1,237,252
L B R (B 5E37.1) Lease liabilities (Note 37.1) 1,355,918 1,279,942
HAth Others 2,045,400 1,483,052
11,160,738 15,802,325
BRI 4 RIS AR 2 A B Impairment allowances for loan commitment and
financial guarantees
— 121 A BA A FE 45 A O - 12-month ECL 296,441 192,678
— JEAE B R & A 2 - Lifetime ECL not credit-impaired
LEEUEEREEEES 11,563 4,053
11,468,742 15,999,056

A SR T T A GRAT A AR TR At L B A S A ] o R A
& FLE SRS (T R4 ) -

The Group and the Bank have not had any defaults of principal, interest or
other breaches with respect to their liabilities during the year (2020: nil).

37.1 HEH K 37.1 Lease Liabilities
B EFEEMREEERMZHE& M The maturity profile for lease liabilities associated with leased
WP R premises and equipment assets is as follows:
—EEUT  —EERE WEELE HiAEpLE At
Between Between
One year oneyearand  two yearsand More than
or less two years five years five years Total
Ti#x Ti#x T Ti#x T#x
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BRI N Asat 31 December 2021
LA E—HEAR Other liabilities - lease liabilities 22,513 103,131 1,145,878 84,396 1,355,918
REZREFTHZ4—H As at 31 December 2020
HAb R i —HIE A Other liabilities - lease liabilities 41,605 107,386 271,422 859,529 1,279,942
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38 A 38 SHARE CAPITAL
I8 ¥4 H e B
Number of Ordinary
shares shares
T Ik T#x
in thousands HK$°000
W oECFFE—H—H ~ FFF At January 2020, 31 December 2020,
+=A E*I‘*H —EF-—F—H 1 January 2021 & 31 December 2021
—HE-E - —F+_H=+—H 2,749,000 44,187,631

RS 7 o o W R 1 5513500 > A SRAT A 3 2 ARSI 4
TH{H

38 5 1 A N A REMSCOROAS IR 5 R S I AT
B A RAT R R G L= f — 8
HE o T A I AE 5 A AR SRAT B AR 5 O T S £
&S -

39 WAMEL TR

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
the ordinary shares of the Bank do not have a par value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared
from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Bank. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Bank’s residual
assets.

39 ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

2021 2020
T Tt
HK$’000 HK$°000
10£i 25 oo M A BR IF 2 4% (R &40 US$1 billion undated non-cumulative subordinated

—EARE I additional tier 1 capital securities 7,771,390 7,738,332

25.360% 32 L ME W] R JE A A fE AN  US$2.536 billion undated non-cumulative subordinated
— AR S additional tier 1 capital securities 19,897,375 19,897,375
27,668,765 27,635,707

ATE-NELA T ARTBTAAEE

Fﬁﬁkﬂ% ZiEf%%ﬂﬁﬁ%”‘E%*%ﬁ'é‘Ax w5 ([
—NBIN—REARFE S ”E?%lof‘%m *E

%?EA%’WHSF‘&E u?n[‘%ﬁﬁ%Z%’% AR)

T NEHIN— S E AR TS S B m$4.250%E’J/\{EE:

SREE _EF - —F LA +—HZHEMERH

W o N T NEEA— B G AS i S R A W [

S5 R 51 A T AT AR A IR T A ) SR B [ B 2 LR

fn—18 [ 2 Z W14 B35 (3.135%4F 8 %) TLLERT -

IR AR S A — > AR F A —F—
FE—A T —H o REATAREIH 2 IRA K (2=
T NI MBS 78 5 2 o B A ) P o 2 B
MR BHOH 2 20 R R T 2B o MeAh > R
() w40 IR BLAS $RAT 5 I A AR BE A > HLA == A5 (] <
THE i FE TS 119 70 VR — L S AT IR S B SR T B 7]
SrPCEA AR > 2(b) B R A A RATHUE 2 0 IR AT
X SO B A i SRAT B ) B R Y LA i A
FEL 1E A $RAT B IH 20 IR A 3 (52 =& — N RS — M E
AN I3 2 Ak A ) T R AR R A
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On 21 July 2016, the Bank issued Basel III-compliant Non-Cumulative
Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities (the “2016 Additional
Tier 1 Capital Securities”) in the aggregate amount of US$1 billion
(equivalent to approximately HK$7,738 million net of related issuance
costs). The 2016 Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities bear a 4.250%
distribution until the first call date on 21 July 2021. If the 2016 Additional
Tier 1 Capital Securities are not called, the distribution will be reset based
on the then-prevailing 5-year US Treasury yield plus a fixed initial spread
(3.135% per annum) every 5 years.

The distribution shall be payable semi-annually, with the first distribution
payment date being 21 January 2017. The Bank has the right to cancel
distribution payment (subject to the requirements set out in the terms
and conditions of the 2016 Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities) and the
distribution cancelled shall not be cumulative. In addition, the Bank must
cancel distribution payment (subject to the requirements set out in the
terms and conditions of the 2016 Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities) if
(a) the distribution scheduled to be paid together with other distributions
scheduled to be paid on any parity obligations during the Bank’s then
current fiscal year would exceed the Bank’s distributable reserves; or (b)
the HKMA directs the Bank to cancel such distribution, or an applicable
Hong Kong banking regulation or other requirement of the HKMA
prevents the payment in full of dividends or other distributions when due
on any other parity obligation.
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ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Bank redeemed all the outstanding US$1 billion Additional Tier 1
Capital Securities on 21 July 2021 at a total consideration of HK$7.77
billion.

On 21 March 2018, the Bank issued Basel III-compliant Non-Cumulative
Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities (the “2018 Additional
Tier 1 Capital Securities”) in the aggregate amount of US$2.536 billion
(equivalent to approximately HK$19,897 million net of related issuance
costs). The 2018 Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities bear a 4.90%
distribution until the first call date on 21 March 2023. If the 2018
Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities are not called, the distribution will be
reset based on the then-prevailing 5-year US Treasury yield plus a fixed
initial spread (2.25% per annum) every 5 years.

The distribution shall be payable semi-annually, with the first distribution
payment date being 21 September 2018. The Bank has the right to cancel
distribution payment (subject to the requirements set out in the terms
and conditions of the 2018 Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities) and the
distribution cancelled shall not be cumulative. In addition, the Bank must
cancel distribution payment (subject to the requirements set out in the
terms and conditions of the 2018 Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities) if
(a) the distribution scheduled to be paid together with other distributions
scheduled to be paid on any parity obligations during the Bank’s then
current fiscal year would exceed the Bank’s distributable reserves; or (b)
the HKMA directs the Bank to cancel such distribution, or an applicable
Hong Kong banking regulation or other requirement of the HKMA
prevents the payment in full of dividends or other distributions when due
on any other parity obligation.

The Bank has a call option to redeem all the outstanding 2018 Additional
Tier 1 Capital Securities from 21 March 2023 or any subsequent
distribution payment date thereafter.

On 21 July 2021, the Bank issued Basel III-compliant Non-Cumulative
Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities (the “2021 Additional
Tier 1 Capital Securities”) in the aggregate amount of US$1 billion
(equivalent to approximately HK$7.77 billion net of related issuance
costs). The 2021 Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities bear a 3.3%
distribution until the first call date on 21 July 2026. If the 2021 Additional
Tier 1 Capital Securities are not called, the distribution will be reset based
on the then-prevailing 5-year US Treasury yield plus a fixed initial spread
(2.59% per annum) every 5 years.
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ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The distribution shall be payable semi-annually, with the first distribution
payment date being 21 January 2022. The Bank has the right to cancel
distribution payment (subject to the requirements set out in the terms
and conditions of the 2021 Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities) and the
distribution cancelled shall not be cumulative. In addition, the Bank must
cancel distribution payment (subject to the requirements set out in the
terms and conditions of the 2021 Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities) if
(a) the distribution scheduled to be paid together with other distributions
scheduled to be paid on any parity obligations during the Bank’s then
current fiscal year would exceed the Bank’s distributable reserves; or (b)
the HKMA directs the Bank to cancel such distribution, or an applicable
Hong Kong banking regulation or other requirement of the HKMA
prevents the payment in full of dividends or other distributions when due
on any other parity obligation.

The Bank has a call option to redeem all the outstanding 2021 Additional
Tier 1 Capital Securities from 21 July 2026 or any subsequent distribution
payment date thereafter.

The principal of the Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities will be written
off up to the amount as directed by the HKMA if the HKMA notifies the
Bank that in the opinion of the HKMA or a relevant government body, the
Bank would become non-viable if there is no written off of the principal.
The Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities also contain Hong Kong Bail-
in Power. Each holder of the Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities shall be
subject to the exercise by the Hong Kong Resolution Authority to any or a
combination of the following:

(a) reduction or cancellation of all or a part of the principal and/or
distribution of the Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities;

(b) the conversion of all or a part of the principal and/or distribution
of the Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities into shares or other
securities or other obligations of the Bank or another person; and/or

(c) the amendment of the maturity, distribution payment date and/or
the distribution amount of the Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities.
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40 RESERVES

40.1 Group

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Bank premises revaluation reserve

The bank premises revaluation reserve has been set up and is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies adopted
for land and buildings in note 2.12.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of debt securities and loan measured at FVTOCI
until the financial assets are derecognised and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies in note 2.7.3.

Cash flow hedge reserve

The cash flow hedge reserve comprises the effective portion
of the cumulative net change in the fair value of hedging
instruments used in cash flow hedges pending subsequent
recognition of the hedged cash flow in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for cash flow hedges in note 2.7.4.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 2.11(c).

General reserve

The general reserve of the Group is comprised of a statutory
surplus reserve of a subsidiary represents 10% of the profit
after tax appropriation and 1% of the book value of risk assets
as required by law and regulation in the PRC. This reserve is
used to offset accumulated losses or increase in capital.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group is not required to make

“Regulatory Reserve” (2020: Nil) from the retained earnings. The

regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the
Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision purpose.
Movements in the reserve are made directly through retained

earnings and in consultation with the HKMA.

The consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of the Group
includes a profit of HK$4,509,825,000 (2020: HK$3,447,048,000)
which has been dealt with in the accounts of the Bank.
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40 f;’;ﬁ’fﬁ (%) 40 RESERVES (continued)
40.2 AHAT 40.2 Bank
BATRE  APRUREE A TRURS B
Boff i (am)  CRWHE) il — et RE A it
Bank
premises Fair value Fair value Cash flow
revaluation reserve reserve hedge General Retained
reserve (recycling)  (non-recycling) reserve reserve earnings Total
I T T L A 7 S T S R
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
\E-—H—F—H At 1 January 2021 470,532 897,102 (14,874) (314,700) 219,200 51,630,063 52,907,323
DAAT( R4 F A 2 T Change in fair value of financial assets
AEEREEL measured at fair value through other
ATEEES comprehensive income - 155,073 (16,088) - - - 138,985
B DU (8 Hp Reserve realised on disposal of financial
2 AR AR investments measured at fair value
ZEEBE through other comprehensive income - (329,562) - - - - (329,562)
Ran ez Change in fair value of cash flow hedge
NFREZES - - - 215,578 - - 215,578
ROREENER Revaluation surplus on bank premises 15,961 - - - - - 15,961
ERf Profit for the year - - - - - 4,509,825 4,509,825
IR EEE Change in deferred tax (2,634) 28,791 - (35,570) - - (9,413)
EHEEZBERKTH Net impairment losses on financial
assets - 28,840 - - - - 28,840
FOMER TAZIHR Distributions to additional equity
instruments - - - - - (1,296,067) (1,296,067)
T B MR TR Redemption of an additional equity
instrument - - - - - (33,168) (33,168)
REFZ—EFZA=4—H  At31 December 2021 483,859 780,244 (30962) (134692) 9N SA865 56148302
fFEE  ATEMEREG  ATEERE Hes
BN (R ) (R Em) sl — Rkl R A st
Bank
premises Fair value Fair value Cash flow
revaluation reserve reserve hedge General Retained
reserve (recycling)  (non-recycling) reserve reserve earnings Total
T T T T T T Tk
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
A E-FE-A-A At 1 January 2020 169,876 365,263 (19,936) (91,975) 219,200 49,496,241 50,438,669
DVAFEMEARMATRE  Change in fair value of financial assets
MNESHEEZ measured at fair value through
ATEEZS other comprehensive income - 593,068 5,062 - - - 598,130
B AT A Reserve realised on disposal of
2 AR SRS financial investments measured
ZERB at fair value through other
comprehensive income - 32,445 - - - - 32,445
Hanainz Change in fair value of cash flow
ATEERS hedge = = = (266,737) = - (266,737)
ROFEEGRR Revaluation surplus on bank premises 786 = - - - - 786
R Profit for the year - - - - - 3,447,048 3,447,048
REREZS Change in deferred tax (130) (103,209) - 44012 - - (59,327)
EREEZBERK TS Net impairment losses on financial
assets = 9,535 = = = = 9,535
HitR%EE Other adjustments = = = = = (1,293,226) (1,293,226)
REZZZFEFZHA=+—H At31 December 2020 470,532 897,102 (14,874) (314,700) 219,200 51,650,063 52,907,323
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Listed out below is a summary of the balances and transactions entered
into during the ordinary course of business with the ultimate holding
company and fellow subsidiaries and associate, including the acceptance of
placement of interbank deposits, corresponding banking transactions and
off-balance sheet transactions. The activities were priced at the relevant
market rates at the time of transactions.

41.1 Ultimate holding company

2021 2020

T T

HK$’000 HK$’000

Bt A Interest income 946,559 1,926,426

2 3 i Interest expense® 454,828 611,134

CEIUNE Operating income'? 378,676 1,067,154

(- SE S Operating expense** 257,229 423,561

JRE Wi 4 %A Amounts due from 94,515,883 135,475,232

JRE A 4 BH Amounts due to 115,028,451 148,181,819
1. WMEF-LESATFHER-ZFT— /\4F+ 1. Inaccordance with the agreements dated 20 June 2017 and

At Btk - AERAT a4t g wt B TEE -
TN RS %~ T 5 R B AR B O R O S IR
5 1 1 v (B T R AT A s 0 AT ([ 2047 1) Wi
EILEIA -

2. MESETLFIJLH N HET 2 GEE R
UK B ENERHTAH - ZEEIE
+ A=+ kR _F-HAE—-A+ LA
ST 2 A TR RC A AR IR Th a0 A ERAT S e R HE IR
N 2B A B B A A B A A A
B LB B B AN E 2 35 T G E R
FEAE ~ Hh T R A0 i A A5 T k) e 442 B 7 i
HUIR 7 2

3. MEARROTMR -F_—FN\H - +=HFL
(8 A 7 b e T 16 T Bl 7)) 2 IR 5 W e DA %
AT WA R —F—LE—H =+ —
AT 5L 2 W 5 B k> 7S SRAT 2 L T I 2 W gt
KR I A ) BT R {3t 22 B R B AR B ST AT i
B2 o

4. ME-F - -F=ANBZHEEWH® AH
5 A Y ) S T ) s A R JR A R SO A 4

17 December 2018, management fee income was received
from the Hong Kong Branch of ICBC (the “Branch”) for
the provision of services such as accounting and budgeting,
internal audit, marketing and back office settlement and
clearing.

2. In accordance with the custodian and trustee services
agreement dated 4 September 2007 and the supplemental
custodian and trustee services agreements dated 16 May
2008, 31 December 2009 and 19 January 2015, services fees
were paid by the ultimate holding company to the Bank
for providing custodian, settlement and clearing services
in relation to the investments outside the PRC in certain
investment products by the customers of the ultimate
holding company in connection with the Qualified Domestic
Institutional Investor Scheme of the PRC.

3. Inaccordance with the service level agreements with the Bank
dated 23 August 2021 (as amended and supplemented by
supplemental agreements), and the service levels agreement
with a subsidiary of the Bank dated 21 January 2019, service
fee expense was paid to the ultimate holding company for
the provision of data processing services to the Bank and its
subsidiary.

4. Inaccordance with the tenancy agreement dated 9 March

2021, rental expense was paid to the ultimate holding company
for the leasing of property located in Hong Kong.
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B R e AR RE AR BRI
BUETES LEBAAE - ZERH A
1 B 8RN | K BT AT A B 2 B
ARIT 2 BRI EF,517,047,0004 56 (-
A 3,527,298,0004 70) o A T FE
A ARRATEE B3R 5 18 4 AT S A
2 ) 3 493,230,000 70 (& EAE
6,938,000%5 JT) © % 5 38 7y T ¥ AH B B K
boh i 2 M (gt ) = ] Ho i 2 R AT
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B RO B 2 AR K EE o

264

41

ZEREER
Annual Report 2021

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

41.1 Ultimate holding company (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Committed facilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Bank has committed facilities
to the ultimate holding company in the amount of
RMB700,000,000 (2020: RMB700,000,000). The Bank also
received conglomerate guarantee on loan from the ultimate
holding company in the amount of HK$7,707,622,000 (2020:
HK$6,237,457,000).

Undertaking from the ultimate holding company

To demonstrate its support to the Bank, a letter of comfort
dated 3 July 2001 was executed by the ultimate holding
company, pursuant to which it will provide the Bank with such
funding as may be required by the Bank to ensure that it will
maintain sufficient capital and liquidity levels.

Simultaneously on 3 July 2001, the ultimate holding company
and the Bank entered into a guarantee agreement whereby
the ultimate holding company agreed to guarantee to the
extent of HK$9,000,000,000 the payment obligations of
certain customers whose “large exposures” were transferred
to the Bank pursuant to a business transfer agreement and to
indemnify the Bank in respect of any losses incurred if any
obligation of such customers becomes unenforceable. There
was no such on-balance sheet large exposures of the Bank
covered by this guarantee as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Sub-participation of loans

The Bank entered into various capital markets transactions
with the Branch, which include arranging participation/sub-
participation in loans, acquiring and disposing of interests
in syndicated or individual loans, subscribing to and/or
issuing of debt securities and tax efficient financing. These
transactions included sub-participation in loans of the Bank
by the ultimate holding company and/or the Branch for a total
of HK$1,517,047,000 (2020: HK$3,527,298,000). The total
fee attributable to the above transactions of approximately
HK$3,230,000 was paid by the Bank to the Branch in 2021
(2020: HK$6,938,000). These transactions were priced based
either on the terms of the underlying loan agreement, if
applicable, or prevailing market rates if such comparable rates
were available, or on terms that were no less favorable than
those available to other independent loan members.
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41 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

41.2 Fellow subsidiaries

2021 2020

T#L T

HK$’000 HK$’000

F B U A Interest income 28,199 128,865

F 23 Interest expense 11,574 51,092

EION Operating income 93,490 404,943

'&Ef’% ] Operating expense 128,294 208,785

JRE Wi 42 Amounts due from 881,105 5,409,937

JREAS 4 %8 Amounts due to 3,005,897 2,274,156
41.3 B2 N 41.3 Associates

2021 2020

T#L AR

HK$’000 HKS$’000

FIE Y A Interest income - =

F S 3 Interest expense 3 7

BERA Operating income 7 -

JHE i < %R Amounts due from - =

JRE A 4 % Amounts due to 27,759 947

41.4 B fth [ 5 45 ) B 95 % UM BE B 2 2 5

S B R A ) T T R R R 1Y 22 B
It 3B A 5 T A 1 ) B 14 2 S S T
WEEWA S

o P BEIRFECE
o TRESBEEARITELF (THEED
o ESEEARAREREZZ TEEBUGIERZ

41.4 Transactions with other state controlled entities and

government authority

Transactions with the following state-controlled entities and

government authority are considered as individually significant or

collectively significant to the Group:

. The Ministry of Finance of the PRC

. Central Huijin Investment Limited (“Huijin”)

. Other banks and financial institutions under the direction of

oA SR AT S 4 il B A the PRC government in which Huijin has equity interests
2021 2020
T#L TH#TT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FILE WA Interest income 1,049,036 1,475,400
psSa Interest expense 77,726 82,394
EION Operating income 119,590 133,979
CE S Operating expense 2,204 19,894
JRE Wiz 3 BE Amounts due from 31,899,393 53,134,036
JREAS 4 %8 Amounts due to 5,880,765 3,469,928

LA o A A1 [ T T BELHC At [0 S 42 ) BT I A
BT 2 5 LR AR AS BRI A B A 4 3t < Pl i 3%
W5 o BRI R A - BRLIM S I G4 o) T % BUR B
AT 1) 52 5 R TR I S5 A A AR R I Ak %
AR A DA B 4 i 3 2 AT o [RIUE - MR B 28 2 B
A0 2% J A Al 3t B 2L 5

In addition, the Group may also enter into transactions with other state-

controlled entities and government authority, including but not limited to
lending, deposit taking and the provision of financial products or services.
In the opinion of management, transactions with these state-controlled

entities and government authority were conducted in the ordinary course

of business under normal terms and conditions and at market rates. As a

result, none of these transactions are considered individually significant.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

41.5

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel, including the Bank’s

directors’ emoluments, is as follows:

2021 2020

T#T T

HK$°000 HK$’000

1l 5 48 A Employee benefits 28,436 26,697

41.6 HEBETGBAHZERRS

BN A G M BR B N AR IR S T
HEAT 2 SRAT A5 - S R S HABRTA ~ A7 3K
Lo FLAt 5 AR B 22 5 o BN L B AR AR SR AT
ZEEATHN B - H R AR B 52 HAE )

41.6 Material transactions with key management personnel

During the year, the Group entered into certain banking transactions

consisting of loans and advances, deposits and other financial

related transactions with related parties in the normal course of

business. The related parties include key management personnel of

BRMEZ N o the Bank, their close family members and companies controlled or
significantly influenced by them.

2021 2020
T#T T#T
HK$°000 HKS$’000
FE A Interest income 621 918
FR Interest expense 629 2,140
(e LN Operating income 11 -
B Operating expense 18 =
A2 % A R IE Loans and advances 30,784 36,818
17K Deposits 76,398 87,949

417 BTHEBLREEFAREZ TEZEX

R A s 2 W A6 1) 55383(1) (d) Mk B 24 ) (¢ %
3 4 EORE) B 8 30 40 5 8 1 AR SRAT Y

41.7

Loans to directors and entities connected with directors

Loans to directors of the Bank, including loans to bodies corporate

controlled by them, disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the

P AR > B ) B I ) A T A R Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies
my (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation
are as follows:
R+_HA=+—H2Z
A AE IR B A AR Y J5: 4 45 B
Balance outstanding Maximum balance
at 31 December during the year
2021 2020 2021 2020
T#x T#E T T#L TH#TT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
RAB AL T A B 458 Aggregate amount outstanding in respect of
principal and interest 31,316 36,954 37,452 37,517
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TRANSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group enters into transactions in the normal course of business by
which it transfers recognised financial assets to third parties. In some cases
these transfers may give rise to full or partial derecognition of the financial
assets concerned. In other cases where the transferred assets do not qualify
for derecognition as the Group has retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of these assets, the Group continued to recognise the transferred
assets.

Repurchase transactions and securities lending transactions

Transferred financial assets that do not qualify for derecognition
mainly include debt securities held by counterparties as collateral under
repurchase agreements and debt securities lent to counterparties under
securities lending agreements. The counterparties are allowed to sell
or repledge those securities sold under agreements to repurchase in
the absence of default by the Group, but has an obligation to return the
securities at the maturity of the contract. If the securities increase or
decrease in value, the Group may in certain circumstances require or be
required to pay additional cash collateral. The Group has determined that
it retains substantially all the risks and rewards of these securities and
therefore has not derecognised them. In addition, it recognises a financial
liability for cash received as collateral.

The following table analyses the carrying amount of the above mentioned
financial assets transferred to third parties that did not qualify for
derecognition and their associated financial liabilities:

—2-—-4#+=-H=+—H
31 December 2021

Tl ¥ B £ A
1 M i ¥ M i
Carrying Carrying
amount of amount of
transferred associated
Assets liabilities
T#x T#x
HK$’°000 HK$’000
[=] B T e Repurchase agreements 28,615,021 27,377,389
i H 8 5 Tih Securities lending agreements 9,900,844 9,191,964
CEF CREFT A =+—H
31 December 2020
R T AH B £
114 i TH (6 114 i TH (L
Carrying Carrying
amount of amount of
transferred associated
assets liabilities
TH#s 7T TH#TT
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
ﬁﬁ%’]% Repurchase agreements 4,242,300 3,658,468
i H 8 25 1h Securities lending agreements 2,321,010 2,133,707
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TRANSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)
Discounted bills transactions

The Group enters into discounted bills transactions in the normal course
of business by which it transfers discounted bills to third parties in the
PRC with recourse term which would give rise to the Group’s continuing
involvement in the transferred assets. As at 31 December 2021, the Group
retain obligation on those PRC discounted bills transferred but not
matured with a carrying amount of HK$828,094,000 (2020: Nil).

OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES

43.1 Contingent liabilities and commitments

The following are summaries of the contractual amounts of each

# 4 BE A significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments:

2021 2020

2021 i 2020 5 R

R kR T 781 B H e iR

Contractual Credit risk Contractual Credit risk

amount weighted amount weighted

T#x T#x T T T

HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000

B HAe BEAURS il Direct credit substitutes 14,662,978 12,442,206 6,761,051 5,584,145

HLAZ 5 A B 2 sk SR S IH Transaction-related contingencies 212,911 92,988 102,310 38,066

BL¥E by A bR 2 SR S IH Trade-related contingencies 13,772,479 2,653,191 14,850,549 2,901,242

7 B A AR K Forward deposit placed - - 1,482,557 596,511
JEEN ) HAnF 2 HABRYE © Other commitments with an original

maturity of:

CIEIEFSER T Unconditionally cancellable 158,990,882 - 145,714,654 =

JEEI A B Dk — 4R With original maturity of less than one year 828,094 414,047 - -

JRE A AE— 4Rk With original maturity of over one year 62,973,571 29,760,586 44,848,872 21,122,500

251,440,915 45,363,018 213,759,993 30,242,464

g R B PR M A 1 B0 O i LA
TR Bk 2 Bty B i o KA 2 e A
WAAE R~ BB I 2 B G R s A AT 5 > A
L A5 SEAR B TR - A6 I~ IR
B2 RYE o ISR SR AR B T H BT I 2 JE B
KB L B i) B 5 45 K B e 2 R
R B AR TR = < 4 < 20 A 40 4 BRI 2 R
W B 5 5 4t R A8 ST R 368 JEU B 2 o e R
AT REAE R AR IUT JEN - 5 A AN S
REIRAB S -

s EAE A JEL B HE 4 8 B A 2 JE B LG & A R
0%%100% °
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Contingent liabilities and commitments arise from forward asset
purchases, amounts owing on partly paid-up shares and securities,
forward deposits placed, asset sales or other transactions with
recourse, as well as credit-related instruments which include letters
of credit, guarantees and commitments to extend credit. The risk
involved in these credit-related instruments is essentially the same
as the credit risk involved in extending loan facilities to customers.
The contractual amounts represent the amounts at risk should the
contract be fully drawn upon and the client default. As the facilities
may expire without being drawn upon, the contract amounts do not
represent expected future cash flows.

The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk weighted
amounts range from 0% to 100%.



b Sl SR
Annual Report 2021

43 EEAERINRE @0
432 BEARRIE

/e ko R & B N & P i
N T ) e S A RIS BR AN T

o T SRAT (W) A R4

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

WEF - —F+_H=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

43 OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES (continued)
43.2 Capital commitments
Capital commitments for property, plant and equipment

outstanding as at 31 December 2021 not provided for in the financial
statements were as follows:

ACSE

Group
2021 2020
T#x T#TT
HK$’000 HKS$°000
B RT A M R 2 S Expenditure contracted but not provided for 4,404 11,526
ERMEMRRTH Z Expenditure authorised but not contracted for - 3,924
4,404 15,450

433 REMAZHE

7% A1 T AR 457 A AL 46 22 B 2 i A 1 T
INAE Z FRA LA AL W (5 B 5 i 3 B
29) o FHAHK — M AN B 5 AR A A S A R4
e o S AT B AR 5 R R i DL AR AR
PEE o

ATE—F+H=1+—H > AEEEL
T 21 3 3 R AR PR AS T S i A8 AL A0 R R Bk
JE Sz FLAR RN B i I 4 A AR T R

43.3 Operating lease arrangements

The Group leases its investment properties (Note 29 to the financial
statements) under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from two to eight years. The terms of
the leases generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits
and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.

At at 31 December 2021, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
falling due as follows:

2021 2020

T#L T

HK$’000 HK$’000

— " Within one year 4,645 4,432
—AEAR B LA (R R WA From one year to fifth years, inclusive 7,468 10,207
12,113 14,639

AR A AR A R R B U AR & (2R =
i) o

During the year, the Group had no unrecognised contingent rentals
receivable (2020: Nil).
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Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting

P BT ) arrangements and similar agreements
A R L P R 2 A
Amounts not offset in the statement of financial position
S B i S B
i} WREH  ORUEZH
SWERE WA ZH
M Gross Net amounts
Gross amounts presented cksie
amounts of offset in the in the G40 5
recognised statement of statement of BT R Cash
financial financial financial Financial collateral X ]
assets position position instruments received Net amount
Ti#x T#x T#x T#x Ti#x Ti#x
BERZEFZAZF—H  At31December 2021 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
it ERMERE Derivative financial assets 9,025,156 - 9,025,156 (2,313,780) (307,890) 6,403,486
HibgeE Other assets 222,997 - 222,997 (140,381) - 82,616
9,248,153 - 9,248,153 (2,454,161) (307,890) 6,486,102
BRIV SR ISR AR i P&t |
Amounts not offset in the statement of financial position
i S B i S B
CiE WoEl  ORUEEH
AR M AH Z i
ZHH Gross Net amounts
Gross amounts presented [RE
amounts of offset in the in the iz
recognised statement of statement of AHIR Cash
financial financial financial Financial collateral b
liabilities position position instruments pledged Net amount
T#5L T#x T T#x T#x T#x
BEF T ZHZ1—H  At31December 2021 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
ik &MEaE Derivative financial liabilities 4,098,119 - 4,098,119 (2,313,780) (1,041,047) 743,292
Hopth 7 i Other liabilities 191,738 - 191,738 (140,381) - 51,357
4,289,857 - 4,289,857 (2,454,161) (1,041,047) 794,649
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44 b A Mol AR 2 HREE (a0 44 OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)
f A B IR R S 2 2
Amounts not offset in the statement of financial position
ik B T B
CHER MARA  RAKEF
SHEE A ZHH
2B Gross Net amounts
Gross amounts presented Bk
amounts of offset in the in the 5
recognised statement of statement of SMTH Cash
financial financial financial Financial collateral T
assets position position instruments received Net amount
bt bt Fibit it bt bt
WEFZFFEFZA=1—H  At31December 2020 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
i SmEE Derivative financial assets 8,572,833 - 8,572,833 (1,825,555) (1,902,084) 4,845,194
Hib g Other assets 279,231 = 279,231 (150,401) - 128,830
8,852,064 - 8,852,064 (1,975,956) (1,902,084) 4,974,024
Al % B R AR 2
Amounts not offset in the statement of financial position
T A g7
BRER MAERAR  RRKES
SRAR  mHzAE 2R
2% Gross Net amounts
Gross amounts presented kB &
amounts of offset in the in the il
recognised statementof ~ statement of SHIH Cash
financial financial financial Financial collateral T
liabilities position position instruments pledged Net amount
T T T Tt Tkt T
MEFZZEFZA=T—H  At31December 2020 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M EmA & Derivative financial liabilities 2,673,790 = 2,673,790 (1,825,555) (1,189,486) (341,251)
A Other liabilities 249,023 - 249,023 (150,401) = 98,622
2,922,813 - 2,922,813 (1,975,956) (1,189,486) (242,629)

WA 3 TR R BT REA RS DR e WA
5 R MR AT & T BRI IR 5 B E R AHUR LR
<5 0 % < i R (RO AT RS I T A IR DR Y
LFHET o

B S A7 B 5 R DL R AEAT HE 8 2 A 2 AT A T
FUR ALl W 1 sk BLLA R 22 B A B

o BT O7BORAR [ 2 [H A AT RS 1 I HLE
SE HB TR RS SR 2 B A R AR A
R BN R B R DT T AT
HRS 2 HEA > 75 FUHR S8 A6 0 R REE A 5 B

ot EARZE S E i TR 2 B AR o

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount

is reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally

enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an

intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

Derivatives and reverse repurchase/repurchase agreements included

in amounts not offset in the statement of financial position relate to

transactions where:

. the counterparty has an offsetting exposure with the Group and a

master netting or similar arrangement is in place with a right of set
off only in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy, or the
offset criteria are otherwise not satisfied; and

. cash collateral received/pledged in respect of the transactions

described above.
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OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

The tables below reconcile the “net amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position”, as set out above, to the derivative assets, other assets, derivative
liabilities and other liabilities presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

ZE A= R CRFE A= —H

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
kT H itk TH
¥ J0 b ¥ & oAt ¥ g
Derivative Other Derivative Other
assets assets assets assets
T T#x T T U T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
AR AE SR 2 S RE E 4 Net amount of financial assets after
offsetting as stated above 9,025,156 222,997 8,572,833 279,231
N A H1K B 4 2 R T A Financial assets not in scope of
Z R offsetting disclosure 1,949,416 10,197,020 7,892,354 16,343,689
10,974,572 10,420,017 16,465,187 16,622,920

SESEFSASE R SECRET A H

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
fiZk TR fiidE TR
£ 4% b £ A5 =K HoAth £ 5
Derivative Other Derivative Other
liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilities
T T FitE Fit Tt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
LA HE SR 2 Al A R4 Net amount of financial liabilities after
offsetting as stated above 4,098,119 191,738 2,673,790 249,023
AN AE IS 81 94 R 1 Financial liabilities not in scope of
Z & A fE offsetting disclosure 4,486,337 11,277,004 12,950,407 15,750,033
8,584,456 11,468,742 15,624,197 15,999,056
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45 BANKLEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e e A et 2
+=ZA=+—H +=-A=+—H
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
T¥#L THs T
HK$’000 HK$’000
¥ e - Assets
4 S AR SRAT ] 26 K Hofth 4 Rl M 4% 2 45 8%  Cash and balances with banks and other financial
B institutions 168,321,543 107,507,731
TEERAT ] 25 K /E\:ﬁﬂ 4 R RS 2 A7 3K Placements with banks and other financial institutions 57,101,971 106,455,509
FlEs2 5 & 4 i & B Financial assets held for trading 92,807 -
A /L\\qziﬁgi HAHE % R AIE 4 & = Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 477,020 470,123
A A fi T B Derivative financial instruments 10,957,596 15,593,573
ﬁf’)( T Ho A HR IR Advances and other accounts 373,386,487 394,949,925
S RE Financial investments: 168,343,312 150,662,314
— DA S5 (B A6 A 2 T Wi A AR - measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income 129,394,220 123,445,477
— DA B B AR AR - measured at amortised cost 38,949,092 27,216,837
/NI S Investments in associates 301,955 151,955
R B A EZ /E Investments in subsidiaries 13,521,424 12,281,535
P % H A e T Goodwill and other intangible assets 946,908 948,130
id-¢/ES Investment properties 116,100 93,100
LUE V&40 Property, plant and equipment 1,888,413 1,888,358
U G I 15 B Deferred income tax assets 530,147 358,207
oAt & e Other assets 10,540,822 15,978,778
¥ At 44 Total assets 806,526,505 807,339,238
£ A Liabilities
SRAT IR] 3% B H A 5 il B B 2 773K Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 152,135,941 162,043,088
ik 4/ T H Derivative financial instruments 8,223,353 15,236,825
%A Deposits from customers 492,529,023 471,478,918
8T A7 K8 Certificates of deposit issued 5,632,713 7,045,548
BT ES Debt securities in issue 9,518,190 10,920,365
JRE A5 BT A5 B0 & % Current income tax liabilities 318,924 862,295
HoAh & 15 Other liabilities 10,163,663 15,021,538
1115 48 % Total liabilities 678,521,807 682,608,577
L E Equity
A Share capital 44,187,631 44,187,631
B i ) Retained earnings 54,830,653 51,650,063
Ho Al it A5 Other reserves 1,317,649 1,257,260
St JB A A SR AT R RN £ AR AR Total equity attributable to shareholders of the Bank 100,335,933 97,094,954
HHAMESE TR Additional equity instruments 27,668,765 27,635,707
il 2 A Total equity 128,004,698 124,730,661
Bl 2 B £1 435 4 %8 Total equity and liabilities 806,526,505 807,339,238
MEREGR T FE=H A0 H LR Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2022.
w5 Wl Y Gao Ming Wu Long
TR BT > BT Chairman Vice Chairman,
Hir#EH FEAT B % & Executive Executive Director &
Director Chief Executive Officer
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THE ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company of the Bank
is Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, which is established
in the PRC and produces financial statements available for public use.

INVOLVEMENT WITH UNCONSOLIDATED
STRUCTURED ENTITIES

The Group holds an interest in some structured entities sponsored by
third party institutions through investments in the notes issued by these
structured entities. Such structured entities include investment funds and
segregated asset management plans and the Group does not consolidate
these structured entities. The nature and purpose of these structured
entities are to generate fees from managing assets on behalf of investors
and are financed through the issue of notes to investors.

The following table sets out an analysis of the carrying amounts of interests
held by the Group in the structured entities sponsored by third party
institutions:

e i B
31 December 2021

WewifE BRI RB N
Carrying Maximum
amount exposure
T#L T#L
HK$’000 HK$°000
Eig-g % Investment funds 8,418,162 8,418,162
8,418,162 8,418,162

e e AV ESE

31 December 2020

WRWEE  EKERMO
Carrying Maximum
amount exposure
T Tl
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
B RS Investment funds 7,783,663 7,783,663
7,783,663 7,783,663
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47 INVOLVEMENT WITH UNCONSOLIDATED
STRUCTURED ENTITIES (continued)

The following table sets out an analysis of the line items in the statement
of financial position as in which assets were recognised relating to the
Group’s interests in structured entities sponsored by third parties:

R4 -H=1—H
31 December 2021

PLA V- fE

iR E
AR&EmEr Ak 4opEE
Financial Derivative
£k assets at financial
Loans FVTPL assets
T#IT T T#L
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
fid- g S Investment funds 4,274,648 477,019 3,666,495
4,274,648 477,019 3,666,495

S L A
31 December 2020

PLAEEAE

K48 4 =
ARG RER A
Financial Derivative
B assets at financial
Loans FVTPL assets
T oo T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
HE RS Investment funds 4,250,429 470,123 3,063,111
4,250,429 470,123 3,063,111

48 L&

A T BT CE R A& A4 B BR A 2 B
B R i W7 K e

48 COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the
financial statement presentation adopted in the current year.
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Branches, Subsidiaries and Associates
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HEADQUARTERS

33/F., ICBC Tower,

3 Garden Road,

Central, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 3510 8888
Facsimile: (852) 2805 1166

Post Box: GPO Box 872 Hong Kong
SWIFT: UBHKHKHH

Website: http://www.icbcasia.com

BRANCHES - HONG KONG ISLAND

West Point Branch
242-244 Queen’s Road West,
Sai Ying Pun, Hong Kong

West Point Personal Banking Centre (No teller service)
Shop 2, G/F, 345-345A Des Voeux Road West, Hong Kong

Sheung Wan Branch
Shop F, G/F, Kai Tak Commercial Building,
317-319 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

Queen's Road Central Branch
Basement, Ground Floor and First Floor of 122 QRC,
Nos. 122-126 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong

Central Branch
Shop A1, 1/F, 9 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong

Admiralty Branch
Shop 1013-1014, 1/F, United Centre,
95 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong

Admiralty Personal Banking Centre (No teller service)
Shop 1019-1020,1/F., United Centre,
95 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong

Caine Road Branch
G/F., Caine Building, 22 Caine Road,
Hong Kong

Wanchai Branch
117-123 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

Wanchai Road Branch
G/F Times Media Centre, No.133 Wan Chai Road,
Hong Kong

Happy Valley Branch
23 King Kwong Street, Happy Valley,
Hong Kong
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

Aberdeen Branch
Shop 7A, G/F, Site 1, Aberdeen Centre,
Hong Kong

Electric Road Branch
113-115 Electric Road, Hong Kong

Fortress Hill Branch
Shop A-C, G/F, Kwong Chiu Terrace,
272-276 King’s Road, Hong Kong

North Point Branch
G/F, 436-438 King’s Road, North Point,
Hong Kong

Quarry Bay Branch

Shop SLG1, Sub-Lower Ground Floor,
Westlands Gardens, Nos. 2-12, Westlands Road,
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Sai Wan Ho Branch
Shop G10 G/F, Tai On Building,
57-87 Shau Kei Wan Road, Hong Kong

Siu Sai Wan Branch
Shop Nos 17-19, Ground Floor, Harmony Garden,
No.9 Siu Sai Wan Road, Hong Kong

Causeway Bay Branch
Shop A on G/F, 1/F, Hennessy Apartments,
488 & 490 Hennessy Road, Hong Kong
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BRANCHES - KOWLOON

Tsimshatsui East Branch

Shop B, G/F, Railway Plaza, 39 Chatham Road South,

Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

Tsim Sha Tsui Branch
Shop 1&2, G/F, No. 35-37 Hankow Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

China Hong Kong City Branch

Shop No. 55, UG/F & Shop Nos. 15,16 & 17B,
1/F, China Hong Kong City, 33 Canton Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

Yaumatei Branch
542 Nathan Road, Yaumatei, Kowloon

Mongkok Branch
G/F, Belgian Bank Building,
721-725 Nathan Road, Mongkok, Kowloon

Prince Edward Branch
777 Nathan Road, Mongkok, Kowloon

Shamshuipo Branch
G/F, 290 Lai Chi Kok Road, Shamshuipo, Kowloon

Lai Chi Kok Branch
Shop G06, G/F, Cheung Sha Wan Plaza,
833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon

Mei Foo Branch
Shop N95A, 1/F, Mount Sterling Mall,
Mei Foo Sun Chuen, Kowloon

Ho Man Tin Branch
G/F, Tsan Yung Mansion, No. 70 Waterloo Road,
Ho Man Tin, Kowloon

Oi Man Branch
Shop F18 & F19, Oi Man Plaza,
Oi Man Estate, Homantin, Kowloon

Hung Hom Branch
Shop 2A, G/F, Hung Hom Shopping Mall,
2-34E Tak Man Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon

Mok Cheong Street Branch
12-14 Mok Cheong Street, Tokwawan, Kowloon

Wong Tai Sin Branch
Shop 128, Level One, Temple Mall South,
103 Ching Tak Street, Wong Tai Sin, Kowloon

Telford Branch

Shop Units P19-P20, Telford Plaza, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

Kwun Tong Branch
Shop 5&6,1/F, Crocodile Center, 79 Hoi Yuen Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon
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BRANCHES - NEW TERRITORIES

Tsui Lam Branch

Shop No. 135,5/F, Tsui Lam Square, Tsui Lam Estate,
No. 11 Tsui Lam Road,

Tseung Kwan O, New Territories

Tseung Kwan O Personal Banking Centre (No teller service)
Shop 1025B, Level 1, Metro City Phase II,

8 Yan King Road,

Tseung Kwan O, New Territories

Tseung Kwan O Branch

Shop 1025A, Level 1, Metro City Phase II,
8 Yan King Road,

Tseung Kwan O, New Territories

Kwai Fong Branch
C63A-C66, 2/F, Kwai Chung Plaza,
Kwai Fong, New Territories

Kwai Chung Branch

Unit G02, Tower A, Regent Centre,
63 Wo Yi Hop Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories

Sha Tsui Road Branch
Shop 4, G/F Chung On Building, 297-313 Sha Tsui Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories

Sha Tsui Road Personal Banking Centre (No teller service)
Shop 4, G/F, Kwong Yick Building,

315-323 Sha Tsui Road,

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

Tuen Mun San Hui Branch

Shop GA on G/F & 1/F, COO Residence,
8 Kai Fat Path,

Tuen Mun, New Territories

Tai Hing Branch

Shop 21-23 Tai Hing Commercial Complex,
Tai Hing Estate,

Tuen Mun, New Territories

Yuen Long Branch
G/F, 197-199 Castle Peak Road,
Yuen Long, New Territories

Kau Yuk Road Personal Banking Centre (No teller service)
Shop 3 & 4, G/F, Ying Cheong Building, 21 Kau Yuk Road,
Yuen Long, New Territories

Shatin Personal Banking Centre (No teller service)
Shop No.185, Level 3, Shatin Lucky Plaza, Shatin, New Territories

Shatin Branch
Shop 22], Level 3, Shatin Centre, New Territories

Tai Po Branch

Shop F, G/F, Mee Fat Building,
No 34-38 Tai Wing Lane,

Tai Po, New Territories

Tai Wo Branch

Shop 216,2/F, Tai Wo Plaza, Tai Wo Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories
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N\ & ¥ i) Sheung Shui Branch
TS b K A T S A 33 55 T K T 2 5% Shop 2, G/F, San Fung Building,

No.33 San Fung Avenue, Shek Wu Hui,
Sheung Shui, New Territories

#H1 3 47 OVERSEAS BRANCH
B2 5 AT Cayman Islands Branch
P.O. 1353 P.O. 1353
Harbour Place Harbour Place
5th Floor 5th Floor
103 Church Street 103 Church Street
George Town George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1108 Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands Cayman Islands
Wf J§ 2 ) SUBSIDIARIES
[ SR AT Chinese Mercantile Bank
4R 5 < SE AT B 2 7 ICBC (Asia) Bullion Company Limited
TAREE N & A BRA R (% B B 878 ¥ 4) ICBC (Asia) Futures Company Limited (In members’ voluntary liquidation)
I@E g,{: j:fik AR ﬂ ICBC Asset Management (Global) Company Limited
ICBC (Asia) Nominee Limited
Al ICBC (Asia) Securities Limited
If&iﬁdl” j1":ﬁ PR\ 7] ICBC (Asia) Trustee Company Limited
68 s o < R 5 A PR ICBC (Asia) Financial Services Company Limited
Iﬁ&ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬂ%&%f"ﬂ B FRAF R R 5 JB A 15 B (R YIN A IR 2 )
e B — e R R < Bl RO PR SINO-CEEF Holding Company Limited
W ] ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
IEC Investments Limited (/& — & — 4 — H + _ H i &0 IEC Investments Limited (Dissolved on 12 January 2022)
AR EAE A PR A SINO-CEEF Capital Management Company Limited
Infinium Holdings Limited Infinium Holdings Limited
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B 5E Tel (852) 3510 8888

{EH Fax (852) 2805 1166

www.icbcasia.com
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